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Lepu ScienTech Medical Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.

HELRBERE (L8) ROBRAE

Definitions

B=

In this annual report, the following expressions have the RAFERP - BRIEXEZHAE - THH
meanings set out below unless the context requires otherwise: FEAETXERE

‘2022 AGM”

[2022FRBFAE |

“Articles of Association”
[AAIERE]

“Actual Controller”

[BEERIEHIA L

“Articles” or “Articles of
Association”

[ER IR ARIER]

“ASD”

[ = PR R R |

"Anhui Magete"

[ Z BSR4
“Audit Committee”
(B ZEE

“Board of Supervisors”

(2= & |

“Board”

[E=g]

the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be held
on Thursday, June 15, 2023, or any adjournment thereof
RARIHER2023F6 A158 (RBM) BT RERRBF NG HET

&S

the articles of association of the Company, as amended, modified or
otherwise supplemented from time to time

ARBZCARER) (BTRER] - RBYHIARALTT A HTE)

the individual or entity that can control a company by way of
investment relationship, contracts or other arrangements according
to the Listing Rules of the ChiNext Board of the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange ((RYBEHXZMAIERRE EMMRAID)) where Lepu
Medical, our controlling shareholder, is listed

RBERRREE SRR FMmCORIBFHFRZEIERRE TR
) BBKRERRER  BERIEEMTHENEREARITANEA

HEE

the amended and restated articles of association of our Company,
conditionally adopted on June 9, 2021 with effect from the Listing
Date, and as amended from time to time

RARF2021F6 AOB B RMRME B - B H R ERA S 7] &
B R T ER (KTNKIEET)

atrial septal defect, a remnant opening, or a defect, between the left
and right atria resulting from the abnormal development, absorption
and fusion of the atrial septum during embryonic development
FEHERRE  KihEEsRER  FHERBONES  REMREHERR
w0 BEE - AUREZHENER ARG

Anhui Magete Medical Technology Co., Ltd." (X & BREEER
AR AF), a limited liability company established in the PRC on
November 22, 2016 and an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of
Lepu Medical

ZRHABREBEMRBR AR —KR20165F11 A22 BRFEMK
YHERATF - RELTERNEZRIEZEWNBRR]

the audit committee of the Board

ESgFRES

the board of supervisor(s) of our Company

RABEES

the board of Directors of the Company
RRGIESEE



“CDH Supermatrix”

[ CDH Supermatrix |

“CG Code”
[{EEER<TAN]

“CHD’

[ R MU B s

“Company” or “ScienTech
Medical” or “company”

EANCIREARNE S 5 -3 13
IVNCIN

“controlling shareholder(s)”

[ 2 RS ER

“Director(s)

[E=]
“Dr. Pu”
[SEEL |

“Entrusted Products”

[&rtEmR]

“EU?
X
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CDH Supermatrix D Limited, a limited liability company incorporated
under the laws of Hong Kong on April 27, 2021 and a Pre-IPO
Investor

CDH Supermatrix D Limited » —FK1X2021F4 527 BREFHEDI
M BRETARIRERAARBENREE

the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules
CETHRADH TS KRBT

congenital heart disease, the formation of the heart and blood
vessels during embryonic development or abnormal development
or failure to close the channels that should be automatically closed
after birth, resulting in abnormalities in the solid structure or function
of the blood vessels in the heart or thoracic cavity

EREOHRE  ERREERBAENOHEROENEKERIEER
BRHEARERDBEFNBEBEARERS B OMIMEANNEN L
BAEBIIRERES

LEPU ScienTech Medical Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.* (%%
ELFEERERE(LE)RMAERRAR), a joint stock limited liability
company established in the PRC on January 29, 2021 and whose
Shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
SELNRBEMK (L8) ROABRIA - —KNR202141 A29B R
BIK MR ER AR - ARG B AERET

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

BAECEMRUDE T ZANEE

the director(s) of our Company

RABER

Dr. Pu Zhongjie (38287K), one of the controlling shareholders of the
Company and the Actual Controller of Lepu Medical

SHENEL - ARREBRRR 2 - REEBRANERIZEH A

the TAVR system, TMVCRS and balloon dilatation catheter for aortic
valve that the Group entrusted the Retained Lepu Medical Group for
its R&D, registration and production pursuant to an asset transfer
agreement (including an intellectual property transfer agreement as
attached thereto) entered into between Shanghai Shape Memory
Alloy and Lepu Medical in January 2021

BIE B MREIRE @M EEERBEN2021F1 ARTNEEEZE
Z (BRENANBEEEZHR)  FAEERARTLEEREEE
T AMREENSEEBAREBRBEZRLS - TMVCRS K+
PR RIRBIREREE

the European Union

B B B



Lepu ScienTech Medical Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.

HELRBERE (L8) ROBRAE

Definitions

B=

“Global Offering”
[ IREE ]

“Group", nwen, uusn, or “our”

[ SR | 52

“HK dollar” or “HK$”
[B7l

“Hong Kong”
(&

“Huaihua Haozhi”
[ s ]
“IFRS”

[CEERR B 75 s 22 Rl ) |

“Independent Third Party(ies)”

(B E=77]
“KOLs”
[EARAEXK
“LAA”
[0 H ]
"Lepu India"

[Lepu India ]

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Prospectus
BERMRERE TZANRE

the Company and its subsidiary from time to time
KRa)| RETER N E QA

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
EREEEBET

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
HEEBRITTRR

Huaihua Haozhi Enterprise Management Partnership (Limited
Partnership)’ (B{LiEE R EER AR B E(BRAR)), a limited liability
partnership established under the laws of the PRC on February 19,
2020 and a Pre-IPO Investor

BILEECEERAELE (BARER) - —KMN2020F2 A19ARE
REDEER UM ERAEEERBEAARABENRESE

refers to International Financial Reporting Standards, amendments
and interpretations issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board

B et EAREeRmO(ERMBRELER) BT L2E

an individual(s) or a company(ies) who or which is/are not connected
(within the meaning of the Listing Rules) with any Directors, chief
executives or substantial shareholders (within the meaning of
the Listing Rules) of our Company, its subsidiary or any of their
respective associates

HEARE  ABARMNEAES  F2THRABRTERR(EER
(EMARAD) IREZTENEMBEAGTERE(EER(ETHRAD)
EERMEA KA R

key opinion leaders, who are professionals that influence their peers’
medical practice, including but not limited to prescribing behavior
EREXR  RERTTHNERER (BREFINRRES1TR) EETED
BEEATL

left atrial appendage, a long, narrow and curved blind-end structure
extending forward and downward along the anterior wall of the left
atrium, which has active diastolic and secretory functions

ELE  REOERRIERE NERNKRE SO EREE - AF
EEPEF MR AN 0 AT BE

LepuCare (India) Vascular Solutions Private Limited, a company
limited shares incorporated on April 30, 2016 in India and a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Lepu Medical

LepuCare (India) Vascular Solutions Private Limited © —Z 120164 4
RABOBEENEAMAZMRHOBRAR - RELTERNEZENEAQF]



“Lepu Medical”

Ef 18

“Lepu Medical Group”

[SEEBEREE ]

"Lepu Shanghai"

22}

EAS

]

“Listing”

[ 7]
“Listing Date”
[ FTREH

“Listing Rules”
[ ETRAN]

“Main Board”
[ £ ]

“Model Code”

[{REESTAD |

“Ningbo Bingkun”

[ 225 R 28 |

“Ningbo Jiacheng”

[EREE
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Lepu Medical Technology (Beijing) Co., Ltd.* (%% (1b )% &
LW BRAF]), a company listed on the ChiNext Board of
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock code: 300003, one of our
controlling shareholders

(R BEEMROBRAR - —KRRNEHXZAEIERE
MHAF] (FBHMNE © 300003) @ AIERER 2 —

Lepu Medical and its subsidiaries
LT RENENEAR

Lepu Medical Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.* (%43 (L/5)8m&8%
WA AR, a limited liability company established in the PRC on
March 1, 2016, and a non-wholly owned subsidiary of Lepu Medical
% (L8)BEBWERAR - —KN2016F3 1 BRFABIK A
BRAT - REEBENE2EMBEARFR

the listing of Shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on
November 8, 2022
B3 702022411 A8 BB R FTE AR

November 8, 2022, being the date on which the Shares of the

Company were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
20224511 A8H » BIARARIRMABERZ R ey B

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
B PE S EAR Al

the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
R P ER

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules

FRCLEMRAD S+ EMBEITAETETEFIZNRETRD

Ningbo Bingkun Medical Devices Co., Ltd.* (X RIEEZERIE
BBR/AF], a limited liability company established in the PRC on
November 24, 2014 and a non-wholly owned subsidiary of Lepu
Medical

ERFEBEMBEARDF - —KR2014F11 24 AR R BEIK K
ERAF RRETEENIEZENBAR

Ningbo Jiacheng Enterprise Management Partnership (Limited
Partnership) (B K= ZEEERSRER(EREE)), a limited liability
partnership established on February 22, 2021 in the PRC and the
shareholding platform for the employees of the Lepu Medical Group
ERFEZCXEERAREE (AREXE)  —xKMN2021F2 422N
B M EREZEE  AETBRESEREENFRRKRTS



Lepu ScienTech Medical Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.

HELRBERE (L8) ROBRAE

Definitions

B=

“Ningbo Jiadu”

“‘NMPA”

H
5
B
i
o

“PDA”

[ EHARE & R
“PFO”

[Nl LA

“PRC” or “China”

[ E

“Pre-IPO Investors”

[BRARBERRESE]

“Pre-IPO Shareholders
Agreement”

[BRARBEEARR
3% |

“Prospectus”
[HBRER]

"Relevant Activities"

[BRREE

Ningbo Jiadu Enterprise Management Partnership (Limited
Partnership) (ERFETPEERAREE(BRAER)), a limited liability
partnership established on February 22, 2021 in the PRC and the
shareholding platform for our employees
ERECEEREARCE(AREY)  —KK2021F2H22 ARNH
B HEREGZEE - AERMEENFRTS

the National Medical Products Administration of the PRC (BX
BEGESEEIRE), formerly known as the China Food and Drug
Administration

FHREREGEEEER BRI REREMNESETERR

patent ductus arteriosus, a remnant opening of the ductus
arteriosus, which fails to close normally in one year after birth
BIRGERME  HE—FRIDAEEFHSNBIKEENEE RH

patent foramen ovale, a remnant opening of the fetal foramen ovale,
which fails to close normally in one year after birth
IPEIFLARR - HAE—FRINAREEFRHE R ZINEFLAEE AR

the People’s Republic of China, excluding, for the purposes of this
report, Hong Kong, the Macau Special Administrative Region and
Taiwan

REARAMNE - AREMS - TEESDS RFIFITHRERE

the pre-IPO investors, namely Vivo Capital Fund IX, Sequoia Capital
China Growth, SHC, Huaihua Haozhi and CDH Supermatrix, details
of which are set out in the Prospectus

BXAFABERRESE - BVivo Capital Fund IX * Sequoia Capital
China Growth * L/ Y8 % - 1Z(LESE K CDH Supermatrix » 715
HNBRER

the shareholders’ agreement of our Company entered into among
Lepu Medical, Dr. Pu, Target Medical, Ningbo Jiadu, Ningbo
Jiacheng, Shanghai Shape Memory Alloy, the Pre-IPO Investors and
the Company dated May 28, 2021
RAFIREERE  HEL - RN  BERRE  BREE - LE
R EaeeMAREX A AREENREEFZNAHR2021F5 A4
28 BV AN IR R 1555

the prospectus issued by the Company on October 27, 2022 in
connection with the Hong Kong public offering of the Shares

ARABHEBAFRBEERMDN2022F10 A27 H T3 A AR S 2

research and development, registration and manufacturing activities
relating to the Entrusted Products (to the extent that the then
applicable PRC laws and regulations prohibits us from carrying out
such activities), details of which are set out in the Prospectus
HEEBFEEMABMNNAE TMEEERD (MEZEREANTBIERE
MBI RPETZFADRIGRIN) - FHEENERER



“Reporting Period”
[ ¥R E7]

“Retained Lepu Medical Group”
(A TR TREEE)

“RMB”
[ARE]

”

“Sequoia Capital China Growth

[ Sequoia Capital China
Growth |

“Shanghai Shape
Memory Alloy”

[ BB REEIE a2 M#H]

“Shareholder(s)”
[ A% 3R

“Shares”

[ A&7

“SHC”

[ ity eaLE]

“Stock Exchange”
[ B2 Fir ]

“Substantial Shareholder(s)”
EX:3 e

“Supervisor(s)”

[E2 %

“Target Medical”

[ Kb A0 13 |
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for the year ended December 31, 2022
HE2022F12 A31ALFE

Lepu Medical and its subsidiaries, excluding our Group
BEBRERAMBAR  TEEAEE

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC
HEAEEEBARE

SCC Growth VI Holdco AF, Ltd., an exempted company with limited
liability incorporated under the laws of the Cayman Islands on April
12, 2021 and a Pre-IPO Investor

SCC Growth VI Holdco AF, Ltd. * —K/2021F4 A 12 BRIEF S8
EEEFAMKINEREBER AT RERAAHBENREE

Shanghai Shape Memory Alloy Co., Ltd.* (EBFMEIES &K
BT, a limited liability company established under the laws
of the PRC on May 5, 1994 and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company

EBERERBEESMBBERRAF - —RMW1994F5 A5 AREHEIERE
MW ERRAR @ BEAREINEZEWBAF

holder(s) of Share(s)
RDEFEE A

ordinary share(s) in the share capital of our Company with a par
value of RMB1.00 each
ARARBRAFGREEARE1.007TH LB

Shanghai Healthcare Capital Partnership (Limited Partnership) (&=
BENBEEZREREESSRLEERER)), a limited liability
partnership established under the laws of the PRC on October 28,
2020 and a Pre-IPO Investor

FTHEYBEEEREREESEREE (AREX)  —KN20204F
10 28 HRBHRENEEXN UM AREBEERBERAARABEENRES

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
ERBMARHMARRAR]

has the meaning ascribed to it in the Listing Rules
BER(EMRADE TR HRE

the supervisor(s) of our Company
RAEEEE

Beijing Target Medical Technologies Co., Ltd.* (dtRKMFIHFEl
AR AF), a limited liability company established in the PRC on
November 18, 1999 and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Lepu Medical,
one of the controlling shareholders of the Company
ERRMABERERAEF] - —KN1999F 11 18 B EH K L)
BRAAE - RARREREKRR c —EEBENE2ENBAR]



Lepu ScienTech Medical Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.

HELRBERE (L8) ROBRAE

Definitions

B=

"TAVR"

[ 4385 = 8 ARk & #2407
“TMVCRS”
[TMVCRS |

“US$” or “USD”
ESy

“Vivo Capital Fund IX”
[Vivo Capital Fund IX]

“/SD”

[ =R ERIE

“gy”
[% ]

For identification purposes only

15

transcatheter aortic valve replacement, a catheter-based technique
to implant a new aortic valve in a minimally invasive procedure
that does not involve open-chest surgery to correct severe aortic
stenosis

REETHIMERN  —BEREENRN - BETFRFARFMW
BB F T AST Y E ENARIE - DARS IE AR &= A B AR AR A

transapical mitral valve repair system (chordal), a catheter-based
system with two configurations, one enabling artificial mitral chordae
implantation and the other enabling edge-to-edge chordae repair
RORZRMEERR (RR)  —BEERNEEAAGMERENR
g —RBRERATI-_SERREA 5 EBERGHERRIEE

United States dollars, the lawful currency of the United States of
America

XBAEERET

Vivo Capital Fund IX, L.P., a limited partnership established under
the laws of Delaware of the United States on March 12, 2018 and a
Pre-IPO Investor

Vivo Capital Fund IX, L.P. * =R 201843 A 12 B iR &= Bl R 2N
FERERUNBREBCERBALHABEERNRES

ventricular septal defect, a defect, or a hole, in the septum
between the left and right ventricles of the heart, which may lead to
abnormal blood circulation and pulmonary hypertension and other
complications in severe cases

EHRRE - DEAZAOENRENRESNILUR - REEAIEESM
RIEIRE T R BIIK = B A K B At OF B AE

per cent

AL

#  EHEE

The Company is a registered non-Hong Kong company as defined * KN a5 EE A F622F (1 Al §

under the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of BIDETEZRFHEEE LA - UAAFXEH
Hong Kong) and it is registered under its Chinese name and REXEFELEPU ScienTech Medical
under the English name “LEPU ScienTech Medical Technology Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. |3 °

(Shanghai) Co., Ltd.”.



BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Ms. Chen Juan (Chairman)
Ms. Zhang Yuxin

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Fu Shan
Mr. Zheng Guorui

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Ms. Chan Ka Lai Vanessa
Mr. Zheng Yufeng
Mr. Liu Daozhi

SUPERVISORS

Mr. Wang Xinglin
Ms. Wang Xiaoyong
Mr. Qian Weidong

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Ms. Chan Ka Lai Vanessa (Chairperson)
Mr. Zheng Guorui
Mr. Zheng Yufeng

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Zheng Yufeng (Chairperson)
Ms. Chen Juan

Mr. Fu Shan

Ms. Chan Ka Lai Vanessa

Mr. Liu Daozhi

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Ms. Chen Juan (Chairperson)
Mr. Zheng Guorui

Ms. Chan Ka Lai Vanessa
Mr. Zheng Yufeng

Mr. Liu Daozhi
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Lepu ScienTech Medical Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
SELRBEMNE (L8) ROERALT

Corporate Information

DNFEH

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. Qin Xue
Ms. Ng Ka Man

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES

Ms. Chen Juan
Ms. Zhang Yuxin

LEGAL ADDRESS IN THE PRC

Room 201

Building 41

No. 258, Xinzhuan Road
Songjiang District
Shanghai

PRC

ADDRESS OF HEAD OFFICE IN THE PRC

1/F, 5/F

Building 41

No. 258, Xinzhuan Road
Songjiang District
Shanghai

PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG
KONG

31/F, Tower Two
Times Square

1 Matheson Street
Causeway Bay
Hong Kong

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants and Registered Public Interest
Entity Auditor

22/F, Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
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LEGAL ADVISORS

As to Hong Kong law

Wilson Sonsini Goodrich & Rosati
As to PRC law

Haiwen & Partners
COMPLIANCE ADVISOR
Halcyon Capital Limited

11/F, 8 Wyndham Street

Central

Hong Kong

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR
Tricor Investor Services Limited
17/F, Far East Finance Centre

16 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKS

Bank of Shanghai

China Merchants Bank

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
Bank of Ningbo

COMPANY WEBSITE
http://www.scientechmed.com/
LISTING DATE

November 8, 2022

STOCK CODE

2291

Annual Report 2022 1 1
—E-FIR

Corporate Information

NAREH

ERERE
FRERERE

B FRiRe RTUE o h AT e B M E RN B TSR
FRPEER
SN EE S ES
aSNERA

R EARBRAR]
e

IR

ERE8R111E
TERHERE
BEBESFELARAR
e

BRE165%
ERTEPLOITE
FEERBIT
LEBIRTT

BEIRIT

H B TRy ERTT

R ERTT

AR
http://www.scientechmed.com/
LtHEM
2022411 A8H

B 17 X 5%

2291



12

Lepu ScienTech Medical Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
SELRBEMNE (L8) ROERALT

Financial Highlights
MBEE

Note:

Revenue increased by 11.3% from RMB222.6 million for
the year ended December 31, 2021 to RMB247.7 million
for the year ended December 31, 2022.

Gross profit increased by 11.2% from RMB197.5 million
for the year ended December 31, 2021 to RMB219.7
million for the year ended December 31, 2022.

Research and development expenses increased by 30.2%
from RMB41.4 million for the year ended December 31,
2021 to RMB53.9 million for the year ended December 31,
2022.

Net other income and gains decreased from RMB22.6
million for the year ended December 31, 2021 to net other
income and losses of RMB69.5 million for the year ended
December 31, 2022.

Profit attributable to owners of the Company decreased
from RMB58.7 million for the year ended December 31,
2021 to a loss attributable to owners of the Company of
RMB19.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2022.

The non-IFRS Adjusted Net Profit") increased by 1.5%
from RMB109.5 million for the year ended December 31,
2021 to RMB111.1 million for the year ended December
31, 2022.

Adjusted Net Profit which is unaudited, represents profit/loss
for the year after adding back (i) listing expenses, net of tax; (i)
net foreign exchange gains/losses from the retranslation of the
USD-denominated redemption liabilities; (iii) interest expense on
redemption liabilities; and (iv) share-based payment expenses. We
eliminate the impacts of these items that our management do not
consider to be indicative of our operating performance, as they
are either non-cash items or non-recurring expenses.

At -

WA REE2021F12 A31 B ILFE
MAR222 6B B TEMNI1.3%E
HZE2022F 12 AT HIEFEMAR
oA7T THETT -

FEFEEE2021F12 831 HILFE
MARE197 5 BETTEMI1.2%E
HE2022F12A31HILFEMAR
o190 7THE T -

ML REE2021F12 831 H
IFFEEMARB41.4BE TN
30.2% E# FE2022F12 A31 B L4
EMARKE39HETT °

H AR FEREZ20214F
12A31AEFEMARK226EE
TR EEHE2022F12 A31 B I1E
FEMEMBRARBEFEARE
69.5HETT °

RABHEE ABGEFEHREZ=2021
F12A31BIEFEMARKESS.7H
ETRAOEERZE2022F12A31H 1t
FENARREB ABRGEEBEAR

e —

¥19.8AETT °

IEBARR B 75 R 2 7 Rl A T B AT FI (0
HE2021F12831HIEFEMA
REA09.5HELIEINI.%EHE
202212 A31BIEEEHARYE
1M1 ABER -

HPIREEFTRRHBATIEMEIAT
BEEENFNFIE,EE() LR (B
&) (NEFBREAETAENELEE
PRiSoMNEWES / BIRFH 5 (i) BRI A
MBFI : R(iv) AR B ERR R
X RMIMBEEERSERMNRLE
REATAETHNRBENTE  RER
HAFRSHEBSHEELERS -



Dear Shareholders,

2022 was a milestone year in the development history of
ScienTech Medical. It was a year to witness the bright moment
of ScienTech Medical, and it was also a fruitful year for
ScienTech Medical. All ScienTech Medical staff concentrated
their efforts to face the challenges of the complex situation
domestically and internationally, bucked the trend and
continuously created our outstanding achievements.

This year, the Company was successfully listed on the Stock
Exchange, obtaining the affirmation and trust of Shareholders
and investors, and officially embarked on the journey of the
international capital market, opening a new chapter in the
Company’s future development.

Also in this year, the Company’s self-developed MemoSorb®
fully biodegradable occluder system was finally approved by
the NMPA in February 2022 after nine years, becoming the
world’s first successfully commercialized fully biodegradable
occluder system, marking that our CHD occluders research
and development technology has achieved the transformation
from as a follower to becoming a leader, and conveying the
innovative strength of China equipment companies to the
world’s structural heart disease medical device field!

Annual Report 2022
B FR

Chairman’s Statement

ESRIYF

BHAIR -
RFK4F |

2022FRLFEBERRESY FEIREN
—F  RRBELCEEESARZIN—F
MeELEEENERZF 2B LRER
NELEN  EEBRAINREBERTZHN
ke pEmAe - AlER T —BX—HEE

E—F ARAEBRARY LT - Wi
THERREREENEEREME  EXABE
TEREARMSHNEE - R T ARER
RERNEHRE

thEE—F AQXAAEETHEND
MemoSorb® 2 [ HIE e R4t - &N
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Chairman’s Statement

ESREE

Looking back on 2022, all parts of the country have been
materially impacted by the COVID-19 epidemic. Under
such a severe economic situation and market pressure,
the Company’s overall business maintained steady growth,
and achieved revenue of RMB247.7 million, representing a
year-on-year increase of 11.3% from December 31, 2021; due
to the effect of non-cash items or non-recurring expenses,
namely listing expenses, net foreign exchange gains or losses
from the retranslation of the USD-denominated redemption
liabilities, interest expense on redemption liabilities and share-
based payment expenses, loss attributable to owners of the
Company of RMB19.8 million for the year ended December
31, 2022, representing a year-on-year decrease of 133.7%
from the year ended December 31, 2021; non-IFRS Adjusted
Net Profit of RMB111.1 million for the year ended December
31, 2022, representing a year-on-year increase of 1.5% from
the year ended December 31, 2021; net cash flow generated
from operating activities of RMB65.5 million for the year ended
December 31, 2022, representing a year-on-year decrease
of 37.8% from the year ended December 31, 2021. As of
December 31, 2022, the total assets of the Group were
RMB1,809.6 million, representing an increase of 61.6% from the
beginning of the year, the net assets were RMB1,744.5 million,
representing an increase of 352.9% from the beginning of the
year. We handed over a gratifying answer sheet in this year.

Looking back on the past, we were pragmatic and progressive,
insisted on innovation-driven development, continued to face
the global market, researched and developed interventional
medical devices targeting structural heart diseases with
independent intellectual property rights, and achieved various
honors and significant progress in product design, original
research technology and the Company’s development.
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From 2020 to 2021, the Company’s third generation CHD
occluders, the MemoCarna® oxide coating single-rivet occluder
products, had been gradually approved for the market. This
series of products continued to increase in volume in 2022,
and gradually became the backbone of the business segment
of CHD occluder products. In terms of accelerating the
transformation of achievements, the oxide coating single-rivet
PDA occluder and the oxide coating single-rivet VSD occluder
also won the honor of “Shanghai High and New Technology
Achievement Transformation Project” within the year; since the
Company’s fourth generation CHD occluders MemoSorb® fully
biodegradable occluder system was approved for marketing
in early 2022, it has been successfully clinically applied in
many hospital centers in Beijing, Henan, Shaanxi, Anhui,
Hubei, Sichuan, Guangdong, Guangxi and other regions, the
commercialization process was remarkable, and this innovative
medical solution that benefits children with CHD has been
highly praised and recognized; the Company’s fourth generation
MemoSorb® biodegradable ASD occluder product candidate
has completed its clinical trial stage, registration application of
which will be submitted to the NMPA for approval in the second
quarter of 2023 and which is expected to receive the approval
from the NMPA and be available for sale in the second quarter
of 2024. In the field of cardiogenic stroke prevention, the
Company’s second generation biodegradable PFO occluders
and biodegradable LAA occluders have also advanced to the
registration and clinical trial stage as planned, and will become
a blockbuster innovative product leading the progress of the
industry. The MemoSorb® biodegradable PFO occluders have
entered the review stage of the NMPA in 2022 and is expected
to be approved for marketing by the end of 2023; the Bio-
Lefort® biodegradable LAA occluders have now entered the
clinical trial stage and has completed the world’s first clinical
enrollment of FIM. At the same time, in the field of valvular
disease treatment, many of the Company’s valve products
under research have successfully entered the clinical trial
stage. Thanks to years of basic research on valve products, the
Company has established various technical platforms related to
valve products. Thereby, the Company is expected to get well
prepared with its profound technology accumulation, excellent
production manufacturing level and rapid commercialization
capabilities, so as to seize the market and become a leading
enterprise in the field of valve products.
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Chairman’s Statement

ESREE

We are confidently moving forward for our goals and seeking
new development in the layout! A series of various innovative
products that have been launched and will be launched in the
next three to five years will further strengthen the Company’s
technological leadership and market dominance in the field of
structural heart diseases, and ensure the Company’s medium
and long-term sustainable and rapid development. The
Company will rely on a solid scientific research foundation, a
high-quality talent team and the fighting spirit of daring to be
the first and breaking through, take advantage of the trend,
integrate development and steadily move towards a broader
global market. At present, the Company is actively carrying
out overseas market expansion and overseas registration
of innovative products. Our GuiBend® interventional delivery
system |l (Integrated) has submitted the CE certification
application in 2022. Our third generation MemoCarna®
oxide coating single-rivet occluder series products are also
preparing to submit applications for CE certification. At the
same time, we are also actively planning overseas clinical
trials of biodegradable occluder series products to accelerate
the commercialization process of our innovative products in
overseas markets.

On behalf of the Board and the Company’s management,
I would like to sincerely thank you all ScienTech Medical
colleagues for their efforts, hard work, unity and endeavour,
and also thank all Shareholders, investors and partners for
their unremitting support. In the past year, we have made
great achievements, and in the coming year, we will make
further progress. In 2023, we will ride on the trend and strive
hard, continue to study cutting-edge technologies, strengthen
intellectual property management, and speed up the process of
marketization and globalization of innovative products, so as to
provide better product services and innovative medical solutions
for global doctors and patients, create higher value for partners,
bring ideal returns to Shareholders, inject strong potential
energy into the high-quality development of the industry, and
contribute to the strong rise of domestic medical devices!

Chen Juan
Chairman and Executive Director

March 31, 2023
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BUSINESS REVIEW

As a pioneer in the structural heart disease interventional
medical devices industry in China and a relatively larger-
scale domestic supplier of CHD occluders, we have been
focusing on the research and development, manufacture and
commercialization of structural heart disease interventional
medical devices targeting structural heart diseases, have
also expanded into the field of cardiac mechanical circulatory
support, and are committed to providing safe, effective and
innovative medical solutions.

As of the date of this report, we had a total of 18 marketed
occluders and accessory products, 10 products under
registration review and preparation for registration, and
27 product candidates in various stages of research and
development such as occluder, heart valves and procedural
accessories and mechanical circulatory support. The following
chart summarizes the development status of our product
portfolio as of March 31, 2023:
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Product

MemoPart®
ASD occluder (Double-rivet)

Pre-clinical

Clinical
Trial

Commercialized

Registration Commercialization

. ASD occluder (Single-rivet)
Atrial septal
Oefect (ASD") | emoComat
occluder Oxide coating ASD occluder
i e
CE registration materials
MemoSorb® * Preparation of NMPA
Biodegradable ASD occluder registration materials
VSD Occluder (Double-rivet)
VSD Occluder (Single-rivet)
Ventricular T
("VSD") Oxide coating VSD =
occluder occluder with single-rivet Preparation of CE

registration materials

MemoSorb® *
full-degradable occluder systems

Commercialized

Preparation of
initial overseas clinical

Em
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Product

Patent ductus
Arteriosus
(ll PDAH)
occluder

MemoPart®
PDA occluder (Double-rivet)

BEEE WD T

Registration Commercialization

Clinical

Pre-clinical .
Trial

Commercialized

MemoPart®
PDA occluder (Single-rivet)

Commercialized

MemoCarna®
Oxide coating PDA occluder

Commercialized

.I“

of CE
registration materials

Patent
foramen
ovale (“PFO")
occluder

MemoPart®
PFO Occluder | (Double-rivet/Single-rivet)

Commercialized

MemoSorb® *
Biodegradable PFO occluder

Supplementary materialssubmission
for registration to NMPA going on

NeoSorb®
Bioabsorbable PFO Occluder

Left atrial
appendage

Memolefort®
LAA closure occluder systems

Commercialized

Bio-Lefort® *
Biodegradable LAA closure occluder

Aortic valve
products

ScienCrown®
Transcatheter aortic valve *
replacement (“TAVR") system

Clinical follow-ups going on

CE animal tests

ScienMelon®
Artificial heart valve with polymer *
leaflets for transcatheter implantation

Animal tests

ScienChute®
Transcatheter aortic valve stenosis therapy system

Design stage

ScienChute®
Pulsed acoustical generator

Design stage

Transcatheter aortic valve system
(balloon dilation)

Aortic valve perfusion system

Design stage

Mitral valve
products

MemoChord® Transapical mitral valve
repair system (chordal) (“TMVCRS")

MemoClip-A® Transapical mitral valve
clip repair (“TMVr-A") system *

Mass clinical

Transcatheter annulus repair system

inica
preparation stage

MemoClip-F® Transfemoral mitral valve
clip repair ("TMVr-F") system

inica
preparation stage

Transcatheter mitral valve
replacement (“TMVR") system

Transcatheter papillary muscle
repair system
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Tricuspid
valve product

MemoClamp®
Transcatheter tricuspid valve repair system
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Clinical

. Registration jalizati
Trial g Commercialization

Pre-clinical

Design stage

Transcatheter tricuspid valve
replacement system

Design stage

Pulmonary
valve product

Transcatheter pulmonary valve
replacement system

Design stage

Atrial septal
puncture and
procedural
accessories

RF-Lance® *
radiofrequency puncture devices

Registration assessment of
NMPA going on

RF-Lance®
Disposable radiofrequency atrial *
septal puncture needles

Registration assessment of
NMPA going on

Disposable atrial septal
puncture systems

Registration assessment of
NMPA going on

MemoPart®
interventional delivery system

Commercialized

GuiBend®
Integrated interventional delivery system

Commercialized

CE registration assessment going on

GuiFinder® occulder delivery system

Commercialized

GuiFlex®
integrated interventional delivery sheath

Commercialized

Gruiser® interventional delivery system

Commercialized

G-Cruiser®
interventional delivery system

Registration assessment of NMPA going on

MemoPart® Snare

Commercialized

Multiple-loop Snare

Registration assessment of NMPA going on

SimoMelon®Balloon dilatation *
catheter for aortic valve

Preparation of registration materials

Disposable introducing sheath

Registration assessment of NMPA going on

Thrombus protection device

Animal tests

StarCross® Disposable delivery sheath

Preparation of registration materials

Vascular closure device system

Animal tests

Transvalvular guide wires

Preparation of registration materials

P
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Product

Clinical

Pre-clinical .
Trial

Registration Commercialization

Interatrial
shunt device

Interatrial shunt device |

Interatrial shunt device Il
(Biodegradable)

FireyDeva® Interatrial shunt device IlI
(Radiofrequency ablation shunt device)

FireyDeva® Radiofrequency ablation
device (Device)

Auxiliary products
for mechanical
circulation

Transcatheter left ventricular *
auxiliary device

Coronary protection *
auxiliary device

Expandable left ventricular *
auxiliary device
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Note:

¥: Key projects of the Company

The business segments of the Company maintained a sound
development trend overall, achieving stable growth in its
revenue. For the year ended December 31, 2022, the Company
achieved revenue of RMB247.7 million, representing a year-
on-year increase of 11.3% from December 31, 2021; loss
attributable to owners of the Company of RMB19.8 million for
the year ended December 31, 2022, representing a year-on-
year decrease of 133.7% from the year ended December 31,
2021; non-IFRS Adjusted Net Profit of RMB111.1 million for
the year ended December 31, 2022, representing a year-on-
year increase of 1.5% from the year ended December 31, 2021;
net cash flow generated from operating activities of RMB65.5
million for the year ended December 31, 2022, representing a
year-on-year decrease of 37.8% from the year ended December
31, 2021. As of December 31, 2022, the total assets of the
Group were RMB1,809.6 million, representing an increase of
61.6% from the beginning of the year, the net assets were
RMB1,744.5 million, representing an increase of 352.9% from
the beginning of the year.
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CHD Occluder Products

As at the date of this report, the Group owned 16 commercially
available CHD occluder products. Among which, MemoCarna®
[l oxide coating single-rivet occluder series products have fast
become the backbone of the CHD occluder products business
after its approval for marketing in 2020. The MemoSorb® IV
fully-degradable occluder systems have been also rapidly
commercialized and become the Group’s flagship product in
the CHD field upon its approval for marketing in 2022. It is
increasingly obvious to form our business growth trend through
technology upgrading and innovative products with iterative
operation. This is the cornerstone for us to maintain our leading
position in the field of CHD interventional therapy and to
continue to drive our market growth.

In line with our philosophy of “No Implantation for Intervention”,
the Group continued to promote the research and development
of biodegradable technology. Our fourth generation MemoSorb®
biodegradable ASD occluder product candidate has completed
its clinical trial stage, registration application of which will be
submitted to the NMPA for approval in the second quarter of
2023 and which is expected to receive the approval from the
NMPA and be available for sale in the second quarter of 2024.

PFO and LAA Occluder Products

Our first generation cardioembolic stroke prevention products,
being LAA and PFO occluder products, were commercially
available in 2020 and 2012 respectively.

Our second generation cardioembolic stroke prevention product
candidates has applied our biodegradable technology creatively.
Of which, the MemoSorb® biodegradable PFO occluder product
candidate is in the registration process and is expected to be
approved by the NMPA within 2023. Bio-Lefort® biodegradable
LAA occluder product candidate has successfully completed
its pre-clinical type inspection and animal trials as planned
and officially entered the stage of multi-center clinical trial
enrollment.

BEEBNWEDTN

TR EEREm

RAFZEBR  AEEEEFI16KER
;ﬂZPﬁﬁ%kE’]%%l‘%bﬂﬁf%ﬁ%%FE‘u o H
- 5= MemoCarna®a L IR E 5 ﬂ%
”“%§‘JEDDEA202O¢F§H£$1§ MR
ﬁ%f‘&?ﬁlﬁ/bﬁﬁfﬂ% Euu%ﬁ’zﬂ’ﬂ:‘@z
NE o FPNHKMemoSorb® % & i £ 3 25
/\,/bB’\ZOZZEZEﬁtiﬁ% R R E IR
Rl - WK AAREBEE LR LERE
R EREE M o NEBKSERMAR - 8l
FEGERFRNESIZRBE D DR
B EthERMELRELEBEN AJRE
BERIBFELEDR  BENPMIZERN
BEEHERA -

FERENAEBEAINES  KEEE
BB A Y AR BB - RIS
P9 MemoSorb®4E ¥ 1] [% i B S b ik 18
HEBREMERB ATE SRR - 8

BR2023F F _FTERABRREERER
AMRE - BER2024FE _FEERB

REERMAEL EHHE -

NEARAREVCEHERER

RANE—RORMEEPIERESR &0
EHEENINEA AR EZERE DR
R2020F 2012 F EIREELL -

BANE R OREZERTEHERESR
BREMEMER T £ BRI - H
- MemoSorb®4: ¥ Al [ i OP [B] £L 7k B
HEREHERCERTEMER - BE
R2023FNEBBERKEE B AE - Bio-
Lefort® A ] pEfE /- O B SR E M E R
BIRETEEF SEACER R AT A B 58 2 B)
YWER > B EXNEAZHLBERAR
ANAEPEER -

25



26

Lepu ScienTech Medical Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
SELRBEMNE (L8) ROERALT

Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEN WD T

Occluder Related Procedural Accessories

Occluders and accessory products are an important component
parts of occlusion surgery. As at the date of this report,
the Group has owned six commercially available occlude
related procedural accessories, and in line with the increasing
commercialization level of occlude products, the accessory
products have also achieved considerable revenue. Our Snare
Il product is expected to obtain a registration certificate and list
for sale in the second half of 2023.

Heart Valve Product Candidates

The Company has built out 16 heart valve product candidates,
covering field such as aortic value, mitral value, tricuspid
value and pulmonary value. Our TAVR system has been
completed its clinical trial enrollment in September 2022, and
as of the date of this report, most patients have completed
their six-month follow-up with satisfactory clinical trial results.
ScienCrown® valve has distinct structural differences from the
previously marketed domestic self-expanding valve and foreign
balloon dilation valve. As a short stent self-expanding valve,
it is featured with smooth pre-bending over the arch, release
coaxial, stable expansion, good support and 100% recovery
under working condition of artificial valve, etc., which can
address the pain points of clinical demand, bringing a new and
achievable standard of care to patients, and providing a better
experience in valve performance and prognosis. We plan to
make a registration application to the NMPA for this product
by the end of 2023. After marketing of the product, we will
adopt a differentiated competition method, which is expected to
provide a favorable position for the Company’s valve products
to compete in the field of structural heart disease and generate
greater economic benefits to the Company. Our transapical
mitral valve clip system is currently in the final stage of clinical
trial enrollment with satisfactory follow-up results. We will
accelerate the progress of subsequent clinical trial enrollment.
We drew on the extensive experience from clinicians in respect
of transcatheter mitral valve clip system and conducted
innovation and optimization in the product design, enabling the
design and performance of the product much more acclimated
to the disease characteristics of China patients and the usage
habits of China physicians. It is currently in the pre-clinical
preparation stage and is about to initiate the clinical trials.
Our self-developed TMVR has completed the implantation in
the animal and the follow-up of 1 month after surgery, with
satisfactory results, and it is about to progress into the stage of
type inspection simultaneously.
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Mechanical Circulatory Support Products

The Company has expanded into the field of mechanical
circulatory support (MCS) devices, which are designed to
provide temporary or long-term support to patients requiring
cardiac assisted power, and are committed to providing safe,
effective and innovative medical solutions for patients and
contributing to the cause of human health. The portfolio of
our MCS device product line covers both short- and long-
term products, which are designed to replace or assist the
pumping function of the ventricles. The portfolio of our MCS
device product line includes transcatheter ventricular support
system, high-risk PCI ventricular support system, expandable
trochanteric ventricular support system and wholeheart
support system. In particular, the transcatheter left ventricular
support system suitable for left ventricular support is in the
sample preparation stage for preclinical type inspection, and
expandable trochanteric ventricular support system and high-
risk PCI ventricular support system for patients requiring low-
flow support or high-risk PCIl patients will progress into the
stage of type inspection in the near future.

Heart Valve and Related Accessory Products

The Company owned six types of valve related procedural
accessories, including, among others, thrombosis protection
device, balloon dilatation catheter for aortic valve and vascular
closure device system. In particular, we have completed the
product R&D design work for vascular closure device system
with innovative design structure, which can reduce vascular
complications and provide physicians with excellent ease-to-
use experience. It is currently in the stage of preparation for
inspection, and is about to submit it for inspection.
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OUTLOOK

Looking forward, we will continue to provide safe, effective and
innovative medical solutions for patients with structural heart
disease and cardiac circulatory disorder by adhering to the
corporate mission of “shape better lives with heartfelt care” (|1

BRI, BT ).

We will continue to develop new technologies and focus on the
core technologies and product development targeting structural
heart diseases to enrich our product portfolio to cover a full
range of treatment options for various field of structural heart
disease. Furthermore, we will continue to promote technology in
various aspects, including material innovation, structural design
innovation, production process optimization, to further enhance
the innovation, functionality and reliability of our products.
Meanwhile, we believe that biodegradable technology is one
of the important technology applications for medical device
products in the future, and will greatly drive the overall upgrade
and transformation of the medical device industry as widely
applied to our occluder product and other product candidates,
which positions us well to capitalize on the significant market
opportunities.

In the CHD interventional devices field, we will leverage our
established market advantages to continue to increase the
speed of iteration of our innovative products and drive rapid
business growth. Meanwhile, we will also continue to promote
the research and development process of our biodegradable
occluder product candidates.

In the cardioembolic stroke prevention field, we will continue
to promote the research and development process of our
biodegradable PFO occluder product candidates and LAA
occluder product candidates. We believe we are well-positioned
to capitalize on the significant growth potential in these fast-
growing and low penetration rate markets, leveraging our early-
mover advantages, advanced product features, and well-
established sales channels for CHD occluder products.
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In the valve stenosis and reflux therapy field, we will rely on our
existing technology platform for valve products, consolidate
and further strengthen our technological advantages, and
continue to develop the full product line of valves, focusing on
the development of valve products with great medical demand
and broad market prospects. Among them, we will accelerate
the progress of R&D of the transfemoral mitral valve clip
repair (TMVr-F) and the transcatheter mitral valve replacement
system (TMVR) for the treatment of mitral valve regurgitation
disease, in order to achieve full coverage of mitral valve disease
treatment and address the increasing clinical demand from
patients and physicians. We will accelerate the advancement
of iterative new products based on ScienCrown® transcatheter
aortic valve system for CE Certificate (Conformité Européenne)
registration clinical trials, which has the advantages of stronger
anti-calcification ability, better hemodynamic effect and longer
service life by adopting the self-developed special dry valve.
In addition, we will continue to accelerate the research and
development of the surgically implantable sutureless heart
valve, which is already in type inspections and animal tests
stage, and we are also developing a transcatheter implantable
aortic valve system for patients with simple aortic regurgitation.
These two aortic valve products complement the ScienCrown®
transcatheter aortic valve replacement system to provide
optimal treatment for patients with different types of TAVR
disease. Our Artificial heart valve with polymer leaflets for
transcatheter implantation uses durable and stable polymer
materials instead of pericardium material to make leaflets
to further improve the durability and biocompatibility of the
artificial heart valve. We have completed the follow-ups within
three months after implantation and surgery in animals, which
presented promising results. In-vitro durability tests have been
completed for more than 100 million times. If the valve is in
good condition, we will speed up to enter the type inspection
stage of such products.

In the mechanical circulatory support field, more than 64 million
people worldwide and 13.7 million people in China suffered from
cardiac underpower, and about 50% of them died within five
years after diagnosis. The global market scale of MCS devices
is expected to be 2.2 million in 2020, with a market value
expected to reach USD3.4 billion in 2025, and is expected to
grow at a compound annual growth rate of 10.4% from 2021
to 2028. There are 4 million cases of PCI in the world, and it is
estimated there are 1 million cases in mainland China in 2022
based on growth rate. As the world’s leading group company in
the field of cardiovascular intervention, the Company has been
expanding the blue ocean market of MCS and protective PCI.
The Company has developed a series of products that can help
patients to improve their quality of life and survival rate. We
will continue to strengthen innovation and development in new
growth and profit opportunities.
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In the structural cardiology interventional procedural accessories
field, we have laid out a number of products. There is no
vascular closure device system launched on the market in
China, and the market size of vascular closure devices in
China is expected to increase from RMB500 million in 2019 to
RMB4.5 billion in 2023 at a compound annual growth rate of
22.0%, with aortic valve intervention technology being the most
mature market development and the largest number of patients
being those with mitral regurgitation. The market for mitral valve
and tricuspid valve interventions will gradually expand, and
the demand for large-caliber vascular closure devices will also
increase.

The transseptal procedures is one of the key techniques
in cardiac intervention therapy. Compared with traditional
puncture techniques, radiofrequency puncture has higher
success rate and safety, and the learning curve is short, so it
can quickly complete the replacement of mechanical needles.
The transseptal procedures has been used for mitral valve
repair, LAA occluder, and other procedures to obtain left heart
access by transfemoral access. There are more than 300,000
operations in the United States every year, and the potential
treatment population in China is more than 10 million, so the
demand is considerable. At present, no radiofrequency puncture
products are launched in China, and our radiofrequency
atrial septal puncture system is in the leading position in
the application, which is conducive to winning the market
opportunities.

We will strengthen our marketing team building, explore
potential marketing channels, continue to expand our sales
network in China and continue to build our brand reputation
among doctors and patients. We will continue to implement
academic promotion activities to solidify and strengthen our
network of research institutions, hospitals, doctors and KOLs,
obtain valuable feedback from industry experts, and promote
brand awareness and influence in the industry and academia.

At the same time, we will continue to expand our overseas
sales channels, expand our global footprint and increase our
brand recognition in the global market. Based on market
demand and conditions, we will initiate plan on overseas clinical
trials and registration for our products on a forward-looking
basis, expand the market penetration of our existing products,
continue to explore new markets, accelerate the overseas
registration progress of our new products, and advance the
commercialization process of innovative products such as
biodegradable occluder series and valve series in overseas
markets.

EHEBORBEN AFIMEHES - JAIH
%%%Euu"!lﬁﬂfﬂ F?'ﬁ/\mlmlﬂiﬁﬁuu
i FEMERAEGSEMSRERTEIA
BEAEFHER22.0%EH2019FHARE
5EITIEME2023F M ARME45ETT
ﬁ$ﬁ%%@?&%m%$@%%ﬂA&
ﬁﬁ $%E’5WE /J\ //luu% Bf%z

RiTER - _”\#l%&_”\#h)\ AMEEeg
BEER S AOTCMERASBNERbE

Be & -

ERRFRETROEN AJAE T ER
Btz —  HERNERFREN - 57485
RABESHRINERNLZ 2 A2E M
B AR R NER - B
MIfR FRIITREA R —RiHEE - £OFE

HIEMHE R AR B 7 OB F T
FoXRNFFFINEHBI0OEN - HEH
BIERBEANBBIB1,0008 A © FXKET
Bl BRiMESBFINEERTERAL
o BN SEE AR SR ZF R RER
EEHN - BFRBESTIS LK -

B AP s = S E PR AR - BIRE S
RiE - THEARMETEMNHEREL
FEEBEMBEPREIRMNOMER
& ﬁﬂkﬁhﬁﬁ%mﬁgﬁ@ @
A ANSR T APTEL AT TEHEAE BEARK
EARFERNELE - BT %E%mﬁﬁ&
B EEAFmEEXRAMBMANIE
EEREES -

R - HASFERRBIMNEERE &
RERRH - EINRPIEZIRTIHH) mhE
RAE o RIBEMSF KRGS - BAPIRA
B E M BV SR IR B e FE A - AnRER
BEMNMSEE  FERMH™E - I
R mEEINEMEE - HEEEY AR
FRETHE 2R R0 RO IR R D F AR E 8
SNTIZ I R ACHERR -



FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

Annual Report 2022
B FR

Management Discussion and Analysis

Our revenue is mainly derived from the sales of medical devices
through distributors and direct sales.

For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2022, our revenue
was RMB222.6 million and RMB247.7 million, respectively. The
following table sets forth a breakdown of our revenues by major
product for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2022.

CHD occluder products

- ASD occluder products
- VSD occluder products
- PDA occluder products

Occluder related procedural accessories

- Interventional delivery systems

- Snares

PFO and LAA occlude products

- PFO occlude products
- LAA occlude products

Other products

Total
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HZE2021F K2022F 12 A1 B ILFE -
BB ASBIBARE 222 6B ETR
ARE247.7THETT - TRET|EZE2021
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Year ended 31 December

BE12A01ALEE
Percentage
of change
in 2022
compared
with 2021
20226 8
20218t
2022 2021 HMEL
2022 20214 BAlt

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT % AREFRT % %
182,661 73.8 132,473 59.5 37.9
136,169 55.0 99,809 44.8 36.4
28,540 11.5 19,771 8.9 44.4
17,952 7.2 12,893 5.8 39.2
53,709 21.7 41,568 18.7 29.2
35,808 14.5 25,296 11.4 41.6
17,901 7.2 16,272 7.3 10.0
11,059 4.5 48,457 21.8 (77.2)
5,605 23 4,307 1.9 30.1
5,454 22 44,150 19.8 (87.6)
241 0.1 85 0.04 183.5
247,670 100 222,583 100.0 a3
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CHD occulder products

For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2022, a majority
of our revenue was generated from sales of CHD occluder
products. Revenue generated from sales of CHD occluder
products increased from RMB132.5 million for the year ended
December 31, 2021 to RMB182.7 million for the year ended
December 31, 2022, as we continued to grow our business. As
for the percentage of revenue, sales of CHD occluder products
increased from 59.5% for the year ended December 31, 2021
to 73.8% for the year ended December 31, 2022, which was
primarily attributable to the increased sales volume of our
oxide-coated occluder products as they received broad market
recognition, such products primarily including MemoCarna®
ASD Occluder lll, MemoSorb® VSD Occluder IV, MemoCarna®
PDA Occluder Il and MemoCarna® VSD Occluder lIl.

Among our CHD occluder products, revenue generated from
sales of ASD occluder products increased from RMB99.8 million
for the year ended December 31, 2021 to RMB136.2 million
for the year ended December 31, 2022. For the years ended
December 31, 2021 and 2022, revenue generated from sales
of ASD occluder products accounted for 44.8% and 55.0% of
our revenue in the corresponding periods, respectively. The
percentage of revenue of ASD occluder products increased
from 2021 to 2022, which was primarily attributable to revenue
generated from sales of MemoCarna® ASD Occluder I, which
increased from RMB32.1 million for the year ended December
31, 2021 to RMB66.2 million for the year ended December
31, 2022. Revenue generated from sales of VSD occluder
products increased from RMB19.8 million for the year ended
December 31, 2021 to RMB28.5 million for the year ended
December 31, 2022. For the years ended December 31, 2021
and 2022, revenue generated from sales of VSD occluder
products accounted for 8.9% and 11.5% of our revenue in the
corresponding periods, respectively. Revenue generated from
sales of PDA occluder products increased from RMB12.9 million
for the year ended December 31, 2021 to RMB18.0 million for
the year ended December 31, 2022, representing 5.8% and
7.2% of our revenue in the corresponding periods, respectively.
The percentage of revenue of PDA occluder products increased
from 2021 to 2022, which was primarily attributable to the
increased sales volume of such product, especially a significant
increase in the sales of our MemoCarna® PDA Occluder llI.
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Occluder related procedural accessories

Revenue generated from sales of occluder related procedural
accessories was RMB41.6 million and RMB53.7 million for
the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2022, respectively,
representing 18.7% and 21.7% of our revenue in the
corresponding periods, respectively. Our occluder related
procedural accessories primarily include interventional delivery
systems and snares mainly related to CHD occluder products.
Interventional delivery system is the largest source of our
revenue generated from sales of occluder related procedural
accessories. We also intend to gradually introduced other
occluder related procedural accessories and heart valve related
procedural accessories. The increase was primarily attributable
to an increase in the sales volume of our occluder related
procedural accessories, especially our integrated intervention
delivery system II.

PFO and LAA occluder products

Revenue generated from sales of PFO and LAA occluder
products was RMB48.5 million and RMB11.1 million for the
years ended December 31, 2021 and 2022, respectively,
representing 21.8% and 4.5% of our revenue in the
corresponding periods, respectively. Revenue generated from
sales of LAA occluder products decreased from RMB44.2
million for the year ended December 31, 2021 to RMB5.5
million for the year ended December 31, 2022, representing
19.8% and 2.2% of our revenue in the corresponding periods,
respectively. The decrease was primarily attributable to the
limited technical training and surgical assistance capabilities
amid the regional resurgence of COVID-19 in 2022, which were
critical for the implantation of LAA occluder products and the
related sales.

Other products

For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2022, we
generated a small portion of our revenue from sales of other
products, primarily including vascular plug and products with
relatively low applicability or importance. Revenue generated
from sales of other products was RMB85,000 and RMB241,000
for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2022, respectively,
accounting for 0.04% and 0.1% of our revenue in the
corresponding periods, respectively.
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Cost of sales

Our cost of sales increased by 11.8% from RMB25.0 million
for the year ended December 31, 2021 to RMB28.0 million for
the year ended December 31, 2022. Our cost of sales primarily
consisted of (i) raw materials and consumables; (i) employee
benefit expense; (iiij amortization of intangible assets; (iv)
depreciation of property, plant and equipment; (v) transportation

costs; (vi) utilities and office expenses; and (vii) others.

The following table sets forth our cost of sales by nature in
absolute amounts and as percentages of our total cost of sales
for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021.

Raw materials and consumables

Employee benefit expense

Amortization of intangible assets

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Transportation costs

Utilities and office expenses

Others

Total
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EREMAX
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HBMAEENAREE2021F12A31H
HFEMARB25.068THEM11.8%
EHE2022F12A31BILFEMARKE
28.0E BT HMAEEXRAETEZRIR()
BRI R RFEM  ()MREBMFEX : (i) EF
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TREHNEZ2022F % 2021F12 A31H
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For the year ended December 31,

BE12R31ALER
Percentage
of change
in 2022
compared
with 2021
20226 5
2021 AL
2022 2021 mEL
20225 20216 BAL

RMB’000 RMB'000

AE®TR % ARETT % %
8,086 28.9 10,300 41.1 (21.5)
9,217 329 7,224 28.9 21.6
6,852 245 4,168 16.6 64.4
1,461 5.2 839 3.4 74.1
1,336 4.8 1,112 4.4 20.1
672 24 659 2.6 2.0
360 1.3 736 3.0 (51.1)
27,984 100.0 25,038 100.0 11.8
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Our raw materials and consumables costs represent nitinol
products and sheathes and other metal and plastic components
used during the manufacturing process, which decreased by
21.5% from RMB10.3 million for the year ended December
31, 2021 to RMB8.1 million for the year ended December 31,
2022, which was primarily attributable to the decrease in the
manufacturing and sales volume of LAA occluder products in
2022 as compared to 2021 which reduced the demand for high
cost of related raw materials of LAA occluder products and thus
lowering the materials costs.

Our employee benefit expense increased by 27.6% from
RMB7.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2021 to
RMB9.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2022, which
was primarily attributable to the increased manpower input in
our manufacturing process due to the increasingly complicated
manufacturing procedures required for our new products
launched in mid-2021, resulting in an increase in our employee
benefit expense.

Our amortization of intangible assets increased by 64.4% from
RMB4.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2021 to
RMB6.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2022, which
was primarily attributable to the commencement of amortization
on the patents and medical device registration certificates
of certain products as they obtained their respective NMPA
approvals in mid-2021 and 2022, resulting in an increase in our
amortization of intangible assets.

Our depreciation of property, plant and equipment increased by
74.1% from RMBO0.8 million for the year ended December 31,
2021 to RMB1.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2022,
which was primarily attributable to the fact that certain plants
that were originally used for leasing but turned to self-occupied
in 2022 for production, and meanwhile the Group acquired new
equipment in line with the expansion of production and sale
scale, resulting in an increase in our depreciation costs.

Our transportation costs increased by 20.1% from RMB1.1
million for the year ended December 31, 2021 to RMB1.3 million
for the year ended December 31, 2022, which was primarily
attributable to the general increase in sales volume of various
products in 2022, resulting in an increase in our transportation
costs.

Our utilities and office expenses were RMBO0.7 million for the
years ended December 31, 2021 and 2022.
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Our other cost of sales primarily includes testing fees for
production environment and fees for sterilization, which
decreased by 51.1% from RMBO.7 million for the year ended
December 31, 2021 to RMBO0.4 million for the year ended
December 31, 2022, which was within the range of normal cost
fluctuation.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

Our gross profit increased by 11.2% from RMB197.5 million for
the year ended December 31, 2021 to RMB219.7 million for
the year ended December 31, 2022. The increase in our gross
profit was in line with the growth in our overall revenue. Our
gross profit margin remained relatively stable at 88.8% for the
year ended December 31, 2021 and 88.7% for the year ended
December 31, 2022.

Distribution expenses

Our distribution expenses primarily consisted of (i) employee
benefits expense for our sales and marketing staff; (ii) marketing
expenses; and (i) travel expenses. Our distribution expenses
decreased by 10.2% from RMB43.1 million for the year ended
December 31, 2021 to RMB38.7 million for the year ended
December 31, 2022, which was primarily attributable to (i)
a decrease of RMB3.0 million in travel expenses as a result
of reduced travel activities amid the regional resurgence
of COVID-19 in 2022, (i) a decrease of RMB2.4 million in
marketing expenses as a result of the fewer offline market
research during the epidemic period and (i) an increase of
RMBO0.9 million in employee benefit expense.

General and administrative expenses

Our general and administrative expenses primarily consisted
of (i) employee benefit expense for our administrative staff; (ii)
depreciation and amortization; (iii) office and miscellaneous
expenses; and (iv) the listing expenses. Our general and
administrative expenses decreased by 10.3% from RMB59.9
million for the year ended December 31, 2021 to RMB53.7
million for the year ended December 31, 2022, which was
primarily attributable to a decrease in Listing expenses of
RMB12.3 million, partially offset by an increase in employee
benefit expenses of RMB4.7 million. Such expenses was
primarily in relation to the general increase in the salary level of
our employees and increase in management head counts.
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Research and development expenses

Qur research and development expenses consisted of (i)
employee benefit expense for our research and development
staff; (ii) products testing, pre-clinical trial and animals
studies fees; (iii) raw materials and consumables expenses;
(iv) depreciation; and (v) utilities and office expenses. Our
research and development expenses increased by 30.2% from
RMB41.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2021 to
RMB53.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2022, which
was primarily attributable to an increase in employee benefit
expenses of RMB4.4 million primarily in relation to share-based
compensation to motivate our research and development
personnel an increase in raw materials and consumables costs
of RMB5.9 million and an increase in depreciation costs of
RMB3.0 million primarily in relation to the establishment and
continued development of our Beijing branch since March
2021 along with the injection of the interventional heart valve
business, partially offset by a decrease in products testing, pre-
clinical trials and animal studies fees of RMB1.0 million as there
were relatively less research and development projects in type
inspection or animal studies in 2022 as compared to 2021.

Net (provision)/reversal of impairment losses on financial
assets

Our net provision for impairment losses on financial assets
primarily represented impairment loss provision for the period
on trade receivable and other receivables. We had net provision
for impairment losses on financial assets of RMB5.7 million for
the year ended December 31, 2022, and the net reversal of
impairment losses on financial assets of RMBO0.5 million for the
year ended December 31, 2021, primarily due to an increase in
provision for impairment losses on trade receivables as a result
of the increase in credit risk for certain customers with delayed
collection caused by the regional resurgence of COVID-19 in
2022.
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Net other income and gains/(losses)

Our other income and gains/(losses) primarily consisted of:
(i) investment income on wealth management products; (ii)
government grants; (iii) testing and processing services income;
(iv) commission income from related party; (v) rental income
from investment properties; (vi) exchange gains or losses; and
(vii) gains or losses from fair value changes of financial assets.
We had other income and losses of RMB69.5 million for the
year ended December 31, 2022, and the net other income
and gains of RMB22.6 million for the year ended December
31, 2021, which was primarily attributable to recognition of net
foreign exchange losses of RMB82.3 million primarily in relation
to the retranslation of redemption liabilities denominated in US$,
and an increase in fair value losses on financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss of RMB4.9 million.

Net finance costs

Our net finance cost primarily consisted of (i) bank interest
income; (i) interest expense on lease liabilities; and (iii) interest
expense on redemption liabilities. Our net finance costs
increased by 27.9% from net finance costs of RMB10.4 million
for the year ended December 31, 2021 to net finance costs of
RMB13.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2022, which
was primarily attributable to an increase in interest expense
on redemption liabilities of RMB7.4 million primarily due to the
fact that redemption liabilities were initially recognized in May
2021, and partially offset by an increase in bank interest income
of RMB4.5 million primarily due to the increase in the Group’s
cash and cash equivalents.

Income tax expenses

Our income tax expenses decreased by 34.8% from RMB7.3
million for the year ended December 31, 2021 to RMB4.8 million
for the year ended December 31, 2022, which was primarily
attributable to decrease in taxable profit and the increase in
deferred income tax assets.

(Loss)/profit for the year

As a result of the foregoing, our (loss)/profit for the year
decreased from a net profit of RMB58.7 million for the year
ended December 31, 2021 to a net loss of RMB19.8 million for
the year ended December 31, 2022.
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The primary uses of cash are to fund the daily operations of the
business of the Group. For the years ended December 31, 2021
and 2022, the Company financed its capital expenditures and
working capital requirements principally with cash generated
from its operations, financing activities and net proceeds from
the Global Offering. Going forward, the Company believes that
its liquidity requirements will be satisfied with a combination
of cash flows generated from our operating activities, bank
loans and other borrowings, and other funds raised from the
capital markets from time to time. As of December 31, 2022,
the Group had not used any financial instruments for hedging
purposes.

Cash flows

As of December 31, 2022, our cash and cash equivalents were
denominated in RMB, HK dollar, USD and Euro dollars. Our total
cash and cash equivalents increased by 32.4% from RMB713.5
million as of December 31, 2021 to RMB944.5 million as of
December 31, 2022. The increase was primarily attributable to
the successful listing on the Stock Exchange that we obtained
the proceeds arising from the Global Offering, and at the same
time, the Company conducted a series of operating, investing
and financing activities, a combination of which caused a net
increase in cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period.
See analysis for each item below for the specific reasons of the
movements.
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The following table provides the information regarding the
Group’s cash flow for the years ended December 31, 2021 and
2022:

TRIBHEAEBEH T 2021F 202212
AB1HILFERESRENMEEER

2022 2021

20224 20214

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARBET T

Net cash generated from operating activities &2 /EBFT1EIR S F5E 65,531 105,278

Net cash used in investing activities HEEBFAREFE (406,002) (85,171)

Net cash generated from financing activities — BE /EBFTEIR ST 58 577,804 672,226

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents Be KR EEYIEINFE 237,333 692,333

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of

the year FNRE LR EFEY 713,480 18,792
Exchange (losses)/gains on cash and cash RehReFEYNER

equivalents (B18) = (6,298) 2,355

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FRIEEMIREZEY 944,515 713,480

For the year of 2022, our net cash inflow generated from
operating activities was RMB65.5 million, representing a
decrease of RMB39.7 million from the net cash inflow generated
from operating activities of RMB105.3 million in 2021, which
was primarily attributable to (1) an extended payment collection
periods for certain of our trusted customers considering the
impact of COVID-19 on their business; and (2) an increase
in inventories and prepayments, primarily due to (i) delayed
consumption of raw materials as our manufacturing and
sales activities were temporarily interrupted amid the regional
resurgence of COVID-19, and (ii) our purchase of raw materials
to support our resumed manufacturing activities following the
containment of COVID-19.

For the year of 2022, our net cash used in investing activities
was RMB406.0 million, representing an increase of RMB320.8
million from the net cash used in investing activities of RMB85.2
million in 2021, which was primarily attributable to our
investment in wealth management products and the placement
of long-term bank deposit.
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For the year of 2022, our net cash generated from financing
activities was RMB577.8 million, representing a decrease of
RMB94.4 million from the net cash generated from financing
activities of RMB672.2 million in 2021. The net cash from
financing activities in 2022 primarily attributable to capital
contribution from the Pre-IPO Investors of RMB609.7 million,
cash received for the disposal of Ningbo Bingkun of RMB439.2
million and capital contribution by Ningbo Jiacheng and
Ningbo Jiadu of RMB51.3 million in 2021, partially offset by
dividend paid to Lepu Medical of RMB320.0 million, deemed
distribution of RMB72.2 million in connection with the injection
of interventional heart valve business, and settlements of
payable to related parties of RMB45.9 million. The Global
Offering proceeds received by the Company in November
2022 of RMB601.6 million from the Global Offering, partially
offset by the payments of shares issuance costs (representing
capitalization of the listing expanses) of RMB21.9 million.

Borrowings

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, we had no outstanding
balance of borrowings or unutilized banking facilities.

Net current assets

As of December 31, 2021 and 2022, our net current assets
amounted to RMB62.5 million and RMB1,265.9 million,
respectively. Our net current assets position as of the above
dates was mainly attributable to our inventories, prepayments
and other receivables, trade receivables, financial assets
held-for-trading measured at fair value and cash and cash
equivalents, partially offset by our trade and other payables,
contract liabilities, current income tax liabilities, lease liabilities
due within one year and redemption liabilities. The increase in
our net current assets was primarily attributable to an increase
in cash and cash equivalents balance as a result of the receipt
of the Global Offering proceeds of RMB601.6 million, and a
decrease in redemption liabilities of RMB680.0 million due to the
redemption liabilities was reclassified as equity by the Company
upon completion of the Global Offering.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals and Significant
Investments

We did not have any material acquisitions and disposals and
significant investments during the year ended December 31,
2022.
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Pledge of Assets

As of December 31, 2022, we did not pledge any of our assets.

Future Plans for Material Investments or Capital Asset

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Future Plans and Use
of Proceeds” in the Prospectus, we did not have detailed future
plans for material investments or capital assets.

Capital Expenditure

For the year ended December 31, 2022, our total capital
expenditure was approximately RMB83.4 million, compared to
approximately RMB91.8 million for the year ended December
31, 2021. Our capital expenditure primarily included our
purchase of property, plant and equipment, purchase of
intangible assets and payment for research and development
expenses of capitalization. We funded these expenditures with
cash generated from our operations and financing activities.

Capital Commitments

As of December 31, 2021 and 2022, we had capital
commitments of RMB10.8 million and RMB1.3 million,
respectively, primarily in connection with purchase of property,
plant and equipment.

Contingent Liabilities

As of December 31, 2022, we did not have any material
contingent liabilities.

Foreign Exchange Risk Management

Our functional currency is RMB. Foreign exchange risk arises
when future commercial transactions or recognized assets
and liabilities are denominated in a currency that is not our
functional currency. We expose ourselves to foreign exchange
risk because certain of our trade payables, financial assets
measured at fair value through profit or loss and cash and
cash equivalents are denominated in foreign currencies. We
will mitigate such a risk by constantly reviewing the economic
situation and foreign exchange risk, and applying hedging
measures when necessary.
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Employee and Remuneration Policy

As of December 31, 2022, we had 236 full-time employees
(2021: 246), all of whom were based in China. The total staff
costs for the year ended December 31, 2022 (including staff
remuneration, bonuses, welfare cost and social insurance fees
etc.) amounted to approximately RMB86.0 million.

We primarily recruit our employees through recruitment
agencies, internal referrals and online recruiting channels,
including our corporate website, job search websites and social
networking platforms. We have adopted training protocols,
pursuant to which we provide on-board and regular continuing
trainings for our employees. As part of our human resources
strategy, we offer employees competitive salaries, performance-
based cash bonuses and other incentives.

Redemption Liabilities

Our redemption liabilities relate to financial instruments with
preferred rights issued to Pre-IPO Investors. Pursuant to the
Pre-IPO Shareholders Agreement dated May 28, 2021, the
Pre-IPO Investors might be granted certain preferred rights,
including, among others, liquidation preference, only if and
when we failed to consummate the Listing prior to December
31, 2022 or other triggering events. The redemption liabilities
were arisen from the share capital of the Company with
preferred rights as held by the Pre-IPO Investors. The Group
recognised the redemption liabilities as financial liabilities due
to that all triggering events of key preferred rights to the Pre-
IPO Investors, were out of control of the Company and they did
not meet the definition of equity for the Company. The financial
liabilities were initially measured at fair value (representing
the present value of the estimated redemption liabilities) and
subsequently measured at amortised cost. Interests on the
redemption liabilities were charged in finance cost.

With the completion of the Global Offering on the Listing Date,
the abovementioned preferred rights granted to the Pre-IPO
Investors were lapsed. Accordingly, the redemption liabilities of
approximately RMB775.0 million (after considering the impact
of the exchange losses as arisen from the retranslation of the
redemption liabilities up to the Listing Date) and the treasury
stock of approximately RMB671.5 million were derecognized
and the difference of approximately RMB103.5 million was
credited to the other reserves.
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Indebtedness B

The following table sets forth the breakdown of our lease P &®IIEZEFRNAHRMNBEREK
liabilities and redemption liabilities as of the dates indicated. fE Ol & B4 -

As at 31 December

®12A31H
2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARBET T

Lease liabilities HEaE 3,335 6,187

As at 31 December

"®12A31H
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETT

Redemption liabilities, at amortised cost BN AGTENEREE - 679,986

The decrease in redemption liabilities is due to the derecogniton ~ BEIBERDTIENRAX BEAE ]| —
of the redemption liabilities as mentioned in preceding section EOFTALAR LRI AR -
headed “Redemption Liabilities”.



Annual Report 2022
B FR

Management Discussion and Analysis

Key Financial Ratios

The following table sets forth our key financial ratios for the
years indicated.

Profitability ratios BfbE
Gross profit margin FEF &

Net profit margin eyl
Liquidity ratios mENE &L
Current ratio M EN b 2
Gearing ratio HEARSE

(1)

The calculation of gross profit margin is based on gross
profit for the year divided by revenue for the respective
year and multiplied by 100.0%.

The calculation of net profit margin is based on profit/loss
for the year divided by revenue for the respective year and
multiplied by 100.0%.

The calculation of current ratio is based on current assets
divided by current liabilities as of year end.

As of December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2022, the
Group did not have any borrowings and hence no gearing
ratio is presented.
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As at 31 December

»®12831H
2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TRT ARETT

88.7% 88.8%
-8.0% 26.4%
20.9 1.1

N/A REH N/A AN
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Gross profit margin and net profit margin

See “Gross profit and gross profit margin” for a discussion of
the factors affecting our gross profit margin during 2021 and
2022. The significant decrease in the net profit margin is mainly
due to the decrease in the Group’s net profit in 2022.

Current ratio

Our current ratio was at 1.1 and 20.9 as of December 31, 2021
and 2022, respectively.

The increase in current ratio was primarily due to the increase in
net current assets resulted from the increase in current assets
and decrease in current liabilities as discussed in the section
headed “Net current assets”.

Non-IFRS Measure - Adjusted net profit

To supplement our consolidated financial information which
is presented in accordance with IFRS, we set forth below our
adjusted net profit as an additional financial measure which
is not presented in accordance with IFRS. We believe this is
meaningful because potential impacts of certain items which our
management do not consider closely relevant to our operating
performance have been excluded, and this would be useful for
investors to compare our financial results directly with those of
our peer companies.

Adjusted net profit eliminates the effect of certain non-cash or
non-recurring items, namely (i) listing expenses, net of tax; (ii)
net foreign exchange losses/(gains) from the retranslation of the
USD-denominated redemption liabilities; (iii) interest expense on
redemption liabilities; and (iv) share-based payment expenses.
The term “adjusted net profit” is not defined under IFRS.
The use of adjusted net profit has material limitations as an
analytical tool, as adjusted net profit does not include all items
that impact our net profit for the year.
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The following table reconciles our adjusted net profit for the TREHIA TR IR & LR
periods indicated to the most directly comparable financial BIBECEBEABREEN)AFERZ5H
measure calculated and presented in accordance with IFRS: HEEEAELBRIEFI =R

(Loss)/profit for the year

Add: Listing expenses, net of tax

Add: Net foreign exchange losses/(gains)
from the retranslation of the USD-
denominated redemption liabilities

Add: Interest expense on redemption liabilities

Add: Share-based payment expenses

Non-IFRS Adjusted net profit

Year ended 31 December

BE12A31HILFE

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARETTT

£ (B1R)FiE (19,813) 58,697
o EmAY - HBRTHIE 15,329 24,518
o BEFREUAETTHEN

fE[E A EELEMINE

B, () 55 76,377 (2,837)
- EBEoaEMERY 18,683 11,316
o BARRD BERE AR

53 20,513 17,800
SER BRI RS R E A

#F) 111,089 109,494
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Ms. CHEN Juan (F&18), aged 51, has been a Director,
the chairman of the Board and the general manager of the
Company since January 29, 2021 and was re-designated as an
executive Director on June 9, 2021. She joined the Group since
December 2011 when she has been serving as the general
manager of Shanghai Shape Memory Alloy and its executive
director since March 2021. She is responsible for developing
overall corporate and business strategies of our Group and
making key business and operational decisions of our Group.

Ms. Chen joined the Lepu Medical Group in October 2006 and
served on several management positions therein. By August
2021, she has resigned from all such positions.

Prior to joining the Lepu Medical Group, Ms. Chen served as
the regional manager in the vascular instrument department of
Abbott Laboratories Trading (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (HZE87 23
WEZ (L&) AR AR from January 2005 to September 2006.
She served as the regional manager at the Beijing office of
Gaiteng International Trade (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.* (BIfERIRE 5
(E/8)EBRAA]) (currently known as Abbott Laboratories Trading
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (HEEBFERWME 5 (L8)BRAR]) from
October 1999 to September 2006, where she was responsible
for the regional sales promotion.

Ms. Chen graduated from Si Tanka University (F=EIHTIE £ A Z2)
in June 2017 with a doctor’s degree in business administration,
for which she received her courses in Shanghai. She obtained
a master’s degree in business administration from Maastricht
School of Management (a5 5 HTHEF 2 EIELET) in the
Netherlands in September 1997 and a college degree from
Shaanxi Foreign Language College (PRFEE MNBHEAT SIS RIE2
) in September 1992, respectively. She was nominated as a
candidate for the Third Songjiang District Leading Talents (#2
SIRE=fE%EE AA) in November 2019. She was awarded the
Shanghai Women’s Achievement Model (/& MERENIE L
#59%) in March 2018, and the Silver Prize of Leading Figure in
Shanghai Medical Device Industry (2013-2015%F € £ )& 28 /& 221
1TELEE AYEREE) in April 2016, respectively.
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Ms. ZHANG Yuxin (5 28f), aged 44, has been a Director of
the Company since January 29, 2021 and was appointed as
the deputy general manager and the chief technology officer of
our Company since May 28, 2021. She was re-designated as
an executive Director on June 9, 2021. She joined the Group
in May 2011 where she served as a deputy general manager of
Shanghai Shape Memory Alloy to August 2013. She is primarily
responsible for formulating the overall development strategies
and business plans and overseeing the management of the
research and development projects and strategic development
of our Group.

She joined the Lepu Medical Group in April 2006 and served
as a project manager of research and development department
of Lepu Medical until February 2008. From January 2009 to
May 2011, she served as a manager of the technical quality
department at Target Medical. She served as a deputy director
of the marketing department of Lepu Medical from August 2013
to March 2015 and the chairman of its machinery research
center from March 2015 to May 2021. She resigned from her
other positions in Lepu Medical in May 2021 yet remained as a
research and development project manager in Lepu Medical to
oversee the research and development projects of the Entrusted
Products by Lepu Medical.

Before joining the Lepu Medical Group and from December
2004 to April 2006, she served as a research and development
engineer at 725th Research Institute (8-t = RA#ZTFT) of China
State Shipbuilding Co., Ltd. (FEIffAE TEEFR A F], “China
Shipbuilding Industry”). From July 2004 to November 2004,
she served as a research and development engineer at CMBI
Construction Co., Ltd. (M ZZRAR A F)).

Ms. Zhang graduated from Xi’an University of Architecture and
Technology (FAZLEERIFEKE) with a bachelor's degree in
metallurgy in July 2001. She graduated from Xi’an Jiaotong
University (FE%& 2B K2) with a master’s degree in materials
science and engineering in June 2004. She obtained the
qualification of Senior Engineer (=& T2EM) from the 725th
Research Institute of China Shipbuilding Industry in December
2010. She was awarded as the 24th Beijing Outstanding
Young Engineer (It RT{EFEF LIEAN) by Beijing Science
and Technology Association and Beijing Human Resources and
Social Security Bureau (GERMRIZ#HMTHBE RILRTANER
Mt ERER) in September 2020. In 2017 and 2012, she was
awarded the third prize of Beijing Invention Patent Award (1t =
LR E R4 = £ 4%) and the second prize of Beijing Science and
Technology Award (b R 223217 22 = % £%), respectively.
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Non-executive Directors

Mr. FU Shan (ffLl) (former name as Fu Shan ({# L)), aged 55,
has been serving as a non-executive Director when he joined
the Group since June 9, 2021. He is responsible for providing
professional opinion and judgment to the Board. Mr. Fu served
as a managing partner, an associate chief executive officer and
a chief executive officer of Greater China region in Vivo Capital
(#48E ) since October 2013. Prior to that, he served as
senior managing director of the Blackstone Group from June
2008 to October 2013. He undertook various positions in the
State Economic and Trade Commission of the PRC (R BB
KEZSEEE, “SETC”) and the National Development and
Reform Commission of the PRC (TEBERZERNNEEZE D,
“NDRC”), including serving as a director of the General Affairs
Division of the Foreign Capital Utilization Department of the
NDRC (B3 Z EINE © F| A B4R & BE) from August 2004 to
March 2008, a director of the Policy and Regulation Division of
the Foreign Capital Utilization Department of the NDRC (BZ
BWEFINE S FAAIBFEREER) from June 2003 to August
2004, a director of the Policy and Foreign Capital Division of the
Investment and Planning Department of the SETC (BAR&E R
& B0 2 B R BAONE ) from January 2001 to June 2003, a
deputy director of the Foreign Capital Division of the Investment
and Planning Department of the SETC (BR&E L& HFR 2
AYNEER) from July 1998 to January 2001, a deputy Director of
the General Affairs Division of the Technological Transformation
Department of the SETC (BR&E XM MIEFEEE) from
October 1997 to July 1998, and an officer of the General
Affairs Division of the Foreign Economic and Trade Department
of the SETC (BIR&EEZIMEERI4EER) from August 1993
to October 1997. From May 1992 to August 1993, he served
as an officer in the Economics and Trade Office of the State
Council in China (4 Bl B %Pt 48 % & 59t A ). From September
1991 to May 1992, he served as an officer in the Manufacture
Office of the State Council in China (Ff BB R £ EH A E).
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Mr. Fu has also been serving as (1) an non-executive director of
TOT Biopharm International Company Limited (5282 &2 A% () A
fR /A A]), a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code:
1875), since January 19, 2016 and the chairman of its board
of directors since September 28, 2018, (2) a non-executive
director of InnoCare Pharma Limited (FEf2EESEHR D
Al), a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code:
9969), since September 27, 2019, (3) a non-executive director
of Sinovac Biotech Co., Ltd., (RIEIERRAYFIMTARAR) a
company listed on the NASDAQ Global Market (stock code:
SVA), since July 2018, and (4) a director of Genetron Holdings
Limited (£ FEREGER)ER A7), a company listed on the
NASDAQ Global Market (stock code: GTH), since June 2021.

Mr. Fu obtained both his bachelor’s degree in world history
and his master’s degree in world ancient history from Peking
University (1t =R AXE2), in July 1988 and July 1991, respectively.

Mr. ZHENG Guorui (B8EI#R), aged 40, has been serving as a
non-executive Director when he joined the Group since June
9, 2021. He is responsible for providing professional opinion
and judgment to the Board. He has been serving as a deputy
general manager of Lepu Medical since April 2021. Mr. Zheng
joined Lepu Medical in September 2006 as a sales manager
and has served on various sales related and management
positions at Lepu Medical including serving as a sales manager
of the coronary artery sales team in Beijing, a manager in the
northwestern region, and a manager in the eastern region. From
January 2016 to October 2020, he served as a national sales
director in the clinical first career department of Lepu Medical.
Since October 2020, he served as a general manager assistant
in Lepu Medical.

Prior to joining the Lepu Medical Group, Mr. Zheng served as a
sales manager in Wuhan Grand Pharmaceutical Group Trading
Company* (B2 REEEBEHEFRAF) from December
2004 to September 2006.

Mr. Zheng obtained a graduation certificate for self-taught
higher education examinations (8&#EFBZ2%E ) with a
major in engineering management from Haikou University of
Economics (& A& EET) in December 2020.
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Independent non-executive Directors

Ms. CHAN Ka Lai Vanessa (B¥EE), aged 50, has been
appointed as an independent non-executive Director when she
joined the Group since September 2, 2021. She is responsible
for supervising and providing independent advice on the
operation and management of the Group to the Board.

Ms. Chan has been serving as an independent non-executive
director at both Tycoon Group Holdings Limited (im & & E %
R BRAF]), a company listed on the Stock Exchange (Stock
Code: 3390) and Innovax Holdings Limited (BIFIER AR A
Al), a company listed on the Stock Exchange (Stock code:
2680), since January 2020 and August 2018, respectively.
Since December 2015, she has been serving as a director at
WA C&E Limited (2% # R 15 IR#5 B R 2 l). From November 2009
to December 2018, she served as the financial controller at
China Agri-Industries Holdings Limited (/R BIf& HiER B R A 7).
From August 2008 to October 2009, she served as a financial
controller at Changsheng Holdings Co. Ltd. (SEEEERE A
B]) Ms. Chan also served as an accounting manager at The
Kowloon Motor Bus Co. (1933) Ltd. (LEEE T (—AL==Z)ARA
7)), a subsidiary of Transport International Holdings Limited (&
BEBIER AR AR, a company listed on the Stock Exchange
(Stock Code: 62) from August 2005 to February 2008. From
July 1995 to August 2005, Ms. Chan worked in KPMG Hong
Kong where her last position was a senior manager of the
auditing department.

Ms. Chan graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University
in Hong Kong in October 1995 with a Bachelor of Arts degree
in Accounting. She is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants. In addition, Ms. Chan is an
associate member of the Hong Kong Chartered Governance
Institute and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors.
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Mr. ZHENG Yufeng (BBEIE), aged 50, has been appointed
as an independent non-executive Director when he joined the
Group since June 9, 2021. He is responsible for supervising
and providing independent advice on the operation and
management of the Group to the Board.

From September 2004, Mr. Zheng has been serving as a
professor and doctoral supervisor in the Faculty of Materials
Science and Engineering of Peking University. From July 1998
to August 2004, he successively served as a lecturer, an
associate professor, a professor and a doctoral supervisor in
Harbin Institute of Technology (WMEE T3 KX2). He served as
an editor-in-chief of the Bioactive Materials Journal in Beijing
Keai Senlan Culture Communication Co., Ltd (1t REIE & (b
EREA R A F]) since May 2015.

Mr. Zheng graduated from Harbin Engineering University (%58
JBMA TR 2PL) with a bachelor’s degree in metallic material
and heat treatment in July 1993. He obtained his PhD degree in
Materials Science from Harbin Institute of Technology (W E&E T
¥ KE) in September 1998,

Mr. LIU Daozhi (BI5&*), aged 59, has been appointed as
an independent non-executive Director when he joined the
Group since June 9, 2021. He is responsible for supervising
and providing independent advice on the operation and
management of the Group to the Board.

Mr. Liu founded Sunland Fund (ILEE#&Z) in 2015 and has
been serving as its executive partner since January 2015. From
February 2003 to December 2013, Mr. Liu served as a senior
vice president in emerging business in Shanghai MicroPort
Medical (Group) Co., Ltd. (B8 AIEEEM (K E)BR A F).

Mr. Liu graduated from Nankai University (R AZ) with a
Bachelor of Science degree in Physics in July 1985 and a PhD
degree in Science in April 1991.
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SUPERVISORS

Mr. WANG Xinglin (E®#), aged 61, has been serving as a
supervisor since he joined the Group on January 29, 2021. He
is responsible for supervising the performance of duties by our
Directors and members of the senior management of the Group.

Mr. Wang served as the chairman of the board of supervisors
at Lepu Medical since January 2020. He served as the general
manager at Zhongxing Huatou (Beijing) Fund Management Co.,
Ltd.* (REZERJER)REESEEBRAR]) since December
2016. He served as deputy chief accountant from July 2014
to January 2016 and director of the finance department from
July 2015 to January 2016, respectively, in China Shipbuilding
Industry. He served as deputy general manager in China State
Shipbuilding Corporation Finance Co., Ltd. (FMETH AR
E{TA 7], “China State Shipbuilding”) from December 2001,
and was promoted to the director of its finance department in
March 2004, a general manager in November 2005, the vice
chairman of its board of directors in November 2011, and vice
chairman of the board of directors and general manager in July
2014 respectively. He left China State Shipbuilding in August
2018. From July 1985 to January 2002, he successively served
as an assistant accountant, accountant, vice director of the
finance department, director of finance department, the vice
chief accountant and the chief accountant at Xi’an Shipbuilding
Industry Co., Ltd.* (FALMARRE TG, currently known
as China Shipbuilding Industry Corporation Xi’an Shipbuilding
Industry Co., Ltd.* (FEMAMETEBERTMM T ERRLQT)).

Mr. Wang graduated from Shaanxi Institute of Finance and
Economics (PREEEIAZE2PT) in July 1985 with a bachelor’s
degree in industrial accounting. He obtained qualification as a
senior accountant from China State Shipbuilding Corporation (-
BIAAA T ¥ 422 7)) in October 1997,

Ms. WANG Xiaoyong (EBE5), aged 46, has been serving as
a supervisor since she joined the Group on January 29, 2021.
She is responsible for supervising the performance of duties by
our Directors and members of the senior management of the
Group.
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Ms. Wang joined Lepu Medical in April 2006 as a regional
manager of the marketing center and was promoted to serve as
a general manager at pharmaceuticals department from June
2013 to December 2016. From January 2015 to December
2016, she also concurrently served as a marketing director at
Beijing Haihetian Technology Development Co., Ltd.* (At F &
KR I3 AR A R]). She served as a marketing director of the
marketing department since January 2017 in Lepu Medical.

Ms. Wang graduated from Henan University of Economics and
Law (AR EH A& BUAKE) in June 2010 with a master’'s degree
in business administration. She graduated from Southwest
University (FAF A& in January 2019 with a bachelor’s degree
in applied psychology through online courses.

Mr. QIAN Weidong (##i3), aged 60, has been serving as a
supervisor since June 9, 2021. He is responsible for supervising
the performance of duties by our Directors and members of the
senior management of the Group.

Mr. Qian joined the Group as a production technician in
Shanghai Shape Memory Alloy from January 2004 to 2008, and
was promoted as a production supervisor from 2008 to 2012.
He has been a production manager of Shanghai Shape Memory
Alloy since 2012.

Mr. Qian graduated from Jiangsu Shuxun Middle School (T x4
ZHhE) in July 1979.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. CHEN Juan (FR18), aged 51, is the executive Director,
chairman of the Board and general manager of the Company
and was appointed as a senior management of the Group
in December 2011. For further details, please refer to the
paragraph headed “— Executive Directors” in this section.

Ms. ZHANG Yuxin (58 28f), aged 44, is the executive Director,
deputy general manager and chief technology officer of the
Company and was appointed as a senior management of the
Group in May 2011. For further details, please refer to the
paragraph headed “-— Executive Directors” in this section.
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Mr. QIN Xue (FE#), aged 47, has been a deputy general
manager and the chief financial officer of the Group since
he joined the Group on May 28, 2021. He is responsible for
overseeing the financial and accounting affairs of the Group.
He is also the joint company secretary of the Company. Mr.
Qin joined the Lepu Medical Group in April 2007 and served
as a manager of the financial department in Lepu Medical until
September 2012. Mr. Qin served as Lepu Medical’s manager of
the financial planning department from October 2012 to June
2015, deputy director of financial management and manager of
the fund management department from July 2015 to February
2018, and internal audit director from March 2018 to April 2021,
respectively.

Mr. Qin graduated from Capital University of Economics and
Business in China (B #4E & 5 K 2) with a bachelor’s degree
in Accounting in July 1999. He obtained qualifications as a
senior accountant in July 2010 and certified management
accountant (CMA) in October 2019.

Mr. HE Yufeng (f1ER), aged 42, has been a deputy general
manager and the chief operating officer of the Group since
May 28, 2021. He joined the Group as the financial director of
Shanghai Shape Memory Alloy leading its finance department
from August 2013 to May 2021, and the financial director of the
Company from its inception to May 2021, during which he was
responsible for overseeing the financial and accounting affairs of
the Group.

Before joining Shanghai Shape Memory Alloy, Mr. He served as
a financial manager at Shanghai Phoenix Medical Equipment
Co., Ltd. (BB BBEREBRAF) from March 2011 to
August 2013.

Mr. He received a bachelor’'s degree in financial management
from Zhongnan University of Economics and Law (7 & B & BUE
A £ in June 2003.
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Ms. ZHANG Xiani (5RE#€), aged 39, has been a deputy
general manager of the Group since May 28, 2021. She
joined the Group as a marketing manager of Shanghai Shape
Memory Alloy from December 2011 to December 2014, and
was promoted to serve as a marketing director since December
2014. She has also been serving as the marketing director of
the Company since its inception.

She joined the Lepu Medical Group in July 2009 and served
as an assistant to chief of the marketing department of Lepu
Medical until December 2011. From June 2016 to May 2017,
Ms. Zhang served as the marketing director and sales director
in Shanghai Yocaly Health Management Co., Ltd.* (/8@ N7
fEFEEIE AR A E]), currently known as Shanghai Lepu Yunzhi
Technology Co., Ltd* (L/BZEZELRERHERAF), and
served as a sales director from June 2016 to December 2019.
From July 2007 to June 2009, she served in the operations
department in the Special Olympics Department of China
Administration of Sport for Persons with Disabilities (47 B &K A
BRI ESHEEFR D).

Ms. Zhang graduated from College of Education Scientific of
Capital Normal University (& &BAI#I K22 B RI2E0) in China
with a bachelor’s degree in education in July 2006.

Mr. LIAO Zhangya (EBBE3&E), aged 41, has been appointed
deputy general manager of the Group since March 31, 2023. He
is responsible for overseeing the sales and marketing affairs of
our Group. He joined the Lepu Medical Group in June 2010 and
served on several positions in the international business unit
therein. From 2010 to 2023, he served several positions from
regional sales manager, vice manager, manger, vice director, to
vice president of the international business unit.

Before joining the Lepu Medical Group and from August 2006
to August 2008, he served as an import and export officer at
Asia Pacific Mandiri in Singapore.

Mr. Liao graduated from Xi'an International Studies University
(TN EAE) with a bachelor’s degree in Tourism
Management (English) in July 2005. He graduated from Beihang
University (At fRZE AR AZ) with a master’s degree in MBA in
January 2012.
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JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. QIN Xue (¥|2), aged 47, was appointed as one of the
joint company secretaries of the Company. For further details,
please refer to the paragraph headed “- Senior Management” in
this section.

Ms. NG Ka Man (®%%) was appointed as one of the joint
company secretaries of the Company with effect on the Listing
Date. Ms. Ng works at TMF Hong Kong Limited, a global
corporate services provider. She has over 10 years of working
experience in the corporate services profession. Ms. Ng
obtained a master’s degree in corporate governance. She is an
associate member of The Hong Kong Chartered Governance
Institute (formerly known as The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries) and The Chartered Governance Institute
in the United Kingdom.

CHANGE OF INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS
AND SUPERVISORS

Save as disclosed above, as of December 31, 2022, there
has been no change to the information of the Directors and
Supervisors subject to disclosure under Rule 13.51B(1) of the
Listing Rules.

# For identification purposes only
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The Board is pleased to present the annual report (the “Annual
Report”) together with the audited consolidated financial
statements (the “Consolidated Financial Statements”) of
the Company for the year ended December 31, 2022 (the
“Reporting Period”).

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM LISTING

The Shares were listed on the Stock Exchange on November
8, 2022 (the “Listing Date”). The net proceeds received from
the Global Offering (after deducting the estimated underwriting
commissions and other fees and expenses payable by
the Company in connection with the Global Offering) was
approximately HK$567.3 million.

For the period from the Listing Date up to the date of this
Annual Report, save as disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated March 31, 2023 in relation to subscription of
wealth management product for treasury management purpose,
which has been redeemed in full as of the date of this Annual
Report, the Company has not utilized any of the net proceeds
raised from the Global Offering. The Company intends to use
the net proceeds in the same manner and proportion as set out
in the Prospectus under the section headed “Future Plans and
Use of Proceeds”.

As disclosed on pages 485 to 492 of the Prospectus, based on
the current business plan, the Company intended to implement
the use of proceeds from the Global Offering in the five financial
years from 2023 to 2027. The Board currently expects full
utilization of the net proceeds raised from the Global Offering
by December 31, 2027, subject to changes in light of the
Company’s evolving business needs and changing market
conditions.

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS

The Company is a leading interventional medical device provider
in China for CHD, a major field of application for structural
heart diseases. The Company is principally engaged in the
research, development, manufacture and commercialization of
interventional medical devices primarily targeting structural heart
diseases.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and operating results for the
year ended December 31, 2022 by its principal business is set
out in “Management Discussion and Analysis” section of this
Annual Report.
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Particulars of the Company’ principal subsidiary as at December
31, 2022 are set out in note 1.2 “Reorganisation” to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended December 31,
2022 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income on page 185 of this Annual
Report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Group, the outlook of
future development of the business of the Group as well as a
discussion and analysis of the Group’s performance during the
Reporting Period and the material factors underlying its financial
performance and financial position as required by section 388(2)
and Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance can be found in
the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” of
this Annual Report.

The financial risk management objectives and policies of the
Group are set out in note 3 “Financial Risk Management” to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Further details relating to the Group’s relationships with its
key stakeholders, the Group’s environmental policies and
performance, as well as the compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group
can refer to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
on pages 85 to 141 of this Annual Report. The “Management
Discussion and Analysis” and the “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” form part of this Annual Report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS

We face various risks involved in our daily business operations,
including risks that are specific to our business as well as the
industry and regulatory landscape in the PRC. In particular, the
research, development and commercialization of our products
are heavily regulated in all material aspects, and we may be
unable to obtain, maintain or renew the regulatory filings and
registration certificates required to commercialize our products
in a timely manner, or at all. For details, please refer to the
sections headed “Risk Factors” in the Prospectus.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY AND PERFORMANCE

We are dedicated to lowering the environmental impact of all
aspects of our business operations. We endeavour to comply
with the relevant laws and regulations regarding environmental
protection and implement effective measures to achieve
efficient use of resources, waste reduction and energy saving.
For instance, (1) we manage the use of energy and water in
the office area and encourage employees to save resources;
(2) we fully carry out garbage sorting and recycling to promote
waste recycling; and (38) we use LED energy saving lamps to
replace high-energy lamps and reduce the power consumption
of electrical equipment. We have followed the comprehensive
policy on environmental, social and corporate governance in
accordance with the Listing Rules, which sets out how we
practice corporate social responsibility in our daily operations
and productions.

In accordance with Rule 13.91 and the Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide contained in Appendix 27
of the Listing Rules, the Company’s Environmental, Social and
Governance Report is set out on pages 85 to 141 of this Annual
Report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group is subject to various PRC laws and regulations
in relation to its operations in the PRC, including, without
limitation, in the aspects of medical devices and environmental
and social protection.

As far as the Board and the management are aware, the Group
has complied in all material aspects with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the business and
operation of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2022
and as of the date of this report. During the Reporting Period,
there was no material breach of, or non-compliance with,
applicable laws and regulations by the Group.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a good
relationship with its employees, customers and suppliers to
meet its immediate and long-term business goals. During
the Reporting Period, there was no material and significant
dispute between the Group and its employees, customers and
suppliers.
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DIVIDEND POLICY
The dividend policies of the Company are as follows:

1. the Board of the Company proposes the profit distribution
plan to the general meeting for approval based on the
Company’s overall business status, operation results,
financial results, operation capital, capital demands, future
prospects, cash flows and any other factors deemed as
relevant by the Board, taking full consideration to return
of investors, provided that the earnings and accumulative
undistributed dividends for the current year are positive
and the statutory reserve fund and the surplus reserve
fund are provided in full;

2. the profit distribution policy of the Company shall remain
continuous and stable, and shall be in the interest of
the Company in the long term, in the interests of all
Shareholders as a whole and in line with the sustainable
development of the Company;

3. in case of war, natural disasters and other force majeure,
or where changes to the external operating environment of
the Company result in material impact on the production
and operation of the Company, or where there are
significant changes in the Company’s own operations
status, proposed by the Board and passed by the
shareholder’s general meeting, the Company may adjust
its profits distribution policy; and

4.  the adjustment plan for the dividend policy shall be
formulated by the Board and be considered and approved
at the shareholder’s general meeting. The adjusted
profit distribution policy shall not violate the laws and
regulations, departmental rules, normative documents and
the relevant provisions of the Articles of Association.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended December 31, 2022.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the prior four financial years is set out on page 320 of
this Annual Report. This summary does not constitute a part of
the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
Major Customers

For the year ended December 31, 2022, total sales to the
Group’s five largest customers represented 14.6% of total
revenue of the Group, and total sales to the Group’s single
largest customer accounted for 3.5% of total revenue of the
Group.

For the year ended December 31, 2022, we collaborated with
the Retained Lepu Medical Group to distribute our products
overseas and in China, and generated revenue from sales to
the Retained Lepu Medical Group of RMB5.4 million. Such
transactions were conducted in the ordinary course of business
at arm’s length with reference to normal commercial terms. For
details, please refer to “Continuing Connected Transactions —
Sale of Products Framework Agreement” of this Annual Report.

Major Suppliers

For the year ended December 31, 2022, total purchase from
the Group’s five largest suppliers represented 49.2% of total
purchase of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2022,
and total purchase from the Group’s single largest supplier
accounted for 14.1% of total purchase of the Group.

For the year ended December 31, 2022, we procured certain
non-core components and parts from the Retained Lepu
Medical Group, and our purchases from the Retained Lepu
Medical Group was RMB1.2 million. Such transactions were
conducted in the ordinary course of business at arm’s length
with reference to normal commercial terms.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, their close
associates or any Shareholders (to the best of the Directors’
knowledge, who holds more than 5% of the issued Shares of
the Company) had any interest in the five largest customers or
suppliers of the Company during the Reporting Period.
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Overlapping of Customers and Suppliers

Our Directors confirmed that none of our major customers was
also our major suppliers during the year ended December 31,
2022, except for the Retained Lepu Medical Group, which was
our major distributor as well as our major supplier in 2022.
Negotiations of the terms of our sales to and purchases from
the Retained Lepu Medical Group were conducted on an
individual basis, and the sales and purchases were neither inter-
connected or inter-conditional with each other. Our Directors
confirmed that all of our sales to and purchases from the
Retained Lepu Medical Group were conducted in the ordinary
course of business under normal commercial terms and on
arm’s length basis.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Company and the Group during the year ended December
31, 2022 are set out in note 14 to Consolidated Financial
Statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

During the year ended December 31, 2022, details of
movements in the investment properties of the Company
and the Group are set out in the note 16 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements and the section headed “Particulars of
Investment Properties” on page 319.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year ended December 31, 2022 are set out in note
27 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

RESERVE AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVE

Details of the movement in the reserves of the Company and
the Group during the year ended December 31, 2022 are set
out in note 28 to the Consolidated Financial Statements and the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 188 to
189 of this Annual Report, respectively, of which, the details of
the reserves available for distribution to Shareholders is set out
in note 28 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

As of December 31, 2022, we had no outstanding balance of
borrowings or unutilized banking facilities.
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

It is proposed that the 2022 AGM will be held on Thursday,
June 15, 2023. The notice of the 2022 AGM will be published
on the websites of the Company (http://www.scientechmed.
com) and the HKEXnews website of the Stock Exchange (www.
hkexnews.hk) and will be despatched to the Shareholders in
due course.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For ascertaining Shareholders’ right to attend and vote at the
2022 AGM, the register of members of the Company will be
closed from Monday, June 12, 2023 to Thursday, June 15,
2023, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of
Shares will be effected. Shareholders whose names appear on
the Company’s register of members on June 15, 2023 shall be
entitled to attend and vote at the 2022 AGM.

In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the forthcoming
2022 AGM, all properly completed transfer forms accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the H
share registrar of the Company in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor
Services Limited at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt
Road, Hong Kong, no later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, June 9,
2023 for Registration.

DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

The Directors and Supervisors of the Company who held office
since the Listing Date and up to the date of this Annual Report
are:

Executive Directors:
Ms. Chen Juan (Chairman of the Board and General Manager)
Ms. Zhang Yuxin

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Fu Shan
Mr. Zheng Guorui

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Ms. Chan Ka Lai Vanessa

Mr. Zheng Yufeng

Mr. Liu Daozhi

Supervisors:

Mr. Wang Xinglin
Ms. Wang Xiaoyong
Mr. Qian Weidong
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of Directors, Supervisors and senior
management are set out in the section headed “Biographies of
Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management” on pages 48 to
58 of this Annual Report.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each of the independent non-executive Director has confirmed
his/her independence for the period from the Listing Date to
the date of this Annual Report in accordance with Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all of
the independent non-executive Directors are independent in
accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

TERM OF OFFICE AND SERVICE CONTRACTS
OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

Executive Directors

Each of Ms. Chen Juan and Ms. Zhang Yuxin, being our
executive Directors, has entered into a service contract with our
Company on October 20, 2022 pursuant to Rule 19A.54 of the
Listing Rules. Each service contract is for an initial term of three
years commencing from the Listing Date. The service contracts
may be renewed in accordance with the Articles of Association
and the applicable laws, rules and regulations.

Non-executive Director and Independent Non-executive
Directors

Each of Mr. Fu Shan and Mr. Zheng Guorui, being our
non-executive Directors, Ms. Chan Ka Lai Vanessa, Mr.
Zheng Yufeng and Mr. Liu Daozhi, being our independent
non-executive Directors, has entered into a letter of
appointment with our Company on October 20, 2022. Each
letter of appointment is for an initial term of three years
commencing from the Listing Date. The letters of appointment
may be renewed in accordance with the Articles of Association
and the applicable laws, rules and regulations.
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Supervisors

Each of Mr. Wang Xinglin, Ms. Wang Xiaoyong and Mr. Qian
Weidong, being our Supervisors, has entered into a service
contract with our Company on October 20, 2022 pursuant to
Rule 19A.55 of the Listing Rules. Each service contract is for
an initial term of three years commencing from the Listing Date.
The service contracts may be renewed in accordance with
the Articles of Association and the applicable laws, rules and
regulations.

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND
SUPERVISORS IN SIGNIFICANT
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this Annual Report, during the period
from the Listing Date to the date of this Annual Report, none
of the Directors had directly or indirectly a material interest in a
transaction, arrangement or contract, to which the Company,
any of its subsidiaries or its fellow subsidiaries is a party and is
significant to the business of the Group.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS

Save as disclosed in this Annual Report, there were no contract
of significance between the Company or any of its subsidiaries
and any controlling Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries or
any contracts of significance for the provision of services to the
Company or any of its subsidiaries by a controlling shareholder
or any of its subsidiaries.

DIRECTORS’ INSURANCE

The Company has maintained appropriate liability insurance for
its Directors, Supervisors and senior management to cover the
legal action arising out of corporate action.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

During the period from the Listing Date to the date of this
Annual Report, the Company had not signed or entered into any
contract in respect of the management or administration of the
entire or any significant part of the business.
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REMUNERATION POLICY

In accordance with the Group’s remuneration policy, in
assessing the amount of remuneration payable to Directors
and senior management, the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee will take into account factors such as
the salaries paid by comparable companies, their tenure, time
commitment, level of responsibilities and personal performance
(as the case may be).

Details of the emoluments of the Director and five highest paid
individuals of the Company are set out in the note 8 and note
36(e) to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

RETIREMENT AND EMPLOYEE BENEFIT
SCHEME

Details of the retirement and employee benefit scheme of the
Company are set out in the note 8 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors is interested in any business, apart from
our business, which competes or is likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with our business under Rule 8.10(2) of the
Listing Rules.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

As at December 31, 2022, none of the Directors, Supervisors or
chief executives of our Company had interests or short positions
in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of our Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which will be required to be notified to our
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO or which will be required, pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred
to therein, or which will be required, pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, to be notified to
our Company and the Stock Exchange.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ RIGHTS TO
ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the period from the Listing Date to the date
of this Annual Report was the Company or its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangement that would enable the Directors or
Supervisors to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporates, and none of the Directors, Supervisors or any of
their spouses or children under the age of 18 were granted
any right to subscribe for the equity or debt securities of the
Company or any other body corporates or had exercised any
such right.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES

So far as the Directors are aware, as at December 31, 2022,
the following persons (other than the Directors, Supervisors and
chief executive of the Company) had interests or short positions
in the Shares or underlying Shares which were required to be
disclosed to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO and recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:
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Notes:

1. As at December 31, 2022, the total number of issued shares of
the Company was 346,749,997 shares.

2. The letter (L) denotes a long position in shares of the Company.

3. Lepu Medical held approximately 80.75% of the shareholding
interest of our Company, including approximately 0.81% indirect
shareholding interest through Target Medical and approximately
79.94% direct shareholding interest. Lepu Medical held the entire
share interest in Target Medical and was therefore deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by Target Medical under the SFO.
Dr. Pu is the actual controller of Lepu Medical and was therefore
deemed to be interested in the H shares held by Lepu Medical
under the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at December 31, 2022, the
Directors were not aware of any other person (other than the
Directors, Supervisors and chief executive of the Company) who
had any interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying
Shares which were required to be disclosed under Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or to be entered in the register
required to be kept pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

During the period from the Listing Date to the date of this
Annual Report, the Company had not entered into or maintained
any equity-linked agreements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor its subsidiary had purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
period from the Listing Date to the date of this Annual Report.

SHARE SCHEME

The Company did not adopt any share scheme under Chapter
17 of the Listing Rules in the year ended 31 December 2022.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for the pre-emptive rights in the Articles
of Association, which would oblige the Company to offer new
Shares on a pro-rata basis to its existing shareholders.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the
Company’s securities.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions were set out in note
36 “Related Party Transactions” to the Consolidated Financial
Statements. Details of any related party transaction which
constitute continuing connected transaction not exempted
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules are disclosed below.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

As disclosed in the Prospectus, the following transactions of
our Group constitute the continuing connected transactions of
the Company for the year ended December 31, 2022.

Connected Persons

Lepu Medical is one of our Substantial Shareholders, directly
and indirectly holding approximately 80.75% of total issued
share capital of the Company as of December 31, 2022.
Accordingly, Lepu Medical and its subsidiaries (other than
our Group) are our connected persons for the purposes of
connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Clinical Trial Service Framework Agreement

On October 18, 2022, our Company entered into a clinical
trial service framework agreement with Lepu Medical
(the “Clinical Trial Service Framework Agreement’),
pursuant to which the Retained Lepu Medical Group
agreed to provide clinical trial services on our products
that enter into clinical trial stage from time to time for
our Group. We may enter into individual agreements
separately with the Retained Lepu Medical Group with
respect to different transactions which provide for specific
terms and conditions including products, price, payment
and other terms in accordance with the Clinical Trial
Service Framework Agreement and applicable laws. The
term of the Clinical Trial Service Framework Agreement
commenced from November 8, 2022 and expire on
December 31, 2024. For details, please refer to the
Prospectus.

The reasons and benefits of entering into the transaction
are that we are a developer and manufacturer of occluders
and occluder-related products and a developer of heart
valve products. Clinical trial services are vital to our clinical
studies for occluders and heart valve products as part of
our development process. Hefei Hospital, a member of the
Retained Lepu Medical Group, is a cardiovascular hospital
equipped with the requisite qualification for providing
clinical trial services and has a track record of having the
capability of providing efficient clinical trial services since
our cooperation with them in 2019. As such, we engage
Hefei Hospital as one of the hospitals that provide clinical
trial services for us.

The annual caps in respect of the transactions
contemplated under the Clinical Trial Service Framework
Agreement are RMB9.0 million, RMB9.5 million and
RMB9.5 million for the three years ending December 31,
2022, 2023 and 2024, respectively. During the Reporting
Period, the actual transaction amount was RMB2.9 million.
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Sale of Products Framework Agreement

On October 18, 2022, our Company entered into a sale
of products framework agreement with Lepu Medical (the
“Sale of Products Framework Agreement”’), pursuant
to which our Group may sell to (1) Lepu (Shanghai) and
Anhui Magete certain products manufactured by our
Group, namely, congenital heart disease occluders,
congenital heart disease occluder delivery systems, LAA
occluder systems, and snares, for distribution within
the PRC; and (2) Lepu India congenital heart disease
occluders, congenital heart disease occluder delivery
systems and snares, for distribution in India. We may
enter into individual agreements separately with Lepu
(Shanghai), Anhui Magete and Lepu India with respect to
different transactions which provide for specific terms and
conditions including products, price, payment and other
terms in accordance with the Sale of Products Framework
Agreement and applicable laws. The term of the Sale
of Products Framework Agreement commenced from
November 8, 2022 and expire on December 31, 2024. For
details, please refer to the Prospectus.

The reasons and benefits of entering into the transaction
are that: (a) Our principal business is the production and
sales of occluder and occluder-related devices and it is in
our ordinary and usual course of business to sell occluder
delivery systems to other parties for distribution; (b) Since
2012, we have been distributing our occluders through the
Retained Lepu Medical Group with its wide and developed
distribution network. We have been steadily ramping up
our distribution qualification and capability by means
including applying for our own distribution licenses. While
we have established our own sales capability, a portion
of the sales of our products will be conducted through
members of the Retained Lepu Medical Group as our
distributors; and (c) Certain of the requisite certificates
for conducting sales in India were registered by Lepu
India. We will continue to engage them as our distribution
channel in India, where the Medical Devices Rules, which
were published by the central government of India in 2016
and became effective in 2017, forbid the application by
a foreign entity from applying for a license for importing
medical devices. It is not practicably feasible and unduly
burdensome for us to establish an Indian entity within the
near future to carry out as efficiently the role currently
undertaken by Lepu India, due to our unfamiliarity with the
local regulatory environment and the current pandemic
situation caused by COVID-19.
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The annual caps in respect of the transactions
contemplated under the Sale of Products Framework
Agreement are RMB14.3 million, RMB17.9 million and
RMB20.4 million for the three years ending December 31,
2022, 2023 and 2024, respectively. During the Reporting
Period, the actual transaction amount was RMB5.4 million.

Entrusted Products Related Framework Agreement

On October 18, 2022, our Company entered into a
entrusted products related framework agreement with
Lepu Medical (the “Entrusted Products Related
Framework Agreement”), pursuant to which our Group
agreed to engage the Retained Lepu Medical Group to
conduct the Relevant Activities legally according to the
directions of our Group. We will reimburse Lepu Medical
of its costs and fees actually incurred for the R&D and
registration related activities associated with the Entrusted
Products. Upon commercialization of the Entrusted
Products, the Group may purchase the TAVR system
and TMVCRS to be manufactured by Lepu Medical for
sales and distribution onwards as authorized by Lepu
Medical irrevocably and exclusively pursuant to the asset
transfer agreement. The Group may enter into individual
agreements separately with the Retained Lepu Medical
Group with respect to different transactions which provide
for specific terms and conditions including target, price,
payment and other terms in accordance with the Entrusted
Products Related Framework Agreement and applicable
laws. The term of the Entrusted Products Related
Framework Agreement commenced from November 8,
2022 and expire on December 31, 2024. For details,
please refer to the Prospectus.
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The reasons and benefits of entering into the transaction
are that historically the type inspections and animal tests
of the Entrusted Products were conducted under the name
of Lepu Medical. Due to the PRC regulatory restrictions
in connection with the Entrusted Products at the time of
entering into the transaction, it was not feasible for us to
directly take over and continue with the Relevant Activities
including conducting the clinical trials. Entrusting the
Retained Lepu Medical Group with the subsequent R&D,
registration and manufacturing of the Entrusted Products
is crucial to the realization of their commercialization and
subsequent monetization. The Entrustment Arrangements
under this transaction, which are integral to the injection
of interventional heart valve business from Lepu Medical
to our Group, strategically complemented our existing
product portfolio and enabled us to have a product
portfolio covering all three major fields of application in the
interventional medical device market targeting structural
heart diseases.

The annual caps in respect of the transactions
contemplated under the Entrusted Products Related
Framework Agreement are RMB28.0 million, RMB18.0
million and RMB11.0 million for the three years ending
December 31, 2022, 2023 and 2024 respectively. During
the Reporting Period, the actual transaction amount was
RMB28.0 million.

During the Reporting Period, pursuant to Rule 14A.55
of the Listing Rules, the independent non-executive
Directors have reviewed the above continuing connected
transactions and confirmed that such transactions were:

()  entered into in the ordinary and usual course of
business of the Group;

(i) conducted on terms no less favourable to the Group
than terms available to or from independent third
parties; and

(i) conducted in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing them on terms that are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, the auditor of the Company,
has performed certain agreed-upon audit procedures for
the above continuing connected transactions entered into
by the Group during the year ended December 31, 2022
according to the Rule 14A.56 to the Listing Rule and
issued written confirmation letter therefor, which contained
its results and conclusion.

Letter from the independent auditor confirmed with the
Board that they have not awared anything may enable
them believe the above continuing connected transactions:

(i) have not been approved by the Board;

(i) have not followed the pricing policies of the Group
in all material aspects, if they involve the goods or
services provided by the Group;

(i)  were not conducted in accordance with the relevant
agreements for such transactions in all material
aspects; and

(iv) have an aggregate transaction amount exceeding
the relevant proposed annual cap disclosed in
Prospectus.

The Company has provided such letter from the
independent auditor to the Stock Exchange.

Save as disclosed above, the “related party transactions”
mentioned in note 36 to the Consolidated Financial Statements
do not constitute the connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions of the Company as defined in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed in this Annual Report, there were no
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions
which are required to be disclosed by the Company during the
Reporting Period in accordance with the provisions concerning
the disclosure of connected transactions under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. The Directors confirm that the Company
has complied with the disclosure requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules in relation to the relevant connected
transactions.
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COMPLIANCE WITH NON-COMPETITION
AGREEMENT

Each of Lepu Medical Technology (Beijing) Co., Ltd. (“Lepu
Medical”) and Dr. Pu Zhongjie (824 (“Dr. Pu”) entered into
a non-competition agreement with the Company dated January
27, 2022 (the “Non-Competition Agreement”), pursuant to
which, Lepu Medical and Dr. Pu have irrevocably undertaken to
the Company (for the interests of the Company itself and other
members of the Group) that Lepu Medical and Dr. Pu shall not,
and shall procure that its associates (excluding the Group) will
not, directly or indirectly, whether on their own or jointly with
another person or company, acquire interest in, participate
in, develop, operate or engage in any business or company
which directly or indirectly competes or may compete with any
business of the Company. Please refer to the Prospectus for
details of the Non-Competition Agreement.

The Company has received the annual confirmation that Lepu
Medical and Dr. Pu have complied with the Non-Competition
Agreement during the Reporting Period.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
performance of the Non-Competition Agreement during the
Reporting Period, according to the information and confirmation
provided or given by Lepu Medical and Dr. Pu, and are
satisfied that Lepu Medical and Dr. Pu have complied with the
Non-Competition Agreement.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

For the year ended December 31, 2022, the Group has no
permitted indemnity provision.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARES ISSUED

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company for
the Reporting Period and details of the Shares issued during
the Reporting Period are set out in note 27 “Share Capital” to
the Consolidated Financial Statements.

DONATIONS

The Company did not make charitable and other donations
during the Reporting Period.
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DEBENTURE ISSUED

The Group did not issue any debenture during the Reporting
Period.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on
the principles and code provisions as set out in the CG Code
contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules and the Company
has adopted the CG Code as its own code of corporate
governance.

From the Listing Date to December, 31, 2022, the Company
has complied with the code provisions as set out in the CG
Code, except for the deviation as disclosed in the “Corporate
Governance Report” section of this Annual Report.

Information on the corporate governance practices and
compliance with the CG Code of the Company, please refer to
the Corporate Governance Report on pages 142 to 172 of this
Annual Report for details.

PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has applied for and the Stock Exchange has
approved waiver from strict compliance with Rule 8.08(1) of the
Listing Rules. Based on the information that is publicly available
to the Company and to the best knowledge of the Directors,
the Company has maintained the required public float under the
Listing Rules and the public float waiver at any time during the
period from the Listing Date to the date of this Annual Report.

MATERIAL LEGAL PROCEEDINGS AND
COMPLIANCE

For the year ended December 31, 2022, the Company was not
involved in any material legal proceedings or arbitrations. To
the best knowledge of the Directors, there is no material legal
proceeding or claim which is pending or threatening against the
Company.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises two independent non-executive
Directors, namely Ms. Chan Ka Lai Vanessa and Mr. Zheng
Yufeng, and one non-executive Director, namely Mr. Zheng
Guorui.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Consolidated Financial
Statements and this Annual Report, reviewed the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and discussed
auditing, internal controls and financial reporting matters.

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers has appointed as auditor of
the Company for the year ended December 31, 2022.
PricewaterhouseCoopers has audited the accompanying
Financial Statements in the Annual Report which were prepared
in accordance with the IFRSs.

PricewaterhouseCoopers is subject to retirement and,
being eligible, offers itself for re-appointment at the
upcoming 2022 AGM. A resolution for re-appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditor of the Company will be
proposed at the 2022 AGM.

EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO THE REPORTING
PERIOD

There are no material subsequent events undertaken by the
Group after December 31, 2022 and up to the date of this
Annual Report.

By order of the Board
Chen Juan
Chairman and Executive Director

Shanghai, the People’s Republic of China
March 31, 2023
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In 2022, all members of the Board of Supervisors, adhering
to an attitude of responsibility to all Shareholders, earnestly
performed their supervisory duties and positively conducted
their works in accordance with the principle of honesty by
participating meetings of the Board of Supervisors, attending
Board meetings and shareholder’s general meetings and
effectively supervised on the legality of operations, financial
conditions as well as the duty performance of the Directors and
management of the Company, in strict accordance with the
Company Law and other relevant laws, the Listing Rules and
the relevant requirements of the Articles of Association, which
promoted the standardized operation of the Company.

BASIC COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD OF
SUPERVISORS

The Board of Supervisors shall comprise three supervisors.
The appointment and dismissal of the chairman of the Board
of Supervisors shall be passed by the votes of more than
two-thirds of the members of the Board of Supervisors. Each
term of office of a Supervisor is three years and he/she may
serve consecutive terms if re-elected.

The Board of Supervisors shall be composed of representatives
of the Shareholders and representatives of the Company’s
employees. Shareholder representatives shall be elected and
removed at shareholders’ general meetings, and employee
representatives shall be elected and removed democratically
by the employees of the company. The number of employee
representative supervisors of the Company shall not be
less than one-third of the Supervisors. Directors and
senior management members shall not act concurrently as
Supervisors.

The Board of Supervisors consists of three supervisors which
are as follows:

Shareholder Representative Supervisors:
Mr. Wang Xinglin (chairman)
Ms. Wang Xiaoyong

Employee Representative Supervisors:
Mr. Qian Weidong
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OVERALL RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD
OF SUPERVISORS

The Board of Supervisors serve as the supervision institution
of the Company which shall strictly perform their duties in
compliance with the Company Law, the Listing Rules and the
Articles of Association. The Board of Supervisors is responsible
for supervising the performance of the Board and senior
management, the Company’s financial operations, internal
control and risk management.

PERFORMANCE OF THE BOARD OF
SUPERVISORS

During the period from the Listing Date and up to the date of
this report, the Board of Supervisors convened one meeting,
eight resolutions were considered. All supervisors attended
the following meetings in person to discuss and consider the
following matters on, among others, the audited Consolidated
Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended
December 31, 2022, the Independent Auditor’'s Report and
the Audit Report, the financial budget plan for 2022 of the
Company, the 2022 Working Report of Board of Supervisors of
the Company, the 2022 Annual Results Announcement and the
2022 Annual Report of the Company, the 2022 Internal Control
and Self-assessment Report of the Company, the remuneration
matters on Directors for 2022 and 2023, the remuneration
matters on Supervisors for 2022 and 2023, as well as the
proposed re-appointment of domestic and overseas auditor of
the Company for 2023.

The attendance of each supervisor at the Board of Supervisors
meeting is set out in the table below:

Name of supervisors ERla

Mr. Wang Xinglin (chairman) FEBEE (L)
Ms. Wang Xiaoyong TS

Mr. Qian Weidong EEREAE

During the Reporting Period, the members of the Board of
Supervisors attended the shareholder’s general meeting and
the Board meeting of the Company, put forward relevant
opinions and suggestions with a serious and responsible
attitude, conducted supervision on the procedures and content
of the meetings, and effectively supervised the decision-making
procedures, legal operations and financial conditions of the
Company’s business, as well as the duty performance of
the Directors and management in the daily operations of the
Company, which well-safeguarded the legal interests of the
Company and the Shareholders.
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THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS’ BASIC
EVALUATION ON THE OPERATIONS
CONDUCTED BY THE BOARD AND THE
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

For the year ended December 31, 2022, through supervising
the Directors and senior management, the Board of Supervisors
believed that the Company’s major business decision-making
procedures were legal and effective; when performing their
duties, the Directors and senior management earnestly
implemented the laws and regulations of the PRC, the Articles
of Association and the resolutions of the shareholder’s general
meetings and the Board meetings, and there was no behavior
that harmed the interests of the Company and the Shareholders
and no violations committed by the Directors or senior
management were found during operations.

INDEPENDENT OPINION ON THE RELEVANT
MATTERS OF THE COMPANY DURING THE
REPORTING PERIOD

Independent Opinion of the Board of Supervisors on
Compliance of the Company’s Operations with Legal
Requirements

In 2022, the Board of Supervisors supervised the convening
procedures and resolutions of the shareholder’s general
meetings and the Board meetings of the Company, the
implementation of resolutions of the shareholder’s general
meetings by the Board, and the duty performance of senior
management in accordance with the rights granted under the
Company Law of the PRC and the Articles of Association.

The Board of Supervisors believed that the Company’s
decision-making procedures complied with the relevant
provisions of the Company Law of the PRC, the Articles
of Association and the Listing Rules, and the Board has
standardized operations, legal procedures, reasonable
decisions, and earnestly implemented each resolution of the
shareholder’s general meetings. The Directors and senior
management were loyal and diligent when they dedicated to
their duties, with no violation of laws, regulations, the Articles
of Association or damage to the interests of the Company.
Each resolution of the shareholder’s general meetings has been
implemented.
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Independent Opinion of the Board of Supervisors on the
Company’s Financial Position

The Board of Supervisors supervised the Company’s finance,
and believed that the Company’s financial system was
sound, its financial operations were in good condition, and
considered that the Company strictly met the requirements of
the accounting system and accounting standards for business
enterprises and other relevant financial regulations. Meanwhile,
after the Board of Supervisor carefully reviewed 2022 Financial
Statements and other relevant documents proposed to be
submitted by the Board to the shareholder’s general meeting,
which was audited and issued an unqualified opinion by the
independent auditor, it believed that such financial report has
followed the principle of consistency, objectively, truly and
fairly reflected the financial position and operation results of the
Company.

Independent Opinion of the Board of Supervisors on the
Company’s Connected Transactions

The Board of Supervisors reviewed the relevant information of
the connected transactions of the Company during this year and
believed that the Company’s relevant connected transactions
were implemented in strict accordance with the relevant
systems and agreements of connected transactions and were in
line with the principles of fairness and reasonableness, without
prejudice to the interests of the Company and the Shareholders.

2023 ANNUAL WORK PLAN

In 2023, the Board of Supervisors will continue to fully perform
its supervisory duties and strictly comply with the Company
Law and other relevant laws, the Listing Rules and the
relevant requirements of the Articles of Association, exercise
its supervisory authority independently in accordance with
laws and perform its fiduciary duty, effectively safeguard the
interests of the Company and the Shareholders and ensure the
standardized and healthy operation of the Company.

1. The Board of Supervisors will carry out its daily work to
convene meetings of the Board of Supervisors according
to the actual situation of the Company and make its best
efforts to review and consider various proposals;
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Report of the Board of Supervisors
EEeRE

The Board of Supervisors will strengthen the
implementation of its supervisory functions. The Board of
Supervisors will enhance the supervision of the Directors
and senior management in the discharge of their duties
and responsibilities, the execution of resolutions and
compliance with regulations, improve the supervision and
correction of violations, misconduct and omissions of
senior management, and promote the standardization and
legality of their decision-making and operating activities;
conduct focused supervision on the implementation of
the Company’s major operating decisions, major asset
acquisitions and external investments, and regularly review
and audit the Company’s financial reports to effectively
prevent business risks;

and responsibly pay close attention to the production,
operation and management as well as important measures
of the Company on a daily basis, participate in the Board
meetings, shareholder’s general meetings and other
important meetings of the Company, and actively provide
their opinions or advice.

MREEE BB - RIEHESZM
EREBABEBITRE  #TR
AMBTARENENEE - N5
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REOEBEAE  RELARME
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3.  The Board of Supervisors will learn about laws, regulations RSB EXEERARBBER - R
and relevant policies in a timely manner. The Board of BEEBRTREMNNERERNEH
Supervisors will seriously study the laws, regulations and R - TENEB A QA T E AT
relevant policies amended from time to time, continuously FIRER  RELAARREE2AH
urge the construction and operation of the internal control SRR RS - REARQ AR
system, promote a long-term effective mechanism of B RBEERE K
standardizing corporate governance of the Company and
facilitate the sustainable and healthy development of the
Company; and

4. The members of the Board of Supervisors will diligently EEeREYPNER -  AERIH

EARRBMEE  KE - EEEBER
MERRE 2NEFEEH K
RAGEARARAEZ R LRIBIE
HER&EH -

By Order of the Board of Supervisors AEEEMm
Wang Xinglin EFEH
Chairman ES

FEARKEME - L&
20233 A31H

Shanghai, the People’s Republic of China
March 31, 2023
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ABOUT THE REPORT

This is an Environmental, Social and Governance Report
(the “Report”) issued by LEPU Scientech Medical
Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (the “Company” or
“us” or “our”). It aims to disclose the performance
and outcomes in respect of environmental, social and
governance (the “ESG”) areas of the Company during
2022 to the stakeholders. In order to fully understand the
ESG practices and measures of the Company, the Report
should be read in conjunction with the section headed
“Corporate Governance Report” in the Annual Report and
“Corporate Governance” on the website of the Company.

Reporting Boundary

In accordance with the corporate and shareholding
structure for FY2022, the Report covers the scope of the
Company and its subsidiaries. The Reporting Period of the
Report is from January 1, 2022 to December 31, 2022.

Reporting Principles

In the preparation of this Report, the principles of
“materiality”, “ quantitative”, “balance” and “consistency”
are used to define the content of the report and the
presentation of information.

Materiality: The Report has identified key stakeholders
and their ESG concerns in the preparation hereof, and
accordingly disclosed the same based on the relative
importance of their concerns. For details of the materiality
assessment work, please refer to the sub-sections headed
“Communication with Stakeholders” and “Material ESG
Issues Assessment” below.
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RE  HEREREKRE

Quantitative: The Report uses quantitative information
to present key performance indicators in environmental
and social areas, and explains the quantitative standards,
methods, assumptions and/or computation, as well as
the sources of conversion factors used herein in the
appropriate places.

Balance: The purpose of this Report is to present a
balanced account of the Company’s efforts in three
aspects of ESG, including responsible operation, value of
talent, and green operation.

Consistency: The data disclosed in this Report are based
on statistical methods consistent with previous public
disclosures. Individual changes have been explained to
ensure consistency.

Basis of Preparation

The Report is prepared in accordance with the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide
(the “ESG Reporting Guide”) set forth in Appendix 27 to
the Listing Rules.

Information Source

The information, data and cases used in this report are
derived from the Company’s official documents, statistical
reports, financial reports or public documents, as well
as ESG practice information collected and summarized
by various functional departments of the Company. The
Board is responsible for the authenticity, accuracy and
completeness of the Report. This Report is published in
both Chinese and English. In case of any discrepancy, the
Chinese version shall prevail.
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ESG MANAGEMENT

The Company fully implements ESG concept into business
activities and management, is committed to optimizing
ESG management strategy and governance structure,
leading the Company’s daily business decisions, and
constantly improving the Company’s ESG management
level.

1. ESG Strategy

The Company adheres to the corporate philosophy
of “shape better lives with heartfelt care”, and is
committed to the creation and research of advanced
technology to provide safer, effective and inclusive
medical solutions for the majority of patients with
CHD, and do our best to promote the long-term
development of human health cause. The Company
incorporated the ESG management concept into
its daily operation and management process,
always actively paid attention to the demands from
stakeholders, organically integrated the business
operation and ESG, and strived to create maximum
value for Shareholders, customers and employees,
while improving the corporate governance ability,
fulfilling environmental responsibilities and becoming
a responsible corporate citizen.

The Company was innovation-driven development,
constantly improved product quality, provided
responsible products for customers, established a
sound supplier management system, abide by the
ethical code of integrity and probity, protected the
legitimate rights and interests of employees and
support the healthy development of employees;
by sorting out ESG-related risks, we formulated
feasible action targets and plans to address the
risks of climate change and gradually reduced the
negative impact of business operations on the
environment. We took the initiative to shoulder
social responsibilities and continued to promote the
common development of the enterprise and each
stakeholder.
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ESG Governance Structure
Board Statement

The Board of the Company is responsible for ESG
strategy and reporting, and for overseeing the
Group’s ESG matters. The Board decided and
reviewed ESG matters, responsible for making
decisions on ESG-related strategic planning and
reviewing ESG performance.

The Company regularly assesses the materiality of
ESG issues. The specific evaluation process and
results are detailed in the sub-sections headed
“Communication with Stakeholders” and “Material
ESG Issues Assessment” in the ESG Report and are
reviewed by the Board. The Board comprehensively
identified key ESG risks related to the Company,
including business ethics, information security,
privacy protection, intellectual property rights, human
capital development and climate change etc., and
developed relevant response measures. We have are
also requested relevant departments to implement
relevant response measures in the operations and
management.

We also pay close attention to the setting of
environmental targets associated with our business
operations, i.e. targets to reduce emissions
and resource consumption from our day-to-day
operations. As the Company scale continues to
expand, we will examine in depth and establish
feasible environmental targets to help the Company
fully realize green operations.

The Report also discloses the above-mentioned ESG
related matters in detail, which have been reviewed
and approved by the Board on March 31, 2023.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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Communication with Stakeholders

The Company actively maintains a good cooperative
and reciprocal relationship with stakeholders. In
order to timely and comprehensively understand
the expectations and demands of stakeholders,
we attach importance to fully communicating with
stakeholders through various channels.

Based on our business scope and nature of
production and operation, we identify stakeholders
closely related to the development of the Company,
and focus on ESG issues as an important reference
for the Company’s ESG management direction
and report disclosure. During the Reporting
Period, we maintained close communication with
stakeholders, and identified key stakeholders in the
Group’s business operations and communication
and response methods with reference to the Stock
Exchange’s ESG Reporting Guide as follows:

Key Stakeholders
TEFGERA

Key Concern ESG Issues

EEMEMESGHE

Governments and regulatory  Employment
authorities B

BRRET®E

Supply chain management
HERER

Product responsibility
EmEE

Anti-corruption

RE)S

Community investment

HERE

Shareholders and investors Employment
BRR{EE EfE
Product responsibility
EmEfE
Anti-corruption
RE)S

RE  HEgREREKRE
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Main Communication Channels

FERBARRRE

Policy consultations
BR A

Incident reporting
SHER

Information disclosures
FERE

Shareholders’ meetings
EPN-

Results announcements
RENE

Interim and annual reports
R FERE
Announcements of significant events
BEAZEAE

Online and offline communication
BERETER

Company website

NGRS
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RE  HEREREKRE

Key Stakeholders
TEHAHENS

Employees
BT

Patients

'R

Suppliers
i

Media and non-governmental
organizations

IS R SRR AR

Communities

itE

Key Concern ESG Issues
FEMEMESGHE

Employment

B

Health and safety
REEZe
Development and training
EEYEE

Labour standards

BT ER

Product responsibility
EmEfE
Anti-corruption
RE)S

Supply chain management
HERER
Anti-corruption

RER

Emissions

i3t

Use of resources

BREA

Environmental and natural resources
BRERKAER
Employment

B

Supply chain management
HERER

Product responsibility
EmAE

Community investment
HERE

Main Communication Channels

IERBARRRE

Employee performance appraisal and feedback
BIRMERERE

Employee internal meetings

BINHERLR

Corporate internal announcements and emails
PEANDLE B

Employee activities

8IEH

Information disclosures
EERE

Daily business communication
AREBEAIN

Tender invitation for and assessment of suppliers
HEFRAR  TE

Regular meetings with suppliers
HEBTHERSS

Onsite inspection on suppliers

HEBEHER

Press conferences
nEENE

News interviews

MBS

Advertising and promotion
EEEE

Social media

HREER

Industry seminars
BESVk

Community engagement and communication
TRESAL IR B At I 4 28
Identification of community demands

BAHEER
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Material ESG Issues Assessment

During the assessment of material ESG issues,
based on the requirements of the Stock Exchange’s
ESG Reporting Guide, combined with industry
characteristics and company business, and
communicating with key stakeholders through the
above-mentioned communication feedback channels,
we identified and summarized 12 ESG Materiality
issues.

We evaluated and ranked the importance of each
ESG concerns from the two dimensions of the
impact on the company’s operation and the impact
on stakeholders, and the evaluation results were
divided into three levels: high, moderate and general.
Among them, there are 3 items of high importance,
7 items of moderate importance and 2 items of
general importance. This Report will provide targeted
disclosure responses to each issue according to its
importance.

ScienTech Medical 2022 ESG Materiality Matrix
DNEREEFR2022 FFESG EEMEALEME

%

O)

®
i ©®©
@
A ©)
(11

Low K Middle R High =

Significance to the development of the Company

HORBEERMNEE T

Continuous R&D
and innovation

R BRI AR

Integrity Operation
RERRES
Occupational Health
and Safety
BERERL S
Employee Growth and
Development
BTIKREREE
Standardize Supplier
Management
REHERERE
Resource Utilization
Conservation
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Product Quality Initiatives
FEERME
Equal Employment
and Labor Rights
FEEEES TR
Pollutant Discharge Reduction
A5 R R
Information Security and
e Privacy Protection
ERL 2 HEEBLRE
@ Social Responsibilities
BITHEEMF
Response to Climate

Change
FEEEARE L
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RE -HEKRER

HE

RESPONSIBLE OPERATION

As a pioneer in structural heart diseases (SHD)
interventional medical devices industry in China, the
Company has more than 20 years of experience in the
SHD field and has grown to be the largest manufacturer of
CHD occluder product and related procedural accessories
in China. The Company has created a comprehensive
product line of SHD medical devices, which have been
exported to 44 countries and regions across Asia, Europe,
America and Africa, involving more than 800 medical
institutions. We understand that good product quality is
the cornerstone underpinning our long-term development,
so we have built a highly qualified technical management
team and established a quality control system that covers
the entire process from R&D through production to sales
to standardize the management of suppliers. Upholding
the corporate mission of “shape better lives with heartfelt
care”, we stay committed to advancing innovation-driven
development and responding to patients’ needs with
innovative medical products and services.

1.  Continuous R&D and innovation

The Company always adheres to the enterprise
purpose of “Science and technology cherish life”,
pays attention to technological innovation, attaches
importance to the construction of independent
intellectual property rights, constantly increases R&D
input, continues to develop SHD and interventional
heart valve medical devices with independent
intellectual property rights for the global market, and
is committed to becoming a company that solves
the needs of doctors and patients and an innovative
enterprise that provides safe, effective and innovative
medical products and services.
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Abide by the principles of R&D

The Company constantly establish a sound
safety compliance R&D innovation system,
strictly abide by the Biosecurity Law of the
People’s Republic of China, Regulation
on the Supervision and Administration
of Medical Devices and Measures for
the Administration of Registration and
Recordation of Medical Devices and other
laws and regulations, and formulated the
control document Design and Development
Control Procedure refer to 1SO14971:2019,
which provided comprehensive and detailed
regulations on project initiation planning,
research and development, design and
development conversion, project identification
and confirmation, registration stage and
mass production stage, thus making the
whole process management of design and
development more standardized.

Strengthen research and development
foundation

The Company always believes that innovation
is the source power of the development of the
company, we have set up a high-quality R&D
team and built a high-quality R&D center to
promote the high-quality development of the
Company. We have established research and
development centers in Beijing and Shanghai,
which lays a solid foundation for the innovative
research and development of our products
and services, the cultivation of talents and the
establishment of industry standards.
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We have built our research and development
team with technological expertise in various
areas, primarily including nitinol shape memory
cutting and braiding techniques, animal source
material processing techniques, biodegradable
material controlled release techniques,
suturing techniques, and structure design
and processing techniques. Our research and
development team had a total of 79 members
from the fields of biomaterials, biomedical
science, material science, and mechanical
engineering, with approximately 38.0% holding
a master’s or higher degree in relevant fields.
The Company’s research and development
team with extensive expertise, which allows it
to develop products with unique designs and
notable pre-clinical research results.

At the same time, we maintain continuous
collaboration with hospitals, research
institutions and KOLs to ensure that our
research and development progress is capable
of addressing the evolving needs of patients
and physicians. We have collaborated with a
prominent medical institution in China in the
research and development of our TAVR system
which is expected to be 100% deployable,
retrievable and repositionable before
decoupling from the delivery system; we have
also collaborated with the National Engineering
Research Center for Biomaterials (BIZR 4%
Bk TRERMTAIEF L) to conduct research
on biodegradable materials, through which
we have optimized biodegradable product
design and strengthened our techniques in
degradation rate control, which plays a key
role in the development of our biodegradable
occluder product and product candidates.
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1.3 Develop research and development achievernents

As a leader and pioneer in the field of SHD,
the Company is constantly pioneering and
innovative in the development of new materials
and new structural design. We continue to
increase research and development investment,
committed to explore the frontier of cardiac
medical devices, for the treatment of SHD
more safe, effective, diversified products
and solutions. We pay close attention to
technological progress and industry trends, and
actively promote our technology and product
iteration and value exploration.

Our key solutions include:

° CHD treatment solutions

We have developed a wealth of occluder
products targeting common types of
CHD, primarily including ASD, VSD, and
PDA, and have obtained a number of
NMPA registration certificates for Class |lI
medical devices.

° Cardioembolic stroke prevention solutions

We have obtained the NMPA registration
certificate for Class Ill medical devices for
our first generation LAA occluder product
and valid CE Mark for our first generation
PFO occluder product.
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° Valvular disease treatment solution

We have developed TMVCRS, TMVr-A
system and TMVr-F system for the
treatment of mitral valve disease. As
present, we had the heart valve product
candidate in the registration process
with the NMPA, as well as the heart
valve product in clinical trial stage, type
inspection stage and design stage.
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Case: The Bio-Lefort® Biodegradable left atrial appendage occluder

was successfully implanted

¥l : Bio-Lefort® ¥ vl I R 20 /0 B 31 3% 85 48 A 95 B Th FE Y

On February 1, 2023, Bio-Lefort® Biodegradable LAA closure occluder independently
developed by the Company was successfully implanted into human body in Hefei Gaoxin
Cardiovascular Hospital, which officially opened the curtain of its clinical trial and also
marked a new era in the development of global LAA occluder interventional devices. The
Bio-Lefort® Biodegradable LAA closure occluder is an innovative medical device that
moves from metallic material to biodegradable materials, which promises to effective
minimizes potential compression and wear on surrounding tissues, achieve more
effective occlusions, and avoid long-term complications and safety risks associated with
metal retention.

2023F2 A1 H ' LDREEB EHEABio-Lefort® £ YRR LB EHHEZ R A RSO M
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Except the occluder series products, we
continue to research biodegradable technology
and interatrial shunt device, vascular plug and
other procedural accessories related to invasive
heart procedure, of which we have achieved
industry-leading achievements in biodegradable
technology. Compared with traditional metal
occluders, biodegradable occluders are
designed to degrade over time into carbon
dioxide and water upon the completion of
endothelial repair, they would not be permanent
implants in the human body, this will lead to
more optimal surgical treatment options for
patients. Our fully biodegradable MemoSorb®
VSD Occluder IV was approved by the NMPA
in February 2022, and our other biodegradable
occluder series products were in various R&D
stages including registration, clinical trial and
pre-clinical research as of the end of the
Reporting Period.
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The “Oxide Coating Single-Rivet VSD Occluder”
independently developed by Shanghai Shape
Memory Alloy' was successfully recognized
by Science and Technology Commission of
Shanghai Municipality of 2022 Accreditation of
a model project in transforming science and
technological achievements in Shanghai (Project
No. 202205488).
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The “Oxide Coating Single-Rivet PDA Occluder”
independently developed by Shanghai Shape
Memory Alloy was successfully recognized
by Science and Technology Commission of
Shanghai Municipality as 2022 Accreditation
of a model project in transforming science and
technological achievements in Shanghai (Project
No. 202202231).
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Shanghai Shape Memory Alloy Co., Ltd. is a wholly-owned subsidiary of LEPU Scientech Medical Technology
(Shanghai) Co., LTD., referred to as “Shanghai Shape Memory Alloy”.
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1.4 Protection of intellectual property rights 1.4 HEAGERE

The Company is deeply aware of the long-
term stable development of the Company, so
the protection of intellectual property rights
is very important. In strict compliance with
the Patent Law of the People’s Republic of
China, Copyright Law of the People’s Republic
of China, Trademark Law of the People’s
Republic of China, Anti-Unfair Competition Law
of the People’s Republic of China and other
laws and regulations, we have formulated the
Measures for the Administration of Intellectual
Property Rights to strengthen the management
of the Company’s trademarks and patents
and maintain the advantages of independent
innovation.

In order to encourage employees’ enthusiasm
and creativity in scientific research and
protect the Company’s intellectual property
achievements, the Company has established a
system of rules and regulations with Measures
for the Administration of Intellectual Property
Rights as the core. The system covers
all stages from application, examination,
authorization and production transformation,
and is organized, managed and implemented
by the Intellectual Property Department of the
Company, effectively promoting the Company’s
innovation and development. With excellent
independent innovation ability and intellectual
property management strength, Shanghai
Shape Memory Alloy has been assessed as
“National Enterprises with Intellectual Property
Advantages” by the China National Intellectual
Property Administration.
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We have a number of innovative products
with proprietary intellectual property rights
and continue to expand and develop a
broader portfolio of intellectual property
rights. The Company carries out standardized
management of intellectual property rights, and
regularly organizes a project team composed of
third-party professional institutions, Company
managerial staff, R&D personnel and intellectual
property personnel to carry out supervision
and review of standards implementation and
correct existing problems. Finally, we invite
independent third-party professional institutions
to conduct re-certification of standards
implementation. The Company has organized
systematic training programs related to
intellectual property for personnel at different
job levels. We regularly organize multi-level
and three-dimensional training organized by
the training groups of the Company comprising
the Intellectual Property Department, external
training institutions and external experts.

The Company has completed the annual patent
review at the beginning of 2022 and obtained
the certificate of standards implementation.
As of December 31, 2022, the Company has
obtained 232 registered patents, including 27
invention patents, 202 utility patents and 3
design patents; We have 49 pending patent
applications in China, including 48 invention
patents and 1 utility patent; We also have 15
oversea PCT patents. In addition, the Company
has 47 registered trademarks.
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Product Quality Initiatives

The Company believes that product quality is crucial to
patient health and safety, so we attach great importance
to quality control and strictly abide by applicable laws
and regulations of the countries and regions where
we operate, such as the Product Quality Law of the
People’s Republic of China, the Regulation on the
Supervision and Administration of Medical Devices, the
Measures for the Administration of Registration and
Recordation Medical Devices and the Measures for
the Supervision and Administration of Medical Device
Production. On the basis of this, we have established a
sound product quality control system.

2.1 Strengthening Quality Management

The Company has developed a series of
standard operating procedures (SOPs), including
the Working Environment Control Procedure,
the Design and Development Control Procedure,
the Production and Service Control Procedure,
the Clinical Evaluation Control Procedure and
the Adverse Event Monitoring and Re-evaluation
Control Procedure, forming a comprehensive
quality management system that covers pre-
development and planning, clinical trials safety,
manufacturing and post-marketing supervision.

Quality management system certification
obtained by the Company

° ISO 13485 Quality Management System
Certification

° Quality Management System Certification
EU Medical Device Directive (MDD) CE
Mark Certification

° NMPA Medical Device Registration
Certificate for 14 products
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Registration certificates in numerous
countries, including Argentina, Pakistan,
Russia, Colombia, Kazakhstan, Peru,
Saudi Arabia and Sri Lanka.

bsi.

Certificate of Registration

QUALITY MANAGEMENT SYSTEM - 1SO 13485:2016 & EN ISO 13485:2016

By Royal Charter

This is to certy that: wmwm f:wmamnmmm
e W

1F and SF, Tower 41 L
No. 258 XinZhuan WARFFRIK
Songjiang High-Tech Park B FHAR
¥:5}lme
AR i
201612 166 201612
Holds Certficate No: MD 698501
and oparates 150
13485:2016 for the folowing scope:
‘The design, dveiopment, Gelvvery

‘Systems and snares.
HEBER. HEBRESRANEBORIOL. MRRAN.

wast: C\o—u—q. v ~

Graeme Tunbridge, Senior Vice President Medical Devices

Original Regsstration Date: 2019-06-04
Latest Revision Date: 2022-08-12

Effective Dote: 2022:06-04
Expiy Date: 202506-03

Page: 1of 1

~making excellence a habit™

ISO 13485 System Certification
ISO 134852 Zi& &
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REH - Sfmtbas
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EC Design-Examination Certificate

Directive 93/42/EEC on Medical Devices, Annex II Section 4

By Royal Charter

No. CE 650110
Issued To: ‘Shanghai Shape Memory Alloy
Ltd.

1F and 5F, Tower 41

No. 258 XinZhuan Road

‘Songjiang High-Tech Park

Shanghai

201612

China
In respect of:
MemoPart™ ASD, PDA, VSD, nd related y Systen
‘MemoPart™
8sI
mﬂ_‘m‘. narketing
For BS, 2797):

Coan C el

Gary E Slack, Senior Vice President Medical Devices

First Issued: 2016-11-24 Date: 2021-04-29 Expiry Date: 2024-05-26
.making excellence a habit”
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We constantly strengthen and solidify our
product manufacturing capabilities, and for this
purpose, we employ experienced production
personnel and a quality control team, purchase
advanced production facilities, and formulate
strict quality control standards to assure
the production of high-quality products. The
Company’s quality control team primarily
follows up on quality management status
concerning product design and development,
raw materials supply and procurement, product
manufacturing and delivery as well as after-
sales stage, to ensure compliant manufacturing
of our qualified products.

With years of expertise and management
experience, we have established a three-tier
quality control system with reference to relevant
international quality authentication standards.
The system provides solid assurance for
product quality management throughout the
whole product lifecycle, from product design
and development, procurement, production,
sales and customer service.

o Tier 1: Programmatic guidelines for a
comprehensive quality system with the
Company’s Quality Manual as the core.

o Tier 2: Detailed procedural requirements
for each section that may affect final
product quality.

° Tier 3: Defined the SOPs applied for each
task based on the two preceding tiers.
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With regard to the production phase, we
have developed and implemented the
Production and Service Provision Control
Procedure to standardize the production
and service procedures and guarantee
the precision, efficiency and safety of the
production process. In terms of product
quality inspection, we have formulated the
Product Monitoring and Measurement Control
Procedure, the Inspection Standard Operating
Procedure, the Identification and Traceability
Control Procedure, the Non-conforming
Product Control Procedure, etc. to monitor
the calibration of devices and equipment
standardize product quality inspection and
prevent the occurrence of non-conforming
events. With a focus on product performance
testing, product measurement and product
label verification, our quality control inspectors
will inspect products, keep inspection records
for each batch of products, check and verify
records, and dispose of or destroy unqualified
products. The aforementioned measures can
effectively ensure that all non-conformities
event throughout the product lifecycle,
from raw material procurement through the
production process to product delivery, can be
properly identified and managed, providing a
firm guarantee for the caliber of our products
quality.

° Strict quality control and inspection
procedure:

Semi-finished Finished
products products

Raw materials

« Inspection of « In-process « Inspection of
appearance, size, inspection of appearance, size,
physical properties, appearance, size physical properties,
chemical properties and physical chemical properties
and micro-biological properties in and micro-biological
properties in accordance with properties, and
accordance with the inspection verification of
technical procedure of sterilzation results in
requirements and production accordance with
incoming goods process technical
inspection requirements and
specifications inspection

procedures
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2.2 Regulating Product Marketing and Feedback 22 Em&iHaEKRE

The Company strictly complies with the
Trademark Law of the People’s Republic of
China, the Regulation on the Implementation
of the Trademark Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Advertising Law of the
People’s Republic of China, the Criteria for
the Examination and Publication of Medical
Apparatus Advertisements, the Regulation on
the Supervision and Administration of Medical
Devices, the Measures for the Administration
of Medical Device Adverse Event Monitoring
and Re-evaluation, the Measures for the
Administration of Medical Device Recalls and
other relevant laws and regulations in China,
the EU and other countries and regions where
we operate. On this basis, we have established
the Product Recall Control Procedure,
the Quality Information Feedback Control
Procedure, the Adverse Event Monitoring
and Re-evaluation Control Procedure, the
Administrative Provisions on Customer
Complaints, etc. to standardize after-sales
services and customer complaint handling
procedure, in an attempt to ensure that sales
and marketing activities in China and overseas
are carried out in compliance.

At present, we have commercialised 14 and 11
products in China and Overseas, respectively.
We are committed to the proper use of
trademarks, images and other materials and
rigorously manage the authenticity, accuracy
and compliance of marketing materials during
the marketing process.
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We continued to strengthen our staff’'s
awareness of legal compliance. This year, we
carried out special training on advertising laws
and regulations, popularized to our staff the
background and content of the Advertising
Law, Interim Measures for the Examination and
Administration of Advertisements for Drugs,
Medical Devices, Health Food and Food for
Special Medical Purposes, Interim Provisions
for the Administration of Language and Writing
in Advertisements, the extreme wording in
advertisements and the basis of punishment for
advertising violations, and carefully interpreted
the important provisions of the Advertising Law
for staff to understand and learning.

We have established various feedback channels
for our customers, including product labels
and instructions, the Company’s website and
an adverse event monitoring system. In line
with the requirements of Quality Information
Feedback Control Procedure, we receive and
handle customer complaints to protect their
legitimate rights and interests from being
infringed. While having a reporting system
in place for adverse events to proactively
investigate the situation of adverse events,
we also firmly adhere to the policy of “prompt
report of any suspicious event”. Besides,
we undertake special self-inspection and
investigation on adverse events regarding
feedback information, product returns, and
internal traceability of products to analyze and
correct misconducts.

According to the Aavisory Notices and Recalls
Control Procedure, we continuously refine
the product recall management and formulate
a detailed recall program to enable us to
complete the recall process by the specified
deadlines. Once a product is recalled, we take
a series of measures to replace or destroy
the recalled product and report the recall
situation to the regulatory authorities. In 2022,
the Company had no products recalled event
occurs.
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In 2022, we received 4 complaints® about our
products and services and 6 medical device adverse
events®, all of which were resolved 100%. In addition,
our customer complaint response rate, customer
complaint resolution rate, and overall satisfaction
rate of complaint handling were all 100%*.

Information Security and Privacy Protection

The Company strictly abides by the Cybersecurity
Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Data
Security Law of the People’s Republic of China, the
Civil Code of the People’s Republic of China and
other applicable laws and regulations, and follows
relevant implementation guidance, industry standards
and legal regulations such as the Norms on the
Quality Management for the Clinical Trials of Medical
Devices and Interim Measures for the Administration
of Human Genetic Resources, has formulated and
implemented a series of information security and
privacy protection management systems such as
the File Server Use and Management Specification
to protect the medical data processing records
and other personal sensitive information of clinical
trials and patients enrolled in clinical trials after
commercialization of relevant products.

To ensure network information security, we have
clarified the principles and methods of personal data
protection in the File Server Use and Management
Specification, set different permissions for file access
and modification, and strengthened internal security
management through different means, including
disaster-tolerant backup, anti-virus software, and
password policies. At the same time, we adopt strict
7*24-hours uninterrupted monitoring of the network
and system operating environment to prevent
network risks and vulnerabilities.

Complaints about products and services include feedback behaviour
such as and suggestions for products and services quality
improvement from hospitals, doctors and patients we work with.
Medical device adverse events are market for sales medical
devices, in the normal use of the situation occurred, resulting in
or may lead to human injury of various harmful events.

The statistics of comprehensive satisfaction rate of complaint
handling include satisfaction with our customer service related
“service items” and product quality related “non-service items”.

BHERERBORFE

2022F  NRIEEBHMER K
BR7S IR FF L4 B2 - BB 2R
TREMHHGIITE 100%
Hoo AN PN EFIRFE
JER - BREIRFERE - KR
IR A MmEEA100%"

3. RFEZZHEHEBNLRE

LHREFEBRBET(PEAR
HMERPRLZ2E)(PEAR
HKANBEBBRL2E) (FEAR
HKMBERZEH) FERESR -
LTJE<< SEREMEAGBREE
EERL)(ANBEBERER
E1IE) RBHEESIFTE
ERER  BIELER T (X
HRGREFEEERE)F
—RIER L2 BEILRED
EHEFIE - RERK R MR
FEmMmAECREARABAS
BENEBRIIBRELEME
EABRER -

RERBHREELZRE BN
EAX R EREE R
#yYPHABETEAERNNRE
RAIRITE - #H ¥ X HRFHRE
MEURE T TRER - @il
REED - RS MG - HiE
BREFFER  MARTABLE
B o [REF ﬂsz‘ihHﬂyﬂff’éE’]
724/ N R T BE AR Z%ﬂ]?
FHEITIRIE - 1//\[% iR
M%D/)%/” °

BEEMEME
R - B &$%éﬂ§uu&ﬂ§f5{gi
ERENREBRBERZFTH °
BERBMIAREMHRIED EMHBES
o EEBERBERTEEN B
ERRBBABEENREEEEMS -
B BGRamBEnt IE8sHH
MO EPRBE@IRBEIEEREE
HEEBERBEIREE



Annual Report 2022
B FR

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

In 2022, the Company completed 100% scanning
of all server security vulnerabilities, completed the
construction of no less than 100 security monitoring
scenarios, reached 100% completion rate of annual
review of business important system permissions,
100% coverage of information security training for
all staff, 100% coverage of personal information
protection training for all staff, 100% compliance
rate of personal information protection control, and O
incidents of personal information leakage.

We respect the privacy of patients, customers
and employees and have put in place a number
of safeguards to protect their personal data from
disclosure or improper use. Being fully aware of the
high sensitivity of personal information of patients
or subjects in clinical trials, we strictly comply
with the requirements in the Norms on the Quality
Management for the Clinical Trials of Medical Devices
and have taken a number of safeguards to protect
the legitimate rights and privacy of subjects.

° We enter into confidentiality agreements with
all employees, suppliers and partners who may
have access to confidential information, and
require each employee and managerial staff to
fulfill their confidentiality obligations;

° All clinical trials are carried out in strict
compliance with the Norms on the Quality
Management for the Clinical Trials of Medical
Devices, reviewed by the Medical Ethics
Committee, and completed with the help of
cooperative clinical trial centers (hospitals) and
sample testing units, etc. We have also signed
the Informed Consent with the subjects to
protect their legal rights and interests as well
as the safety of their privacy.

° We demand our partners conduct clinical
trials in accordance with the requirements for
protecting subjects’ privacy stipulated in the
Good Clinical Practice, and closely monitor and
manage the clinical trial process.
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Standardize Supplier Management

The Company values harmonious cooperation with
quality suppliers and is committed to creating a
transparent, safe and stable high-quality supply
chain. We manage the selection, access and
evaluation of suppliers during the cooperation period
based on the philosophy of win-win cooperation,
and include environmental and social risks in supplier
performance evaluation indicators. By formulating
and implementing policies such as the Procurement
Control Procedure and Supplier Evaluation Control,
we have standardized and refined the management
of procurement practices and processes, and
reinforced the management requirements for all
suppliers to ensure the quality of procured products
and services.

In the supplier access section based on the
requirements of the Procurement Control Procedure
and Supplier Evaluation Control, the Company has
set up an evaluation team through collaboration
and cooperation comprising from the Procurement
Department, Quality Department and other
departments with procurement needs, to evaluate
all potential suppliers according to the technical
requirements of the products. After a review of the
qualification documents submitted by the suppliers,
we will conduct an on-site specific inspection for
suppliers of critical materials, and finally select
the top suppliers to be listed among the qualified
suppliers after considering the evaluation results
of samples, business qualifications, production
and quality assurance capabilities, quality system
certifications, etc. During the year, all 189 suppliers
passed the relevant employment requirements of
our established Procurement Control Procedure and
Supplier Evaluation Control.

While focusing on the suppliers’ ability to deliver
high-quality goods and services, we also consider
environmental and social risks in supplier selection.
Under the premise of compliance with laws and
regulations related to environmental protection,
production safety, and labor management, we try our
best to employ suppliers who have environmental
protection or other green credentials.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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The Company continuously updates the list of
qualified suppliers and reviews and evaluates such
suppliers on a yearly basis. For suppliers failing to
meet the passing rate requirement for products
supplied, we will urge them to make corrections,
and if the supplier is unable to do so, we will initiate
the supplier exit process according to the applicable
regulations.

During the Reporting Period, the majority of our
suppliers were companies with a sound reputation in
the domestic or international industry, some of them
even have certifications like ISO9001, ISO13485, and
Environmental Impact Assessment report.

Indicator

ERAR

Total number of suppliers

HEmER

Number of suppliers by
geographical region

B ESSHHEERE

Domestic suppliers

BEAHERSE
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Number
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189

177

Overseas suppliers (including Hong Kong,
Macao and Taiwan)
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Integrity Operation

The Company strictly abides by business ethics
and strives to create a clean and positive business
environment. We strictly abide by the Criminal Law
of the People’s Republic of China, the Company Law
of the People’s Republic of China, the Anti-Money
Laundering Law of the People’s Republic of China,
the Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Interim Provisions on Banning
Commercial Bribery and other applicable anti-
corruption laws and regulations. We adopt a “Zero
Tolerance” attitude towards corruption or bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering, and strive
to enhance an all-around supervision system that is
integrated with our businesses.

All of our employees are required to strictly observe
the ethical standards of honesty and integrity,
which are outlined in our Employee Manual. We
also impose anti-corruption responsibilities on
our distributors, who are explicitly obligated in
our distributorship agreement to comply with and
demand their employees and affiliates comply with
all applicable anti-bribery and anti-unfair competition
laws and regulations, and they are prohibited from
offering and promising money or anything of value
to our employees or entities as required by laws or
regulations. During the reporting period, the data on
anti-corruption training was included in employee
training statistics.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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To better supervise the fulfillment of business ethics,
we have set up supervision and reporting channels
such as telephone reporting hotline, e-mail and
letter addresses to encourage all stakeholders to
actively report actual or suspected violations of
ethical standards or employee professional ethics.
Our internal audit department is responsible for
investigating the reports and allegations, keeping
written records, and reporting the investigation
results to management and the Board. If our
employees who are confirmed to commit in fraud,
corruption, bribery, or other misconducts, the
Company will carry out serious accountability and
strict investigation in accordance with relevant
internal policies, and those suspected of illegal
or criminal activities will be transferred to judicial
authorities for handling. For the identity information of
the whistleblowers, we will keep it strictly confidential
to ensure their privacy and security.

During the Reporting Period, there were no
corruption litigation cases filed and concluded
against the Company and our employees.

Social Responsibilities

The Company actively gives back to society,
striving to fulfill its corporate social responsibility
while developing. Deeply engaging in the field
of interventional medical devices targeting heart
diseases, we work hard to provide patients with
better quality and more affordable products to make
healthcare more accessible. Additionally, we keep
in touch and interact with the communities, and
think about how our business activities may affect
them. By organizing and participating in community
investment activities, we could better comprehend
and recognize their needs, which enables us
to better contribute effort to the building of a
harmonious community.
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Case: Concerted efforts to combat the pandemic and
demonstrate our corporate social responsibility

£ Aohs EELRGERE

In 2022, the Company actively heeded the country’s call by staying on the front line to ensure
supply and production, and donating money and materials to aid in the prevention and control
of the pandemic, which demonstrated our fulfillment of social responsibilities as a corporate.
In April 2022, the Company donated shelter-based laboratories and equipment to Minhang
District, and set up an anti-pandemic material logistics group as soon as being tasked with
providing antigen reagents for the whole district. The group set off from Beijing warehouse
overnight and transported over 9.5 million antigen reagents to Shanghai. In May 2022, we
donated antigen reagents for 1,000 persons and safeguard supplies for Shanghai Lingang
Songjiang Science and Technology City.

2022%F » RAYIERTEEMSEE  BREEERREE @ BT —KRHRE - TBBHIE
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The Company delivers antigen reagents
DRBEEXNRAH

The Company donates safeguard supplies to Shanghai Lingang Songjiang Science
and Technology City
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RE  HEgREREKRE

Case: Community public service to deliver love and kindness

RO - BoMEE EEXARTT

On March 3, 2022, the Company organized a voluntary service team to provide services in
the park as a response to the call of “learning from Lei Feng and showing kindness.” The
volunteers offered blood pressure check, cervical spine care and eye care experiences for
workers in the park, appealing to them to care for their health and develop good living habits.

202293 H3H

 LDREFARTERGHSRERBRY  BAMEBRED  BESANE

ml RERBTRENERS  TE#E  REEERER  HPAREESRBER  EURHNE

EETIE -

The Company offers free medical care in the community

LDREFHRLREEED

IV. TALENTS MECHANISM

The Company regards employees as valuable resources
and is dedicated to creating a platform to help employees
realize growth and value. We adhere to the principle
of lawful and compliant employment, strictly abide by
relevant laws and regulations such as the Labor Law of
the People’s Republic of China, the Labor Contract Law of
the People’s Republic of China and the Provisions on the
Prohibition of the Use of Child Labor, in an effort to ensure
fairness and transparency in the employment process.
We fully respect the rights and interests of all employees,
provide them with a variety of incentives, benefits and
promotion channels, and safeguard their occupational
health and safety, in the hope of fostering mutually
beneficial growth and development for both the employees
and the Company.
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Equal Employment and Labor Rights

The Company implements such systems and
guidelines as the Employee Manual and the
Recruitment Management System, and conducts
recruitment based on the principles of open
recruitment, equal competition and merit-based
selection via recruitment agencies, internal
recommendations and online recruitment, providing
all employees with equal employment opportunities.
We do not discriminate against candidates based
on their ethnicity, race, age, gender, marital status
or religious beliefs, and do not tolerate any form
of discrimination, harassment, or violation of the
dignity of others. We enforce legal employment and
rigorously forbid child labor and forced labor. Once
discovered, the Company will investigate it according
to relevant procedures. If the violation is verified,
we will deal with it in accordance with national laws
and regulations as well as the internal system, make
necessary corrections right away and compensate
the employees concerned. In serious cases, the
relevant liable unit shall be subject to liabilities. At the
same time, we also standardize compensation and
benefits, performance evaluation and rewards and
punishments to fully protect the rights and interests
of our employees.

1.1 Compensation and Benefits

We have formulated and implemented the
Human Resource Administrative Manual,
Compensation and Performance Management
System, Collection of Administrative Incentive
Policies and other regulations, and designed
a compensation and performance system
to attract, retain and motivate talents based
on the principle of “igniting employees’
enthusiasm”. We provide competitive
compensation and performance-based cash
rewards to employees, listen to their demands
for promotion and career development and
optimize and adjust compensation on an annual
basis. Meanwhile, we provide share-based
remuneration in exchange for continuous efforts
of R&D staff, injecting constant impetus to the
Company’s R&D competitiveness.
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Strictly abiding by the Social Insurance Law of
the People’s Republic of China, the Regulation
on Paid Annual Leave for Employees, the
Regulations Concerning the Labor Protection
of Female Staff and Workers and other
relevant laws and regulations, we pay statutory
social insurances and housing fund and
supplementary commercial insurance for
employees, and offer perks such as sickness
benefits, annual physical examinations, as well
as gifts for special occasions like festivals,
marriages and birthdays.

We fully respect the rights and interests of
all types of employees, and treat minority
employees, employees with disabilities
and retired-and-rehired employees equally.
Moreover, as a “Civilized Women’s Post” unit
in Songjiang District, Shanghai, the percentage
of female employees in the Company has
long been maintained at 50%, with more
than 60% of management and 56% of the
R&D team being female. The Company also
actively arranges exclusive training and sharing
sessions for female employees, and grants
exclusive benefits to fully defend the rights and
interests of female employees.
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2022 Employment Overview

Category of employees

ATHER

Overall

BREfWR

By gender
BERES

By age
BERES

By rank
BRGNS

By geographical
region

HRENS

By employment
category

BRERREENNS

Male employees
Female employees

Employees aged under 30
Employees aged 31 to 50
Employees aged over 51

Senior management employees
Middle management employees
Ordinary employees

Mainland China
Hong Kong, Macau,
Taiwan and overseas

Full-time employees
Interns

2022 Employee Turnover Overview

Category of employees

RIRY

Overall

B

By gender
BERES

By age
BERHS

By geographical
region

BRENS

The Company’s turnover statistics include resignation, dismissal,

Male employees
Female employees

Employees aged under 30
Employees aged 31 to 50
Employees aged over 51

Mainland China
Hong Kong, Macau, Taiwan
and overseas

retirement and even deaths employees.

EHET
ZHEET

30FATEL
31E50/ETL
51N EET

BREEEET
FREEEET
ERET

FEEANEET
BNt R
(BBRR)ET

EAET
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EHET
THET
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S1mM EETRAR

PERLE TRAR
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2022 RIREER

Number of Proportion of

employees employees

EINE BTl

236 100%

116 49.15%

120 50.85%

65 27.54%

158 66.95%

13 5.51%

5 2.12%

24 10.17%

207 87.711%

236 100%

0 0

236 100%

0 0
2022 R T RKER

Employees

turnover rate®

BIR%®s

20.00%

22.31%

17.80%

19.20%

21.02%

9.09%

20.00%

0
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Working Hour and Leave

The Company implements a legal standard
working hour system (8 hours a day).
Employees who work overtime shall fill in and
submit overtime application forms to heads of
respective departments and HR Department for
review and approval. We provide employees
with overtime allowance according to the
statutory standard. Meanwhile, employees are
entitled to statutory leaves and other kinds of
leaves such as annual leave, personal leave,
sick leave, marriage leave, maternity leave,
bereavement leave and work-related injury
leave.

Employee Communication and Activities

We value communication with employees
to keep up with their concerns and
complaints. The Company’s management is
flat management. The Company renders an
unimpeded feedback channel to employees
by setting up a special email box to receive
comments and suggestions from employees,
as a way to strengthen the Company’s internal
communication and exchange.

We advocate work alternated with rest,
encouraging employees to actively participated
in various activities as their work and life
balance is also our concern. This year, the
Company organized diversified activities, such
as team-building activities, birthday parties,
deportment and grooming classes, tea courses,
sharing sessions and competitions, to enrich
the lives of employees and enhance team
cohesion.
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Occupational Health and Safety

The occupational health and safety of employees is
always the focus of the Company. In this respect,
the Company strictly abides by the Law of the
People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and
Control of Occupational Diseases, the Regulation
on Work-Related Injury Insurance, the Work Safety
Law of the People’s Republic of China and other
laws and regulations. The Company attaches
great importance to the occupational health and
safety of laboratory and front-line employees. The
Company has formulated a series of safety policy
documents regarding workplace safety management
and fire control guidelines, including the Production
Safety Management System, to effectively ensure
production safety and the health of front-line
employees.

In addition, to fully promote the Company’s health
and safety management work, the Company has
set up a safety management team comprising team
members mainly from Production Department and
Administrative Department, the deputy general
manager in charge of occupational health and
safety serves as the team leader, the heads of
the Production Department and the Administrative
Department as the deputy team leaders, and
personnel from production, administrative and quality
departments as team members.

The Company is dedicated to providing a safe and
healthy workplace for front-line employees. We have
specified safety practices and accident prevention
and reporting procedures, and also inspected
office premises, production facilities and sites on
a regular basis to investigate safety hazards and
prevent emergencies situation occur. Furthermore,
employees responsible for production and quality
control must hold relevant qualifications, and
front-line employees are provided with necessary
personal protective equipment, including clean
clothes, protective caps, masks, hand sanitizers and
gloves, and are required to wear appropriate safety
equipment at work.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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Provide epidemic protection materials for employees
RETRHEBEHEDE

To protect the health of employees against
occupational diseases, We provide employees with
pre-employment health check-ups and regularly
organized annual health check-ups for all employees.
Employees’ health records are properly kept to
monitor their health status. Besides, before starting
production work, new employees are required to
receive induction training, the contents including
equipment operation standards and production
safety regulations. In addition, we hold safety training
every year and invite third parties to conduct fire
drills for the Company at intervals to improve the
safety awareness and skills of front-line employees.

In the past three years, the Company did not have
any work-related fatalities. The number of work-
related fatalities and the work-related fatality rate
were 0. For this year, the number of lost days due to
work injury was 0.
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3. Employee Growth and Development

3.1

Senior specialist/
Senior sales manager
BREE/ERS

High Commissioner/
Senior sales Manager

Making clear paths for career advancement

We have established performance assessment
mechanisms and promotion channels under
fair, reasonable and transparent principle to
expand the talent pool. We have set up a
“dual-channel” promotion mechanism aiming
at providing opportunities regarding promotion
and career advancement for administrative
talents, marketing talents and production
and technical talents. As for production
and technical talents, technical channel and
management channel are further set up to fully
explore their potential and provide targeted
career advancement training for them.

Administrat
marketin,

quence,
equence
5

Manager/Senior

regional manager
BE/KNES

Deputy Manager/
Regional Manager
FESEIp NSz

Supervisor/
Regional manager

Intermediate specialist/
Sales manager
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3.2 Strengthening employee training

The Company keen on talent cultivation,
formulated and implemented the Staff Training
Standard Management Procedure, and
formulated Company annual training plans
according to annual training budget. We
make constant improvements to employees’
comprehensive quality through various training
models and contents. Moreover, we provided
employees with internal and external training
as a way to encourage them to participate in
training for vocational certificates:

° External training. To enhance leadership
and management skills of management
level, we invite external professionals to
conduct training for them.

o Internal training. The Company provides
induction training for new employees
to introduce its development history,
corporate culture and philosophy, and
requires new employees to understand
and learn its rules and regulations.
After employees’ induction, to enhance
their ability in an all-round way, we
provide skills, qualifications and on-
the-job training for them according
to the career development needs of
different positions such as technological
process training, new product training
and inspection standards training. To
improve employees’ comprehensive
quality and achieve talent training in an
all-round manner, we also conduct legal
compliance training such as training of
laws and regulations regarding quality
system, anti-corruption and integrity
promotion training, as well as industry
dynamics sharing sessions, technical
exchange meetings, brainstorming and
other academic training.
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e  Training for vocational certificates. e MEEEHMN-A
The Company encourages and supports B IR
employees to obtain all kinds of I%HX%?E\??%%‘
professional certificates and qualifications £ HEIESE
to enhance their professionalism and BEERE - Ee8
competitiveness. THEEZENE

ES i

Furthermore, the Company provides special R AaitTHERR
training for backbone and core personnel BZOABENEHRAESR
at times. We have established the “Lepu I - STEPREE
Eyas Business School” to carry out training BET » ML T (4
concerning product knowledge, sales skills and THERSER  HERE
corporate development strategy for the middle EmME - HEkm -
management personnal, aiming at improving NAIERBEEANE
their comprehensive quality, beefing up the A RAFRE I%/\ia
competitiveness of the Company, as well as E’J?v?/m\,\,\ b RN

achieving the common growth of employees B Efﬁé\lfﬂ N

and the Company. ﬂ#\@ﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬂ?& °

#% ( £ ) BIBEIRAS

ol Teshnoloay ( Shanghal ) Co, Lid,

The Company carry out Employee training
DRBERREE I

Employee Training System of the Company DRERETENER
New employee training Job specific training

R T i I BB 7E 3% Bl

Corporate development history Skills, qualifications and on-the-job training
DERERER REeE -  EEENUA R EEBERE
Corporate culture and philosophy Laws and regulations training
RIEMES SERERIE

Corporate rules and regulations Academic training

BEREGE =Rl

Training method Internal training and external training
BB X MEBLEEF - S ERIE B
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2022 Employee Training Overview

RE  HEgREREKRE

2022 8 T IEHIE R

Average Percentage of

training employees

time trained

Category of (hours) (%)

employees ENFYER  BIREHMGH

BIRY (IpEF) (%)
Overall

EREWR 1.94 60.35%

By gender Male employees SMHET 1.94 60.49%

BENE S Female employees TMEET 1.94 60.22%

By rank Senior management employees SMHREEEET 1.32 33.33%

ERRES Middle management employees F#EEEE T 2.00 71.43%

Ordinary employees LT@ET 1.90 60.00%

GREEN OPERATION i BGaESE

In response to the national call for energy conservation
and emission reduction, the Company takes active
measures to fulfill its responsibility for environmental
protection to achieve green operation. We strictly abide
by the laws and regulations such as the Environmental
Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China, as well
as the environmental protection rules of the regions and
industries where we operate. We also have formulated
the Working Environment Control Procedure and other
management regulations for facilitating the certification of
ISO14001 Environmental Management System. Keeping
focusing on the efficient transformation of energy and the
efficient use of resources, we have made steady progress
in Company’s environmental management level to put the
concept of green operation into practice.

2 B8 2 B 3R B A R Pk A SR
B EBRETRERERT B
RERGZEES - RMEBEET(R
EAREMBIRBREE) FEE
ER O AREZEMEMEMITERD
IRIBIREHTE - HAINHIE T (ITE
IRIBEGIRF) FEEHT - B
FISO14001 RIRE BB RERFE o &
MmEE e Re B EMERS
WA - TERARRIREEEK
T EBRITHEESNIES -
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To constantly improve environmental management
performance and create a corporate image with a
sense of social responsibility, the Company involves
environmental protection into organizational activities,
products and services. We adopt a top-down approach to
manage the work of pollutant discharge, and strengthen
management of pollution governance facilities and
environmental monitoring. We carry out environmental risk
identification to ensure that all factors that have or may
have a significant impact on the environment are identified
and controlled. Besides, we implement pollution control
in the whole production process to minimize pollution
and damage to the environment. In addition, to help the
Company comprehensively achieve green operation, we
organize environmental protection training to continuously
heighten employees’ environmental awareness. We are
also actively organizing, discussing, and formulating
practical and feasible environmental goals in four
aspects: energy conservation, emission reduction, water
conservation, and waste reduction.

1. Resource Utilization Conservation

The Company mainly involves electricity, water
resources and office paper in terms of resources
consumption for its daily operation. We strictly
abide by the Energy Conservation Law of the
People’s Republic of China, the Water Law of the
People’s Republic of China and other laws and
regulations and uphold the concept of natural and
social resource conservation. With close attention
and careful consideration to environmental and
resource issues, we continue to upgrade the way
to use resources, so as to improve the efficiency of
resource utilization and reduce the consumption of
electricity, water resources and office paper in the
course of operation.

NEARRERERADNESED
ERMBRE2H  HEXERRE
BEN BE-EEHEEMEEN
CERR - HRMAB LM THEER
ASAMBEMNERTIE MY
SRR RMEHEE - WRILIRER
ERER - RABEMRRREAR
BRI TIE  ERHERFABLARE
BARBEARENMBRRBIARK
BB o R RMETEE
BBEISRIER - ZARREHIR D
HRFHTRMBPITE o BI - FAF
ABREREE) - TEHRSET
MIRIREH - RIS AEATRE -
LHE B 7K KRk RE PO D5 AR IR
MELHENERIITHRRRR -
PHRFEHEREEEE -
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The Company manages the energy and water use
in the office area in accordance with the provisions
and requirements of the Employee Manual, giving
instructions to employees to standardize water
and electricity use. We encourage employees to
save water and travel together to cut car use when
possible. We use LED energy-saving lamps instead
of high energy-consuming lamps as daily office
lighting equipment. We also require each employee
to develop an energy-saving habit, making sure lights
are out when nobody is in the office, and cutting the
power consumption level of air conditioners, central
ventilation system, exhaust system and other power
equipment. We also advocate paperless office. To
reduce the consumption of office paper, employees
go through various approval processes electronically
on OA system instead of via paper documents.
We also take measures such as teleconference
and Internet office to achieve cross-regional
communication.

RE  HEgREREKRE

KBCBIFMIMNBERS
NE/NCTE N o= o)1

KIERHEEE  WHETHR
HRAKMAEITETUER °
RIMEEE T BN
SN APEEAFEE - R
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BRI RITEE - MBI AER
B ORmAETE  HR - BERE
HERABRBOREKTE - &
M EEmibmn - SEE
HRBBBOARRIBIERR
MEXH  WHEREEEE
EBBRASER  BEREW
@ RER - DUR DI AKIRE
SHAE o

Tips for saving electricity of the Company
ODRBEMHABET
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Pollutant Discharge Reduction

The Company strictly abides by the Atmospheric
Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the
People’s Republic of China, the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of
Environmental Pollution Caused by Solid Wastes, the
Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the
People’s Republic of China, the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Prevention and Control of
Pollution from Environmental Noise and other laws
and regulations. By formulating and implementing
Measures for the Management of Wastewater, Waste
Gas, Solid Waste and Noise and other standard
documents, we strictly control the pollutants
produced in the course of operation process to
minimize the load on the environment.

2.1 Experiment and Production
Waste gas treatment

The Company uses the gas collector to collect
the dust, soot and waste gas generated from
EO treatment, and discharges them through
tall chimneys after being treated by a cartridge
dust collector and welding dust purifier. After
treatment, emissions of each waste gas
pollutant fall below the limits of the /ntegrated
Emission Standard of Air Pollutants (DB31/933-
2015). Meanwhile, we entrust qualified third-
party institutions to carry out exhaust gas
testing and issue test reports every year to
ensure compliant emissions.

Waste gas treatment facility
JBE SRUBR 32 2% e
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Waste disposal

The Company standardizes the disposal
method and process of waste in accordance
with the Measures for the Management of
Wastewater, Waste Gas, Solid Waste and
Noise. The hazardous wastes produced in
the course of our production and operation
process are mainly medical wastes, chemical
wastes and non-hazardous wastes. We entrust
qualified third parties for compliant disposal
of different types of waste to minimize its
generation to the greatest extent.

Wastewater disposal

The Company improves the disposal level of
wastewater pollutants on the basis of ensuring
compliant discharge, in an effort to reduce the
impact of production and operating activities
on the environment. The wastewater produced
in the course of our production and operation
mainly includes domestic sewage, purified
water, water for injection and tail water for pure
water preparation. We test the wastewater
produced on a regular basis. After testing, the
concentration of pollutants in the main outlet of
the sewage falls within the compliance range
of the Integrated Sewage Discharge Standard
(DB/31/199-2018). Besides, we discharged
the qualified wastewater into the designated
sewage pipe network system in the park. The
amount of laboratory waste liquid was small
and non-toxic, and it was discharged into the
municipal pipe network in compliance after
unified treatment.
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RE -HEKRER

2.2

HE

Noise management

The noise in the operation of the Company is
mainly the noise generated from equipment
operation. We use low-noise equipment to
reduce the basic vibration of the equipment.
Furthermore, we make reasonable layout for the
equipment and facilities, putting the mechanical
equipment in the production workshop to keep
a further distance from the plant boundary
and adopting wall soundproofing measures.
We close the doors and windows when the
equipment is running to reduce noise pollution
as much as possible. This year, the noise
contribution value at 1-meter of the plant
boundary of the Company fell within the
compliance range for daytime regarding 3
types of Environmental Noise Functions under
the Emission Standard for Industrial Enterprises
Environmental Noise at Plant Boundary
(GB12348-2008). We also entrust qualified
third-party institutions to carry out noise
detection and issue test reports every year to
ensure compliant operation.

Daily Office Work

The non-hazardous wastes generated by our
daily office work are mainly electronic waste
and domestic waste. We fully carry out garbage
sorting and recycling to promote waste
recycling. We hand over wastes with recycling
value to qualified third parties for compliant
disposal.

2.2

BEEEREIHE

T@EL&$m%é
IKI/JE R EEITR
BoRBMERAEBRER
% HEREETERR
k--RBE - BRMEEM

AR - SRR
HEREEERBA - F
RERBEEERA W
HEEERE - E&iE
EITR ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ
DA 2% 7] gg |3¢1KU9EE|/3
Fo KFE - REIHR
1KERBEERERR
(ITHEPEMRFAIRIRIRE
HERIZ2E) (GB12348-
2008)3HIRRREDY
EEEMBERNEGHE
e ZMITEFETA
EEEME = RBEHR
F%ﬁmﬂlﬁﬂﬁJ
WE - MREFES -

HEWPIRE

BMBEERARDES
WEZEEVFESE
B R AERBIIR -
ZfMr2EMEN RS
Bl - (REREEYER
MA - HRELBKEE
BWEEY  HfHG—x
HAEEEMNE=7#

TEHREE -



Annual Report 2022
B FR 129

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Response to Climate Change 3.

We are deeply aware of the impact of climate change
on the enterprise value chain, which may affect the

RE  HEgREREKRE

P SRR 21

BFIRABEBIRIRBECE D
XEERTROTZE  EMmMA

further development of the Company’s business. EERENTEBRE—FTBE -

We involve climate change into the risk identification
process. The following is climate change-related
risks and opportunities identified by us that may
affect the Company’s business operations.

Risks and opportunities

B R 1 i3

Climate change-related
opportunities

mizSLiamms

Climate-change related
risks

WixSLiammR R

LT N
MBIE - DA T A BAP I T 4
PEATEHELHTIRRL
AR A -

Description

FLRE ikt

The capital market is increasingly concerned about the proportion
of listed companies’ use of clean energy, taking the initiative to
invest in and use clean energy may help enterprises establish a
responsible corporate image, or will attract the attention of more
investors.
BATSDERT T ARERERERGL - BRERALERFR
BERFIRE AR BI L B EENGERR ARSI ELZREEHN

JE e

Climate change may cause sea level rise and intensify the frequency
of extreme weather. It will also adversely affect the operation and
production of companies and their employees, which may cause
potential financial and human capital losses;
RIRECEBUSTE L MBS RXRIAE
HEERTATE -

HETRARIHES
Al RESERBER I N FIA N EAREX

Climate change may cause a heavy load on the power grid, leading
to an increase in the frequency of power outages, which may
cause unpredictable interference to our operations, and may
increase operating costs of the Company.
RIFZCHBEENNEETERETIAREN - AILHRMNES
ERNFITERIE T8 - M AR IE IR A EE KA -
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6

CHERERRE

To respond to the related risks brought by climate
change, we have formulated Environmental
Emergency Event Contingency Plan and other
contingency plans to deal with property and human
losses caused by extreme weather. We have insured
our research and production facilities, machinery,
equipment, inventory and other fixed assets on
site against potential losses or damage caused by
extreme weather, to mitigate the impact of climate
change and protect the operation of the Company.
We have also taken out insurance policies for
clinical trial liability and product liability claims,
which the coverage cover all operational activities.
To seize climate change-related opportunities, the
Company will take active consideration to expand
the proportion of clean energy use. For instance, we
are considering laying photovoltaic equipment on the
roofs of our operational and production facilities to
optimize the energy supply structure.

Environmental Key Performance Indicators®

In 2022, the environmental key performance
indicators of the Company are listed below. Unless
otherwise stated, the scope of environmental data
statistics in the Report covers LEPU Scientech
Medical Technology (Shanghai) Co.,Ltd., and
Shanghai Shape Memory Alloy Co.,Ltd.

In FY2022, we consumed 12 tons of packaging materials.
Packaging materials mainly include paper boxes, cartons, labels,
instructions, glass, foam and blister boxes.
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2022 KPI of Energy
and Use of Resources

Indicator it ]

Indirect energy consumption”  FEREFH 7
Purchased electricity HNEE

Energy consumption per capita A&EiRH#E

Total water consumption® RKEE?

Water consumption per capita A¥EKE

2022 KPI of Emissions®

Indicator it

Total GHG emissions™ BEREHREE
(Scope 1 and Scope 2)" (BE1REE2)"

Indirect GHG emissions FERERBEER
(Scope 2) (BE2)
Purchased electricity HNEE

GHG emissions per capita A BERBNE
(Scope 1 and Scope 2) (BE1REE2)

During the Reporting Period, our main operation was daily
operation of office, factory and laboratory operation. the direct
energy consumption mainly included gasoline and the indirect
energy consumption mainly included electricity. Since our gasoline
consumption is small, with the expansion of the Company, we will
gradually sort out and calculate the gasoline consumption;

Since the water resources used by the Company are from
municipal water supply, we do not have any problem in obtaining
suitable water resources;

The Company has not been listed as a key pollutant discharge
unit. According to the relevant provisions of Water Pollution
Prevention and Control Law of the People’s Republic of China
and Atmospheric Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the
People’s Republic of China, the installation and networking of
automatic monitoring equipment for non-key pollutant discharge
units are not mandatory provisions. With the rapid expansion of
the company’s scale, we will carry out the monitoring of waste
gas and waste water, and sort out the statistics of the data;

The GHG calculation covers carbon dioxide, methane and
nitrous oxide. GHG emissions are presented in carbon dioxide
equivalents and was calculated based on the 2079 Baseline
Emission Factors for Regional Power Grids in China issued by the
Ministry of Ecology and Environment of the People’s Republic of
China;

GHG Scope 2 covers “indirect energy” GHG emissions caused
by the Company’s internal consumption (purchased or acquired)
of electricity. During the Reporting Period, the Company’s total
GHG emissions were “indirect energy” GHG emissions caused by
electricity;

RE  HEgREREKRE

2022 REIR R Wi H FE PR AR S R

Data
Unit B B
MWh KL 1,685.97
MWh JK LB 1,685.97
MWh/person  JKELEE /A 9.58
Tons 1] 8,089.00
Tons/person W&/ A 45.96

2022 HE I R RIS S R0

Data
Unit Ef B
Tons 7 1,045.54
Tons 7 1,045.54
Tons 7 1,045.54
Tons/person W&/ A 5.94

7 WEHR - MW EZELEXNRBE
Wr IRRERZTEE FESRH
EERRAAM BERRERERE
7 BREMETHERE D  BEER
AR RIRER - BAGE S HRIEN
BETUHBERER

8 BRI R KR B TR E RKE @K
AR A SKEUE KR LR BB A EAH
[

S ORBERWINAZHIETEN - RIT
(R E AR FRMBIKEEBEE) (R E
ARZFRBIARSEDAE)BBRE
REFEERH SEMEHEARENL
KRB AAIERBIMEIRTE © BEE A AHRER
MREEN - RPEETHRER - B
IKHY BRI AR IR AR AT AL B

0 OBEREZEGREEIERE S
FEERELER - BREREEREER
—EEREERY  TREBEPEARHK
ME AR IRIBEB A C2019 R/ BEIE B
B[R B EE G E T ) E T
N

i BEREHE2RZREQARIAIHE
(BESIMEH) EHAERERNMEE
RIBEREEEN - EHRK © RFIAR
ZREHNEE AT TSI B [ REsE
RIBR =R

131



132 Lepu ScienTech Medical Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
SELRBEMNE (L8) ROERALT

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RE  HEREREKRE

2022 KPI of Wastes

Indicator it

Total hazardous waste™ FEREEMHE"
Hazardous medical waste BEBEEEY
Hazardous waste consumables BEBREREM

Hazardous waste per capita AIBEEEN

Total non-hazardous waste™ BREREEMHEE"
Domestic waste EEBEEY)
Electronic waste BIREEY

Non-hazardous waste per capita AMEEEEN

2 Hazardous waste includes hazardous waste consumables and
hazardous medical waste. Hazardous waste consumables include
toner cartridges and Ink cartridge procured by the Company
which are calculated based on the data in the procurement
breakdown provided by suppliers. Hazardous medical waste
includes infectious waste and injurious waste, which are
calculated through medical waste treatment slips and ledger
registration;

L Non-hazardous waste includes domestic waste and electronic
waste, of which domestic waste includes copy paper; electronic
waste includes computers.

2022 EYRBRWMER

Data
Unit Ef B
Tons I 0.19
Tons WE 0.05
Tons WE 0.14
Tons/person M,/ A 0.001
Tons I 60.64
Tons WE 60.62
Tons WE 0.02
Tons/person M,/ A 0.34
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APPENDIX: ESG REPORTING GUIDE INDEX BHSE : (GBIE - e RBAESHE
TABLE By ®BI%
Requirements, key areas, dimensions, general disclosures and KPI (Indicators) Correspondent Chapters
HE TEEE BE - —RESRARBEMER (ER) HE N BB
Mandatory Disclosure Requirements
HHBEERE
Governance Structure A statement from the Board containing the following elements: ESG Management-ESG
EREE MESSHLARE  EHHEETIAA - Governance Structure
() a disclosure of the Board’s oversight of ESG issues; ESGEIE-ESGE AR
(i REEZQHRE HERELRFHENEE
(ii) the Board’s ESG management approach and strategy,
including the process used to evaluate, prioritise and
manage material ESG-related issues (including risks to
the issuer’s businesses); and
(i) BEEENRE e RELEEH KR  BETE
BREIIREREENRE HEREREHFE (B
BHREITAZBEMER) WBRE: &
(iii) how the Board reviews progress made against ESG-
related goals and targets with an explanation of how they
relate to the issuer’s businesses.
(i)  EFSNOMKIRE HLERELHEEEEHRTEEY  WH
BERMEETARKEHE -
Reporting Principles A description of, or an explanation on, the application of the  About the Report
B 32 R following Reporting Principles in the preparation of the ESG  BARARE

Report (materiality, quantitative and consistency).
HRBRERERE #HeRELREHNAERTIERR
a:

B2 RE HERELREERE  (\BIEERE HEk
EREENBREREREERENEL  ((\METADETHOE
28 BEHFINEERHENERARBITARNELENBIERE
Ho
Bt BEERERE RER (WER) ANZE - Fik
BERR/FHEIANEN  UEAERNERERNRERET
BE -

—E BOARERE e RERRETRESRT AEIHER
BREENEE (F) IEMNEMTEEERLRNEREE -
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Requirements, key areas, dimensions, general disclosures and KPI (Indicators)

HE TERG BE - —REERMBRNESR(ER)

Reporting Boundary
E R E

A narrative explaining the reporting boundaries of the ESG report
and describing the process used to identify which entities or
business are included in the ESG report. If there is a change in
the reporting boundaries, the issuer should explain the difference
and reason for the change.

BRERE HERELIRENEREE  MEdkEPLEREER
BMARE  HERERRENBE - FERBEBMNE - #17
ANERETRzEREFRA -

“Comply or Explain” Provisions

[RETRBRE|EX

Environmental

A BIR

Aspect A1: Emissions

BEA1 :

General Disclosure

—RBE

KPI A1.1
B EMIERALA

KPI A1.2
PR EMIEIRAL.2

KPI A1.3
FRENETRALS

Information on:

BRERARA

MEEE Z ) -

(@) the policies; and

@ BXR: R

(o)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

b) BEBFHETAFBEAZENEREZRAOINEN -

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into

water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous

waste.

TREFN KRS  BEREEER

The types of emissions and respective emissions data.

P KRR M EE

Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas
emissions and, where appropriate, intensity.

B (BE) RetRMEE (BE2) BEREHNE (UEAE) R
(IER) BE (MABEBEN - §ARME) o

Total hazardous waste produced and, where appropriate,

intensity.

%Féﬁifﬁmﬁé(umﬁ§MUMEﬁ
B - BERME) °

VEE (MNEEE

Correspondent Chapters

e 55 £ B A o

About the Report
BRAREE

Green Operation-Pollutant
Discharge Reduction

gEER — W5 REER

Green Operation-Environmental
Key Performance Indicators

REEE - REVRERER

Green Operation-Environmental
Key Performance Indicators
HEES - REBRENER

Green Operation-Environmental
Key Performance Indicators
HEES - REBRERER
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Requirements, key areas, dimensions, general disclosures and KPI (Indicators)

HE TERG BE - —REERMBRNESR(ER)

KPI A1.4
BREMIERALL

KPI A1.5
BRERIEIRA15

KPI A1.6
BREUIEIZA1.6

Total non-hazardous waste produced and, where appropriate,
intensity.
FrEEEEEEYBE (UETE)
B GEBEFE) ©

k(@R mE (MABEE

Description of emission target(s) set and steps taken to achieve
them.
HAATET U MBI E B R R RERE L B RAEIM 8 -

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are
handled, and a description of reduction target(s) set and steps
taken to achieve them.

MR AE NESEENO L - R P T LR E B2 R
ﬁiﬂk%ﬁh%%ﬂm*%

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

BEA2: BiREMR
General Disclosure

—REE

KPI A2.1
B ERERA2.1

KPI A2.2
AR IRNIEIRA2.2

Policies on efficient use of resources including energy, water,
and other raw materials.
BRERER (B8R  KREMEME) HBR -

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in total and
intensity.

RENESHERR /IMEER (WE - fskhm) BFE (U T
BFREHE) REE (MABESSM - BERMAE)

Water consumption in total and intensity.
BRKERTE (MNGESEN - BERME)

HE

Correspondent Chapters

e 55 £ B A o

Green Operation-Environmental
Key Performance Indicators
REEYE - REBRENEE

As the Company scale
continues to expand, we will
examine indepth and establish
feasible environmental targets to
help the Company fully realize
green operations
BEELAREN T EEA - M
RN HTE B AT TR
BER - PARFZAERZE
B

As the Company scale
continues to expand, we will
examine indepth and establish
feasible environmental targets to
help the Company fully realize
green operations

BaE R RIRENTEREA - &M
AR AR Y I TE B AT THR
BER PARFZAERZE
B

Green Operation-Resource
Utilization Conservation

REEE - HHERER

Green Operation-Environmental
Key Performance Indicators

HEES - RIEEREEE

Green Operation-Environmental
Key Performance Indicators
HEES - REBRERER
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Requirements, key areas, dimensions, general disclosures and KPI (Indicators)

HE TERG BE - —REERMBRNESR(ER)

KPI A2.3
BREMIERA2.3

KPI A2.4
BREMIEIRA2.4

KPI A2.5
AR IEMIEIRA2.5

Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken
to achieve them.
HIATET VB RE A e B R R AETE L B SR S8

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that
is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to
achieve them.

1t SKEVE AR AT B (E ] el 8
REDELERARIA LR -

AR BTS2 A7k et B AR B

Total packaging material used for finished products and, if
applicable, with reference to per unit produced.
SN mAAREMENERE (AEE) R (WER) BEESMG

=
=

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

BEAS : RBERBARE

General Disclosure

—REE

KPI A3.1
BRI MIERAS A

Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant impact on the
environment and natural resources.

BEBRTAHREREREREXEAT EOHEK

Description of the significant impacts of business activities on the
environment and natural resources and actions taken to manage
them.

HREKEDHRERBABRNEAY ERERNERFRY
L1178 -

Correspondent Chapters
HEMES T

As the Company scale
continues to expand, we will
examine indepth and establish
feasible environmental targets to
help the Company fully realize
green operations

BEE L ARENTEEAR - 5
ORI I 31T I E R 1THER
BB BARREZHERAZE
B

As the Company scale
continues to expand, we will
examine indepth and establish
feasible environmental targets to
help the Company fully realize
green operations

BEE R RIFENTEREA - &M
RN I TE VB AT THR
BER - PARFZAERZE
B

Green Operation- Environmental
Key Performance Indicators
HEES - REBRERER

Green Operation
REEE

Green Operation
rEEE
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Requirements, key areas, dimensions, general disclosures and KPI (Indicators)

HE TERG BE - —REERMBRNESR(ER)

Aspect A4: Climate Change
BEA4: RIRE(L

General Disclosure Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-
—WRE related issues which have impacted, and those which may
impact, the issuer.
;&%J&i&ﬁm%« AREHBTAELEYENEARREREE

HIBR
KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which have
BREVIRIZAL A impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer, and actions

taken to manage them.
HLE &K ‘ﬁﬁ?éﬁéﬁ/\ﬁi VENBARGKEREE kB

RRERERTENTE -
B. Social
B. it®
Employment and Labour Practices
ERRFBER
Aspect B1: Employment
BEB1 : B
General Disclosure Information on:
—RIRE BRFMEEE BERES TERE - RE TSR
Toib » RIEE AR E M ARE RAaFIe) -
(a) the policies; and
(@) BOK ]
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer
(o) ETHETAREAYENEREZRROIHER -
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, leave, equal opportunity, diversity,
anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.
KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and
FIRERIEEB A geographical region.
BUR - BEER  FRANRMRESNES LY -
KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical
IRERUEEB1.2 region.

RIER - FRAR KR AME TRARLER -

Correspondent Chapters

e 55 £ B A o

Green Operation-Response to
Climate Change
REEE - BHRIRE(L

Green Operation-Response to
Climate Change
REEE - EHRIRE (L

Talents Mechanism-Equal
Employment and Labor Rights
DRAT - TEEBES TR

Talents Mechanism-Equal
Employment and Labor Rights
URAT — T HERES THES

Talents Mechanism-Equal
Employment and Labor Rights
PHRAT - PHERES TS
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Requirements, key areas, dimensions, general disclosures and KPI (Indicators)

HE TERG BE - —REERMBRNESR(ER)

Aspect B2: Health and Safety

BEB2: REERR

General Disclosure
—B R

KPI B2.1
AR RN R 1RB2.1

KPI B2.2
PR ENERB2.2

KPI B2.3
AR AN ERB2.3

Information on:

ARRHZETHERELREE TR EREMLREN

() the policies; and
(@ BE: Rk
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have

a significant impact on the issuer
b  EFTHBTAREAFENHBEERROINER -
relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards.

Number and rate of work-related fatalities for last 3 years
(include the Reporting Period).
BEZF (OEREH) BFRITHOABRILLE -

Lost days due to work injury.

AIBGERAIEHY -

Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted,
how they are implemented and monitored.

HAMRANBEREREL 25 - URBERTREREE -

Aspect B3: Development and Training

BEB3 : HRREH

General Disclosure
—MR B

KPI B3.1
AR R 1RB3.1

KPI B3.2
BAR IR A 1RB3.2

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for
discharging duties at work. Description of training activities.

BRRTMESRTIEREMNMBRRENIE - FAEIIEE -

The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee
category.
RUFIRERER (WERERE TRERE) EAINKIET
B .

The average training hours completed per employee by gender
and employee category.

BRI EEERED  BREETRTINTFHEH -

Correspondent Chapters
HEMES T

Talents Mechanism-
Occupational Health and Safety
PRAT - BERFEZS

Talents Mechanism-
Occupational Health and Safety
OBRAT — BEREREZ S

Talents Mechanism-
Occupational Health and Safety
OBMAT — BEREREZ S

Talents Mechanism-
Occupational Health and Safety
UEAT -BEREEZS

Talents Mechanism-Employee
Growth and Development

ORAT - BIRREER

Talents Mechanism-Employee
Growth and Development

ORAT - BIRREZR

Talents Mechanism-Employee
Growth and Development

PRAS - BEIRREZR
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HE TERG BE - —REERMBRNESR(ER)

Aspect B4: Labour Standards

EEB4 : $T A

General Disclosure

—RBE

KPI B4.1
AR R 1RB4.1

KP| B4.2
BBHEIEIEBA.2

Operating Practices

EERA

Information on:

AEAD FETeam% T

() the policies; and
(@ BE: Rk
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have

a significant impact on the issuer
(o) ETHETABEATENERZZRRDINER -
relating to preventing child and forced labour.

Description of measures to review recruitment practices to avoid
child and forced labour.
iR EA A R R ET RAEHISET -

Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when
discovered.

R EEREREARERARELARRE SR o

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

MBS : $ENER

General Disclosure

—REE

KPI B5.1
B E UIE1EB5. 1

KPI B5.2
BABEIEIEB5.2

KPI B5.3
BB E E1EB5.3

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply
chain.

ERHREENRERLERBROBEK

Number of suppliers by geographical region.

RSN HRERHA o

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of
suppliers where the practices are being implemented, how they
are implemented and monitored.

HEREBERAEERNESN mARTEREMNNEERSE
NRBABRTRERTE -

Description of practices used to identify environmental and social
risks along each section of the supply chain, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

A BRI HER G RS IRE R gRRNE -
BHITRERFE °

9eE

HE

Correspondent Chapters

e 55 £ B A o

Talents Mechanism-Equal
Employment and Labor Rights
URAT - FEERES THER

Talents Mechanism-Equal
Employment and Labor Rights
URAT - TERRES THES

Talents Mechanism-Equal
Employment and Labor Rights
DRAT — TEEBES TS

Standardize Responsible
Operation-Supplier
Management

BEEEL - AafEnEE

Standardize Responsible
Operation-Supplier
Management

BEEEL - RafERER

Standardize Responsible
Operation-Supplier
Management

BEEEL - RafEREE

Standardize Responsible
Operation-Supplier
Management

&L - AafERER
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Requirements, key areas, dimensions, general disclosures and KPI (Indicators)

HE TERG BE - —REERMBRNESR(ER)

KPI B5.4
BAR A IS 1RBE 4

Description of practices used to promote environmentally
preferable products and services when selecting suppliers, and
how they are implemented and monitored.
HREREHERRREESRRRERRBNED - AKIEHE
WIRERAE -

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

BEB6 : ERAHE

General Disclosure
—BE =

KPI B6.1
AR IR 15 15B6.1

KPI B6.2
BRR IR E15B6.2

KPI B6.3
AR A 1RB6.3

KPI B6.4
AR IR 151386 4

KPI B6.5
FAR IR 15 1RB6.5

Information on:

FHEMRHERNRBENREERZSE B BERBLEEN
AR AR -

(@) the policies; and

(@) BOK ]

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have

a significant impact on the issuer
b  ETHBETAREAFENHBEZRROINER -
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy
matters relating to products and services provided and methods
of redress.

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls
for safety and health reasons.
EEIEELRERBH TR ARFEMMARRNADL

Number of products and service related complaints received and
how they are dealt with.

BREANERLRBORFEEAREHTE -

Description of practices relating to observing and protecting
intellectual property rights.

it EgERRENIEREWENED -

Description of quality assurance process and products recall
procedures.
B ERTRIERERDKRER -

Description of consumer information protection and privacy
policies, and how they are implemented and monitored.

MR BEEERRERRALBE - ARBBRTRERTE -

Correspondent Chapters
HEMES T

Responsible Operation-Supplier
Management
BffiEe - HEHERER

Responsible Operation-Product
Quality Initiatives
BfEE - IEEMRE

Responsible Operation-Product
Quality Initiatives
BffiEe - TEEmmE

Responsible Operation-Product
Quality Initiatives
BffiEE - TEEmmE

Responsible-Continuous R&D
and innovation
BELEE — HEMBE

Responsible Operation-Product
Quality Initiatives
BHEE - IEEmmE

Responsible Operation-
Information Security and Privacy
Protection
BEREY - R ERLRE
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Requirements, key areas, dimensions, general disclosures and KPI (Indicators)

HE TERG BE - —REERMBRNESR(ER)

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption

BEB7 : RERK

General Disclosure
—B R

KPI B7.1
AR R 1RBT .1

KPI B7.2

BB URIEBT .2

KPI B7.3
AR E1RBT.3

Information on:

HEER LA - 9% - HGEFROEREM -

() the policies; and

(@) Bk &

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer

(o) BTUBRTABEAYENRREERAMNNER -

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud, and money laundering.

Number of concluded litigation cases regarding corrupt brought
against the issuer or its employees during the Reporting Period
and the outcomes of the litigation.
RESHAEETASEEEREYEEENETHARENE
BREFDER -

Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing
procedures, and how they are implemented and monitored.
HifSEERERER  URABRTRERFX -

Description of anti-corruption training provided to Directors and
staff.
HEiMEERETRENRERE -

Aspect B8: Community Investment

BEBS : it ER T

General Disclosure
—MR B

KPI B8.1
BAR IR 151388, 1

KPI B8.2
FAR IR E15B8.2

Policies on community engagement to understand the needs
of the communities where the issuer operates and to ensure
its business activities takes into consideration communities’
interests.
BRUMB2ERTRETACENELEZENREREEKE
BEERMENRNOLE o

Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental
issues, Labour needs, health, culture, sports).
EIEREE (WHE  RREE SIFK BR X 8

z=

B)e

Resources contributed to the focus area (e.g. money or time).

EZIEBMDAER (WEERKH)

Correspondent Chapters
HEMES T

Responsible Operation-Integrity
Operation
BEfEE - RERREL

I

Responsible Operation-Integrity
Operation

+ o

BEEEE -RERRES

Responsible Operation-Integrity
Operation
BifiEeE - RERRER

Responsible Operation-Integrity
Operation
BifiEe - RERREE

Responsible Operation-Social
Responsibilities
BffEE - BITHEBEE

Responsible Operation-Social
Responsibilities
BffiES - BITHERA

Responsible Operation-Social
Responsibilities
BEES - BITHEAE
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The Board is pleased to present the Corporate Governance
Report set out in the Annual Report of the Company for the
year ended December 31, 2022.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company was listed on the Stock Exchange on November
8, 2022, while the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code”) set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules were not
applicable to the Company before the Listing Date.

The Group is committed to maintaining high standards
of corporate governance to safeguard the interests of
the Shareholders and to enhance corporate value and
accountability. After the Listing, the Company has adopted
the CG Code as its own code of corporate governance, and
the procedures to enable the Shareholders to evaluate how
the principles of corporate governance have been applied.
Other than deviations from the code provisions C.2.1, C.2.7
and C.5.1 of the CG Code as disclosed in this Annual Report,
the Company has complied with all applicable code provisions
under the CG Code during the period from the Listing Date and
up to the date of this Annual Report. The Company will continue
to review and monitor its corporate governance practices to
ensure compliance with the CG Code.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group,
oversees the Group’s strategic decisions and monitors business
and performance. The Board has delegated the authority and
responsibility for daily management and operation to the senior
management of the Group. To oversee specific aspects of
the Company’s affairs, the Board has established three Board
committees, including the Audit Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee. The Board has
delegated to such Board Committees responsibilities as set out
in their respective terms of reference.

All Directors shall ensure that they carry out duties in good faith,
in compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and in the
interests of the Company and its Shareholders at all times.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance for
the legal proceedings against the Directors, and will review the
insurance coverage on an annual basis.

BEEEMARZIAQBEE2022F12 A
STBUEFEZERAHZEEERARE -

ERELGER

RRAFR2022F 11 ASARBE AT £
i ET R BIM 8 AT E > EE AT R
([EEATFR )N ETWBEBRIYTEA
RARF]

AEBEBRN@FRKTFHEEES - AR
ERRESYRACXEERREL - ©
EWE - ARRERAEEELTRES
EARG 2 RERTA MERERFGE
XERRAZERATR - BrimBEAF R
BRECXEATAMRNEC.2.11& - C.2.7
X% C.5. 115 - B L HHEARFRA
HIEHE > ARR-—EETEEEETAH
BT ZFEERTRGX - RABEH#E
WA UEREMREQRER - ABEREST
EERERTH -

EFERME

ESSRRAKENERES  YERA
SENRBEIMEREAREREBRKRR -
EESEMAKENGRAERERTAE
EEREENENNER RERAQT
EBNETEE  EFgCKU-—EE=R
CRET BREFZES RERZEE
EFHMEES -BEFECAXFEFER
BERTEBELEMFNET -

EREFABRESAETEN - ETEM
ERMER - BERAKEATEARRA R
BERA e T REITRE -

ARAEHH HESNEARFDRLHEE
AR - TS FERZRR ZRER
o
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COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

As at the date of this Annual Report, the Board consists
of seven Directors, including two executive Directors, two
non-executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors. The list of current members of the Board of the
Company is as follows:

AN\ A 2N
ERERME

EEEMNHEM

RAFHEH EFTSHTREFTHEX -
BIE2EMITEST 2R IFRTEEMIA
BIUFNITES - ARAEFEREXE
SR ¢

Name o2 Position B £

Ms. Chen Juan PRig L 1 Executive Director (Chairman of the Board)  #iTEE (EEL)
Ms. Zhang Yuxin REH LT Executive Director BITES

Mr. Fu Shan L E Non-executive Director FEWNTES

Mr. Zheng Guorui EPEISH ST Non-executive Director FEWNTES

Ms. Chan Ka Lai Vanessa BEELt Independent non-executive Director B IEHITES
Mr. Zheng Yufeng B I 5 A4 Independent non-executive Director B IEHITES
Mr. Liu Daozhi ZER L. Independent non-executive Director BN IEHITES

The biographies of the Directors are set out in the section
headed “Biographies of Directors, Supervisors and Senior
Management” on page 48 to page 58 in this Annual Report.

Save as disclosed in the biographies of the Directors as set out
in the section headed “Biographies of Directors, Supervisors
and Senior Management” of this Annual Report, none of the
Directors has any personal relationships (including financial,
business, family or other material or relevant relationships) with
any other Director or chief executive.

Independent Non-executive Directors

The Board at all times met the requirements of the Rules 3.10(1)
and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at
least three independent non-executive Directors, among which
at least one independent non-executive Director possesses
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise, from the Listing Date and up to
the date of this Report.

EEREHNAFRFISEEFS8H[E
F EEZNofEEERE|—f -

BAFERe [EF EERSAEEER
BB EERETAEREEN
BEFREMNEMEFTAZRSTRARR
EEABER (BREMH - E5 - Kiksk
HEKX /1HRIRRER) o

BYFIITES

BEETMABEAFEAHLE  EFekE
FAEEHEFEMRAIEI 0K
310R)EEMEEE L =B IFHITE
E(HhE L —ZBFIUIFRTEETERE
BEMNEXERA S IRBYHEER
EMNFH) MRE -
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The Company has also complied with the requirements of
the Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules relating to appointment of
independent non-executive Directors, representing one-third
of the members of the Board. Each of the independent
non-executive Director has confirmed their independence during
the period from the Listing Date and up to the date of this
Annual Report based on the Rule 3.13 to the Listing Rules, thus
the Company considers they are independent persons.

The Company has adopted the Terms of Reference of the
Independent Non-executive Directors (I8 FEsiTE S TIEH
£ ), which was formulated on a specific basis to stipulate the
qualifications, selection procedures, powers and obligations of
independent non-executive Directors and will review such policy on
an annual basis. The independent non-executive Directors provide
independent and objective advice and opinions on the Company’s
development strategies, results issues and other matters with
taking account of interests of all Shareholders, and maintain their
independence required as independent non-executive Directors.
The independent non-executive Directors are invited to serve
on the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee. The Audit Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the Company
have a majority of independent non-executive Directors, and the
Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee both are chaired
by independent non-executive Directors.

According to the Terms of Reference of the Independent
Non-executive Directors (B IFHNTTEELIEHIE)) of
the Company, in order to give full play to the independent
non-executive Directors and ensure the Board could obtain
independent views and advice, the Company has delegated the
special authorities to the independent non-executive Directors,
including (but not limited to) the material connected transactions
resolutions shall be submitted to the Board for discussing after
reviewed and recognized by the independent non-executive
Directors; before the independent non-executive Directors
make a judgement, they may engage intermediary agents
to issue independent financial advisor report as the basis of
their judgements. The independent non-executive Directors
shall obtain consents from more than half of all independent
non-executive Directors when they make judgements by
exercising relevant special authorities. The Company shall
disclose the circumstances if the relevant proposals not been
adopted or the relevant authorities cannot be exercised in a
normal manner. The Board has reviewed this mechanism during
the Reporting Period and considered it has been implemented
effectively.

ARBNDET ETRASAOAGEBE
EHERETEXNE =02 —HBUIFH
TEZENRTE - BBUFATEFICR
B EMRANBASGERES LHEHER
FHREHIEHENBILYE - WARFRR
BEDRBILIAL -

ARBERBFEMFIENCELIFRTES
THEHE)  HBUFRTESNEIRE
& EBEREF  BERFFETRE I
BEFHZHEETEN - BIUFATE
EHARARANBERERR  FBEEEZIRM
BUFENEZNER - YEMERRR
A - RERSERSBLIFNTESS
EEMIBILYE - BIUJFAITEFTRANE
FHERBEEg FTHZEERREZEEHR
B RAEFLZES  REZBSNHM
ZEET  BUFNTESFHRZHERE
FERBEE  RERESHBIUNFNTES
BEERF -

REBARBCELIFNITES TIENE)
RADBEBLIFNTESNER - HBIR
EEQREBSBYNBEMER  QAFH
THEIGFATEERRINEE - 2FET
RREAFERHZREHBIIFATE
EENLRAUR  RREFGTWR - BY
FFHITESELHERAT - ATARER N #
BHEAB YV BERRE - (EAEHE
IR - B IFMITEFITEA BRI R
RETTHEER - BERSE2RBIIFNT
EEM1/20LRAE - AR RPIR
MREERETRERTTR  QAFRER
BERBRATUARE BEFENBEHRAYE
ZHEHETTEE  YR/EBITAK

Bt
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

We are committed to promoting a diverse culture in the
Company. Taking into consideration of various factors of our
corporate governance structure, we promote diversity with great
efforts wherever practicable.

We have adopted the Board Diversity Policy, which sets out
the objectives and stipulates that all appointments of members
of the Board shall be made based on the talents, skills and
experience level required by the overall operation of the Board. Our
Nomination Committee will review and evaluate the composition of
the Board, and make recommendations to the Board in connection
with the appointment of members of the Board. At the same time,
our Nomination Committee will consider the benefits of diversity
in all aspects, including but not limited to professional experience,
skills, knowledge, educational background, age, gender, culture
and ethnicity and length of service, to maintain an appropriate
scope and balance for the talents, skills, experience and diversified
perspectives of the Board.

The summary of the Board Diversity Policy is set out as follows:

The effective Board Diversity Policy facilitates to enhance the
effectiveness of our Board and to maintain high standard of
corporate governance. The Board Diversity Policy sets out the
criteria in selecting candidates to our Board, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length
of service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to our
Board.

Our Directors have a balanced mix of knowledge and skills,
including but not limited to overall business management,
finance and accounting and material science.

They obtained degrees in diversified majors including finance,
accounting science, physics and history. The Board is of the
view that it satisfied the Board Diversity Policy and has achieved
overall diversity. In addition, the Board has a wide range of age,
ranging from 40 years old to 59 years old. Three of our directors
are female. The Board will also ensure that appropriate balance
of gender diversity is achieved with reference to investors’
expectation, and international and local recommended best
practices and is of the view that the nomination policy of the
Company can ensure there will be potential successors to the
Board to maintain the diversity of the Board.
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The Company’s hiring process is merit-based and no
discriminatory.

The Board is satisfied that the Company has achieved gender
diversity in its workforce.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the
diversity of the Board, and will monitor and evaluate the
implementation of the Board Diversity Policy from time to
time and at least on an annual basis, to ensure its continued
effectiveness.

As of December 31, 2022, the proportion of the Group’s male
employees were approximately 49.15% and female employees
were approximately 50.85%, respectively. The Company has
also taken and continues to take steps to promote gender
diversity at all levels of its workforce. Opportunities for
recruitment, promotion, training and career development are
equally opened to all eligible employees without discrimination.

All Directors (including the independent non-executive Directors)
will bring various valuable business experience, knowledge and
professional skills to the Board, to enable it to operate efficiently
and effectively. The independent non-executive Directors are
invited to serve on the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee and other Board
Committees.

Taking consideration of our current business mode and specific
requirements, as well as different backgrounds and capacities
of our Directors, our Directors are in the opinion of the
composition of the Board is consistent with our Board Diversity
Policy and effectively implemented.

INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

All newly appointed Directors will be provided necessary
induction training and information, to ensure appropriate
understanding of the operation and business of the Company
and full awareness of, to an appropriate extent, Directors’
responsibilities under the relevant laws and regulations, rules
and provisions. The Company also arranges regular seminars
for Directors to provide them with updates on the latest
developments and changes in the Listing Rules and other
relevant legal and regulatory requirements from time to time.
The Directors are also provided with updated information on
the Company’s performance, status and prospects on a regular
basis to enable the Board as a whole and each Director to
discharge their duties.
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The Company encourages all Directors to participate in
continuous professional development, thereby to develop
and update their knowledge and skills. The joint company
secretaries of the Company from time to time will update and
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provide written training materials relating to the roles, functions

and duties of a Director.

According to the information provided by the Directors, the
training records of all Directors for the year ended December

31, 2022 are as follows:

Name of Directors

Executive Director
Ms. Chen Juan
Ms. Zhang Yuxin

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Fu Shan
Mr. Zheng Guorui

Independent Non-executive
Directors

Ms. Chan Ka Lai Vanessa

Mr. Zheng Yufeng

Mr. Liu Daozhi
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HHl BEEB
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regulatory development,
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relevant topics
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Reading regulatory
updates or corporate
governance related
materials or materials
relevant to directors’
duties
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CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD AND GENERAL
MANAGER

Pursuant to code provision C.2.1 in the Corporate Governance
Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, the roles
of chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual.

Ms. Chen Juan (FR%8) is currently serving as the chairman of
the Board as well as the general manager of the Company.
She has been primarily involved in developing overall corporate
and business strategies of the Group and making significant
business and operational decisions of the Group. Our Directors
consider that vesting the roles of both the chairman of the
Board and the general manager of the Company in Ms. Chen is
beneficial to the business prospects of the Group by ensuring
consistent leadership to the Group as well as prompt and
effective decision making and implementation. In addition, our
Directors believe that this structure will not impair the balance of
power and authority between the Board and the management of
the Company, given that: (1) decision to be made by our Board
requires approval by at least a majority of our Directors; (2)
Ms. Chen and the other Directors are aware of and undertake
to fulfil their fiduciary duties as Directors, which require,
among other things, that she acts for the benefit and in the
best interests of the Company and will make decisions for the
Company accordingly; (3) the balance of power and authority
is ensured by the operations of the Board, which consists of
two executive Directors, two non-executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors, and has a fairly strong
independence element; and (4) the overall strategic and other
key business, financial, and operational policies of the Company
are made collectively after thorough discussion at both Board
and senior management levels.

The Board will continue to review the effectiveness of the
corporate governance practices and its structure of the Group,
in order to assess whether separation of the roles of chairman
and general manager is necessary.
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MEETINGS WITH THE INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Code provision C.2.7 of the CG Code stipulates that the
Chairman of the Board should at least annually hold meetings
with the independent non-executive Directors without the
presence of other Directors, and code provision C.5.1 of the
CG Code stipulates that the Board should meet regularly
and board meetings should be held at least four times a year
at approximately quarterly intervals. Due to the fact that the
Company was listed on the Listing Date, neither Board meetings
nor Board Committee meetings were held throughout the period
from the Listing Date to December 31, 2022.

The Board shall nevertheless review the structure and
composition of the Board from time to time in light of prevailing
circumstances, to maintain a high standard of corporate
governance practices of the Company.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Each Director has entered into service contracts with the
Company on October 20, 2022 with a term of three years, each
of them may serve consecutive terms if re-elected subject to
the agreements of both parties.

None of the Directors has entered into a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

The procedures and process for appointment, re-election and
removal of Directors are set out in the Articles of Association.
The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the
composition forms of the Board, and provide recommendations
to the Board on the appointment, re-election and succession
plans of Directors.

BOARD MEETINGS

The Company will adopt the practices of holding Board
meetings regularly, at least four Board meetings a year, and
at approximately quarterly intervals. A notice will be sent to all
the Directors at least 14 days before the convening of a regular
Board meeting, so that all the Directors have the opportunity to
attend regular meetings and discuss the matters on the agenda.
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For other Board meetings and Board Committee meetings,
the Company shall give reasonable notice thereof. Notices of
meetings have included the agenda and accompanying relevant
Board documents, and shall be dispatched at least three
days before the date of Board meetings or Board Committee
meetings. The chairman ensures that the Directors have
sufficient time to review relevant documents and be adequately
prepared and briefed for attending the Board meetings or Board
Committee meetings. When Directors or Board Committee
members are unable to attend the meeting, they will be advised
of the matters to be discussed and given an opportunity to
make their views known to the chairman prior to the meeting.
Minutes of meetings shall be kept by the joint company
secretaries with copies thereof circulated to all Directors for
reference and record.

Minutes of the Board meetings and Board Committee meetings
are recorded in sufficient details about the matters considered
by the Board and the Board Committees and the decisions
reached, including any concerns raised by the Directors. Draft
minutes of each Board meeting and Board Committee meetings
are/will be sent to the Directors for their consideration within a
reasonable time after the meeting is held. Minutes of the Board
meetings are open for inspection by all Directors.

During the period from the Listing Date and up to the date
of this Annual Report, one Board meeting was held by the
Company. The Company did not convene any shareholder’s
general meeting for the period from the Listing Date and up to
the date of this Annual Report. The attendance of each Director
at the Board meeting is set out below:

Directors B

Executive Directors WITES

Ms. Chen Juan FRI8 2

Ms. Zhang Yuxin RSN+
Non-executive Directors EHITES

Mr. Fu Shan 1L &£

Mr. Zheng Guorui BRER £ 5 4
Independent non-executive Directors B IEHITES
Ms. Chan Ka Lai Vanessa et

Mr. Zheng Yufeng LIRSS

Mr. Liu Daozhi REER S E
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct
regarding the transactions of securities of the Company by its
directors, supervisors and the relevant employees who would
likely possess inside information of the Company. Specific
enquiry has been made to all directors and supervisors of
the Company and all of them have confirmed that they have
complied with the Model Code during the period from the
Listing Date to December 31, 2022.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Board reserves for its decision on all major matters of
the Company, including: approval and supervision of all policy
matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management systems, material transactions (in particular those
that may involve conflict of interests), financial information,
appointment of Directors and other significant financial and
operational matters. The Directors may seek independent
professional advice in performing their duties at the Company’s
expense and are encouraged to consult with the Company’s
senior management independently.

The daily management, administration and operation of the
Group are delegated to the senior management. The delegated
functions and responsibilities are periodically reviewed by the
Board. Approvals need to be obtained from the Board prior to
any significant transactions entered into by the management.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board confirms that corporate governance should be the
collective responsibility of the Directors, and the corporate
governance functions of them includes:

(@) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with laws and regulatory
requirements;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior
management;

(c) to develop, review and monitor the codes of conduct and
compliance manuals applicable to employees and the
Directors;

(d) to develop and review the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board and report relevant
matters;

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the CG code
and the disclosure in the corporate governance report;
and

(f)  to review and monitor the Company’s compliance with its
whistleblowing policy.

During the Reporting Period, the Board has reviewed the
annual corporate governance report of the Company, and has
performed the above corporate governance functions.

BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of three members, namely Ms.
Chan Ka Lai Vanessa (Chairwoman), Mr. Zheng Guorui, both
being independent non-executive Directors and Mr. Zheng
Yufeng, being a non-executive Director. Ms. Chan Ka Lai
Vanessa has the appropriate professional qualification and
experiences as required under Rules 3.10(2) and 3.21 of the
Listing Rules.
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The principal duties of the Audit Committee are as follows:

1.

to deal with matters relating to the relationship with the
Company’s auditor;

to review the Company'’s financial information;

to regulate the Company’s financial reporting system and
internal control system;

to review the arrangements established by the Company
to allow employees of the Company to confidentially raise
concerns regarding to possible misconduct in financial
reporting, internal control or other matters. The Audit
Committee shall ensure the appropriate arrangements are
in place to allow the Company to investigate such matters
in a fair and independent manner and take appropriate
actions;

to act as the key representative for overseeing the
Company’s relationship with the external auditor;

to supervise and evaluate the internal and external
audit work of the Company, and be responsible for the
coordination of internal audit and external audit; and

to exercise other duties and powers as specified in the
applicable laws and regulations, the Listing Rules, rules
and systems of the Company or authorized by the Board.

The written terms of reference of the Audit Committee are
available for inspection on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company.

The Audit Committee did not convene any meeting for the
year ended December 31, 2022 as the Company was listed on
November 8, 2022.
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During the period from the Listing Date to the date of this
Annual Report, one meeting of the Audit Committee was held to
discuss and consider the following matters:

° to review the final results of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the year ended December 31, 2022 as
well as the report prepared by the Auditor relating to
auditing and accounting issues and any significant findings
during the audit; and

o to review the financial reporting systems, compliance
procedures, internal control systems (including
the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of
the Company’s accounting and financial reporting
function), risk management systems and processes
and the re-appointment of the Auditor; the Board had
not breached any recommendation given by the Audit
Committee on the selection, appointment, resignation or
dismissal of the Auditor.

The table below sets forth the attendance of each Audit
Committee member at the Audit Committee meeting during the
period from the Listing Date to the date of this Annual Report:

Name of Directors EEES
Ms. Chan Ka Lai Vanessa (Chairman) MERELLT (£EF)
Mr. Zheng Guorui B[] 55 5 A

Mr. Zheng Yufeng 8 F g 5 A&
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee consists of five Directors, namely
Ms. Chen Juan (Chairwoman), being an executive Director, Mr.
Zheng Guorui, being a non-executive Director, Ms. Chan Ka
Lai Vanessa, Mr. Zheng Yufeng and Mr. Liu Daozhi, all being
independent non-executive Directors.

The primary responsibilities of the Nomination Committee
include:

1. to review the structure, size and composition (including
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least
once annually, and make recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement the
Company’s corporate strategy;

2. to identify individuals suitably qualified to become
Directors and make recommendation to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

3. to assess the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors;

4. to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and the
succession plans for Directors, in particular the chairman
of the Board and the general manager; and

5. to perform other duties as required by the Board from
time to time.
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POLICY ON DIRECTOR NOMINATION

The Nomination Committee assesses the candidate or
incumbent based on criteria such as integrity, experience, skill
and ability to commit time and effort to carry out the duties
and responsibilities. The recommendations of the Nomination
Committee will then be put to the Board for decision.

According to the nomination policy, the Directors are selected
as per the following procedures:

1.

conduct comprehensive evaluation and analysis of
the existing Directors, fully communicate with relevant
departments of the Company, study the Company’s
demand for new Directors;

extensively search for candidates for Directors within
the Company and its subsidiaries and in the job market
according to the position demand and the board diversity
policy of the Company;

gather information of each preliminary candidate, including
his/her occupation, education, professional title, detailed
work experience and all part-time work record, and
prepare relevant written materials;

seek the consent of candidates nominated for Directors
by relevant departments or personnel for their nomination
in accordance with relevant laws and regulations and the
Articles of Association, otherwise they may not be the
candidates for Directors;

convene a Nomination Committee meeting to review
the qualifications of the candidates according to the job
requirements for Directors;

form a resolution of the Nomination Committee meeting,
and make recommendations for candidates and submit
relevant materials to the Board; and

conduct other work subsequently according to the
decisions or feedback of the Board.

The nomination policy of the Company is available for inspection
on the website of the Company.
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The written terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are
available for inspection on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company.

The Nomination Committee did not convene any meeting for the
year ended 31 December, 2022 as the Company was listed on
8 November, 2022.

During the period from the Listing Date to the date of this
Annual Report, one meeting of the Nomination Committee was
held to discuss and consider the following matters:

° to review the structure, size and composition of the Board;

° to assess the independence of the independent
non-executive directors;

° to review the nomination policy; and
° to review the board diversity policy.
The table sets forth the attendance of each Nomination
Committee member at the Nomination Committee meeting

during the period from the Listing Date to the date of this
Annual Report:

Name of Directors EEns

Ms. Chen Juan (Chairwoman) BRIBZ L (£/E)
Mr. Zheng Guorui BB £ 5 A4

Ms. Chan Ka Lai Vanessa PRz

Mr. Zheng Yufeng LIRS

Mr. Liu Daozhi Gl Eiites

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee consists of five Directors, namely
Mr. Zheng Yufeng (Chairman), being an independent non-
executive Director, Ms. Chen Juan, being an executive Director,
Mr. Fushan, being a non-executive Director, Ms. Chan Ka Lai
Vanessa, and Mr. Liu Daozhi, both being independent non-
executive Directors.
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Number of attendance/
required attendance

EHERE EBHEXH

1/1
1/1
1/1
1/1
1/1
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The primary responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee of
the Company include:

1.

to review on an annual basis and make recommendations
to the Board regarding the general remuneration policy
and structure for Directors and senior management of
the Company and on the establishment of formal and
transparent procedures for developing the remuneration
policy;

to review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals
and objectives resolved from time to time;

to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration portfolios of individual executive Director
and senior management which include benefits in kind,
pension rights, compensation payments and share scheme
(if any), including any compensation payables for loss or
termination of their office or appointment;

to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of non-executive Directors;

to consider salaries paid by comparable companies,
time commitment and responsibilities and employment
conditions of the Group in other regions;

to review and approve the compensation payables to the
executive Directors and senior management for their loss
or termination of office or appointment to ensure that such
compensation is consistent with the contractual terms and
is otherwise fair and not excessive;

to review and approve the compensation arrangements
relating to dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct
to ensure that such arrangements are consistent with
the contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable and
appropriate; and

to ensure that no Directors or any of his/her associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) is involved in deciding his/her
own remuneration; and review and/or approve matters in
respect of the Company’s share scheme in accordance
with Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

The written terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
are available for inspection on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.
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The Remuneration Committee did not convene any meeting for
the year ended 31 December, 2022 as the Company was listed
on 8 November, 2022.

During the period from the Listing Date to the date of this
Annual Report, one meeting of the Remuneration Committee
was held to discuss and consider the following matters:

° to review remuneration of Directors and senior
management of the Company for 2022;

° to review the remuneration policy and structure for
Directors and senior management of the Company for
2023; and

° to make recommendations to the Board regarding the
remuneration policy and structure for all Directors and
senior management of the Company.

The table sets forth the attendance of each Remuneration
Committee member at the Remuneration Committee meeting
during the period from the Listing Date to the date of this
Annual Report:

Name of Directors EENa

Mr. Zheng Yufeng (Chairman) B RS E (£E)
Ms. Chen Juan FRig 2zt

Mr. Fu Shan (SIS

Ms. Chan Ka Lai Vanessa PRI T

Mr. Liu Daozhi REERIE

AN\ A 2N
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Number of attendance/
required attendance

EHERE EBHEXH

1/1
1/1
1/1
1/1
1/1

159



160

Lepu ScienTech Medical Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
SELRBEMNE (L8) ROERALT

Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

Board of Supervisors

The Board of Supervisors consists of three supervisors,
including Mr. Wang Xinglin, Ms. Wang Xiaoyong and Mr. Qian
Weidong. Mr. Wang Xinglin is currently served as the chairman
of the Board of Supervisors.

The power and responsibilities of the Board of Supervisors
include, but not limited to, review the Company’s financial
report; supervise the Directors and senior management in
their performance of their duties and to propose the removal
of Directors and senior management who have violated laws
and regulations, the Articles of Association or resolutions of
the shareholder’s general meeting; when the acts of Directors,
general manager or other senior management personnel are
detrimental to the Company’s interests, to require them to
correct these acts; propose the convening of the extraordinary
general meetings and to convene and preside over the
shareholders’ general meetings when the Board fails to perform
the duty of convening and presiding over the shareholders’
general meetings under the Articles of Association; and exercise
any other authority stipulated in the Articles of Association.

Each term of office of a Supervisor is three years and he/she
may serve consecutive terms if re-elected. A Supervisor shall
continue to perform his/her duties in accordance with the laws,
administrative regulations and the Articles of Association until
a duly appointed Supervisor takes office, if re-election is not
conducted in a timely manner upon the expiry of his/her term of
office or if the resignation of Supervisors results in the number
of Supervisors being less than the quorum.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Details of the remuneration by band of Directors, Supervisors
and senior management of the Company for the year ended
December 31, 2022 are set out below and in note 36(e)
“Directors’ emoluments” to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

He®R(AR%)

Band of remuneration (in RMB)

RMB1 - RMB1,000,000

AN\ A 2N
ERERME

ﬁ%\%%&%ﬁ%ﬂkﬁ%ﬁ

HE2022F12A31BILFE &% « &
ENARTBREEABNNESRET
R RERRE M EHRERNFE36(6) [ EE
B | o

Number of individuals

AB

ARE17TE ARE1,000,0007T 7

RMB1,000,001 - RMB2,000,000
RMB2,000,001 - RMB3,000,000
RMB3,000,001 - RMB4,000,000
RMB4,000,001 - RMB5,000,000

AR#¥1,000,001 E A R%2,000,0007T
AR®2,000,0017LE A R#3,000,0007T
AR¥3,000,001 T E A R%4,000,0007T
AR 4,000,001 TE A R#5,000,0007T

None of the Directors waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration and there were no emoluments paid by the Group
to any of the Directors as an inducement to join, or upon joining
the Group, or as compensation for loss of office.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
FINANCIAL REPORTING IN RESPECT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended
December 31, 2022 which give a true and fair view of the affairs
of the Company and the Group and of the Group’s results and
cash flows.

The management has provided to the Board such interpretation
and information as necessary to enable the Board to carry out
an informed assessment of the Company’s financial statements,
which are put to the Board for approval. The Company has
provided all members of the Board with monthly updates on the
Company’s performance, positions and prospects.

The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt
upon the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement made by the Auditor regarding its reporting
responsibilities on the Financial Statements of the Company is
set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 173 to
184 of this Annual Report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining solid and effective
risk management and internal control systems to safeguard
investments of Shareholders and the Company’s assets. The
risk management and internal control systems are designed
to identify, assess and report on potential risks and implement
control measures, to mitigate rather than to completely eliminate
the risks associated with achieving our business objectives.
These systems provide a reasonable but not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss.

The key features of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems include the following:

° An organized structure with clearly defined and distinct
scope of authority and responsibilities;

° A comprehensive financial accounting system to provide
for various performance measurement indicators and to
ensure compliance with relevant rules;

° Annual plans prepared by senior management of
the Company on financial reporting, operations and
compliance with reference to significant potential risks;

° Strict prohibition of unauthorised expenditures;

° Guidelines on the dissemination of confidential and
sensitive information;

° Specific approval from executive Director/responsible
senior executive of the Company prior to commitment in
all material matters;

° Appropriate policy to ensure the effective use of resources,
the qualifications and experiences possessed by our staff
members who are responsible for the Group’s accounting
and financial reporting functions, and sufficient training
provided to our staff members;

° Management’s review and evaluation on the internal
control procedures and monitoring of risk factors on a
regular basis; and

° Report to the Audit Committee about the findings on
identified risks and measures to address such risks.
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The main procedures used to identify, evaluate and manage
significant potential risks are as follows:

° Identify — We identify current and emerging risks in our
business operations and categorize those risks into a
reasonable profile based on timeframe, likelihood, intensity
and impact severity. We establish four risk categories,
including strategic risks, financial risks, operating risks
and legal risks. The Audit Committee has established
and oversaw the whistleblowing policy. In line with that
commitment, the Company expects and encourages the
employees, customers, suppliers and other stakeholders
who have concerns about any suspected misconduct or
malpractice within the Company to voice their concerns.
All whistleblowing reports are investigated to the fullest
extent possible and reported to the Audit Committee.

° Assess — We assess and prioritize risks so that the most
important risks can be identified and dealt with. Based
on both qualitative and quantitative analyses, we prioritize
risks in terms of likelihood and impact severity.

° Mitigate — Based on our assessment of (i) the probability
and impact severity of the risks; (ii) cost and benefit of the
mitigation plans, we choose the appropriate option for
dealing with risks, including risk elimination by suspending
the associated business activities, risk reduction by
adopting appropriate control measures, risk transfer by
outsourcing or purchasing insurance policies, and risk
acceptance by choosing to accept risks of low priority.

o Measure — We measure our risk management system
by determining if changes have been implemented and
if changes are effective. In the event of any weakness in
control, we follow up by adjusting our risk management
measures and report material issues to the Board.

The Audit Committee assists the Board to review and monitor
the scope, issues, results and action plans in relation to
or arising from the internal and external audits. The Audit
Committee also assists with the Board’s corporate governance
role in the Group, particularly in overseeing the risk management
and internal control systems, and managing the finance and
internal audit functions.
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During the Reporting Period, the Board, through the Audit
Committee, conducted a review of the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Company,
including the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experiences, training programs and budget of the Company
in relation to the accounting and financial reporting functions,
and will further review and assess such systems at least once
each year. The Audit Committee and the Board were not aware
of any areas of concern that would have a material impact
on the Group’s financial position or results of operations and
considered the risk management and internal control systems
to be generally effective and adequate to govern the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experiences, training
programs and budget of the accounting, internal audit and
financial reporting functions.

ANTI-CORRUPTION POLICIES

The Company has maintained anti-corruption policies, code
of ethics and business conduct among all employees. The
Audit Committee is the main responsible body to supervise
the anti-fraud and anti-corruption work conducted by our
internal audit department, including organizing the annual
fraud risk assessment of all departments and subsidiaries of
the Company, carrying out the consequences and prevention
of anti-fraud and corruption training sessions and activities,
handling anti-fraud and anti-corruption reports, organizing the
relevant case investigation, offering rectification suggestion and
reporting to our management and the Board on such matters.

We have set up telephone reporting hotline and email
address for our employees and business partners to report
violation of professional ethics by our employees, including
suspected fraud, corruption or bribery misconducts. Our
internal audit department conducts investigation for such
reports and allegations, keeps written records, and reports
the investigation results to our management and the Board.
Specifically, our internal audit department will establish special
investigation teams comprised of employees from our internal
audit department and other relevant departments to conduct
joint investigations. Our internal audit department may also
engage external experts to participate in the investigation as
necessary. The special investigation teams shall assess the
relevant internal controls and produce written reports to make
recommendations for improvement. In the meantime, employees
who are confirmed to commit fraud, corruption, bribery or other
misconducts shall receive internal economic and administrative
disciplinary punishments in accordance with the relevant
internal policies. If the misconducts violate relevant laws, such
employees may also subject to civil or criminal penalties in
accordance with relevant laws.
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AUDITOR’ REMUNERATION

Approximate remuneration paid or payable in respect of audit
and non-audit services provided to the Company by the Auditor
for the year ended 31 December, 2022 were set out as follows:

B35 5 51

Types of service
Audit service ZE R
Non-audit service of ESG Report

FERBURTS

Total et

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. Qin Xue (“Mr. Qin”) serves as the joint company secretary
of the Company, who is responsible for advising the Board on
corporate governance matters and ensuring that the Board
policies and procedures, as well as the applicable laws, rules
and regulations are followed. Mr. Qin has extensive experience
in accounting and finance matters, but presently does not
possess any of the qualification required under Rules 3.28 and
8.17 of the Listing Rules, the Company has applied to the Stock
Exchange and was exempted by the Stock Exchange from strict
compliance with the Listing Rules, such that Mr. Qin may be
appointed as a joint company secretary of the Company.

In addition, to maintain good corporate governance and in
compliance with the Listing Rules and applicable Hong Kong
laws, we have appointed Ms. Ng Ka Man (23 %) (“Ms. Ng”) of
TMF Hong Kong Limited (company secretary service supplier)
as another joint company secretary of the Company, to assist
Mr. Qin in discharging the duties and responsibilities of a
company secretary of the Company. Ms. Ng is an associate
member of The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute and
The Chartered Governance Institute in the United Kingdom, and
therefore meets the qualification requirements under Note 1 to
Rule 3.28 of the Listing Rules and is in compliance with Rule
8.17 of the Listing Rules. The main contact person of Ms. Ng in
the Company is Mr. Qin.

The qualifications and biographies of Mr. Qin and Ms. Ng
are set out in the “Biographies of Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Management” section of this Annual Report. In addition,
for details regarding the waiver in respect of joint company
secretaries, please refer to the section headed “Waivers from
Strict Compliance with the Listing Rules” in the Prospectus.
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2,400,000
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Mr. Qin and Ms. Ng have attended no less than 15 hours
relevant professional trainings to follow the requirements under
Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONSHIP

The Company considers that effective communication with
the Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations
and understanding the Group’s business, performance
and strategies. The Company also deeply convinced of the
importance of timely and non-selective disclosure of information,
which enables shareholders and investors to make the informed
investment decisions.

The annual general meeting of the Company provides an
opportunity for the Shareholders to communicate directly with
the Directors. The chairperson and the chairmen of the Board
Committees of the Company will attend the AGM to answer
Shareholders’ questions. The Auditor will also attend the
AGM to answer questions about the conduct of the audit, the
preparation and content of the Auditor’s report, the accounting
policies and Auditor’s independence.

To promote effective communication, the Company adopts a
Shareholders’ communication policy which aims at establishing
a two-way relationship and communication between the
Company and the Shareholders and maintains a website
(https://www.scientechmed.com/), where latest information
on the Company’s business operations and developments,
financial information, corporate governance practices and other
information are available for public access.
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Summary of Shareholder Communication Policy

General Policy

1.1

1.2

1.3

The Board shall maintain an on-going dialogue with
Shareholders and investors, and will regularly review this
Policy to ensure its effectiveness.

Information shall be communicated to Shareholders
and investors mainly through the Company’s financial
reports (quarterly, interim and annual reports), annual
general meetings and other general meetings that may
be convened, all the disclosures submitted to the Stock
Exchange and its corporate communications and other
corporate publications on the website of the Company.

Effective and timely dissemination of information to
Shareholders and investors shall be ensured at all times.
Any question regarding this Policy shall be directed to the
joint company secretaries.

Communication Strategies

Shareholders’ enquiries

2.1

2.2

2.3

Shareholders should direct their questions about their
shareholdings to the Company’s Registrar.

Shareholders and investors may at any time make a
request for the Company’s information to the extent such
information is publicly available.

Shareholders and investors shall be provided with
designated contacts and email addresses and enquiry
channels of the Company in order to enable them to make
any query in respect of the Company.
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i

RERBWE

Corporate Communication

3.1

3.2

Corporate communication will be provided to Shareholders
in plain language and in both English and Chinese
versions to facilitate Shareholders’ understanding.
Shareholders have the right to choose the language (either
English or Chinese) or means of receipt of the corporate
communications (in hard copy or through electronic
means).

Shareholders are encouraged to provide, amongst other
things, in particular, their email addresses to the Company
in order to facilitate timely and effective communications.

Corporate Website

3.3

3.4

3.5

A dedicated “Investor Relations” section is available on
the Company’s website (http://www.scientechmed.com).
Information on the website is updated on a regular basis.

Information released by the Company to the Stock
Exchange is also posted on the Company’s website
immediately thereafter. Such Information includes
prospectus document, results reports, announcements,
circulars and explanatory documents of corporate
governance, etc.

All presentation materials provided in conjunction with
the Company’s annual general meeting and results
announcement each year will be made available on the
Company’s website as soon as practicable after their
release.

Shareholders’ Meetings

4.1

4.2

4.3

Shareholders are encouraged to participate in general
meetings or to appoint proxies to attend and vote at
meetings for and on their behalf if they are unable to
attend the meetings.

Appropriate arrangements for the annual general meetings
shall be in place to encourage Shareholders’ participation.

The process of the Company’s general meeting will
be monitored and reviewed on a regular basis, and,
if necessary, changes will be made to ensure that
Shareholders’ needs are best served.
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Board members, in particular, either the chairmen or their
delegates of the committees under the Board, appropriate
management executives and external auditor will attend
annual general meetings to answer Shareholders’
questions.

Shareholders are encouraged to attend shareholders’
activities organised by the Company, where information
about the Company, including its latest strategic plan,
products and services, etc., will be communicated.

Investment Market Communications

5.1

5.2

Investor/analysts briefings and one-on-one meetings,
roadshows (both domestic and international), media
interviews, marketing activities for investors and holding/
attending specialist industry forums, etc., will be available
on a regular basis in order to facilitate communication
between the Company, Shareholders and the investment
community.

The Company’s Directors and employees who have
contacts or dialogues with investors, analysts, media or
other interested outside parties are required to comply
with the disclosure obligations and requirements under the
“Disclosure Policy of Inside Information” of the Company.

Shareholder Privacy

6.1

The Company recognises the importance of Shareholders’
privacy and will not disclose Shareholders’ information
without their consent, unless required by law to do so.
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PUTTING FORWARD ENQUIRIES TO THE
BOARD

Shareholders and other investors who intend to put forward
their enquiries about the Company to the Board could send
their enquiries by post, phone or email to the headquarters of
the Company at 5/F, Building 41, No. 258, Xinzhuan Road,
Songjiang District, Shanghai. The contact number is (86)
21-37015633 and the email address is IR@scientechmed.com.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution shall be proposed for each separate issue (including
the election of certain Directors) at the shareholder’s general
meetings.

All resolutions put forward at the shareholder’'s general
meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules
and the poll results will be posted timely on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange after each shareholder’s
general meeting been held.

CONVENING AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL
MEETING AND PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS

Pursuant to Article 65 of the Articles of Association,
Shareholders who request an extraordinary general meeting or
a general meeting of a class of Shareholders shall comply with
the following procedures:

(i) two or more Shareholders individually or jointly holding
10% or more of Shares with voting rights at the meeting
to be convened may sign one or several written requests
in identical form and content to propose to the Board
to convene an extraordinary general meeting or a class
meeting, and specify the agenda of the meeting. The
Board shall provide written feedbacks agreeing with or
disagreeing with the convening of the relevant meeting
within 10 days after the receipt of the abovementioned
written request.
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(i) if the Board is unable to or fails to fulfill the obligation
of convening the shareholders’ general meetings, the
Board of Supervisors shall convene and preside over such
meetings in a timely manner. If the Board of Supervisors
does not convene or preside over such meetings, the
Shareholder(s) individually or jointly holding 10% or more
of the Company’s Shares for 90 or more consecutive days
may convene and preside over such meetings on their
own initiative.

Procedures for Shareholders to Make Proposal at the
General Meeting

Pursuant to Article 67 of the Articles of Association, where
the Company is to convene a general meeting, the Board,
the Board of Supervisors and Shareholders severally or jointly
holding 3% or more of the Shares of the Company shall be
entitled to put forward proposals to the Company. The contents
of the proposals shall fall within the functions and powers of the
general meeting, have clear agenda and specific matters to be
resolved, and shall comply with relevant requirements of laws,
regulations and the Articles of Association.

Shareholder(s) severally or jointly holding more than 3% of
the Shares of the Company may raise interim proposals and
submit them in writing to the convener 10 days before a general
meeting. The convener shall, within 2 days after the receipt
of such proposals, issue a supplemental notice of the general
meeting, announce the contents of the interim proposals,
and submit the interim proposals to the general meeting for
consideration.

Right to Propose a Person for Election as a Director

Pursuant to Article 101 of the Articles of Association,
candidates for directors shall normally be submitted by the
Board of the Company to the shareholders’ general meeting of
the Company by way of proposal. The Shareholders and the
Board of Supervisors of the Company may nominate candidates
for election as directors in accordance with the provisions of the
Articles of Association.
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A written notice of the intention to nominate a candidate for
director and a notice in writing by that candidate indicating
his/her acceptance of such nomination shall be given to the
Company not earlier than the day on which the notice of the
shareholders’ general meeting is given and not later than seven
days before the date of such shareholders’ general meeting.
The period for nomination and acceptance of nominations shall
not be less than seven days.

CHANGES IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The existing Articles of Association was effective from the
Listing Date. From the Listing Date to December 31, 2022,
the Company has not made any amendments to its Articles of
Association.
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To the Shareholders of LEPU ScienTech Medical
Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.

(incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited
liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of LEPU ScienTech
Medical Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) and
its subsidiary (the “Group”), which are set out on pages 185 to
318, comprise:

° the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2022;

° the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the
year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements,
which include significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2022, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (“ISAs”). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section
of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(including International Independence Standards) issued by the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (‘IESBA
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the IESBA Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as
follows:

° Capitalisation of development costs

° Impairment assessment of goodwill and intangible assets
not subject to amortisation
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)
TR SR (W)

Key Audit Matter
RBFTER

Capitalisation of development costs

MBERFREL

Refer to Notes 2.9, 4(ii) and 18 to the consolidated
financial statements.
2GRV HmRMT2.9 - 4 K218 -

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
incurred expenditures on research and development
(“R&D”) activities of approximately RMB122,980,000,
out of which, approximately RMB53,873,000 were
recognised as R&D expenses in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income for the year ended 31 December 2022 and
approximately RMB69,107,000 were capitalised as
intangible assets in the consolidated balance sheet
during the year.
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Development costs are capitalised as intangible
assets only if the capitalisation criteria set out in
Note 2.9 to the consolidated financial statements
can be met. The determination of the capitalisation
amounts primarily involved management’s judgement
in assessing the technical and commercial
feasibilities (covering the estimated future economic
benefits of the products under development) of
each R&D projects and the availability of financial
and technological resources to complete the R&D
projects and commence production.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
B E MM EERREET SR

We performed the following procedures to address
this key audit matter:
AP ETEER - RPIDETUTIER ¢

o Understood and evaluated the key

management controls and process over
capitalisation of development costs, and
assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the level of
inherent risk factors such as complexity,
subjectivity, changes and susceptibility to
management bias.
TR AT ARE AR AR B IR E 1
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° Obtained an understanding of the Group’s
capitalisation criteria of development costs,
and assessed whether they are in line with
the applicable financial reporting framework.
THRESEMBERANERRE - WaTHE

EETNEERMBREER -

° For R&D projects which have reached the
development stage, we evaluated the stage
of development, management’s intention to
complete these projects and management’s
judgment on the technical feasibility of these
R&D projects by discussion with management
and corroborated with the relevant supporting
evidence (including research proposals,
approvals for clinical trials, clinical trial
application materials, clinical trial reports and
latest project timetable).
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)
TR EIR (1)

Key Audit Matter
RBFtER

We identified this as a key audit matter because
management applied significant judgments in
assessing whether the capitalisation criteria can be
met.
HREREENHREGAERENMCBREREREXN
HE - BMBEZEERERSBRENEE -

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
B E M EERREETSEH

° Assessed management’s estimation on the
future economic benefits of the products
under development by evaluating the
reasonableness of the key assumptions
as adopted by management (including the
estimated market size, revenue growth rate
and gross profit margin of the products) in
the estimation by comparing with the industry
information and market data as we obtained
from our independent research.
BERFMEBELEATESNITRELSNT
SEBETHR - A EREEMGERER
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° Evaluated the management’s judgements on
the availability of financial and technological
resources to complete the R&D projects and
commence the production by considering the
liquidity and financial position of the Group
and interviewing the key R&D project team
members to understand the adequacy of
competent manpower in the project teams.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

FMEFER(])
Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
REwst=En EMmE MM EEREF TR

° Examined the underlying supporting
documents of R&D expenditures (including
contracts, payment vouchers and supplier
invoices) on a sample basis.
MEEEHERINBERAEREEXY (BHEE
Rl MR ERMHERER) -

For the samples selected which are relating
to projects during the development stage,
we further checked whether the costs were
incurred directly attributable to development
activities of the R&D projects by examining
the underlying supporting documents.
HRPTIE ) BRI B RIA B ARARERAE - #E—
TRETAEN N EERTEERBNFEIE
B VR BB R S IE M -

Based on the above procedures performed,
we consider that the judgments applied by
management in determining the capitalisation of
development costs were supported by the evidence
obtained.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)
TR EIR (1)

Key Audit Matter
REBFHEER

Impairment assessment of goodwill and
intangible assets not subject to amortisation

HEREAMBOHELRESREFG

Refer to Notes 2.11, 4(i), 17 and 18 to the
consolidated financial statements.
BRESATBHREME2.11 ~ 4() - 17K 18 °

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has
goodwill and intangible assets not subject to
amortisation of approximately RMB48,282,000 and
RMB144,398,000, respectively and no provision for
impairment of these assets have been recognised by
the Group.

M2022F12A31H  EXEEEREABHED
EREES RO ABARKA48,282,000t K AR
144,398,0007T « B ES B iz 5 & ERREMR
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Management of the Company (“management”)
conducts impairment reviews on goodwill and
intangible assets not subject to amortisation
annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicated a potential impairment.
The impairment tests are based on the recoverable
amounts of the relevant cash generating units
(“CGUs”) to which the goodwill and the intangible
assets not subject to amortisation are allocated.
ERFIERE ((EBRE|) SFXERBRARRAELE
ERENEHIELEINE REENEEERER
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EMmE MM EEREF TR

We performed the following procedures to address
this key audit matter:

IARERENFH  HADETATRERF

° Obtained an understanding of the management’s
internal control and assessment process
of impairment assessment of goodwill and
intangible assets not subject to amortisation,
and assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of
estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent
risk factors such as subjectivity, changes and
susceptibility to management bias.
THREEEUHEREABHNETL EENR
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° Evaluated the outcome of the management’s
prior year impairment assessment of
goodwill and intangible assets not subject to
amortisation to assess the effectiveness of
management’s estimation process.
EEREEATFEHRENEREHENEY
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)
TR SR (W)

Key Audit Matter
REFHER

Management has assessed and determined the
recoverable amounts of the relevant CGUs with the
assistance of an independent valuer. The recoverable
amounts of the relevant CGUs were determined by
the higher of their value-in-use and fair value less
cost of disposal. The determination of recoverable
amounts involves the estimation or forecast of the
future cash flows of the relevant CGUs based on
certain key assumptions such as the estimated
growth rate of revenue, gross profit margin, terminal
growth rate and discount rate.
EREECEBLAEMNGRE T AT THER
TEABMNANE SR - HEREEEBLHN K
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We identified this as a key audit matter because the
estimation of recoverable amounts are subject to
high degree of estimation uncertainty and significant
management’s judgement and estimates were
involved in the impairment assessment.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EMmEHMAEEREEN TR

° Evaluated the appropriateness of management’s
identification of CGUs to which the goodwill and
intangible assets not subject to amortisation
were allocated.
FIAEEERE DR ENBEARIENETLE
ENRTEFEBEMREE ML -

° Evaluated the independence, competence,
capabilities, and objectivity of the independent
valuer engaged by management based on
our independent background search on the
credentials of the valuer.
BRERMEGEEMEENE LS RER @ T
TERERFNE L (EMNBEE &0 -
EHMFEN o

° Assessed the appropriateness of the

methodology applied by management
in determining the recoverable amounts
of the relevant CGUs and evaluated the
appropriateness of the discount rate as
adopted by benchmarking with the market
data of comparable companies in the industry
with the involvement of our internal valuation
experts.
ERMABEEERNORET @ A HEBEER
T TE AR B ER < 2= A B o2 ) A) Y [0 < RE R R R &Y
FOAREE T - BB AT LR R A 5 2
BETELELE @ STEMRAOMRENEE
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179



180

Lepu ScienTech Medical Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
SZELRBEMNE (B8) RHERAA

Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZBENHRE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)
TR EIR (1)

Key Audit Matter
REFAER

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EMMmEHMAEEREEN TR

° Evaluated the reasonableness of the key

assumptions used in the future cash flow
forecast, including the estimated growth
rate of revenue, gross profit margin, terminal
growth rate, by comparing them with the
Group’s historical financial performance and
growth trends, approved financial budgets
and also the industry information and market
data as we obtained from our independent
research.
FHEARKE S RIBBI R E AR RBERRENEIE
% BREBANMGETIERE - ENXRKKIHKIE
R WHEESEBENESEMBRRMILRE
85 MEMMBTEE A RBMEBE LR E
SOITEER RTISBBETLR -

° Evaluated the sensitivity analysis performed by
management on the above key assumptions to
further understand the extent to which adverse
changes, either individually or in aggregate,
would result in the goodwill and intangible assets
not subject to amortisation being impaired.
IHEREYN P ARRRETHERRES
o E—F TR S (EREBNER)
REHEERERBHNBLEERERER
BHE -

° Assessed the adequacy of the disclosures
related to impairment assessment of
goodwill and intangible assets not subject to
amortisation in the context of the applicable
financial reporting framework.
BREEANMBHREESR  FHEFEREA
BHNEEEERENGEANKERTRD °

Based on the above procedures performed, we
consider that the management’s judgement and
estimates adopted in the impairment assessment
of goodwill and intangible assets not subject to
amortisation were supported by the evidence
obtained.

ERAEPMAITORER  BMRAEEREEREHE
NEABHO BT EERER (R PR bt
B 1S 23R BB IBRA SR o
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Independent Auditor’s Report

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the LEPU ScienTech Medical Technology
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd. 2022 Annual Report (the “annual report”)
other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon. We have obtained some of the other
information including the directors’ report, chairman’s statement
and management discussion and analysis prior to the date of
this auditor’s report. The remaining other information, including
the corporate governance report, environment, social and
governance report, and the other sections to be included in the
annual report, is expected to be made available to us after that
date.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not and will not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other
information that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s
report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

When we read the remaining other information to be included
in the annual report, if we conclude that there is a material
misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the
matter to the Audit Committee of the Company and take
appropriate action considering our legal rights and obligations.

18 3 B B AT R S
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZBENHRE

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with IFRSs and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee of the Company is responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

EEREIZAERGSMEE
RAREDRE
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’'s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’'s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

18 3 B B AT R S
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BYZBENHRE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee of the Company
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee of the Company with
a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee of
the Company, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Wong Cheuk Kay.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 31 March 2023
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

ReEBERkEMEERER

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Distribution expenses

General and administrative expenses
Research and development expenses
Net (provision)/reversal of impairment

losses on financial assets
Other income and (losses)/gains — net

Operating (loss)/profit

Finance income
Finance costs

Finance costs — net

(Loss)/profit before income tax

Income tax expense

(Loss)/profit for the year

Other comprehensive income for the

year, net of tax

Total comprehensive (loss)/income
for the year

(Loss)/profit and total
comprehensive (loss)/income
attributable to:

— Owners of the Company

(Losses)/earnings per share
attributable to the owners of
the Company (expressed in
RMB per share)

Basic and diluted (losses)/earnings
per share

The above consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income should be read in conjunction with the

accompanying notes.

Note
B =

~ O

KA
HEMAK
EF

EIHAY 7
— & R ATH R

HEBI >
SRAEREBR (BE) /A

ek
HAgA K (B518) / tazs
— FH 10

~ ~

&8 (BR)#E

IR N
AR

BATER AN — 58 11

PR (ER),/#1E
IS B X 12

FR(BIR)HE
FRARMRENE  REPH

FRRE(BR)haeH

BUT&HEE (BiR)  FIBAR
2E(BR)hE8H

—AREERA

EREMAABESR (BR)
BH (LBRARBTIIR)

BREAREE (B1R),/ &7
13

Year ended 31 December

B#EF12A31ALEE
2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARETT
247,670 222,583
(27,984) (25,038)
219,686 197,545
(38,663) (43,072)
(53,685) (59,874)
(53,873) (41,387)
(5,727) 533
(69,464) 22,642
(1,726) 76,387
5,665 1,185
(18,971) (11,545)
(13,306) (10,360)
(15,032) 66,027
(4,781) (7,330)
(19,813) 58,697
(19,813) 58,697
(19,813) 58,697
(0.06) 0.19

bRt es M H b 2 Yan KBRS Y
BB RE—DFBIFE -
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Lepu ScienTech Medical Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.

LELRBERE (L8) ROBRAE

Consolidated Balance Sheet

REEERER

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets
Investment properties
Goodwill

Intangible assets

Deferred income tax assets
Prepayments

Long-term bank deposit

Total non-current assets

Current assets

Inventories

Trade receivables

Prepayments and other receivables

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Restricted cash

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

Total assets

EQUITY

Equity attributable to owners of
the Company

Share capital

Treasury stock

Other reserves

Retained earnings

Total equity

gE

ERBEE

M - HE KRR
EREEE
KEMZFE

S

EIEE
RIEFFSTHE E
T FRIE
RERSRITER

FRBEERE
REEE

FE
B 5 RWHR

FE SRR B H Ao e W R IR
RanBEFELHEE
AERERNEREE

XRE®
ReMReFEY

RBEERE

BERE

s

FAFHAAEGERS

B
B
b 18
BERN

HaRs

Note
=

14
15
16
17
18
20
21
26

22
23
21

27
28
28

As at 31 December

®12A31H

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AER®BTT ARETTT
92,978 76,261
4,563 6,763
38,483 39,553
48,282 48,282
204,608 136,557
15,581 8,571
3,238 11,187
72,396 =
480,129 327,174
57,398 33,402
30,615 23,869
38,065 21,765
258,109 =
790 =
944,515 713,480
1,329,492 792,516
1,809,621 1,119,690
346,750 324,295
- (671,507)
1,278,528 593,341
119,249 139,062
1,744,527 385,191




LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Lease liabilities
Deferred income

Total non-current liabilities

Current liabilities
Redemption liabilities

Trade and other payables
Contract liabilities

Current income tax liabilities
Lease liabilities

Total current liabilities

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in

a]iR
ERBAE
HEEE
RIEWA

FRBEERRE

nBRR
BOAE

B 5 MR FIR

BMAIE
BIEPRS A A

HaRkAREHT

conjunction with the accompanying notes.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 185 to 318
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors of the Company on 31 March 2023 and were signed

on its behalf by:
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

Note
=4

15
30

31
32
33

15

J

2 fr
e

REEERER

As at 31 December

®12A31H
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AER®BTT ARET T
1,544 4,044
- 482
1,544 4,526
- 679,986
34,809 26,300
13,119 14,783
13,831 6,761
1,791 2,143
63,550 729,973
65,094 734,499
1,809,621 1,119,690

LAR T
®

BERERE LN RN E— 0

F185E 318 A MR A M5 KX B 12023
FIA3IHEARR A ES U IR
i WHENUATRERZE

Executive Director: Ms. Chen Juan

HITEE - RIRKE

Executive Director: Ms. Zhang Yuxin
HiTEF  RERKE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

mEERBEBR

Balance at 1 January 2021

Profit for the year
Total comprehensive income

Transactions with owners in their
capacity as owners:

- Issuance of shares to Lepu
Medical Technology (Beijing)
Co., Ltd. (‘Lepu Medical’)

- Issuance of shares to Beijing
Target Medical Technologies
Co., Ltd. (‘Target Medical’)

- Issuance of shares to Ningbo
Jiacheng Enterprise
Management Partnership
(Limited Partnership) (‘Ningbo
Jiacheng") and Ningbo Jiadu
Enterprise Management
Partnership (Limited
Partnership) (“Ningbo Jiadu’)

- Issuance of shares to Pre-IPO
Investors

- Deemed distributions

- Deemed contributions

- Recognition of redemption
liabilities

- Share-based payments -
deemed contribution from
Lepu Medical

- Dividends to shareholder

Total transactions with owners in
their capacity as owners

Balance at 31 December 2021

12021515 1 BoEeR
FERFIHE

EEREER

BEEA(ERBEAN)ZXS

—MEE (I R) BEEM
R BRAR ([£LE
&) Bt

—- A RAAGREER
AR ([ ) BT
)

- AEREELEERAY
% (BRE%) (2R
R2)) REREELE
ERAELE (BRA
S S
kin

- AERAFAEENREE
#ki

- REDK
- RfEHE
- ERBOAR
- URBAERONR -8
[FREBRALE
- BRRABE
NG L NFAL )
4]

120215128 31 B OiEER

Share Treasury Other Retained Total

capital stock reserves earnings equity

A BRE  HbRE  BERN  BRER

Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
iz ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR
- - (146,766) 400,365 253,599

- - - 58,697 58,697

- - - 58,697 58,697

27(a) 277,200 - (277,200) - -
27(a) 2,800 - 4,409 - 7,209
27(b) 14,737 - 36,547 - 51,284
27(c) 29,558 - 580,182 - 609,740
28(a) - - (72,167 - (72,167
28(a) - - 446,079 - 446,079
31 - (671,507) - - (671,507)
29 - - 22,257 - 22,257
38 - - - (320,000) (320,000)
324,295 (671,507) 740,107 (320,000) 72,895

324,295 (671,507) 593,341 139,062 385,191
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Note
sk
Balance at 1 January 2022 R20225%1 B 1 ARSREE8
Loss for the year FRER
Total comprehensive losses 2EFREE
Transactions with owners in their — ZHEA ((EBHERA)2K5 -
capacity as owners:
- Issuance of ordinary shares upon ~ — BEXAREERETLE
initial public offering (‘IPQ") & 27(d)
- Share issuance costs — RHBITRA 27(d)
- Derecognition of redemption - RIFERBRAE
liabilities 31
- Share-based payments - - UEHAERNAR - &
deemed contribution from L ERENLE
Lepu Medica 29

Total transactions with owners in EEEA (EEREA)ZXH

their capacity as owners 3]

Balance at 31 December 2022 12022128 31 B oi&ER

REERBER

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should

be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Share Treasury Other Retained Total
capital stock reserves earnings equity
2.8 E#R Rtk lE BEEA Ea8E
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR%WTR AERTT ARRTRT AERWTR
324,295 (671,507) 593,341 139,062 385,191
- - - (19,813) (19,813)

- - - (19,813) (19,813)

22,455 - 579,174 - 601,629

- - (21,878) - (21,878)

- 671,507 103,539 - 775,046

- - 24,352 - 24,352

22,455 671,507 685,187 - 1,379,149
346,750 - 1,278,528 119,249 1,744,527
bl AR A R o B B 3K B ERBE R B BT R —OF
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Lepu ScienTech Medical Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
SELNRBEBERME (E8) ROBRLAT
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
> N =]
REBRERER
Note
(=
Cash flows from operating BETHRERE
activities
Cash generated from operations KESIRE 34(a)
Interest received BUF B
Income tax paid B ATEH
Net cash from operating RBETHRSRSBHE
activities
Cash flows from investing BEETHRETE
activities

Purchases of property, plant and BEWE  BEKIE&E
equipment

Purchases of intangible assets BEELEE

Payments of internal development XM &ER{L BEF EER
costs capitalised as intangible BB B R AN
assets

Investments in financial assets at KENARBEGFZEAEH
fair value through profit or loss BEET AR HERD

Proceeds from disposal of wealth & RITENEMRNFTE
management products from bank FIE (BREKREWRA)
(including investment income)

Placement of a long-term bank TEARRBRITFER
deposit

Net cash used in investing BREETHFMAREEHE
activities

Year ended 31 December
BE12A31HLLEE

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT ARBTIT
66,983 104,609
3,269 1,185
(4,721) (516)
65,531 105,278
(13,281) (22,452)
(6,494) =
(63,585) (69,388)
(5,843,037) (3,275,000)
5,590,395 3,281,669
(70,000) =
(406,002) (85,171)




Cash flows from financing
activities

Proceeds from issuance of shares
upon IPO

Share issuance costs (representing
capitalised listing expenses)

Payments for lease liabilities

Deemed contributions

Deemed distributions

Dividends paid to shareholder

Settlements to related parties

Capital contribution from Target
Medical

Capital contribution from Ningbo
Jiacheng and Ningbo Jiadu

Capital contribution from the Pre-
IPO Investors

Net cash from financing
activities

Net increase in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of the year

Exchange (losses)/gains on cash
and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at
end of the year

Annual Report 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read
in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Note
=4

27(d)
27(d)

28(a)
28(a)

27(a)

27(b)

27(c)

26

FatsR

RERERER

Year ended 31 December
BE12A31HLLEE

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT ARBTIT
601,629 =
(20,195) (1,683)
(3,630) (2,378)

- 446,079

- (72,167)

- (320,000)

- (45,858)

- 7,209

- 51,284

- 609,740

577,804 672,226
237,333 692,333
713,480 18,792
(6,298) 2,355
944,515 713,480
IR = 5K e BB M /O B aE — OF
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Lepu ScienTech Medical Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
ODREBERE (L) RHBERAT

£

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRHE

1

GENERAL INFORMATION AND
REORGANISATION

1.1

General information

LEPU ScienTech Medical Technology (Shanghai) Co.,
Ltd. (the “Company”, %% 0 FREBEEH (L&) KK
BBRAF]) was incorporated as a joint stock limited
liability company in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC” or “China”) on 29 January 2021. The
address of its registered office is Room 201, Building
41, No. 258, Xinzhuan Road, Songjiang District,
Shanghai, the PRC.

The Company has completed its initial public offering
(“IPO”) and listing on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“HKEx”) on 8
November 2022.

The Company is an investment holding company.
The Company and its subsidiary (together referred
as to the “Group”) are principally engaged in
manufacturing and sales of interventional treatment
series occluders for defective congenital heart
disease (ERIBIMELRMEDBBEN AJAE KT 2E)
and the research and development of biological valve
(KEYDIFE) for heart disease.

Upon incorporation of the Company in January
2021, the Company had a registered capital of
RMB280,000,000 and was owned by Lepu Medical
Technology (Beijing) Co., Ltd. (Z£%(1b7R)EE2EM
AR AT]) (‘Lepu Medical”) and Beijing Target
Medical Technologies Co., Ltd. (dt KA BRI F=HE
R A |]) (“Target Medical”), as to 99.05% and 0.95%,
respectively.

Lepu Medical was incorporated in the PRC on 11
June 1999 whose shares are listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange (stock code: 300003) and Target
Medical was incorporated in the PRC on 18
November 1999 which is a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Lepu Medical.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 GENERAL INFORMATION AND
REORGANISATION (Continued)

1.1

General information (Continued)

On 22 February 2021, Ningbo Jiadu Enterprise
Management Partnership (Limited Partnership)
(“Ningbo Jiadu”) and Ningbo Jiacheng Enterprise
Management Partnership (Limited Partnership)
(“Ningbo Jiacheng”) (collectively referred to as the
“Vehicles”) were incorporated in the PRC under the
Company Law of the PRC as vehicles companies
to hold the ordinary shares of the Company for the
employees under the Employee Share Ownership
Plan of 2021 (the “ESOP”). Ningbo Jiadu was
designated as ESOP platform of the Group’s
employees, and Ningbo Jiacheng was designated
as ESOP platform of the Lepu Medical’s employees.
As the Group does not have power to govern the
relevant activities of the Vehicles nor having the
repurchase or settlement obligations to acquire any
shares granted under the ESOP, the directors of
the Company consider that it is appropriate not to
consolidate the Vehicles.

On 28 May 2021, the Company and Vivo Capital
Fund IX, L.P (“Vivo Capital Fund IX”), SCC Growth
VI Holdco AF, Ltd. (“SCC Growth”), Shanghai
Biomedical Industry Equity Investment Fund
Partnership (Limited Partnership) (“Shanghai
Biomedical”, EBEYBHEEXREREES S
BHE(ERAE)), Huaihua Haozhi Enterprise
Management Partnership (Limited Partnership)
(“Huaihua Haozhi”, E{tEELEEEBEAELE(E
[R& %)) and CDH Supermatrix D Limited (“CDH
Supermatrix”) (collectively as the “Pre-IPO Investors”)
entered into a capital increase agreement (the “Pre-
IPO Shareholders Agreement”), pursuant to which
each of the Pre-IPO Investors agreed to invest in the
Company by subscription of the increased registered
capital of the Company. The cash as injected by
the Pre-IPO Investors for the subscription of the
aforesaid shares of the Company amounted to
approximately RMB609,740,000 were fully paid in
June 2021.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRHE

1

GENERAL INFORMATION AND
REORGANISATION (Continued)

1.1

1.2

General information (Continued)

As of the date of these consolidated financial
statements, Lepu Medical, together with its wholly-
owned subsidiary, Target Medical, held 80.75%
equity interest in the Company (with Lepu Medical
and Target Medical directly hold 79.94% and 0.81%
equity interests in the Company respectively). Dr.
Pu Zhongjie is the actual controller of Lepu Medical.
Lepu Medical, Dr. Pu Zhongjie and Target Medical
are considered as a group of controlling shareholders
of the Company.

Reorganisation

Prior to the incorporation of the Company and the
completion of the reorganisation as described below,
the Listing Business (i.e the principal business of
the Group as set out in Note 1.1) was carried out by
Shanghai Shape Memory Alloy Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai
Shape Memory Alloy”), a then wholly-owned
subsidiary of Lepu Medical, and the biological valve
division within Lepu Medical.

Shanghai Shape Memory Alloy was established in
the PRC on 25 February 1994 by Shanghai Shiliupu
Material (Group) Company (E&+/ W& (EH)
A |], “Shiliupu”), an independent third party. Lepu
Medical acquired Shanghai Shape Memory Alloy
in October 2008 to be its wholly-owned subsidiary
and subsequently made additional contribution to
Shanghai Shape Memory Alloy.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 GENERAL INFORMATION AND
REORGANISATION (Continued)

1.2 Reorganisation (Continued)

For the purpose of introduction of domestic and
overseas investors and preparation for the listing
of the shares of the Company on the HKEX, the
Group underwent a group reorganisation (the
“Reorganisation”) to establish the Company as
the holding company of the Listing Business. The
Reorganisation mainly involved the following:

() On 24 December 2020, Shanghai Shape
Memory Alloy disposed of its entire equity
interest in Ningbo Bingkun Medical Devices
Co., Ltd. (“Ningbo Bingkun”) to Lepu Medical.
Ningbo Bingkun (through its subsidiaries)
is principally engaged in the research,
development, production and sales of surgical
matching device and minimally invasive
surgical-related products for use in open
surgeries and laparoscopic surgeries which are
unrelated to the Listing Business.

(i)  On 5 January 2021, Shanghai Shape Memory
Alloy acquired the heart valve businesses
relating to research and development of
biological valve from Lepu Medical. In
connection with the above transaction, core
research and development scientists and
contracts related to biological valve are also
transferred to Shanghai Shape Memory Alloy.
The transaction was closed on 14 April 2021.

Up to the date of these consolidated financial
statements, the key research and development
work of certain heart valve products were
registered under the name of, and conducted
by, Lepu Medical. The Group entered into a
framework agreement with Lepu Medical and
entrusted Lepu Medical to develop certain heart
valve products under the Group's instruction
due to regulatory restrictions and commercial
reasons, notwithstanding the fact that Shanghai
Shape Memory Alloy became the legal owner
of all intellectual properties of the related heart
valve businesses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRHE

1

GENERAL INFORMATION AND
REORGANISATION (Continued)

1.2 Reorganisation (Continued)

(ii)

(iv)

On 29 January 2021, the Company was
incorporated as a joint stock limited liability
company by Lepu Medical and Target Medical
in the PRC, with a registered capital of RMB280
million.

On 22 February 2021, Ningbo Jiadu and
Ningbo Jiacheng which were established as the
shareholding platforms for certain employees
of the Group, Lepu Medical and its subsidiaries
(excluding the Group). Ningbo Jiadu and
Ningbo Jiacheng contributed RMB31,796,000
and RMB19,488,000 to subscribe 9,137,000
and 5,600,000 shares in the Company,
respectively in June 2021.

On 5 March 2021, Lepu Medical injected its
entire 100% equity interest in Shanghai Shape
Memory Alloy to the Company in exchange for
277,200,000 shares of the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 GENERAL INFORMATION AND 1
REORGANISATION (Continued)

1.2 Reorganisation (Continued)

As of 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Company
has direct interests in the following subsidiary:

Country of Paid-up Attributable equity
Company name incorporation capital interest of the Group
INCEA BERSIE BdEF FRABGERFER
RMB’000 As of 31 December
AR®TT #E12A31H

Directly owned: 2022 2021

HEHS 20226 20215

Shanghai Shape The PRC 100,000 100% 100%
Memory Alloy H

LEREESEMH

(1)  The financial statements for the years ended 31
December 2022 and 2021 have not yet been audited.

(2)  The English name of the subsidiary referred herein
represent the Directors’ best effort at translating the
Chinese name of the subsidiary as no English name
has been registered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRHE

1

GENERAL INFORMATION AND
REORGANISATION (Continued)

1.2 Reorganisation (Continued)

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2021 have been prepared by
including the historical financial information of the
company/division engaged in the Listing Business
and excluding the historical financial information
of Ningbo Bingkun, which are under the common
control of Lepu Medical immediately before and after
the Reorganisation and now comprising the Group as
if the current group structure had been in existence
throughout the periods presented, or since the date
when the consolidating company/division first came
under the control of Lepu Medical, whichever is a
shorter period.

The net assets of the consolidating company/division
were consolidated using the existing book values
from Lepu Medical’s perspective. No amount is
recognised in consideration for goodwill or excess
of acquirer’s interest in the acquiree’s fair value of
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
over cost at the time of business combination under
common control, to the extent of the continuation of
the controlling party’s interest.

As required by the relevant PRC rules and
regulations with respect to the Reorganisation and
the incorporation of the Company, the equity interest
of Shanghai Shape Memory Alloy contributed from
Lepu Medical are stated at revaluation cost by
reference to a valuation report.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains/losses on transactions between the Company
and its subsidiary are eliminated on consolidation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting
policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements. These policies have been consistently
applied throughout all years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

(i) Compliance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”)

The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with IFRSs issued
by the International Accounting Standards
Board (“IASB”) and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622).

The IASB has issued a number of new or
amended standards and annual improvements,
which are mandatory for financial year
beginning on or after 1 Janurary 2022. For
the purpose of preparing these consolidated
financial statements, the Group has applied all
these new or amended standards and annual
improvements consistently throughout the
reporting periods presented.

The preparation of these consolidated financial
statements in conformity with IFRSs requires
the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgment or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

(i) Historical cost convention

The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of
financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, which are carried at fair value.
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e M HRRHE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EXEHBREE(E)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 HEEE (EK)
(i) New or amended standards issued but not yet (i) B AP 16 7K EE [ af R IR

adopted by the Group FARIFTE] BAREET ) 2E
AY

The following new or amended standards have LA 37 5] sk 8818 5] Y 22

been published but not mandatory for the year AIE 28 - (BB ZE2022

ended 31 December 2022 and have not been F12 431 B L FE T8

early adopted by the Group: AT - AAREEINE
REHA -

Effective for annual
periods beginning

on or after
RUTRZERAIGE
FEHMEN
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 1 January 2023
(BB B SRR FE175 REREL 20231 A1H
Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies 1 January 2023
and IFRS Practice
Statement 2
(B g ER)FE15% R RESTHE 20231 A1H
(B mE R EBEH)
F25% (82T A)
Amendments to IAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates 1 January 2023
(BIBR R ESH (BRI A) FHEHNESR 202341 A1H
Amendments to IAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and 1 January 2023
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction
(BRgHRADF125 (BFTX) EERFEENEENEREH 20231 A1H
HRER 1
Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current 1 January 2024
or Non-current
(BRBR e ERDE1R (BR1FX) BEEIERRPIERD 202441 A1H
Amendments to IFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback 1 January 2024
(BB B RS LRI F 165 ErmEFNEEEE 20241 A1 H
S-HES!
Amendments to IFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between To be determined
and |IAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture
(BRI BMmEE)FEI0R R REFEABECEEEEE HE
(EBR e T2 AI) 285 ZENEELESIRA
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e BB HRRHEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EXSHBKREE(E)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 HFEEE (&)

(i) New or amended standards issued but not yet
adopted by the Group (Continued)

The Group has already commenced an
assessment of the impact of these new or
amended standards, certain of which are
relevant to the Group’s operations. According
to the preliminary assessment made by the
directors of the Company, no significant impact
on the financial performance and position of the
Group is expected when they become effective.

2.2 Principles of consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities (including controlled
entities) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power to direct
the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated
from the date that control ceases.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity
of subsidiaries (if applicable) are shown separately
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, statement of changes
in equity and balance sheet respectively.
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e M HRRHE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for all business combinations (excluding
those involving the entities under common control),
regardless of whether equity instruments or other
assets are acquired. The consideration transferred
for the acquisition of a subsidiary comprises (if
applicable):

° fair values of the assets transferred;

° liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
acquired business;

° equity interests issued by the Group;

° fair value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement; or

° fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in
the subsidiary.
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e BB HRRHEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EXEHRFREEE)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 ESH (&)

2.3 Business combinations (Continued)

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are, with limited exceptions, measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The
Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquired entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquired entity’s net
identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The excess of the
° consideration transferred;

° amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquired entity; and

° acquisition-date fair value of any previous
equity interest in the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts
are less than the fair value of the net identifiable
assets of the business acquired, the difference is
recognised directly in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase.

Contingent consideration is classified either as
equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified as a
financial liability are subsequently remeasured to fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit
or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’'s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date. Any
gains or losses arising from such remeasurement are
recognised in profit or loss.

RETSE G AT U B RO 7 385
BENRAAENBEREE
BfE - MIFRERKE AN
RABEEE (RIDBEHIIME
I - AREIRZARES
HEE - AR BEIIER
RS A REBERAHEE
FEZL - BRREEER
ZAEAAISEE R R A o

W R AR EA R 5 AR
ﬁ o]

T3l &R
. DEEOHE:

s WHEERMEMIFE
BiEmer &

s REUBEBNEME
A P A 25 70 W BB BB
MAREER

B B W B R BRI B E R ER
DR EER  EERAFET
B o S BERAKRER
BRI BB BEEFEND A E
B HEBRERN RS T E

XEHELIEAERIERE
E- DBEATBBENSHEE
REMFEEQAABE T
REEZFHRBETER

MR 60 B BT - BB
73 R e R R B 00 B AN &
FULEE B B O RR B R U B
B A BESHTE - £
RZAEF T EE LN mEK
EERERE ST ER



204

Lepu ScienTech Medical Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
SZELRBEMNE (B8) RHERAA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRHE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4

2.5

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to
the chief operating decision-maker (“CODM”). The
CODM, who is responsible for allocating resources
and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as executive directors
of the Company.
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e BB HRRHEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation

()

(i)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements
of each of the group entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). These consolidated
financial statements are presented in RMB,
which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency and also the functional
currency of the subsidiary.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at year end
exchange rates are generally recognised in
profit or loss.

All foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income
on a net basis within “Other income and gains/
(losses) — net”.
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e M HRRHE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.7 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment (if any). Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to
the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any
component accounted for as a separate asset is
derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
reporting period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate their costs, net of their residual
values, over their estimated useful lives as follows:

° Buildings 25 — 40 years
° Electronic equipment 3 years

° Machinery 5 - 10 years
° Vehicles 3 - 12 years
° Others 3 - 10 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount (Note 2.11).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined
by comparing proceeds with carrying amount are
recognised in profit or loss and presented as “Other
income and gains/(losses) — net” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.8

2.9

Investment properties

Investment properties comprise buildings, held for
long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation
or both and not occupied by the Group, and is
measured initially at its cost, including related
transaction costs. After initial recognition, the
Group chooses the cost model to measure all
of its investment properties, which are stated at
historical costs less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses (if any). Depreciation
of investment properties is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate their costs to their
residual values over their estimated useful lives of
30-40 years.

An investment property’s carrying amount is written
down immediately to its recoverable amount if the
investment property’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount. Gains and
losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount and are recognised
in profit and loss.

Intangible assets
() Patents and licences

Patents and licences acquired in a business
combination are recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Patents and licences which
have finite useful lives are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is
calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate their costs over their estimated useful
lives of 3-10 years (representing the remaining
lives of the registered patent period and
licenses period as approved by administrative
authorities or the period after considering the
expected administrative extension of the related
licenses) from the point at which the asset is
ready for use.

(i) Purchased software

Purchased software licenses are capitalised
on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire
and bring the specific software into usage.
These costs are amortised using the straight-
line method over their estimated useful lives of
10 years. Costs associated with maintaining
computer software programs are recognised as
expense as incurred.

2 EX®

2.8

2.8

e BB HRRHEE

AR R ()

BREM=

TEWE ( &?‘E@?) JEEE ¥ =]
ERBHESREKIFEHIEELR
HENRER FRE - B3

AAKEIEA - REVIYS
B (BHEERER %&$)
B o PIHERIEK - AEENE

BRAEAGELFGREY
X WREBELRARBRANE
R Z2FHEEEE (F) I8k -
BREMENEREEAIER
i%sm&oiuﬁﬁ&%&
AN EEFHEENRE

HREYENOREESREMA
A B EEE - AIZREME
) B T B R B 0% 22 L AT 42 ]
T8 - HEWE REBETIER

ELE PTG A RARE E B E -
WK B+ FERR
BVEAE
()  BEFIRFA
EBAHTBEANER
KEral g i B o
REEER - ZFHF
&%ﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ%
FH - RN R AT

HHOIRR o B HE R E AR
ERTE - LB ERN R
AR ADEERZE
EREARESTSHIE
10 F B {4 &1 AT 158 8 4F 1
(BN1TER MRS B E o
1l = 7| 5 2% B K &F Al e
B RCER ) TR £ B R B K
Z R AR FT Al A8 TR AT 1T
BOEHRAR) -

(i)  FEABIEIF

BAR AT AT IR A
Ko {50 5245 € #X 1 = 2 A

158 1 By T 2 A RO AR 1
BEAR(ERIE - ZFERA
REEFTAIE A FE S (1
E)Wuﬁﬁﬁzﬂ%ﬁﬁ &
st XA 72 Fr O 4 o€ 40 B
§$FF$M% B 5

207



208

Lepu ScienTech Medical Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
SZELRBEMNE (B8) RHERAA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRHE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.9

Intangible assets (Continued)

(i)

Research and development

Research and development cost comprise
all costs that are directly attributable to
research and development activities (relating
to the design and testing of new or improved
high end medical instruments) or that can
be allocated on a reasonable basis to such
activities. Research and development costs
are recognised as intangible assets when the
following criteria are met:

° it is technically feasible to complete the
medical instruments so that it will be
available for use or sale;

° management intends to complete the
medical instruments and use or sell it;

o there is an ability to use or sell the
medical instruments;

o it can be demonstrated how the medical
instruments will generate probable future
economic benefits;

° adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development
and the ability to use or sell the medical
instruments are available; and

o the expenditure attributable to the medical
instruments during its development phase
can be reliably measured.

Other development expenditures that do not
meet these criteria are charged to expense
as incurred. Development costs previously
recognised as an expense are not recognised
as an asset in a subsequent period.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Goodwill

Goodwill is measured as described in Note 2.3.
Goodwill is not amortised, but it is tested for
impairment annually, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that it might be
impaired, and is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses (if any). Gains and losses on the
disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of
goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for
the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is
made to those cash-generating units or groups of
cash-generating units that are expected to benefit
from the business combination in which the goodwill
arose. The units or groups of units are identified at
the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for
internal management purposes, being the operating
segments (Note 5).

Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite
useful life or not available for use are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for impairment,
or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that they might be impaired.
Other assets are tested for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash
inflows which are largely independent of the cash
inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed
for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of
each reporting period.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Investments and other financial assets

()

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair
value (either through OCI or through profit
or loss), and

o those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s
business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual terms of the cash
flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and
losses will either be recorded in profit or loss
or OCI. For investments in equity instruments
that are not held for trading, this will depend
on whether the Group has made an irrevocable
election at the time of initial recognition to
account for the equity investment at fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when
and only when its business model for managing
those assets changes.
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e BB HRRHEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

(i)

(i)

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date, the date
on which the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the financial assets have expired
or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss (FVPL), transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset. Transaction costs of financial
assets carried at FVPL are expensed in profit or
loss.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

(i)

Measurement (Continued)
Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

o Amortised cost: Assets that are held
for collection of contractual cash flows
where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are
measured at amortised cost. Interest
income from these financial assets is
included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in profit or loss and
presented in “Other income and gains/
(losses) — net” together with foreign
exchange gains and losses. Impairment
losses are presented as separate line item
in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.

2

EXEHBREE (]8)

212 RERHMBEMEE (H)

(i)

iE ()
BEBEITAE

BB TAMNKRETER
RN AEEEREEN
EBRARZBREEN
RenERE - A%HE
REBTIADBRA=RE
ATERR

o  IREHAGE
iR YEA KRS
MEMBANEE
MREREERAN
& RFENFK - Al
ZEBEREBIHK
B8 - ZEER
BEMNNB WAL
BB M EERF A
TSI o 4R I-FE
REEMEM s
HEBREERNER
REERR - I HEHME
W kBB H
A Rz S
(BHR)— 87
R R EBERAR
ERakAEMEE
WHRAIERER
BHEIIR -



Annual Report 2022

B FR 21 3

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BB HRRHEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (Continued)

EXEHBREE (8)

212 RERHMBEMEE (H)

2.12 Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)
(i) Measurement (Continued) (i) FTZ (#&)

Debt instruments (Continued) B TE (&)

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows and for selling
the financial assets, where the assets’
cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest, are measured at
FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount
are taken through OCI, except for the
recognition of impairment gains or losses,
interest income and foreign exchange
gains and losses which are recognised
in profit or loss. When the financial asset
is derecognised, the cumulative gain
or loss previously recognised in OCI is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss
and recognised in other gains/(losses).
Interest income from these financial
assets is included in finance income using
the effective interest rate method. Foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented
in “Other income and gains/(losses) — net”
and impairment expenses are presented
as separate line item in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

(i)

Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria
for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured
at FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt
investment that is subsequently measured
at FVPL is recognised in profit or loss and
presented net within “Other income and
gains/(losses) — net” in the period in which
it arises.

2

EXEHBREE (&)

212 RERHMBEMEE (H)

(i)

itE (&)

EHEIA (&)

NAnBEAER
ﬁ%@ﬂﬁkiﬁ HA
Ba T a#E
ﬁXZISjZL/VA/‘M (=]
AAEREHBEHFA
Hip 2 E KR RE
WEEHUNRARE
B2 A H#H5
ANEHER - Hig
LA”D\/‘H BitE2H
HE 85 A& B8

HHNBEBREEE
B S E RN B
mPER - WRA
?iﬂﬁfﬁ [ H A
WA R, (&
18)— FE | UFE
HI7R o



Annual Report 2022
B FR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BB HRRHEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

(i)

Measurement (Continued)
Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in
OCI, there is no subsequent reclassification
of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss
following the derecognition of the investment.
Dividends from such investments continue to
be recognised in profit or loss as other income
when the Group’s right to receive payments is
established.

Changes in the fair value of financial
assets at FVPL are recognised in “Other
income and gains/(losses) - net” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as applicable.
Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment
losses) on equity investments measured at
FVOCI are not reported separately from other
changes in fair value.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Investments and other financial assets

(Continued)

(iv)

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking
basis the expected credit loss associated
with its debt instruments carried at amortised
cost and FVOCI. The impairment methodology
applied depends on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the
simplified approach permitted by IFRS 9,
which requires expected lifetime losses to
be recognised from initial recognition of the
receivables, see Notes 3.1(b) and 23 for further
details.

2.13 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the consolidated
balance sheets where the Group currently has a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must
not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in
the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
Group or the counterparty.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.14

2.15

Inventories

Raw materials, work in progress and finished goods
are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost comprises direct materials, direct labour
and an appropriate proportion of variable and fixed
overhead expenditure, the latter being allocated
on the basis of normal operating capacity. Costs
are assigned to individual items of inventory based
on weighted average costs. Costs of purchased
inventory are determined after deducting rebates
and discounts. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business less
the estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers
for goods sold in the ordinary course of business.
They are generally due for settlement within one year
and therefore all classified as current.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the
amount of consideration that is unconditional unless
they contain significant financing components, when
they are recognised at fair value. The Group holds
the trade receivables with the objective of collecting
the contractual cash flows and therefore measures
them subsequently at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. See Note 23 for further
information about the Group’s accounting for trade
receivables and Note 3.1(b) for a description of the
Group’s impairment policies.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.16

2.17

2.18

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash
on hand, deposits held at call with banks and other
short-term, highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of equity
instruments are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.

Treasury stock is recorded to reflect the carrying
amount of the redemption liabilities when it is initially
reclassified from equity, and will be reversed when
the redemption liabilities are derecognised upon
when the Group’s obligations in connection with
those redemption liabilities are discharged, cancelled
or have expired which will then be reclassified back
to equity (Note 2.23).

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables mainly represent the
obligations to pay for goods or services that have
been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers. Trade and other payables are
presented as current liabilities unless payment is
not due within 12 months after the reporting period.
They are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period
is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable
income based on the applicable income tax rate for
each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred
income tax assets and liabilities attributable to
temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

@

b)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted at the end of
the reporting period in the countries where the
Group operates and generates taxable income.

Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected
to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using
the liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the financial statements. However, deferred
income tax liabilities are not recognised if they
arise from the initial recognition of goodwill.
Deferred income tax is also not accounted for
if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss. Deferred income tax is determined using
tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

®)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only
if it is probable that future taxable amounts
will be available to utilise those temporary
differences and losses.

Deferred income tax liabilities and assets
are not recognised for temporary differences
between the carrying amount and tax bases
of investments in foreign operations where
the Group is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
offset where there is a legally enforceable
right to offset current income tax assets and
liabilities and where the deferred income tax
balances relate to the same taxation authority.
Current income tax assets and tax liabilities are
offset where the entity has a legally enforceable
right to offset and intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred income tax is recognised
in profit or loss, except to the extent that
it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In
this case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Employee benefits

@

(b)

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-
monetary benefits and accumulating sick leave
that are expected to be settled wholly within
12 months after the end of the period in which
the employees render the related service are
recognised in respect of employees’ services
up to the end of the reporting period and are
measured at the amounts expected to be paid
when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities
are presented as current employee benefit
obligations in the balance sheet.

Pension, housing funds, medical insurances
and other social insurances obligations

Employees of the Group are covered by various
government-sponsored defined-contribution
pension plans in the PRC under which the
employees are entitled to a monthly pension
based on certain formulas. The relevant
government agencies are responsible for the
pension liability to these employees when they
retire. The Group contributes on a monthly
basis to these pension plans for the employees
which are determined at a certain percentage
of their salaries. Under these plans, the Group
has no obligation for post-retirement benefits
beyond the contribution made. Contributions
to these plans are expensed as incurred and
contributions paid to the defined contribution
pension plans for a staff are not available to
reduce the Group’s future obligations to such
defined-contribution pension plans even if the
staff leaves the Group.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.21 Share-based payments

2.22

The fair value of awarded shares granted to
employees under the ESOP less amount paid by
employees is recognised as an employee benefits
expense over the relevant service period, being
the vesting period of the shares, and the credit is
recognised in equity in the share-based payment
reserves. The fair value of the shares is measured
at the grant date. The number of shares expected
to vest is estimated based on the non-market
vesting conditions. The estimates are revised at the
end of each reporting period and adjustments are
recognised in profit or loss and the share-based
payment reserves. Where shares are forfeited due
to a failure by the employee to satisfy the service
conditions, any expenses previously recognised in
relation to such shares are reversed effective at the
date of the forfeiture.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events, it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation and
the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are
not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class
of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised
even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect
to any one item included in the same class of
obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
management’s best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the end
of the reporting period. The discount rate used to
determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the liability.
The increase in the provision due to the passage of
time is recognised as interest expense.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.23

2.24

Redemption liabilities

A contract that contains an obligation to purchase
the Company’s equity instruments for cash or
another financial asset gives rise to a financial liability
for the present value of the redemption amount,
even if the Company’s obligations to purchase is
conditional on the counterparty exercising a right to
redeem. The Company undertakes such redemption
obligations as certain preferred rights are granted
to investors in the Company’s financing process.
The related redemption liabilities are recognised as
financial liabilities initially at fair value (representing
the present value of the estimated redemption
amount) and reclassified from equity. Subsequently,
the redemption liabilities are measured at amortised
cost with interest charged in finance costs.

The Group derecognises the redemption liabilities
when, and only when, the Group’s obligations are
discharged, cancelled or have expired. When the
preferred rights are waived by investors, the carrying
amount of redemption liability is reclassified back to
equity.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised as and when the Group’s
obligations under the terms of a contract are
satisfied, which occurs when control of the promised
products or services is transferred to customers.
Revenue is measured as the amount of consideration
the Group expects to receive in exchange for
transferring products or services to a customer (the
“transaction price”).

A performance obligation represents a good and
service (or a bundle of goods or services) that is
distinct or a series of distinct goods or services that
are substantially the same.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.24 Revenue recognition (Continued)

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws
applicable, control of the goods and services may be
transferred over time or at a point in time.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not
yet unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in
accordance with using the same approach as for
trade receivables. In contrast, a receivable represents
the Group’s unconditional right to consideration, i.e.
only the passage of time is required before payment
of that consideration is due. There is normally no
significant cost to obtain contract.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount
of consideration is due) from the customer.

The following is a description of the accounting
policy for the principal revenue stream of the Group.

(a) Sale of goods

Sales are recognised when control of the
products has transferred, being when the
products are delivered to the customers or
consumed by hospitals for direct sales to
hospitals, and there is no unfulfilled obligation
that could affect the customer’s acceptance
of the products. Delivery occurs when the
products have been transferred to the
customer, the risks of obsolescence and loss
have been transferred to the customer, and
either the customer has accepted the products
in accordance with the sales contract, the
acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the
Group has objective evidence that all criteria for
acceptance have been satisfied.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.24 Revenue recognition (Continued)

@

Sale of goods (Continueqd)

The products are often sold to major customers
with retrospective volume rebates based on
aggregate sales over a 12-month period. In
addition, the Group has also contracted with
certain major customers for granting them with
the rights to claim for the Group’s delivery of
additional units of products (capped at a pre-
determined ratio to the customer’s purchases
of the Group’s products over a 12-month
period) under certain pre-agreed circumstances
which are irrelevant to the quality and
functionality of the Group’s products (the
“claims for additional units”). Revenue from
these sales is recognised based on the price
specified in the respective contracts, net of the
estimated volume rebates and the estimated
claims for additional units. Accumulated
experience is used to estimate and provide for
the discounts and claims, using the expected
value method, and revenue is only recognised
to the extent that it is highly probable that a
significant reversal will not occur.

Revenue is recognised net of value-added taxes
and volume rebates and claims for additional
units as mentioned above (if applicable).
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable.

As receivable is recognised when the goods
are delivered as this is the point in time that the
consideration is unconditional because only the
passage of time is required before the payment
is due.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.25 Earnings or losses per share

@

b)

Basic earnings or losses per share

Basic earnings or losses per share is calculated
by dividing:

o The profit/loss attributable to owners of
the Company, excluding any costs of
servicing equity other than ordinary shares

o By the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during
the financial year, adjusted for bonus
elements in ordinary shares issued during
the year and excluding treasury shares.

Diluted earnings or losses per share

Diluted earnings or losses per share adjusts
the figures used in the determination of basic
earnings or losses per share to take into
account:

o The after-income tax effect of interest
and other financing costs associated with
dilutive potential ordinary shares, and

o The weighted average number of
additional ordinary shares that would
have been outstanding assuming the
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EXEHRFREEE)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.26 {ERAEBANEE

2.26 Leases as leasee

The Group leases properties in the PRC as leasee.
Rental contracts are typically made for fixed periods
of 2-5 years. Lease terms are negotiated on an
individual basis and contain a wide range of different
terms and conditions. The lease agreements do not
impose any covenants, but leased assets may not be
used as security for borrowing purposes.

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and
a corresponding liability at the date at which the
leased asset is available for use by the Group. Each
lease payment is allocated between the principal
and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to
profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce
a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability for each period. The right-of-
use asset is depreciated over the shorter of the asset
useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following lease
payments (if applicable):

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

° variable lease payment that are based on an
index or a rate, initially measured using the
index or rate as at the commencement date;

° amounts expected to be payable by the lessee
under residual value guarantees;

° the exercise price of a purchase option if the
lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that
option; and

° payments of penalties for terminating the lease,
if the lease term reflects the Group exercising
that option.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.26

2.27

2.28

Leases as leasee (Continued)

The lease payments are discounted using the
interest rate implied in the lease, if that rate can be
determined, or the respective incremental borrowing
rate.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising
the following (if applicable):

° the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability;

° any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received,;

° any initial direct costs; and
° restoration costs.
Dividend distribution

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend
declared, being appropriately authorised and no
longer at the discretion of the entity, on or before the
end of the reporting period but not distributed at the
end of the reporting period.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their
fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that
the grant will be received, and the Group will comply
with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred
and recognised in the profit or loss over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that they
are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to the purchase of
property, plant and equipment are included in non-
current liabilities as deferred income and are credited
to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
expected lives of the related assets.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group’s financial performance. Risk management is
carried out by the management of the Group. The Group
currently does not use any derivative financial instruments
to hedge the relevant financial risk exposure.

3.1 Financial risk factors

(a) Market risk

(i)

Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk arises when future
commercial transactions or recognised
assets and liabilities are denominated
in a currency that is not the functional
currency of respective group entities.
RMB is the functional currency of both the
Company and its subsidiary.

Foreign exchange risk arises from future
commercial transactions and recognised
assets and liabilities denominated in
a currency other than RMB. Certain
of the Group’s trade payables, trade
receivables, cash and cash equivalents
and redemption liabilities are denominated
in foreign currencies other than RMB
and hence exposed the Group to foreign
currency risk. The Group will constantly
review the economic situation and its
foreign exchange risk profile, and will
consider appropriate hedging measures in
the future, as may be necessary.

The Group is exposed to foreign
exchange risk arising from recognised
financial assets and liabilities denominated
in Hong Kong Dollars (HKD), US Dollars
(USD) and Euro Dollars (EUR).
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

@

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

As at 31 December 2022, if USD had
strengthened/weakened by 5% against
RMB, with all other variables held
constant, net loss for the year would have
been approximately RMB3,139,000 lower/
higher (2021: net profit would have been
approximately RMB19,002,000 lower/
higher), mainly as a result of net foreign
exchange gains/(losses) on translation
of USD-denominated cash and cash
equivalents, trade payables and trade
receivables.

As at 31 December 2022, if HKD had
strengthened/weakened by 5% against
RMB, with all other variables held
constant, net loss for the year would
have been RMB11,536,000 lower/higher
(2021: not applicable), mainly as a result
of foreign exchange gains on translation
of HKD-denominated cash and cash
equivalents.

As at 31 December 2022, if EUR had
strengthened/weakened by 5% against
RMB, with all other variables held
constant, net loss for the year would have
been RMB204,000 lower/higher (2021:
not appliable), mainly as a result of foreign
exchange gains on translation of EUR-
denominated cash and cash equivalents.
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e BB HRRHEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

@)

®)

Market risk (Continued)
(i) Interest rate risk

As the Group has no significant interest-
bearing assets other than cash and cash
equivalents and long-term bank deposit,
the Group’s income and operating cash
flows are substantially independent of
changes in market interest rates.

As of 31 December 2022 and 2021,
the Group has no borrowings and other
interest bearing debts, so there is no
potential risk caused by interest rate
fluctuation.

Credit risk

Credit risk mainly arises from long-term bank
deposit, cash and cash equivalents, trade
receivables other receivables and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss. The
maximum exposure to credit risk is represented
by the carrying amount of each financial asset
in the consolidated balance sheet.

The Group expects that there is no significant
credit risk associated with long-term bank
deposit, cash and cash equivalents since
they are deposited at state-owned banks or
reputable commercial banks which are high-
credit-quality financial institutions. Management
does not expect that there will be any
significant losses from non-performance by
these counterparties.

As mentioned in Note 24, the Group has
fully redeemed its investment in the wealth
management product in a private fund
(classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss) and the related cash
proceeds have been collected by the Group on
21 March 2028. Hence, management considers
that the credit risk associated with the
investment is insignificant as of 31 December
2022.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

®)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group has the following types of financial
assets subject to expected credit loss model:

— trade receivables
— other receivables

(i)

Credit risk of trade receivables

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring expected credit
losses which uses a lifetime expected loss
allowance for all trade receivables.

To measure the expected credit losses,
trade receivables have been grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics
and the days past due.

The expected loss rates are based on
the historical credit losses and adjusted
to reflect current and forward-looking
information on macroeconomic factors
affecting the ability of the customers to
settle the receivables. The Group has
identified the Gross Domestic Product
and the Producer Price Index in China
(the prime location where it sells its
goods) to be the most relevant factors,
and accordingly adjusts the historical
loss rates based on expected changes in
these factors.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

MERRER (&)

3.1 MBEBEE(E)

(b)  Credit risk (Continued) (b) 1=EEE (&)
()  Credit risk of trade receivables (Continued) () ZBZERWHIAEE
[RL B (4&)
On that basis, the loss allowance as at 31 EHRHERLE R
December 2022 and 2021 were determined 2022 F k20214
as follows for trade receivables: 12A3818 - Bk
W IE A S B
EEmT
No more More
than 3-6 6-12 than
3 months month month 1 year Total
figd 3F 6F 1%
3f8A 6f8A 12f8A UE &t
At 31 December 2022 ®202212A31H
Expected loss rate (%) EHBEE%) 6% 15% 13% 92% 31%
Gross carrying amount - AR (E — B HREWGIE
trade receivables (AE®TT)
(RMB'000) 16,011 7,501 9,498 11,569 44,579
Loss allowance (RMB'000) &4 (\RETTT) (1,022 (1,139  (1,195)  (10,608)  (13,964)
No more More
than 3-6 6-12 than
3 months months months 1 year Total
TR 3% 6%
3f6A 61H A 12188 1€ML Ch
At 31 December 2021  12021£12A31H
Expected loss rate (%) EHBEEE (%) 5% 8% 12% 90% 26%
Gross carrying amount - AERAE - 2 3ENFE
trade receivables (AREFTL)
(RMB'000) 8,140 8,412 8,780 6,825 32,157
Loss allowance (RMB'000) E5E2(E (AR T ) (447) (662) (1,038) (6,141) (8,288)
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HMEREERE(E)

(Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1

(b)  Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Credit risk of trade receivables (Continued)

Trade receivables are written off where there
is no reasonable expectation of recovery.
Impairment losses on trade receivables are
presented as net impairment losses within
operating profit. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited
against the same line item. Movements in
the loss allowance for trade receivables
during the respective year are as follows:

At beginning of the year F1
Provision of impairment of B 2 W GRIE R EEE
trade receivables

At end of the year FR

HHEEREZE (&)
(b) 1EEREE (&)
() EBZRrRWREREE

[\ (48)

EESENIE TR
WHRTH - &5 R
KA REBER
2 FEA AR E
BERFEZ5 - A/l
HiD MH S iR
BUEIFIERKE R
AR—1TERB - ®
BEFENE HREK
REBRERE
LI

Year ended 31 December

HZ12A31BLEE

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®FR ARET T

(8,288) (7,349)

(5,676) (939)

(13,964) (8,288)
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b)  Credit risk (Continued)

(i) Credit risk of other receivables

For other receivables, management
makes periodic assessments as well as
individual assessment on the recoverability
based on historical settlement records,
experience and forward-looking information
on macroeconomic factors affecting
the ability of the counterparties to settle
the receivables. Movements in the loss
allowance for other receivables during the
respective year are as follows:

At beginning of the year F9
(Provision)/reversal of A e B GRIE R B
impairment of other (Bst%),/ # [

receivables
At end of the year FR
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Year ended 31 December

HBZ12A31BLLEE

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®FR ARET T

(188) (1,660)

(51) 1,472

(239) (188)
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@

Liquidity risk

The Group aims to maintain sufficient cash and
cash equivalents. Due to the dynamic nature
of the underlying businesses, the policy of
the Group is to regularly monitor the Group’s
liquidity risk and to maintain adequate cash and
cash equivalents to meet the Group’s liquidity
requirements.

The table below analyses the Group’s non-
derivative financial liabilities that will be settled
into relevant maturity grouping based on the
remaining period at each balance sheet date
to the contractual maturity date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within
12 months equal their carrying balances as the
impact of discounting is not significant.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

()

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following table presents the Group’s
contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at

31 December 2022 and 2021:

#2022 12A 310
25 R EMEATE (T
BEEMEAT TR E

As at 31 December 2022
Trade and other payables (excluded
other taxes payable and employee

benefit payables) HEEEF)
Lease liabilities HERRE
As at 31 December 2021 1#20215£12A318

BHRAMEMNTE (R
BREEMEATRE
fHEEREM)

HEARE

Trade and other payables (excluded
other taxes payable and employee
benefit payables)

Lease liabilities

The redemption liabilities with carrying
amounts of approximately RMB679,986,000
(undiscounted cash flow amounts of
RMB701,066,000) as at 31 December 2021
(Note 31) had not been included in the analysis
above as it was not managed by maturity date

by the management of the Company.

e BB HRRHEE

3 HMEREER(E)
3.1 HMKRKBEZE (&)
() B ERE (&)
THREZAEER2022
FR2021F12 431 BHH
TRBES VMR
Less than Between More than
1 year 1-2 years 2 years Total
SIME 122f 250 E S
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETT
21,667 - - 21,667
2,303 1,037 1,141 4,481
23,970 1,037 1,141 26,148
13,994 - - 13,994
2,247 2,089 3,071 7,407
16,241 2,089 3,071 21,401

ARARAEEERIZ
Z|EAR E IR 2021 F12
AB1BEREBEARAR
#679,986,0007T (KT
HRERMESTEARK
701,066,000 7% ) #) & @l
B & (MsE31) | W% E
Bl & ERMNA LR DT °
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e M HRRHE

(Continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain
an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of
capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may issue new shares or sell assets
to reduce debt. The Group monitors capital
(including share capital and other reserves) by
regularly reviewing the capital structure. As a part
of this review, the Company considers the cost of
capital and the risks associated with the issued
share capital. In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the Group’s capital risk is low as it does
not have any external borrowings as of the respective
balance sheet dates.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation

Level 1:

Level 2:

Level 3:

(a)  Financial assets and liabilities
(i) Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and
estimates made in determining the fair
values of the financial instruments that are
recognised and measured at fair value in
these consolidated financial statements.
To provide an indication about the
reliability of the inputs used in determining
fair value, the Group has classified its
financial instruments into the following
three levels as prescribed under IFRSs.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is based on quoted market at each of the
reporting dates. A market is regarded as active if
quoted prices are readily and regularly available from
an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing
service, or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring market
transactions on an arm’s length basis. The quoted
market price used for financial assets held by the
Group is the current bid price. These instruments are
included in level 1.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market (for example, over-the-
counter derivatives) is determined using valuation
techniques which maximise the use of observable
market data and rely as little as possible on entity-
specific estimates. If all significant inputs required
to fair value an instrument are observable, the
instrument is included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the instrument is included in
level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity securities.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

@

Financial assets and liabilities (Continueq)

(i) Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The fair values of the financial assets and
liabilities measured at amortised cost
approximate their carrying amounts as at

31 December 2022 and 2021.

There are no financial liabilities that were
measured at fair value as at 31 December
2022 and there are no financial assets or
liabilities that were measured at fair value

as at 31 December 2021.

The following table presents the Group’s
financial assets that were measured at fair

value at 31 December 2022:

At 31 December 2022 2022128310
Financial assets at FVPL D EETEAE2E5
(Note 24) ANEHERREREE

(HisE24)

The Group’s policy is to recognise
transfers into and transfers out of fair
value hierarchy levels as at the end of the

reporting year.

3 MERREE(E)

3.3

Level 1
E-EfR
RMB’000
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(a)  Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

(i

Valuation processes and valuation techniques
used to determine fair values

Specific valuation techniques used to
value financial instruments include:

The finance department of the Group
performs the valuations of items required
for financial reporting purposes, including
level 3 fair values, and report directly
to the chief financial officer (“CFQ”).
Discussions of valuation processes and
results are held between the CFO and
the finance personnels responsible for
valuations on a periodical basis, in line
with the Group’s reporting periods.

Specific valuation techniques used to
value financial instruments include:

° Quoted market prices or dealer
quotes for similar instruments; and

° Discounted cash flow model and
unobservable inputs mainly including
assumptions of expected future
cash flows and discount rate.

There were no changes in valuation
techniques during the years ended 31
December 2022 and 2021. There were
no transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3 for
recurring fair value measurements during
the years ended 31 December 2022 and
2021.
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e M HRRHE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

@

Financial assets and liabilities (Continueq)

(i)

Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (level 3)

During the years ended 31 December
2022 and 2021, the valuation of level 3
instruments mainly included investments
in wealth management products issued
by banks and a private fund (Note 24). All
the wealth management products were
mature within one year or redeemable
at anytime at the Group’s discretion and
with variable return rates indexed to the
performance of underlying assets. As
these instruments are not traded in an
active market, their fair values have been
determined based on income approach
by using a discounted cash flow analysis
with the expected rate of return.

3

MERRER (&)
3.3 DABEME (H)
@ ZHEEHREE)

(i)

ERERTABRER
BABBENAAE
Bt E(F=ER)

REE2022F &
2021412 A31H
HEE HE=ZE
BT EFETIHER
FEFATERER
RITE—FKLEE
&N EEITH R B
Em (zE24) < Fr
BEMEMAE—
F A B Bi sk AT R AR
SEBTREMNE
MFFERD - BF
ELZ /) & BE R IR A
$HH AT B R XK o
HRELT AKX
RERMS E#TT
BEE HRAArEE
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e BB HRRHEE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 MERBER(E)
(Continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 AREEME (&)
(a)  Financial assets and liabilities (Continued) (@) ZHEELHEEE)
(i)  Fair value measurements using significant (i) {EAEARTAIER
unobservable inputs (level 3) (Continued) BAZBIBNARE

B 8 (E=ER)
()

The following table presents the changes TEREZ7EZE2022
in level 3 items for the year ended 31 FR2021F12 A
December 2022 and 2021: NALFEE=E
RIEEWEL
FVPL
RAREE
FTERHSH
FFAEHER
RMB’000
ARMT T
Opening balance as at 1 January 202141 A1 B EI9 &

2021 -
Acquisitions i 3,275,000
Disposals BE (3,281,669)
Gains recognised in other income  7EH {th Uk A fp iR A U 25

and gains, net (Note 10) e 558 (FsE10) 6,669

Closing balance as at 31 December 12021412 H31HHK)
2021 HRAE B2 -

Opening balance as at 1 January R2022F1 A1 HH

2022 H V) aE R -
Acquisitions L b 5,843,037
Disposals BE (5,590,395)
Gains recognised in other income £ E bR A R FER AUk 5

and losses, net (Note 10) N &858 (fisE10) 5,467*

Closing balance as at 31 December 1202212 31 HHK)

2022 N 258,109
* Includes unrealised loss * BIER2022F12 A31 B AT
recognised in profit or loss FERIEE RN IBE T ER
attributable to balances held as B AR 23R 518

at 31 December 2022 (4,928)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRHE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

@

Financial assets and liabilities (Continueq)

(i)

Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (level 3) (Continued)

The following table summarises the
quantitative information about the
significant unobservable inputs used in
level 3 fair value measurements for the
years ended 31 December 2022 and
2021:

Significant
unobservable
inputs

EX
FaR%
BARE

Investment in wealth management
products issued by banks

Expected return rate

RERBIERTNER

Em

RHE fx

Investment in a wealth management  Expected return rate
product issued by a private fund

RER-FAEEE
RERTHENER

BHE fx

3 MERREE(E)

3.3 AnEEM (&)
@ ZHEEHREE)

Range of inputs

(i)

ERERTABRER
BABBENAAE
EFfE (F=ER)
(&)

TERBL T EHE
20224 k20214
12A31BILEES
“EHRAREBEE
ERFEANEART
A B g A BB

ELiER

BAREEE
For the For the

year ended year ended Relationship of
31 December 31 December  unobservable inputs
2022 2021 to fair values
FURR
SE E BABRAE
2022%12R 20215 12R AREE
JMHLEE MHLERE HIRR
1.45% to 2.09% to  The higher the expected
2.97% 3.00% return rate, the higher
the fair value
1.45%F 2.09%% REERE
2.97% 3.00% LIRS
BEES
1.60% to NA  The higher the expected
3.50% return rate, the higher
the fair value
1.60%E A REERE
3.50% LIRS

BELS
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(a)  Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

(i)

Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (level 3) (Continued)

For investment in wealth management
products issued by banks, the directors
of the Company have not identified that
a reasonable change in any of the inputs
that could cause the significant change of
fair value. Accordingly, the directors of the
Company have concluded not to disclose
the details on the quantitative sensitivity
of changes in unobservable inputs.

The Group entered into contracts in
respect of a wealth management product
offered by a private fund with expected
guaranteed rates of return ranging from
1.6% to 3.5% for the year ended 31
December 2022 (2021: not appliable).
The Group managed and evaluated
the performance of this product on a
fair value basis, in accordance with the
Group’s risk management and investment
policies. If the expected rate of return
of this instrument held by the Group
had been 10% higher/lower as at 31
December 2022, the pre-tax loss of the
Group would have been approximately
RMB43,000 lower/higher.

3 MERREE(HE)

3.3 AnEEM (&)

@ ZHEEHRE(E)

(i)

ERERTABE
BABBENAA(E
EFfE (F=ER)
(&)

IR ERRITET
WM ERMS
ARREERER
EaEmAZENE
BE(CAEER D
REENEARNE
2SN AR /N
EZCRETHE
BERTABREHA
BEBICHTEEH
RNERRESS ©

AREE —RALE
A& ARIREHE
BERIVAEY
HZE2022%12 A
31HIEFETEERE
REBEH1.6%E
3.5% (20214 : |
BA) AEEIR
BASEMERE
BEREEBR
AREBEERERE
B %A EZE @A
FIE o M2022F
12H318  &~"&EE
BEMNE-TAERN
8 HA[6) 3k =42 40
WMAL10% » &
& i) £ A &5 18 A% R
LN AR
43,0007T °
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e M HRRHE

CRITICAL ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of financial statements requires the use
of accounting estimates which, by definition, will seldom
equal the actual results. Management also needs to
exercise judgement in applying the Group’s accounting
policies.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that may have a
financial impact on the entity and that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

(i) Estimated impairment of goodwill and intangible
assets not subject to amortisation

The Group tests whether goodwill and intangible
assets not subject to amortisation has suffered any
impairment on an annual basis. The recoverable
amount of a cash generating unit (“CGU”) is
determined based on the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal or value-in-use calculations which
involved significant management’s judgement
and estimates. The calculations use cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period or a longer
period where applicable. Cash flows beyond the
periods as covered by the management approved
budget are extrapolated using the estimated growth
rates. Details of the impairment assessment, the key
assumptions adopted and management’s judgment
applied in the assessment are disclosed in Notes 17
and 18.

4

PN R

AP BHRERBER G A - R
BEE RFEMEAELSERE
RERESE - EBRETARNERXR
KB ETBURRE L #E -

AR (T R - AE R HE
DERELEREAEMRAEZ - 81
HARBEMHHEY  ZFHEHYA A
HEBELVWBEZEIRNEFER
THRERAE -

() MAIEERREREFTHENE
REE

AEESFEHRERER
BB EERLS X EEMR
BEETHR - BEELEMD
A E SR IER R L EER
HEXAHEREEFE 2K
BEEE  HYREEENE
EH G R fEE - ZFRTEER
ERNEREMENDFHHE
RHE (Em) BB BREEL
WRERETER - BHERE
HEMTREPMREN ZFHE
MIREREIERMGHERE
HE o ARRER b A MG
RANEREBRNAANER
EBHEOFIERHE17 X218
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4 CRITICAL ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Capitalisation of development costs

As of 31 December 2022 and 2021, the carrying
amount of the Group’s development costs as
capitalised as intangible assets amounted to
approximately RMB144,398,000 and RMB92,025,000,
respectively.

The determination of the capitalisation amounts
primarily involved management’s judgement in
assessing the technical and commercial feasibility
(covering the estimated future economic benefits
of the products under development) of each
development project and the availability of financial
and technological resources to complete the
development projects and commence production.
Technical feasibility is evaluated based on testing
results of products and commercial feasibility is
evaluated based on forecast with assumptions
on revenue to be generated, budget costs to be
incurred, gross profit margin and relevant market
analysis of the relevant products. Availability of
financial and technological resources to complete the
development projects and commence production is
evaluated based on the Group’s liquidity and financial
position and the existing manpower resources in the
Group’s R&D department.

Estimated useful lives and residual values of
property, plant and equipment and technologies

The Group’s management determines the estimated
useful lives, residual values and related depreciation
and amortisation charges for the Group’s property,
plant and equipment and patents for technologies
with reference to the estimated periods that the
Group intends to derive future economic benefits
from the use of these assets. Management will
revise the depreciation and amortisation charges
where useful lives are different to that of previously
estimated, or it will write-off or write-down technically
obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned or sold. Actual economic lives may differ
from estimated useful lives and actual residual values
may differ from estimated residual values. Periodic
review could result in a change in depreciable lives
and residual values and therefore changing the
depreciation and amortisation charges in future
periods.

e BB HRRHEE

4 EX{ErIRFER (8)

(ii)

(iii)

MRBRAERL

H E2022F 2021412 A 31
B ANEBRBERKANERNEES
B EEMREED AN AEA
R#144, 398,000 M A R#
92,025,0007C °

BEENMceRIESRER
RS &FEIE B I
BEANTE(BRERAZEHER
Bl BT R PRAR I F 25 ) B A9 )
i K ek F 3R B AR E ] A
M 75 R E IR o BRI AT
MR RE S T E R E mm R LA
R BEATHENFEIER
R ARBERERERSE
EHWA - LN TRE K
R~ EMEAEBTHE DO
B&R - STKFARER Y RER
P& B 75 R il B IR B0 RFAE T3
ERAEENRBE S MUK
RS IA B 7N &= [ 2% AR P RO 3R
BANER -

Y3 - BB KRR B A BT 9 1
SR ERAFEHRRGERE

AEEEEERBEAEBEEK
YR~ BB MR EMEATE R
15 A AR 1S R RSB A 2 O 1
AN BEEAKBEREEE
BT AT ERE S - RnEE
TARRATE M #IEE R - 1w
ERFHELAG TR - &
BESHBTE REHERS
WIEIMBE R ERZLHER
BB BT EE - B
Y kR RN S ]
ERFHAERNBRERTA
EETRIR G RIFREE - TH
maf Al RE R ST E F ] N F
HREEZLEES @ (EMEECR
AR ROIT B S B SH B B A
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4

CRITICAL ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(Continued)

(iv)

(v)

Provision of expected credit loss (“ECL”) for
trade receivables

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL for
the trade receivables. The provision rates are based
on internal credit ratings as groupings of various
debtors that have similar loss patterns. The provision
matrix is based on the Group’s historical default
rates taking into consideration both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable including forward-looking information
that is available without undue costs or effort. At
every reporting date, the historical observed default
rates are reassessed and changes in the forward-
looking information are considered. In addition, trade
receivables with credit impaired are assessed for
ECL individually.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in
estimates. The information about the ECL and the
Group’s trade receivables are disclosed in Notes
3.1(b) and 28.

Allocation of transaction price to performance
obligations

Revenue arrangements with distinct performance
obligation are divided into separate units of
accounting and the transaction price is allocated
based on relative stand-alone selling prices.

Significant assumptions and estimates have been
made in estimating the number of units to be
claimed for each of distinct performance obligation,
and changes in judgments on these assumptions
and estimates could materially impact the timing of
revenue recognition.

4

E X (&5 R FIER (18)

(iv)

(v)

B 5 BWE
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4 CRITICAL ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(Continued)

(vi)

Fair value of restricted share granted and share-
based payment recognised under the ESOP

The Group has adopted the ESOP for the Group’s
certain employees in 2021. The fair value of the
restricted shares granted to employees is determined
by using the discounted cash flow method to
determine the underlying equity fair value of the
Company and equity allocation based on Option
Pricing model (“OPM model”) to determine the fair
value of common shares. Significant estimates on
assumptions, such as risk-free interest rate, volatility,
dividend yield and lack of marketability discount
are made based on management’s best estimates.
Further details are included in Note 29.

The Group has to estimate the expected forfeiture
rate at the end of vesting periods (the “Forfeiture
Rate”) of the restricted shares granted in order to
determine the amount of share-based payment
expenses charged to the profit or loss for each year.
As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, management
of the Company has assessed and concluded that
the expected Forfeiture Rate of the restricted shares
awarded by the Group are to be 7.4% and nil,
respectively.

e BB HRRHEE

4 EX{ErIRFER (8)

(vi)

REEEFRITERTFHZR
R R ERH ARG HER
HARN D REE
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SEGMENT INFORMATION
Description of segments and principal activities

The Group’s business activities, for which discrete
financial information is available, are regularly reviewed and
evaluated by the CODM. The CODM, who is responsible
for allocating resource and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified as the executive
directors of the Company that make strategic decisions.

The CODM assessed the performance of the reportable
operating segments mainly based on segment revenue,
cost of sales, research and development expenses of each
reportable operating segment. Thus, segment result would
present revenue, cost of sales, research and development
expenses and gross profit for each reportable operating
segment, which is in line with CODM’s performance
review.

The Group’s reportable operating segments are as follows:
Occluder Business

Occluder Business is primarily operated by Shanghai
Shape Memory Alloy, which is engaged in the business
of research, development and sales of interventional
treatment series occluders for defective congenital heart
disease.

SEHEH
AHRETEDHHL

AEBEXREES (JREBIMEE
Ft) B E B ERRE EHER MET
- TRRERKE (REDELE
DEZEREFEERSE) DWAE
RIEELBRORRNARRMTES -

TERERRETBZENSAIRE
LED R D EAA %¢ﬁ$&
MBS EAIRESED BN E
e FEitk - D EPRE KBRS A R
SEEDBHWA - HERK -
BREXMEMN EERIZBEERXK
ENEEEZE B -

REBNRRELED AT :
HIBERER

HESREBIEZH LEBEATRE
EMFES  ZARNREREBIEL

RECHERNT ABBERTIHE R
ek MaHE R -
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Heart Valve Business

Heart Valve Business is primarily operated by the
Beijing Branch of Shanghai Shape Memory Alloy, which
is currently engaged in the business of research and
development of heart valve medical devices.

There were no separate segment assets and segment
liabilities information provided to the CODM, as CODM
does not use this information to allocate resources to or
evaluate the performance of the operating segments.

The segment information provided to the Group’s CODM
for reportable segments for the respective years is as
follows:

e BB HRRHEE

SWBEH ()
DRI ER T

DRFEEBEER EBEARLRE
EEMBHIERSABES &L
B B A 2500 Bl 31 X 8 R 2 K O T

MERNTEZLERREREHERZN
DHEBERSHAEER  ARE
BRERAREIERELEN DR
LEDMHERIFEERR -
AARE R EZRERKEERER
HEFEN R #RE DB BER
wmr

Year ended 31 December 2022

Revenue A
Cost of sales SHERK A
Gross profit £%

Research and development expenses #ZF 5%z

Segment profit/(loss) ABFA/(BR)
Unallocated items AHEIEE
- Distribution expenses — BEEY
- General and administrative — —RERITBAX
expenses
— Net provision of impairment - SREEREFREETE

losses on financial assets
- Other income and losses - net
- Finance costs - net

Loss before income tax

- R AREE - 58
— BIBRR - B8

FeRAER

g§F2022F12B31HILEFE

Occluder Heart Valve
Business Business Total
HERESR DRBEREES &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AR®TR AR®TR
247,670 - 247,670
(27,984) - (27,984)
219,686 - 219,686
(20,059) (33,814) (53,873)
199,627 (33,814) 165,813
(38,663)
(53,685)
(5,727)
(69,464)
(13,306)

(15,032)
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Heart Valve Business (Continued)

Revenue A
Cost of sales SHERA
Gross profit £%

Research and development expenses #ZF %2

Segment profit/(loss) SEHFE /(FR)
Unallocated items APEER
- Distribution expenses — BEEY
— General and administrative - —BRERIBREY
expenses

— Net reversal of impairment losses — @B & EREBERL T8
on financial assets

- Other income and gains - net - A A RME - 8
- Finance costs - net — MHBKA - %58
Profit before income tax Fr &R aiFIE
Note:

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021,
the research and development expenses capitalised as
intangible assets and not included in the segment information
above amounted to approximately RMB69,107,000 and
RMB74,996,000, respectively.

No individual customer has contributed more than 10%
of the Group’s total revenue during the years ended 31
December 2022 and 2021.

5 SBEHGE)

ORI IE TS (18)
Year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A31AILFE
Occluder Heart Valve
Business Business Total
HERES ORIR £ 75 CHI
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETL AR¥TT ARBTT

222,583 - 222,583
(25,038) = (25,038)
197,545 - 197,545
(18,561) (22,826) (41,387)
178,984 (22,826) 156,158
(43,072)

(59,874)

533

22,642

(10,360)

66,027

GERE

B E20224F %2021 F12H31 BIEF
B BEXEREFVEEEAA LM
DHEROAERIDNORARE
69,107,000t & AR #74,996,0007T °

HZE2022F K2021E12 A31 8 1k
FE BEAARFHASENRZ
WA BBZE10%IA L °
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Analysis of revenue

Derived: KER :
— In the PRC —
— Outside the PRC — FREBFEAN

Revenue is attributed to countries based on the
customers’ locations.

REVENUE

An analysis of the Group’s revenue by category for the
years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 was as follows:

e BB HRRHEE

5 SHEBEH )
LONE

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A3MHILEE

2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®FR ARET T

211,460 210,259
36,210 12,324
247,670 222,583

WABBRATPFAESERD
B o

6 WA

KREBEHZE2022F % 2021F12 A
31 B IEFERERE D WA DT
s

Year ended 31 December

BZ128318LLEE

2022 2021
2022 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETT

Revenue from contracts with RE B EIAN RS
customers recognised at a N IO
point in time
- Revenue from sales of — BERREfpEIRANEs 0 A

medical occluders

Revenues from external customers are derived from the
sales of medical occluders both directly to hospitals
and network of distributors. The Group has recognised
revenue-related contract liabilities as set forth in Note 33.

247,670 222,583

REINBEEHRAFREEE RS
B LA B [0 4 65 75 48 48 SH S B8 B AT 4
= ASEHERERRAHBELA
& + SR FESS °
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The details of cost of sales, distribution expenses,
general and administrative expenses and research and

development expense are as follows:

Employee benefit expense (Note 8)
Products testing, pre-clinical trial
and animals studies fees
Changes in inventories of finished
goods and work in progress
Raw materials and consumables

used for

— products production

— research and development

Depreciation of

— property, plant and equipment

(Note 14)

— right-of-use assets (Note 15)
— investment properties (Note 16)

Amortisation of intangible assets

(Note 18)
Marketing expenses
Consulting services fees

Utilities and office expenses

Travelling expenses
Taxes and surcharges
Transportation costs
Listing expenses
Auditor’s remuneration

— audit services

- non audit services
Others

Total

EERMA (M)

B Rl B AR AT AR B
BYMEER

HEmMEERMTFEZL

FIT PR R4 4 B FE41

—EmEE
— 3k

T3S B E
— W BEKERE
(KMIsE14)
— (EREEE ([:E15)
— X EYE (KizE16)

B EESE (HE18)

AR E
NGEE I8 YNGET
ZMRFAX
B KM InE
BRKA
EmRx
1% 85 B 357

— RBURTE

— FRBURTS
Hitp

&t

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRHE

BRERRSHAX

HERAK - BHAX - —REITH
P A B AT BRARIA T

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A3MHILEE

2022 2021
20225 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBFIT
70,451 58,546
10,250 11,254
(8,149) (12,505)
16,236 22,804
15,453 9,536
31,689 32,340
3,416 2,882
2,853 1,673
1,070 1,070
7,339 5,625
7,530 4,182
8,981 7,134
5,451 7,845
4,957 3,349
3,952 7,020
3,297 5,836
1,541 1,374
20,438 32,690
2,400 -
120 =
3,958 4,681
174,205 169,371
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8 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE

Wages, salaries and bonuses IE - HeRkaaH

Social security costs and housing ~ H2REZRBMEEEF
benefits

Other employee welfares H g B R

Share-based payment expenses

Less: amounts capitalised as

intangible assets

Amount charged to profit or loss BEmkRNEEE

Representing amounts charged to:

— cost of sales — HEKA

— distribution expenses — 1ESEA X

— general and administrative — —MEITBAX
expenses

- research and development — MEHAX
expenses

(a)

The employees of the Group in the PRC have
participated in state-managed pension scheme
operated by the PRC Government. The Group is
required to contribute a specified percentage of
payroll costs as determined by local government
authority to the pension obligations to fund the
benefits. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the retirement benefits scheme is to make
the specified contribution under the scheme. No
forfeited contributions were available to the Group
for reducing its contributions to the abovementioned
scheme for the years ended 31 December 2022 and
2021.

VAR AR A BB B N TR X

BIATSEMRHIEHE

e BB HRRHEE

8 EEMREFIBX

W BBV EENSR

(a)

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A3MHILEE

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®FR ARET T

49,908 41,529
11,240 8,091
517 687
24,352 22,257
86,017 72,564
(15,566) (14,018)
70,451 58,546
9,217 7,224
19,579 18,699
21,802 17,141
19,853 15,482
70,451 58,546

AEBRPEMNESHE2HE
FEBNEENBEREEEE
SETE c AEEFERBRM T
BREEREENSSE AL
BEBBEMEES @ At
HEMNREHRES - ASEER
RENE T E BB
BRZATESREECRENE
o B 22022F 2021412
AB1BILEE  AEBWESR
W R IE A] fHR ) B ) _E a5+ &)
HMANRIERA o
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e M HRRHE

8 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (Continued) 8 (BB (&)

(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) EEEEFMAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the HE2022F12 A31 HIE4F
highest in the Group include 2 (2021: 2) directors for B AEBRERSHHA
the year ended 31 December 2022. The emoluments TEE2% (20214 : 24)
payable to the remaining 3 (2021: 3) highest paid BE o HE2022%612H31H
individuals for the year ended 31 December 2022 are IEFE - ErRHEEI3H (2021
as below: F:3%B) BEaTMA TN
AT -

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31BLEE

2022 2021

20224 20214

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TRT ARBTT

Wages, salaries and bonuses TE& - e MR 2,307 2,096

Social security costs and housing - 2REEBMEE ST

benefits 421 325

Share-based payments LARS 17 & E R B 5 3R 2,681 1,821

5,409 4,242

The emoluments of the non-director highest paid IEE F 5= A B E B AR
individuals fell within the following bands: AlaRR

Number of individuals
AE
Year ended 31 December
HZE12A31BILEE

2022 2021
20225 20214
Emolument bands (in HK dollar) AR R (BASTTED)

HK$1,000,000 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,000/ L&
1,500,000/ 7T, - 1

HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 &t &
2,000,000/8 7T 1 1

HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 L&
2,500,000/8 7T 2 1
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e BB HRRHEE

NET PROVISION/(REVERSAL) OF 9 SMEERESEEH (B
IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON FINANCIAL E);BEE
ASSETS

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31HLEE

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRT AREET T
Net provision/(reversal) of loss UWT&EIENEEERET
allowances on: B (BEE) B8 -
— trade receivables — B 5 EWEIE 5,676 939
— other receivables — Efb e kIR 51 (1,472)
5,727 (533)

OTHER INCOME AND (LOSSES)/GAINS -

NET

Investment income on wealth
management products

Government grants

Testing and processing service income

Commission income from a related
party

Rental income from investment
properties (Note 16(a))

Others

Other income

Fair value losses on financial assets
at FVPL

Net loss on write-off of property,
plant and equipment

Net foreign exchange (losses)/gains
(note)

Others

Other (losses)/gains — net

Other income and (losses)/gains
- net

BEE A RERA

BT 8D
Bl K2 hn T AR TS UL A
DEN ) oA N

KEREMEOEE WA
(HizE16(a))
it

HAb A

AR BEFEREZFH
AEHBRENEREER
DA EEEE
Y& 185 8

SME (B51R), W %8
(B&E)

HAith

Bt (B18) ez — %8

Httg AR (B51R), &
- B8

10 Rt AR (BiR) & -

Year ended 31 December

#H#E12A31HILLEE
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBFIT
10,395 6,669
4,767 7,743
1,019 =
746 =
530 2,564
42 414
17,499 17,390
(4,928) g/
(1) (1)
(82,279) 5,192
245 61
(86,963) 5,252
(69,464) 22 642
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R

10

11

B BHRRHE

OTHER INCOME AND (LOSSES)/GAINS -
NET (Continued)

Note:

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the net foreign
exchange losses from the retranslation of the USD-denominated
redemption liabilities on 8 November 2022 (i.e. listing date
and the date of derecognition of the redemption liabilities)
amounted to approximately RMB76,377,000 (2021: net foreign
exchange gains amounted to approximately RMB2,837,000).
The remaining exchange (losses)/gains for the years ended 31
December 2022 and 2021 are arised from certain trade payables,
trade receivables and cash and cash equivalents which are
denominated in foreign currencies.

FINANCE COSTS - NET

Finance income: MHEBA :

Bank interest income SRITH) B WA

Finance costs: MHBRF :

Interest expense on lease liabilities A& &E/NF SR

Interest expense on redemption EEaENTH SRS
liabilities

Finance costs - net MBRF — BHE

10 RUBAR (BiR) W& -

B8 (8|
P 3 -

HZE2022F12 A31 HIEFE @ $2022
F11A8A (LM AHRRILERE
EEENBE) ENBRENETIED
BEENEENINEBERIFEHNAEARE
76,377,0007T (20214 : SMNEURZSFHE
HARME2,837,000) ° B ZE2022F &
2021F12 A1 AL FE » FIHEH (&
B) WS THREAIINESENETES
BRHIE - BHRUBGKEURES KT

11 MERE - B8

Year ended 31 December

HZ12A31BLEE

2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®FR ARET T

5,665 1,185
(288) (229)
(18,683) (11,316)
(18,971) (11,545)

(13,306) (10,360)
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Current income tax charge BUEAFT /87 2
Deferred income tax credit RS TE R
Income tax expense Frg B =

Shanghai Shape Memory Alloy is qualified as a “High and
New Technology Enterprise (‘HNTE”)” under the relevant
PRC laws and regulations on 23 October 2017 (status
renewed on 18 November 2020). Accordingly, it is entitled
to a preferential income tax rate of 15% on its estimated
assessable profits for the years ended 31 December 2022
and 2021. Shanghai Shape Memory Alloy is subject to the
requirement for re-applying for the renewal of this HNTEs
status every three years.

According to the relevant laws and regulations
promulgated by the State Administration of Taxation of
the PRC that has been effective from 2021 onwards,
enterprise engaging in research and development
activities are entitled to claim 200% of their research
and development expenses incurred as tax deductible
expenses when determining their assessable profits for
that year (the “super deduction”).

e BB HRRHEE

12 FRSHRAX

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A3MHILEE

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBFIT
11,791 12,429
(7,010) (5,099)
4,781 7,330

R2017%10 238  {RIEABEHEH
EEER BB RREEASME
HEemFEmtx] R (ZEH
R20204%11 18 BEH) - EIIt -
HAE#GEH E2022F K20214
12 A 31 B IEF[E &Y (& 51 FE 27 5 51
ZX15%MERRE - EBFMED
BAEeM BB =FEFHBEaH
RS BB -

RIEFBEBRRGEABEM - LB
2021 FEB EITHNRBARER
REMBEINEXRNETHEAH
FENERGMNEE - AEEGH
HES MR X M200%E &7 H
BiFAT ([HNEtFNER])
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e M HRRHE

12

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

12 PRSI (&)

Reconciliation of income tax expense FriSHi T WE R

A reconciliation of the expected income tax calculated at

the applicable tax rate and profit before income tax, with &
the actual income tax is as follows: T
(Loss)/profit before income tax FTiS®iAT (B518),/ FIE

Tax calculated at the PRC statutory LARR BIATE R R (25%) 5+ & /) £ 18
tax rate (25%)

Tax effect of: AT EIERNREE
Preferential tax rate BEHE
Expenses not deductible for tax AT HFR B 32

purpose

Super deduction for research and  FfFZ£ R 32 H9 pOTH0BR
development expenses

BERR XA ENBRMGH &

75 B A1) B2 B PR BT 15 0 A9 ¥ BR 20
Year ended 31 December
BZE12A3MBHILEE
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBFIT
(15,032) 66,027
(3,758) 16,507
(10,374) (10,207)
27,128 6,726
(8,215) (5,696)
4,781 7,330
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13 (LOSSES)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

(@)

Basic (losses)/earnings per share

Basic (losses)/earnings per share is calculated by
dividing the (loss)/profit attributable to owners of
the Company by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during each year.

(Loss)/profit attributable to owners
of the Company for the year
(RMB’000)

Weighted average number of

FT)

e BB HRRHEE

13 SR (5GR) 2B

(a)

A A TS AR
(B518),/ FIE (AR

BT E BN 2R

ordinary shares in issue (BATF5T) (B5E)
(in thousands) (note)

Basic (losses)/earnings per share BRER (EBER)EF
(in RMB per share) (B ARETT)

Note:

The basic earnings per share for the year ended 31
December 2021 is calculated based on the profit
attributable to owners of the Company and on the
assumption that 277.2 million shares issued upon the
incorporation of the Company in connection with the
Reorganisation were deemed to have been in issue since
1 January 2021. In addition, the 29,558,155 shares
subscribed by the Pre-IPO Investors (Note 27(c)) are treated
as ordinary shares for the purpose to calculate earnings
per share for the year ended 31 December 2021 as they
are recognised in equity and have no preferred right as to
dividends compared with ordinary shares.

Movement in the number of fully paid ordinary shares
outstanding for the reported periods are shown in
Note 27.

BREX (BE) BF

SRER (FR),/ BAEEF
PO D R A RE( (51R),/
FITER LA S B 17 2 AR AR T
B o

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A3MHILEE

2022 2021
20225 20214
(19,813) 58,697

327,556 303,883

(0.06) 0.19

it

HZE2021F12 A1 B ILEENE
REARBFIRA QB ES ABEF
BREBEAARFMAZERE
HBBEITH277 2B BB MR B
B202141 A1 B#REETHE -
4N - St EHZE2021412A31H
LEFENBRANE  BRAH
BEAREE (M3E27(c)) FTRE
#929,558,155 DR AL @
B HHERESE RN EETRER
B @A TEREZREL
% °

HEMABTHEINEBEE
B ) B K27
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e M HRRHE

13 (LOSSES)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

14

(Continued)

(b) Diluted (losses)/earnings per share

Diluted (losses)/earnings per share is the same as
basic (losses)/earnings per share as there were no
potential dilutive ordinary shares outstanding during
the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

At 1 January 2021
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

Year ended 31 December 2021
Opening net book amount
Additions

Write-off

Depreciation charge

Closing net book amount

At 31 December 2021
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

Year ended 31 December 2022
Opening net book amount
Additions

Write-off

Transfer upon construction completed

Depreciation charge
Closing net book amount

At 31 December 2022
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

R2021£1R1R
B
2ithE

BEBE

BE2021F12831 B LB
FOREHE

FE

s

FERX

FXRERE

R2021%12A318
s
B

RERE

HE2020F12831 B L FE
FREHE

FE

i3

RrETRER

FERX

EXBERE
R2022%12A318
RE

B

RERE

13 S (BR) B (&)

(b)

BREE (BB BF

HRRE £ 2022F K 20214F12
AB1BILEESEELED B
TEHETER At SREE
(E518),/ BFHEFRRERN (&
8),/ BFHER -

14 P¥  BERBRH

Electronic

Buildings  equipment  Machinery Vehicles Others Total

g  ETRE B L] Hfp aF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB‘000
ARMTR  ARMTT ARMTR AR®TR AR®TR  ARETR
69,716 1,189 17417 2,334 1,356 92,072
(12,722) (929) (9,194) (799) (1.232) (24,876)
56,994 260 8,283 1535 124 67,196
56,994 260 8,283 1535 124 67,196

= 983 10,606 - 1,106 12,69

- (1) - - - (1)
(1622) (442) (1,240) (2n) (54) (3,629)
56,372 800 17,649 1,264 1,176 76,261
69,716 2,141 28,083 2,334 2,462 104,736
(14,344) (1,341) (10,434) (1,070) (1,286) (28,475)
56,372 800 17,649 1,264 1,176 76,261
55,372 800 17,649 1,264 1,176 76,261
1,714 97 19,638 - 211 21,660
- (1) - - - (1)

302 - - - (302) -
(1,953) (297) (2,302) (268) (122) (4,942)
55,435 599 34,985 996 963 92,978
7,782 2,231 47,721 2,334 2,311 126,395
(16,27) (1,638) (12,736) (1,338) (1,408) (33,417)
55,435 599 34,985 996 963 92,978
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e BB HRRHEE

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14 Y% - BERBRE ()
(Continued)
Depreciation of property, plant, and equipment charged BREmIROYE - BB REERT
to profit and loss and the amounts of depreciation being ERENMCTESEINAT

capitalised are analysed as follows:

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A3MHILEE

2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®FR ARET T

Depreciation for the year FRITE 4,942 3,629
Less: amounts capitalised as B BTN ABFEEENTE
intangible assets (1,526) (747)

Amount charged to profit or loss BEZMRE S (FisE7)
(Note 7) 3,416 2,882

Representing amounts charged to:  BUA TS EMKR S8 ¢

- cost of sales — HEKAR 1,461 839
— distribution expenses — iESEA X 68 50
— general and administrative — —RRITBHAX
expenses 973 1,100
- research and development — R
expenses 914 893
3,416 2,882
15 LEASES 15 #H§{
(@) Right-of-use assets recognised in the consolidated (@) MECEEEBRAEINGE
balance sheets AEEsE
As at 31 December
MW12A31H
2022 2021
20224F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TRT AR®TT

Right-of-use-assets EREEE

— Leased buildings —HEEF 4,563 6,763
The Group leases various warehouses, staff AEBHERERE  B1MRE
dormitories and areas for its research and = hEREEE S - HEAS
development activities. Rental contracts are typically BB EHE2E 59 85 EE 2
made for fixed periods of 2-5 years without extension B - MmaEHE =R s R B E

option or residual value guarantee. IR o
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15 LEASES (Continued)

(@)

Right-of-use assets recognised in the consolidated

balance sheets (Continued)

Movements in right-of-use assets are as below:

At 1 January 2021
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

Year ended 31 December 2021
Opening net book amount
Additions

Depreciation charge

Closing net book amount

At 31 December 2021
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

Year ended 31 December 2022
Opening net book amount
Additions

Depreciation charge

Closing net book amount

At 31 December 2022
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

15 #HE (&)

(a) REEEESERABINME
REEE (&)

EREEENZEZHINT

Leased buildings

HERTF
RMB’000
ARET T
202118 1H
BN 1,758
REHinE (1,542)
RERE 216
#HFE2021F12A31HLLEE
FHERE FE 216
NE 8,220
TERX (1,673)
FERIEEFE 6,763
20215128 31H
BN 8,452
25 E (1,689)
RSB E 6,763
#HE2022F12A31BILEE
FEREFE 6,763
NE 653
WERX (2,853)
FEXRIFEBE 4,563
20225E12A31H
DN 9,105
Eii (4,542)
R E 4,563




15 LEASES (Continued)

(b)
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e BB HRRHEE

Lease liabilities recognised in the consolidated
balance sheets as follows:

Lease liabilities — current
ease liabilities — non-current

Amounts recognised in profit or loss as follows:

EREEEMNTERX
(B&E7)
M BRI (MEE11)

Depreciation charge of right-of-use
assets (Note 7)
Interest expense (Note 11)

15

HE (§|)
(b) REEEEABRAEIRNAE
E8E8WMT :
As at 31 December
M12A31H

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBFIT
1,791 2,143
1,544 4,044
3,335 6,187

(c) REZHEINET|MT :

Year ended 31 December

BZ128318LLEE

2022
202245
RMB’000
AR®FT

2,853
288

2021
20214
RMB’000
AREETTT

1,673
229
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16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16 BREME
Buildings
BF
RMB’000
ARET T
At 1 January 2021 #2021FE181H
Cost B R 45,081
Accumulated depreciation REtine (4,458)
Net book value REFE 40,623
Year ended 31 December 2021 #E2021F12A31HILEE
Opening net book value F ¥R EDFE 40,623
Depreciation charge (Note 7) TERZ (EE7) (1,070)
Closing net book value FERIEmFE 39,553
At 31 December 2021 72021512831 H
Cost PR 45,081
Accumulated depreciation 25T E (5,528)
Net book value RERE 39,553
Year ended 31 December 2022 #E20225F12A31HILEE
Opening net book value FYREFE 39,553
Depreciation charge (Note 7) TEM (FH&ET7) (1,070)
Closing net book value FRIREBE 38,483
At 31 December 2022 ®2022%12A31H
Cost B R 45,081
Accumulated depreciation 2t E (6,598)
Net book value RERE 38,483
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16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(a)

(b)

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the fair values
of the investment properties of the Group as
determined by an independent professional valuation
firm amounted to approximately RMB44,663,000 and
RMB47,300,000, respectively.

The amounts recognised in profit and loss for
investment properties are as follows:

e BB HRRHEE

16 |EWMR (&)

(a)

Rental income (Note 10) WA (FFzE10)
Direct operating expenses from EERSWARNYIZERN
properties that generated rental HEEERT

income

Depreciation of investment properties for the years
ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 have all been
charged to “general and administrative expenses”.

Leasing arrangements

The investment properties are leased to tenants
under operating leases with rentals payable quarterly.
There are no variable lease payments that depend
on an index or rate.

Minimum lease payments receivable on leases of
investment properties are as follows:

Within 1 year 1FR
Between 1 and 2 years 15224
Between 2 and 3 years DR

(b)

R20224F 2021912 A 31
B BYSHEHEAAEEHN
AEBBEEMENAAREED
R A AR 44,663,000 7T &
AR#47,300,0007T °

MIREMEEBEZPHERNE
R

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A3MHILEE

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBFIT
530 2,564
(1,070) (1,070)

HE2022F 2021412 A 31
BIEFE  BEWENTER
FEBE—MRERITERASZ M
B/% o

A

BANMLREGEBOEET
AP BERFEXN - BE
R B R B 2T

=5
A °

BB E D ET AR R E
ERHMT ¢

As at 31 December

MW128318
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBFIT
507 2,497
146 2,418
- 1,239
653 6,154
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17 GOODWILL

Goodwill on acquisition of Shanghai Wi EiEFMRZIEAS LMK

Shape Memory Alloy EOfHES

Lepu Medical acquired 100% of the equity interest in
Shanghai Shape Memory Alloy in October 2008 from an
independent third party. The goodwill of approximately
RMB48,282,000 as recognised represents the excess of
the purchase consideration over the fair value of the net
identifiable assets acquired, which is attributable to the
core technology and synergy effects expected from the
Occluder Business of Shanghai Shape Memory Alloy.

For the purpose of impairment review for goodwill
and intangible assets not subject to amortisation (i.e.
capitalised development costs in Note 18 refers) which
are attributable to the CGU of Occluder Business, the
recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based on
value-in-use calculations. These calculations use pre-tax
cash flow projections based on financial budgets prepared
by management covering a five-year period. Cash flows
beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using the
estimated terminal growth rates stated below.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRHE

17 &8

As at 31 December
M12A31H
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBFIT
48,282 48,282

BB 2008 F 10 AR — BB
BF=ZFWE LB REEASME
100% BIPEAHERS - DAY AR
#48,282,000 LM B AiE B ¥ E
BEEWREAEZNFEENAARE
ERND @ TEER LSRR
AEMENZLENREHA LE
FEREBIREE MR EREEES
79155 R 2 FE o

REEBNHEREBREELE
MEEREREHNOETLEER
BEE (AME18MRERERLH
BRA)  ReELABUNAEKSE
BORBEEREEHEEE - &5
AERAERNEREERENTFH
MBEEENRAR S RERA - 8
BRFHNRSREER N AE
R A IR R RETIES -
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17 GOODWILL (Continued)

The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations
are as follows:

Gross
profit margin

EHE

As at 31 December 2022
As at 31 December 2021

86.18% - 87.91%
85.93% - 88.35%

R2022%12 A31H
R2021%12A31H

The growth rate for the first 5 years and budgeted gross
profit margin were determined by the management based
on past performance and its expectation for market and
product development. The discount rate used is pre-tax
and reflects market assessments of the time value and the
specific risks relating to the industry.

The result of the impairment testing reveals that
the estimated recoverable amount of the CGU of
Occluder Business far exceeded its carrying amount
as 31 December 2022 and 2021 by approximately
RMB494,592,000 and RMB484,252,000, respectively.

The directors of the Company have not identified that a
reasonable possible change in any of the key assumptions
that could cause the carrying amount of goodwill and
intangible assets not subject to amortisation (attributable
to the CGU of Occluder Business) to exceed their
recoverable amounts. Accordingly, the directors of the
Company have concluded that no provision for impairment
is required to be recognised as of the respective balance
sheet dates.

e BB HRRHEE

17 B8 (#8)

EAEBETEMRANARKRRN
T

Growth rate Terminal Pre-tax
of revenue  growth rate discount rate
BARRE BiRRARE R

2.34% - 5.77% 0.00% 15.42%
1.00% - 4.00% 0.00% 15.73%

BEELFHNERENBBEEMNEK
HEERERBEERANRHEATIS
REMBERNOBEHREE - AATR
ERBAFRE  RRESHEEE
KRBITRABORERROT ST
fity o

BENRNGE RE RSB R E
BHEESELBEMMGH T K
OeERBEKMME  K2022
FR2021FE12A31HORH A
AR#494 592,000t K AR
484,252 0007T ©

ARREEHARERNEHRBER
HESEBRSELBEUNEHER
EFHRENETEENREERR
Huj @B ERERKRERONE
BAEZY - Wit ARAREER
B BEREERBERAHEAE
AR RS -
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18 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18 EEEE
Patents and Purchased Development
licences software costs Total
EfRFR EBEMHMG A Gl
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
At 1 January 2021 1®20211H81H
Cost B 25,864 108 41,927 67,899
Accumulated amortisation 25T (1,899) @7 - (1,940)
Net book value IRERE 23,971 61 41,927 65,959
Year ended 31 December 2021  &F2021F12A31 AL EE
Opening net book value ENERFE 23,971 61 41,927 65,959
Costs for internal development WEBF R AR - - 74,996 74,996
Additions NE - 19 - 19
Transfer (note) B (Fi5E) 24,898 - (24,898) -
Amortisation charge HHER (4,404) (13) - (4,417)
Closing net book value FXREEBE 44,465 67 92,025 136,557
At 31 December 2021 1#2021F12A31H
Cost B 50,762 127 92,025 142,914
Accumulated amortisation 25T (6,297) (60) = (6,357)
Net book value MRS E 44,465 67 92,025 136,557
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Year ended 31 December 2022 HE2022512831ALEE

Opening net book value ENEREFE
Costs for internal development AR A
Additions RE
Transfer (note) EYN(E)
Amortisation charge BHER
Closing net book value FXEEPE
At 31 December 2022 1#202212R 318
Cost A
Accumulated amortisation 25t

Net book value BESE
Note:

During the year ended 31 December 2022, Shanghai Shape
Memory Alloy obtained one (2021: two) Medical Device
Registration Certificate related to new occluder products. The
carrying amount of the related development costs as previously
capitalised were therefore transferred to patents and licences with

amortisation commenced then accordingly.

The Group’s development costs represented capitalised
development expenditures which are not subject to
amortisation during the development stage but are subject

to an annual impairment test.

18 |ELHE (i)

Patents and  Purchased Development

licences software costs Total
SHRET CHENKRH HERF At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AE®TRT AE%TR AR®TR
44,465 67 92,025 136,557
- - 69,107 69,107
6,042 452 - 6,494
16,734 - (16,734) -
(7,496) (54) - (7,550)
59,745 465 144,398 204,608
73,538 579 144,398 218,515
(13,793) (114) - (13,907)
59,745 465 144,398 204,608
MI5E

i o

BHZE2022F12A31HILFE « LBF
R BEEMEER—18 (2021F : @
TR ) ERL3T ] 45 28 E on AE A O B R 2R L s
#F Bt - EATE AR FE R A A
MEEEEEREERN R BB tRAR

AEBEORABEKAED EACHE
B EREEREFEE B
AEZ—RFERERA -
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18

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

For the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, part
of the eligible development costs attributable to the CGUs
of Occluder Business and Heart Valve Business are as
follows:

Occluder Business HIE R FES
Heart Valve Business 1 i 3R S 2 75

Development costs which are attributable to the CGU of
Occluder Business and more details of the impairment
test as conducted by management and the result of which
have been set out in Note 17.

Development costs which are attributable to the CGU
of Heart Valve Business are not subject to amortisation
and are tested for impairment on an annual basis at 31
December for each year, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that they might be
impaired in accordance with International Accounting
Standard 36 “Impairment of Assets”. The recoverable
amount is determined based on fair value less cost of
disposal.

18 |ELHE (i)

HE2022F K20215E12 A31 8 1k
FE o HHEES TS RO IR 375
MIRSELBEMMEEBLEER
FBERAIAT -

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A3MHILEE

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBFIT
60,263 50,547
84,135 41,478
144,398 92,025

FEKNAHBEBRIAEREBTHIR
SELEN  ERBETHRER
HNEZFBERELRD HHIRH
FE17 o

FERUDEREXBENREeELS
RN AERSEE  WYREBF
12 A31 BETEERERI « 3
= ok 1B B B 5% B A] AL BB A
Br - BIRIRCBIBR 2520 ) 53655
[BERMEBE]ELEREZRHR - ER
AREERLEKRAET A KE S
B o
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

The management has involved an independent qualified
valuer to perform impairment assessment to assess
the fair value less cost of disposal of the development
costs which are attributable to the CGU of Heart Valve
Business as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 by using
the discounted cash flow approach. For the discounted
cash flows, the estimated revenue was based on the
management’s expected timing of the product candidates’
commercialisation, productivity and sales volume.
Management estimated the product candidates’ sales
volume based on market conditions and the state of
technology development. Management then adjusted
the estimated revenue to profit contributed from the
development costs which are attributable to the CGU of
Heart Valve Business by considering a percentage of costs
and operating expenses to the revenue (‘cost component
ratio”), which was determined by reference to the current
operating margin levels of comparable companies, with
adjustments made based on management’s industry
experience as well as the research and development
plans. Finally, management estimated the discount rate
based on the uncertain success rate of commercialisation
for the applicable product candidates.

Considering the development stage and expected
market conditions, management expected that the first
commercialisation year of related heart valve product
candidates will be in 2025. Based on the related heart
valve product candidates’ life cycle and industry practice,
the management expected that the estimated useful life of
related heart valve products is at least 10 years. The cash
flow projections for the first five years from 2026 to 2030
are based on financial budgets prepared by management
based on market conditions. The cash flow projections for
the subsequent years from 2031 to 2035 are extrapolated
based on the forecasts using a steady growth rate of
revenue of 2%, which does not exceed the long term
industry growth forecast for the market in which the Group
operates. The key assumptions used in the fair value less
cost of disposal calculation for the CGU of Heart Valve
Business are as follows:

e BB HRRHEE

18 |ELHE (i)

EREECZE—RBULAERME
BETRERNS  KANBARS
MmEEER2022F 2021 F12 A
S1HBEBROEREXREE
EBNHRERANA R EERD
ERAETE - HRITRBER
= BEMADDEREEEH TSR
EmBECHER  ESMESH
TEET - B ERIE ™ 5 B0 M AT
BRMAN  BEAEAERNEE -
BEle - BEEBBERNARLE
A EBRABE D (KA E K
) - B EFFRAFAEZE BB D
fE kPR S 7S IR S B A AL M R B RK
KERMOAE  BEESLTI2E
A LA Bl E AR A8 & R E R KT =
E o WIREEIEEMNIT LM
BB ETHAE  cxE - EEER
BTEENBRENEMEELK
D ERAEFTHHTIRE o

ENFEEBRRTEREMERR - B
T2 [Z T8 51 A8 B8 /0 Bkl 3 B2 12 A 2E SR Y
BEMFELEFER B2025F « AR
B8 /0 Bl o S 7E A G A9 A A 1 B
MITEED - EI2EBFEEE LB
EEREGNGEAERFHREL A
104F » EEAFH (20264F £2030
F)MREREBADNERERER
RiZRRTRENTIETEE - &
BEE (2031 FE2035F) B S
mETER T EREA2% M iRERA
BERNIEAHES L  ZERER
TR A & B & FTfE T 5 8 K 85
TERRTEN - 5T E OB R ES
REEEBMAAREERHEK
NFTE R A RBEREBZOT
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18

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 18 EELEE (])

Growth rate of revenue

BARRE

Gross profit
margin 2026-2030

2026 F

EHE 20304

As at 31 December 2022 7202212 A31H 70%-85% 24.4%-188.4%
As at 31 December 2021 7202112 A31H 70%-85% 24.4%-188.4%

Based on the result of impairment assessment, the
recoverable amount of the CGU of Heart Valve Business
is estimated to be exceeded its carrying amount by
approximately RMB11,645,000 as at 31 December 2022.

The recoverable amount of the CGU of Heart Valve
Business would equal its carrying amount, if each of the
key assumptions were to change as follows, with all other
variables held constant, and the management believe that
the key assumptions would not likely to change as follows:

Gross profit margin EFE
Growth rate of revenue U A 38 &
Cost component ratio ASTE R EE

Post-tax discount rate i1 3rIe X

Cost
component Post-tax
2031-2035 ratio discount rate
2031EE
20354 57317114 REmRE
2% 54.3%-68.3% 17.9%
2% 54.3%-68.3% 17.9%

BIERETGAER - DRREREER
IR B A B AR O] Y B & BEAE 5T S
BHER2022F12 A31 HHERMEE
#) AR #11,645,0007T °

WESEMBERIBEATES
M EMEERTNE - B
WMEXGREAEMHITRE S
BMESNEKAE MEEERA
BRI ARRER LM T 28 :

As at As at

31 December 31 December
2022 2021
20224 12021 F
12A31H 12H31H
-5.44% -12.54%
-4.52% -7.68%
+4.08% +8.40%
+1.79% +3.57%
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18 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 18 | EE ()

The directors of the Company have not identified that a INA A E F W AR IR A S B0 B
reasonable possible change in any of the key assumptions BREBEcEASVEEREBLE
that could cause the carrying amount of the CGU of A E & EREMBERBERNEE
Heart Valve Business to exceed its recoverable amount. ATREEE) c NABIEERE © EE
The directors of the Company have concluded that HRMR20224F 2021412 A31H
no provision for impairment of the CGU of Heart Valve B /O B I PR SE 75 3R B AR B AL AD R
Business is required to be recognised as at 31 December B -

2022 and 2021.

Note: M5 -
Amortisation of intangible assets has been charged to profit or EREENEHEEEBERTIRHIERNL
loss or capitalised as follows: W
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A3MBLLEE
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTR ARETT
Amortisation for the year F Y 7,550 4,417
Less: amounts capitalised as B BRNMEERBEK AN SR
development costs (20) (235)
Amount charged to profit or loss (note 7) B EzEHIFRREEE (FIFE7) 7,530 4,182
Representing amounts charged to: BUATEREHRASHE
- cost of sales — HEKA 6,853 4,168
— general and administrative expenses ~ — — & R ITHBE 52 11
— research and development expenses — — FFZE RS2 625 3

7,530 4,182
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19 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 19 EFHESHEMTIR

The Group holds the following financial instruments: REEREATSRITE

As at 31 December

MW12A31H
2022 2021
2022%F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRT AREET T
Assets as per consolidated FEEERABERATEE
balance sheets
Financial assets at amortised cost ARk ANzt EM L REE
— trade receivables — B 5l FIE 30,615 23,869
— other receivables — H b WA 4,070 1,816
— long-term bank deposit and — REARITEFERARB R
cash and cash equivalents HEEEY 1,016,911 713,480
Financial assets at FVPL NARBEFEAHEEZESH A
EHERNEREE 258,109 =
1,309,705 739,165
Liabilities as per consolidated HEeEEARRMTAR
balance sheets
Financial liabilities at amortised cost A K AT EN SR A E
— trade and other payables — B 5 REMENFIE
(excluding employee (TEREENEBRN R
benefits payables and other o FE TR FR)
taxes payable) 21,667 13,994
— lease liabilities —HEBRE 3,335 6,187
- redemption liabilities —ELAaE - 679,986
25,002 700,167
The Group’s exposure to various risks associated with AEEHENESHT EABH S
the financial instruments has been set out in Note 3. The ERBEHRIES - REEEBER
maximum exposure to credit risk at each balance sheet HEMEAEERR A LS ES
date is the carrying amount of each class of financial R EERBREE o

assets as mentioned above.
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20 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 20 ERIEFRFIR
The analysis of deferred income tax assets/(liabilities), prior BIEFTSBEE /(8F) (RFME
to any offset pursuant to net-off provisions, is as follows: B EITEMEE 281 DT

As at 31 December

M12H31H
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARBT T

Deferred income tax assets BLEMSTHEE
- to be recovered within 12 months ~ — A 121& A WUk [E 5,376 3,326
— to be recovered after 12 months —R12E AR E 10,889 6,259
16,265 9,685

Deferred income tax liabilities BELEMSTHAE
- to be settled within 12 months — 128 A AEE (535) (349)
- to be settled after 12 months — 12 &5 E (149) (665)
(684) (1,014)
15,581 8,571
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when & B A TE A of &l 0 77 R I T 5% BD HR
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current income FIEHMEERNBMEHEEHE
tax assets against current income tax liabilities and when iH - BEREMSEH S KR -5
the deferred income tax related to the same tax authority. MR - Al EEMEHEERS

EHREHEH -
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20 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 20 BEEFFBI (#)

The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities
during the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021,
without taking into consideration the offsetting of balance
within the same tax jurisdiction, are as follows:

Deferred income tax assets

Allowances
for Contract Tax
receivables  liabilities losses

FEWFE

B AKAR  HEER
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARMTR ARETR

HE2022F K20215E12 A31 8 1k
FE BEEAESREERAGNE
BT (Rt kARG AEER
R IREY) ¢

ELEFSHEARE

Fair value
changes of
financial Lease
assets liabilities Others Total
SHEE
DER
28  HEEE 2 &t
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AE®TR AR%Tn AR%Tn ARETn

As at 31 December 2020 R2020£12A31A 1,351 1,128 = - - 393 3472

(Charged)/credited to profit orloss  (1IBx&) /3 ABB% (80) 5 5,652 - 929 (399) 6,113

As at 31 December 2021 R2021%£128318 1,271 1,733 5,662 - 929 - 9,585

As at 31 December 2021 R2021%12A31A 1,271 1,733 5,652 - 929 - 9,585

Credited/(charged) to profitor loss ~ 3fA /(I B )85 859 12 5,006 1,231 (428) - 6,680

As at 31 December 2022 #2022%12R318 2,130 1,745 10,658 1,231 501 - 16,265
Deferred income tax liabilities EERESHARE

Right-of-use

assets

EREEE

RMB’000

AR¥T

As at 31 December 2020 72020128 31H -

Charged to profit or loss Mk BB (1,014)

As at 31 December 2021 720215128 31H (1,014)

As at 31 December 2021 ®2021%¥12HA31H (1,014)

Credited to profit or loss FF A= 330

As at 31 December 2022 720225128 31H (684)
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21 PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21 FA{IZEREMEWKZRIE

As at 31 December

R12H31H
2022 2021
2022% 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETT

Receivables due from related parties & Uk B8 75 7008 (FzE36(c))

(Note 36(c)) 334 -
Deposits i 2,715 1,348
Staff advance BT #5K 485 397
Receivables from sales on behalf of a RKENRKBEH T HER

related party FEUFRIE 100 =
Others Ei 675 259

4,309 2,004
Less: provision for impairment of other J& : E th FE UL R IE Rl (B B 1

receivables (239) (188)
Other receivables — net Efb Ui GRIE — F58 4,070 1,816
Prepayment to related parties TE B R 75 5138 (BT 7E36(c))

(Note 36(c)) 1,358 58
Prepayment for raw materials and JR M R B Ath TR A 5RE

others 22,794 9,948
Prepayment for purchases of property, EEE % - BE LR ETER

plant and equipment A 3,156 11,187
Prepayment for products testing and & @8I KR B R X5 & A Fa

clinical trial fee TRIE 3,410 3,547
Value-added tax recoverable A YR Bl (B 1,810 1,705
Listing expenses prepaid or to be A ER M EmHAY

capitalised - 3,474
Others HAh 4,705 1,217

37,233 € 136
Total prepayments and other TR FRIE R H Ab fE W IB 4258

receivables 41,303 32,952
Less: non-current portion o IEREE D (3,238) (11,187)
Current portion RENER D 38,065 21,765
Note: MzE -

Other receivables due from related parties are denominated Efﬁﬁ%ﬂ&\%@ﬂﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂlﬁb{/\ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ - &
in RMB, unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of I PEEE - BEEEEEESR -

repayment.
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22 INVENTORIES

Raw materials

Work in progress
Finished goods

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021,
inventories recognised in profit and loss amounted to
approximately RMB23,540,000 and RMB19,835,000,
respectively. These costs are charged to profit or loss as

follows:

Cost of inventories sold or
consumed charged to:
— cost of sales
— research and development
expenses

22 HFH
As at 31 December
M12A31H

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBFIT
BTk 27,113 11,266
& 12,880 8,734
BURK o 17,405 13,402
57,398 33,402

B - ARFR ¢

HE2022F K% 2021412 A31 H It
FE REZTERNTFED NG
ABANR¥23,540,0007T & AR
19,885,0007T ° i EX AR EimF

Year ended 31 December

BZ128318LLEE

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREET T
BUATEENBRAE LK
ERETERA
— SHEK AR 8,087 10,299
— R
15,453 9,536
23,540 19,835
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23 TRADE RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables from contracts

with customers
— third parties
— related parties (Note 36(c))

Less: allowance for impairment

The Group generally does not offer any official contractual
credit terms to its customers and will closely monitor the
settlement pattern of respective customers. For certain
individual customers with long-term relationship with the
Group and have good credit history in the past, the Group
may allow them to settle the related receivable balances
within a discretionary period ranging from 30 days to 360
days.

Due to the impact of the COVID-19 in 2022, the Group
has temporarily extended the credit period for certain
customers from 180 days to 360 days considering their
good credit history in the past. The aging analysis of the
gross trade receivable as at 31 December 2022 and 2021,
based on invoice date, are as follows:

23 BHEWKRIE
As at 31 December
M12A31H
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBFIT
XEAHNE S EKGKIE
—%=5 43,540 31,887
— B85 (FIzE36(c)) 1,039 270
44,579 32,157
W B (13,964) (8,288)
30,615 23,869

AEBBEISRAERTFREEM
EXEHEEHR @ WiEHJEE
ERFRBEER - HRBETFTEAR
EEAERHBUEEBECEERER
FRERERE - AEB A8 7 5T
EXFEMIEETM30BE360H
HARB B FRRA B W R TE A 54 o

RN 2022 % COVID-19KI 52 £ - =t
FETEFAEEERHRL - A
EEER S EENEEHB180ARE
RE360K ° 20224 2021 4F12
A31BENRBZHHNE S EIKE
THBRENRRSITT ¢

As at 31 December

Within 1 year
Between 1 year and 2 years
Over 2 years

M12H31H
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT N B2
18R 25,944 25,332
i Z=peE 12,845 1,992
2P F 5,790 4,833
44,579 32,157
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23

24

TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to
measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for trade receivables. Details of
the allowance for impairment and the movement in the
allowance balance has been set out in Note 3.1(b).

The carrying amounts of trade receivables are
denominated in the following currencies:

RMB AR
USD ETT
EUR BT

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Investment in wealth management  RERFLSEE S EHITH
product issued by a private fund RO E G

23 WHEWKHRIA ()

ANEE e A CBRER I 5 R 2R ) 5
ORI E L AT ETEHEEERE -
ZAEHBE S RWFEEATES
TEHE BB S o REBE R B E e
R BRI FEIBE A 5ES.1(0) ©

# 5 s 0308 0 PR DA T 5 S
5HE -

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®FR ARET T

39,898 30,840
4,547 1,141
134 176
44,579 32,157

24 DARREMELRSEH
AERRENENEE

As at 31 December
M12H31H
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRT AREET T

258,109 =
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24 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

The financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as of
31 December 2022 represents the Group’s investment in a
USD-denominated wealth management product of USD37
million (equivalent to approximately RMB263 million at
date of investment) as offered by a private fund (registered
in the Cayman Islands Monetary Authority and is owned
by a Cayman lIslands incorporated segregated portfolio
company). The wealth management product has expected
rates of return of 1.6% to 3.5% per annum. Considering the
contractual cash flows do not qualify for solely payments
of principal and interest due to the variable returns, the
investment has been accounted for as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss. On 21 March 2023, the Group
has redeemed the entire investment and the cash proceeds
as received amounted to approximately USD37.18 million
(equivalent to approximately RMB256 million).

In addition to the abovementioned investment in the
USD-denominated wealth management product offered
by a private fund, the Group has also invested in wealth
management products offered by banks during the
years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021. All of the
investments in wealth management products as offered
by banks have been redeemed by the Group as of the
respective balance sheet date.

(i) Amounts recognised in profit or loss

The carrying amount of the financial assets was a
reasonable approximation of their fair value due to
the short-term investment period and stable yield
of the underlying investments. The net fair value
loss (comprising the net amounts of the investment
income and foreign exchange loss) as recognised as
“other losses-net” for the year ended 31 December
2022 amounted to approximately RMB4,928,000
(2021: not applicable) (Note 10).

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the
investment income from the Group’s investment in
wealth management products as offered by banks
amounted to approximately RMB10,395,000 (2021:
RMB6,669,000) (Note 10).

(i) Risk exposure and fair value measurements

Information about the methods and assumptions used
in determining fair value has been set out in Note 3.3.

24

e BB HRRHEE

DaRREFEAESEE
ASHRSHEMEE (&)

HZE2022F12 A31 HUARA R EBERT
EAEESFHFAEHEZINEHE
EEAEERERLEES (KHAS
HECREERAMIBMASEHS
MK ABIREEE ARHE)
RN ETENEMERITE
EBET (HEREEBHARK263
BEIL) c BUWEMMNTERFERE
B1.6%%E3.5% ° ERIEGHAER
ETHEERITZREMZFAE R
B WZEECHEARARBES
EAEEFHFAZHEZNEHE
EARR ° R2023%F3 218 » A&
BEEEO2HEE  EWBIEESM
BB AI7T18EEETT (HER
HARE256EETT) ©

B EMRERLEESBRENTETT
B EMIN  REBITREE2022
FEK2021F12 A31 B ILEERER
BITBRENEVER BESEE
BEXRE  AEBEEEORTERE
WATEEMERKE °

(i) REZPERINEHE

R ERIR & /1% & B Uk
HERTE eRMEEMNKREE
HEANAEBEAEMAE - H
£2022F 12 A1 HILFERE
RAEEMEEFEINAR
BEEEFHE(BERERA
MONEBEIFEE) HAEARE
4,928,000 (20214 « T iE
) (K17E10) ©

HZE2022%12 A81 H IEF
B AEEEERFTEEN
B EMOEERSOAAR
#10,395,0007C (20214 = A
R#6,669,0007T) (Kiz£10) °

(i) EREORAAEEE

BRABE2AABENTARR
RHVE R SSIBOHIFE3.3
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25 RESTRICTED CASH

Restricted bank balances

As at 31 December 2022, the restricted bank balances
are all denominated in RMB and representing restricted
bank deposit as a performance guarantee for testing and
processing service to be provided by the Group to certain

25 ZRER
As at 31 December
M12H31H

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AER®TT ARBFIT
PR HIERTT 4 54 790 =

R2022%12 A31H » XRHIRITE
BRI UARESTE  FHEALREE
M E R PR A R & i TR
KB XV IRTE R ZBR B SRITIF 3N

customer.
26 LONG-TERM BANK DEPOSIT AND CASH 26 REMIBTEHERLUERASRR
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS SER®/Y
As at 31 December
M12H31H
2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREEFIT
Cash and cash equivalents: HekBAeEEY
— Cash at bank and in hand — RITFERRFHEIRE 944,515 713,480
Cash and cash equivalents are ReRBCEEWU T B
denominated in: FHE :
- RMB — AR¥ 552,955 648,410
- HKD — BIT 307,628 -
- USD =35 79,315 63,094
- EUR — BT 4,617 1,976
944,515 713,480
Long-term bank deposit RARSRITIE A 21 & HE
denominated in: sHE
- RMB — ARE 72,396 =
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27 SHARE CAPITAL 27 K&
Number of  Nominal value Share
ordinary shares of shares capital
EEREE IR EE &N
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥ETR ARETR
Issued and fully paid ERTRMRE
As at 29 January 2021 (date of #2021F1H29H
incorporation of the Company) (FLREMAILZA) - - -
Issuance of ordinary shares BTk 324,294,997 324,295 324,295
As at 31 December 2021 #2021512A31H 324,294,997 324,295 324,295
Issued and fully paid ERTRAR
As at 1 January 2022 ®20225F1A1H 324,294,997 324,295 324,295
Issuance of ordinary shares upon EYSINGEET
completion of the IPO BEITEAR 22,455,000 22,455 22,455
As at 31 December 2022 ®2022%12A31H 346,749,997 346,750 346,750

On 29 January 2021, the Company was incorporated as
a joint stock limited liability company in the PRC by Lepu
Medical and Target Medical, with a registered capital of
RMB280,000,000. The shares as issued by the Company
during the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 are
summarised as below:

(@)

On 5 March 2021, Lepu Medical injected the 100%
equity interest of Shanghai Shape Memory Alloy to
the Company in exchange for 277,200,000 ordinary
shares of the Company. Upon completion of the
capital injection, capital reserve of approximately
RMB713,776,000, which represented the fair value of
100% equity interest of Shanghai Shape Memory Alloy
at the date of capital injection, was transferred to the
Company’s share capital and share premium accounts
for the amounts of approximately RMB277,200,000
and RMB436,576,000, respectively.

Target Medical has also subscribed 2,800,000
shares of the Company on 23 March 2021, with cash
consideration of RMB7,209,000. The difference of
par value of the shares issued and total consideration
of approximately RMB4,409,000 was recorded as
share premium.

MN2021%F1 298 » ANAQ A f %%
B N Ky A0 17 B AR B s R AR A2

RN BR AR

CEMEASAR

#280,000,0007T c AR A REZE
2022 F % 2021F12 A31 B IEFE
BITH MM BRI T

(a)

MR2021F35H & gEE
B LB REREEESME
100% B IR AN fE 2 ) F AR A 7]
VAR EN KA B) 277,200,000 A%
LAk EFETHE  BX
NEH A NREET13,776,000
gt Bl ESHMREREEEM A
RIEE B EIA100% A
MAREE @ BREREARRFMK
AERGOEERE @ ©ED 5
4 ANREE277,200,0007T &
AR #436,576,0007T °

R2021F3H23H " Xit
A 15 I8 LA A R #7,209,000
TR SHERE T AR A
2,800,000 Iz = B 1T
HHEEEAHENARKE
4,409,000 7T /) Z= 58 A RR 9 )%
BALR o
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e M HRRHE

27 SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

(b)

On 26 April 2021, the Company entered into
investment agreement with Ningbo Jiacheng
and Ningbo Jiadu, pursuant to which Ningbo
Jiacheng and Ningbo Jiadu subscribed 5,600,000
and 9,137,000 shares of the Company at
the consideration of RMB19,488,000 and
RMB31,796,000, respectively and these shares
were issued in June 2021. The difference of par
value of the shares issued and total consideration
of approximately RMB36,547,000 was recorded as
share premium.

Pursuant to the Pre-IPO Shareholders Agreement
as mentioned in Note 1.1, the Pre-IPO Investors
have subscribed 29,558,155 shares of the Company
at a total cash consideration of approximately
RMB609,740,000 (out of which, capital injection
amounts of approximately RMB512,560,000 are
denominated in USD (representing USD80 million
as injected by 3 of the Pre-IPO Investors) and these
shares have been issued by the Company in June
2021. The difference of par value of the shares
issued and total consideration of approximately
RMB580,182,000 was recorded as share premium.

Upon completion of the IPO on 8 November
2022, the Company has issued 22,455,000 new
shares at par value of RMB1.00 each for the cash
consideration of HKD29.15 per share. The total
gross proceeds from the IPO were approximately
HKD654,563,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB601,629,000). The share capital amount
in connection with the IPO issue amounted to
approximately RMB22,455,000 and the share
premium arising from the IPO issue amounted to
approximately RMB579,174,000. The issuance costs
paid mainly include share underwriting commissions,
lawyers’ fees, reporting accountant’s fee and other
related costs, which are incremental costs directly
attributable to the issuance of the new shares. These
costs amounting to RMB21,878,000 were treated as
a deduction against the share premium arising from
the issuance of shares upon completion of the IPO.

27 B&&E ()

()

MR2021F4H26H ' AR
AEEFZENERREES
I TR EHE Bt - BR
ZERBEEREEDIAAR
#19,488,000 Tt X A R
31,796,000 LA B RS 7 A
A 7]5,600,0004% % 9,137,000
BB - ZERD 202146
AT - BRITRMOHMEE S
REEH AR 36,547,0007T
B =R AR s B ABR ©

G S A N = = I/ NN
ZENREHZE B8R
BERMBEEUHDARE
609,740,000 ST HY 4238 & ¥ (8
REE RN 7R]29,558,155 B A% 1D
(Erh - 9y AR#512,560,000
TR EE2BIIAETFE
(JE3BBARAFABREARES
EARMBOBEEXET))  BZE
& E B ARARRKR202146 B
BT - BETRMME A LS
HE 4 AR ¥580,182,0007TC
B Z= R AR D R B ARR ©

R2022%11 A8HEK B X
AAZEER  AQARBET
22,455,000 (R FRREE A A
R¥E1.00cHF KD - Re
HEAFK29.15ETT - BIX
AABEMSRERBLNE
654,563,000 7T (F8E R4
AR#601,629,0007T) ° £
BRARABERTHEBANRAN
SHEYBARE22 455,000
T MBXARBEETE
EHBRMDEENAEARE
579,174,0007T ° B BT
AEZRERGEIEES - 2
MEM - BRSETAERRE
AR A - 22 AITH
R B EERISERA o A
R#21,878,0007T KA Bk A
RIER B IR AR E TR
TR EERD R EHR °
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28 TREASURY STOCK AND OTHER RESERVES

As at 1 January 2021

Issuance of shares to Lepu Medical
(Note 27(a))

Issuance of shares to Target Medical
(Note 27(a))

Issuance of shares to Ningbo Jiacheng
and Ningbo Jiadu (Note 27(b))

Issuance of shares to Pre-IPO Investors
(Note 27(c))

Deemed distributions (note a)

Deemed contributions (note a)

Recognition of redemption liabilities
(Note 31)

Share-based payments - deemed
contribution from Lepu Medical
(Note 29(a))

As at 31 December 2021

As at 1 January 2022

Issuance of ordinary shares upon
completion of the IPO (Note 27(d))

Share issuance costs (Note 27(d))

Derecognition of redemption liabilities
(Note 31)

Share-based payments - deemed
contribution from Lepu Medical
(Note 29(a))

As at 31 December 2022

®2021F1A18
L RERITRD (HE27()

XM GETRG (HE27()

ENEEEEAE G )
GE2())

AERDRREMREER TR
GEZC)

RIEDIR (HiEa)

RIENE (HiEa)

BB AR (MiEs1)

iR RERRFR
- RIERERRNHE (M5E29()

1#2021F12A 318

R202261A1H

BRARBEEEREETT AR
(W&E27(d)

BB (7E27(0))

B & ER IR (W31

AR RERNMR
- RIFLEBRNLE (W20()

#2022%12R31H

e BB HRRHEE

28 EETFR B H fth ik

Other reserves

Hitifs

Capital

reserve-

share-

Treasury Share Capital based
stock  premium reserve  payments Total

EARR-

MR A
ERFR  BROEE EARLNR EROAR At
RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT ARMTR ARBTR ARETR

(note b)
(MzEb)

- - (146,766) - (146,766
= 436,576 (713,776) - (277,200)
- 4,409 - - 4,409
- 36,547 - - 36,547
- 580,182 - - 580,182
- - (72,167) - (72,167)
- - 446,079 - 446,079
(671,507) - - - -
- - - 22,257 22,257
(671,607) 1,067,714 (486,630) 22,257 593,34
(671,507) 1,057,714  (486,630) 22,257 593,341
- 579,174 - - 579,174
- (21,878) - - (21,878)
671,507 - 103,539 - 103,539
- - - 24,352 24,352
- 1,615010 (383,091) 46,609 1,278,528
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28 TREASURY STOCK AND OTHER RESERVES
(Continued)

(@) Deemed distributions and contributions

28 EfFRRRAEMERE (&)

(a) HEFRREE

Year ended 31 December

HBZ12A31BLEE

2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AER®TRT ARBTIT
Deemed distributions RIED K
— Cash distribution to shareholder — REABRERREED
during the Reorganisation B3 & 9k (FE i)
(note i) - (72,167)
- (72,167)
Deemed contributions RIELE
— Cash receipt from Lepu Medical — B EsEREEEESM
for the Shanghai Shape BHEUE 7 58 SRR A
Memory Alloy’s transfer out of B B4 E BRI
investment in Ningbo Bingkun RIS (FIaED)
(note i) - 439,200
— Injection of Heart Valve Business ~ — JE AL IR ¥ 755
(note ii) (Bfg i) - 6,879
- 446,079

Notes:

(i)

Shanghai Shape Memory Alloy has acquired 63.05%
equity interests in Ningbo Bingkun from a third party
in September 2015 and its equity interests in Ningbo
Bingkun are further increased to 98.05% in December
2018. Shanghai Shape Memory Alloy has been
designated by Lepu Medical as the shareholding
entity to hold this investment on its behalf. Shanghai
Shape Memory Alloy’s investments costs in Ningbo
Bingkun were primarily financed by Lepu Medical,
with the remaining portion being financed by the
cash as accumulated from Shanghai Shape Memory
Alloy’s own business operations in prior years.

fia -

EEEREEAEM AR
2015 9RBE =W
585 R 63.05% K A% A 42
% WH2018FE 12 A E
REFRIEH A ERSE—
HHEZ98.05% o 4L B fF
BE EBEARTEEEME
BERER  RERAZE
& o EREARTEEEME
REFRENZENANEE
RETRELE  # T H5
A EBRREIRAE S MR
FEBEBKEMBREIE
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28 TREASURY STOCK AND OTHER RESERVES
(Continued)

(@) Deemed distributions and contributions (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

(Continued)

Ningbo Bingkun is principally engaged in the
research, development, production and sales of
surgical matching devices and minimally invasive
surgical-related products for use in open surgeries
and laparoscopic surgeries which are unrelated to
the Listing Business. Considering Ningbo Bingkun is
not a company engaged in the Listing Business, its
financial information (together with Shanghai Shape
Memory Alloy’s investments costs in Ningbo Bingkun
and any payable balances arisen from the investments
(the “Payable Balances”) as reflected in the Shanghai
Shape Memory Alloy’s standalone financial statements)
have not been included in these consolidated financial
statements.

As mentioned in Note 1.2, Shanghai Shape Memory
Alloy has disposed of its entire equity interest in
Ningbo Bingkun to Lepu Medical at a consideration
of RMB1,098,000,000 in December 2020. Part of
the disposal consideration of RMB658,800,000
was received by Shanghai Shape Memory Alloy in
December 2020 and the remaining consideration of
RMB439,200,000 was received by the Company in
January 2021. The cash receipts of these disposal
consideration have been accounted for as deemed
contribution from Lepu Medical.

28 EfFRRAEMERE (&)

(@) #HREDIRRELE (H)

B AE

(i)

€

(%)

ERRBETZNEFTFM
N BRJPR 52 3 4l 52 PR O T i A
E an iRk K 008 3 1l 48 BE 2 R
BT - AERBEE
EX TN Ak
ERNERRBELFLELD
EBH AT WEMBEH
CGER EBEAZREA M H
B 98 37 B 75 3R R AT R R Y
EEERLRES MR E
BRENBRERARREE
R EAAT FE A A R ([ FEAS 45
#1)) WARMARER A B 754
*o

1y e
%=

AR EET . 2Tl - BB AR
BEESMEER2020F12 A
LAAR#1,098,000,000 T 8
HERLLTBELEHEES
BRENEZDRAER - £
HERZIEE M ERK2020
F12 AREITRH HEHEA
R#658,800,0007T * bARA
ARIPR2021F1 A Y2 F gk
#HE AR 439,200,000 °
ZEHEHEMNRESKAR
ABRZ| AR ELE T B
& o
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28 TREASURY STOCK AND OTHER RESERVES
(Continued)

(@)

(b)

Deemed distributions and contributions (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(i) As part of the Reorganisation mentioned in Note
1.2, Shanghai Shape Memory Alloy has acquired
the Heart Valve Business from Lepu Medical at
an aggregate consideration of approximately
RMB72,167,000 which was treated as a deemed
distribution to the shareholder of the Group. The
net assets and financial results attributable to the
Heart Valve Business have been included in these
consolidated financial statements. During the year
ended 31 December 2021, the cash as injected by
Lepu Medical for the development of the Heart Valve
Business of RMB6,879,000 have been accounted for
as deemed contribution from Lepu Medical.

Treasury stock

Treasury stock was recorded to reflect the carrying
amount of the redemption liabilities when it was
initially reclassified from equity, and had been
reversed when the Group’s obligations in connection
with those redemption liabilities are reclassified
back to equity. As further detailed in Note 31, the
redemption liabilities and the treasury stock have
been fully derecognised upon the completion of the
IPO.

28 EfFRRRAEMERE (&)

(a)

(b)

BED KR HE ()
PifeE : (4E

iy EAWT1.2FMMELADN
—5H - EBERZEES
MBI LRHEENARE
72,167,0007T B %% 8 &
WEOHEIERER - E%
RABEHRNEERROERME
DR o /B PR HE T FE R Y
BEFERVBEEEE WA
NZEHBRE - REZE
202112 A31 A ILFE -
YL B REE O MR E
EBMIENHRSAARE
6,879,000 * ¥IB ARRYI
BRERLTEENLE -

EFR

REFREREEREHRDHE
B BEARARBREL S E
MEREE  YRAKERZE
BREENEETEN T ERE
S CAEEE - MHEE31 AT
E—Frrl - BOAGBRER
BRERBRAFEETHEE
BRI LHER -
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29 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

As mentioned in Note 1.1, both Ningbo Jiadu and Ningbo
Jiacheng are not controlled by the Group under the ESOP.

In June 2021, Ningbo Jiadu (with the authorisation from
the Board of Directors of Lepu Medical) has granted
9,136,842 shares of the Company to 49 employees of the
Group (the “Grantees”) at a consideration of RMB3.48 per
share under the ESOP which are vested when Grantees
complete a contractual terms of services with the aim to
motivate the Grantees to continue serving the Group in
future. The Grantees’ interests in these granted shares are
held through their proportionate partnership interests in
Ningbo Jiadu as limited partners.

Pursuant to the limited partnership agreement of Ningbo
Jiadu, the employees with equity incentive are restricted
from selling, transferring or disposing of their respective
partnership interest for the first 12 months from the date
of the Company’s shares are listed on a recognised stock
exchange (the “listing date”). On the first trading day after
each of the first and second anniversary of the listing
date, 15% of the interest owned by each of the employees
with equity incentive will be vested and released. On the
first trading day after the third anniversary of the listing
date, the remaining 70% of the interest owned by each
of the employees with equity incentive will be vested and
released.

If the Company fails to complete a successful listing of its
shares on a recognised stock exchange within 24 months
from the dates when the Grantees owned their respective
partnership interests in Ningbo Jiadu (the “partnership
joining date”), on each of the third and fourth anniversary
of the partnership joining date, 15% of the interests
owned by each of the employees with equity incentive will
be vested and released. On the fifth anniversary of the
partnership joining date, the remaining 70% of the interest
owned by each of the employees with equity incentive will
be vested and released.

29

e BB HRRHEE

LI {7 & B REA T3

B 1R AL - AR IR B R AR A
B BEREERERESHTEA
EE i -

R2021F6 8 @ BREE (KLET
BEREEeRE)ERBEREFR

TEIAFIR A RS 48 T HE R
AEEM49REE ([EARALD ET
9,136,842 AR AR © X EMH
AR AR BRTES B & 4O SR B 1
E%% = E%ﬁ(%ﬂﬁ&/\ﬂi}:%&m 75'5
AEBRT - ARARZER LK
NN EZBBEIEABREEA
REREZENRL OSBRSS -

BEEFEENERAESHE - B
ARNBBRDELARESFR S LT
2B EmAMEHE12EARA -
EERELBNEIASLEE &
FIEERESANEGEED - ©
tTTEHE—RE_REZEHNE
ARX5H SEEZERELEBHE
TAHAMIS%IERE TEHE R
WMeREMBABPEZRFE 2N Y
BARX5H SEZERELXEBHE

IHBERNERTONEER THE
R EEM -
i N R B RBEM R AR AEE R

ERAEEEAREDR A ([AR
Bl)#E24@AATHERNDER
REFRX B LT - AR A
BHE=RFOBF  ZEFAK
RABNE THRAEBNI6%ERT
FTUBRBBLRER - RABBFERA
Fi - SREAEREES EA TR
70% R T LASRE K 30K
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29 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

Set out below are the movement in the number of
awarded restricted shares under the ESOP:

At 1 January ®M1A1H
Granted BE&EH
Vested B2 RE
Forfeited B2

At 31 December ®12A31H

The fair value of the restricted shares granted to
employees is determined by using the discounted cash
flow method to determine the underlying equity fair value
of the Company and equity allocation based on OPM
model to determine the fair value of common shares.
Significant estimates on key assumptions, such as risk-
free interest rate, volatility, dividend yield and lack of
marketability discount are made based on management’s
best estimates.

Details of these key assumptions at the date of grant are
summarised as below:

Risk-free interest rate 42 [ e ) 21
Volatility SR

Dividend yield A% B UG 28 ==
Lack of marketability discount

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, management of
the Company has assessed and estimated that the
expected forfeiture rate for each of the vesting period
of the restricted shares granted to be 7.4% and nil,
respectively. Due to the change in the expected forfeiture
rate, a reversal of share-based payment expenses of
approximately RMB6,647,000 has been recognised and
net with the share-based payment expenses for the year
ended 31 December 2022.

BRZ TSR IR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRHE

29 LI BERAFTR ()

TXHIEEFREATERH
R B BE

Number of shares

R EE
2022 2021
20224 20214
9,136,842 =
- 9,136,842
(1,140,378) =
7,996,464 9,136,842

BETRERENIREIBMDOQAEE
ERFHERSREELETE - UEE
RABNHERESEAAEE UK
ERNBRTERENBEDACIAE
TEBRNAAEE- BRAMBRRK
REOBERMGE - MERRAX K
g RBWEERMRZ TS RE N
IR DERERENSKEMTSF
& o

R BB ZEMREREFEN
My

Key assumptions/
inputs

FRMEER
PN . E

2.61%
42.7%
0%
12%

R2022F K 2021F12H31H » &
ARIEEEDTFHRGAEREZ
BR ) B% 17 7R 4 57 B KA P 9 T8 HA )2 Uk
RN R AET.4% kT - ARTEHZIK
RWEH)  DRERARMN BERD
NRAZ RN ARYG,647,000
T HIBREZE 202212 31 B IE4E
ER ARG BER AN RS -
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29 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 29 LB SERATR(E)

(a) Expenses arising from share-based payment (@) UBRGARAEBHNARRZELE
transactions BB X

Year ended31 December
BZ12A3MHILEE

2022 2021
2022%F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRT ARBTT
Share-based payment expenses LARR D B E RS B 2 24,352 22,257
Less: amounts capitalised as B BN BEREER
intangible assets k] (3,839) (4,457)
Amount charged to profit or loss HiEEHBRA R 20,513 17,800
Representing amounts charged to: fEE MU TS IBHIRAEEE ¢
— distribution expenses — R SERI T 2,592 2,836
— general and administrative — R RITBHAX
expenses 11,927 9,200
— research and development — R
expenses 5,994 5,764
20,513 17,800

Considering the abovementioned shares were
granted to the Grantees for securing their continuous
services to the Group, the Group has recognised
the related share-based payment expenses during
the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.
The shares as granted by Ningbo Jiadu under the
approval from Lepu Medical (the parent of the
Company) are those shares as subscribed and fully
paid by Ningbo Jiadu in April 2021 (Note 27(b)).
Therefore, the grant of the shares by Ningbo Jiadu
to the Grantees without any recharge to the Group
has also been accounted for as deemed contribution
from shareholders in equity.

ZRD Al h B EER TR
AR S HE BAEER
% AEEDERNEZE2022
FER2021FE12 A1 BIEEE
B AR LA BR 15 A B0 A9 15 SR 7
Yo BRERERLETEE (X
AR AR #ER T H R
M RERFEMR202144 B
RENBEHBEHRMG (M
27(b)) > At B = E [
BABRETRO(EZRAEER
Ul ) 7n ABRZI A48 1EBR R R
REHEE -
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30

31

DEFERRED INCOME

Deferred government grants IR SE BT #64 B

Deferred government grants primarily comprised of assets
related government grants, which was deferred and
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the residual expected useful lives of the related assets.

REDEMPTION LIABILITIES

B AT B
BO&AE

Redemption liabilities,
at amortised cost

ATSIE®EHE
e
AR

Denominated in:
UsD
RMB

On 28 May 2021, the Company and the Pre-IPO Investors
as mentioned in Note 1.1 (i.e. Vivo Capital Fund IX,
SCC Growth, Shanghai Biomedical, Huaihua Haozhi and
CDH Supermatrix), entered into Pre-IPO Shareholders
Agreement, pursuant to which each of the Pre-IPO
Investors agreed to invest in the Company by subscription
of the increased registered capital of the Company.
The cash as injected by the Pre-IPO Investors for the
subscription of the Company’s shares as allotted pursuant
to the Pre-IPO Shareholder Agreement amounted to
approximately RMB609,740,000 (Note 27(c)).

30

31

iR FE Uy A
As at 31 December
M12A31H
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBFIT
- 482

3 FE A 468 B = 22 B 15 B IR T S B
HENEE  RREBEENTR
FEETAIE A F B A B ORI E W R

1B HER o

RO&KRE
As at 31 December
M12H31H

2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRT ARBFIT
- 679,986
- 571,165
- 108,821
- 679,986

202195 A28 H » AR A L&
H1AFENE X ARBESHRE
% (BlVivo Capital Fund IX + SCC
Growth » E/GEY) 85 - [B(LHEE
K CDH Supermatrix) 513 & XA
BERRERZE - Bt SERA
FEEMREERZABREARN
BT MERARENALDF °
BEXAAABEMREERREARN
AIRIBEE R A SRR E R EA
BEOBRDMEIANRESOBARE
609,740,0007T (FizE27(c)) °
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REDEMPTION LIABILITIES (Continued)

Pursuant to the Pre-IPO Shareholders Agreement, the
preferred rights were expected to be granted to the
Pre-IPO Investors or become effective when any of
the following circumstance occurs or the date comes,
whichever is the earliest (collectively the “Triggering Events
and Effective Dates”):

(i)

(i

(i)

The Company’s application for the IPO has not been
approved by the relevant regulatory authority or stock
exchange since submitting within twelve months;

The Company voluntarily withdraws the IPO
application or the listing sponsor of the Company
withdraws its recommendation letter;

The application of IPO was rejected or rebutted by
the relevant regulatory authority or stock exchange;

The Company fails to qualify its shares listed on a
recognised stock exchange prior to 31 December
2022.

These preferred rights are summarised as follows:

(@)

Liquidation preferences

In the event of any liquidation, dissolution or winding
up of the Company, either voluntarily or involuntarily,
the Pre-IPO Investors shall be entitled to receive
the liquidation preference amount, prior and in
preference to any distribution of any of the assets or
surplus funds of the Company to the other holders of
ordinary shares.

31

e BB HRRHEE

MERR (&)

REERCRAEEMRRGE =2
BAETIER—BBRH B HEIR
(NZBEEERE) R (REA[HE
BEHAREMBEH]) B BEE
RAABEMREERTEAERX
BREER

() ARBERAFEEHFER
RE12EAARESEREE
HFIEH R BT

(i) AXFERBEERAFABE
REEARE EMREARE

HiEREE

(i) BRARBEREREHEES
ZBPI K E H R 5 FTIE 48 5k K
8]

(v) ANRBEIREER2022F12 A31
HAMEERGOFEEBR—K
BRUEBEHR G L o

RSB T
() FEELHE

(EEAVNEIE EXRENSVEEEES
(VGRS = /NN
RBEEHREEGREREM
EBRBRFE AR IRARFHEM
BEXBHESHRTRESE
SHETE -
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31

REDEMPTION LIABILITIES (Continued)

(@)

(b)

Liquidation preferences (Continued)

The liquidation preference amount for the Pre-IPO
Investors is calculated whichever higher of: (i) the
distributable assets of the Company for the Pre-
IPO Investors based on their shareholding ratio;
(i) the original investment principals from the Pre-
IPO Investors, plus an annual simple rate of 10%
of the original investment principals for a period
of time commencing from the delivery date to the
actual payments date of the settlement (calculated
as 360 days in a calendar year) and any declared
but unpaid dividends or profits thereon up to the
date of the settlement, meanwhile, minus any
dividends or profits already distributed. If the amount
of distributable assets is not enough to cover the
amount calculated based on the method described
in (i) above, the difference should be paid by Lepu
Medical.

A liquidation event means (i) any sale, disposition or
conveyance by the Company of all or substantially
all of its assets (including the exclusive licensing of
all or substantially all the intellectual property assets
of the Company); (i) any merger, consolidation or
other transactions resulting in the Company acquired
by other entity or after which change the substantial
control of the Company; (iii) any liquidation,
dissolution or winding up, either voluntarily or
involuntarily, of the Company.

Anti-dilution right

If the Company increases its share capital at a price
lower than the price paid by the Pre-IPO Investors on
a per share capital basis (the “New Low Financing”),
the Pre-IPO Investors have a right to require: (i) the
Company to issue new share capital for nominal price
(or lowest price allowed by the law) to the Pre-IPO
Investors; (i) the Controlling Shareholder to transfer
the equity interests of the Company to the Pre-IPO
Investors at nominal price or the lowest price allowed
by the law; (i) the Controlling Shareholder to settle
the difference in cash, so that the total amount paid
by the Pre-IPO Investors divided by the total amount
of share capital obtained is equal to the price per
share capital in the new issuance.

31

MERR (&)

(a)

(b)

REELE (E)

BRARABERREENEE
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31 REDEMPTION LIABILITIES (Continued)

()

Redemption right

The Pre-IPO Investors have a right to require the
Lepu Medical to redeem their investments if (i)
the Company failed to qualify its shares list on a
recognised stock exchange before 31 December
2022; (ii) during the period from the issuance date
to before the Company’s share qualified list on a
recognised stock exchange, the Company and its
ultimate controlling shareholder or other existing
shareholders has committed a major criminal
violation; (iii) the ultimate controlling shareholder of
Lepu Medical was changed.

The redemption amount for the Pre-IPO Investors is
the original investment principals from the Pre-IPO
Investors, and any declared but unpaid dividends
or profits thereon up to the date of the settlement,
meanwhile, minus any dividends or profits distributed
to the Pre-IPO Investors.

The liquidation preferences granted to the Pre-IPO
Investors constituted possible obligations for the
Company to repurchase its own equity instruments.
These obligations were recognised as redemption
liabilities which were initially measured at fair value
(representing the present value of the expected cash
flows for settling the related obligations if these rights
are exercised by the investors) and subsequently
measured at amortised cost. The Company applied
a redemption discount rate of 3.10% to determine
the initial recognition amount of the redemption
liabilities. As mentioned above, Lepu Medical was
solely responsible for any settlement to the Pre-IPO
investors if they exercise their redemption rights. The
anti-dilution right was a derivative financial instrument
measured at fair value through profit or loss, of
which the fair value was considered close to nil as
the directors of Company expected the New Low
Financing would never occur before the Company’s
successful IPO.

Pursuant to the Pre-IPO Shareholders Agreement,
the preferred rights granted to the Pre-IPO Investors
would lapse upon the completion of the IPO, the
redemption liabilities would then be transferred to the
Group’s equity accordingly.

e BB HRRHEE
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31

REDEMPTION LIABILITIES (Continued)

(d)

Recognition, measurement and derecognition of
redemption liabilities

The redemption liabilities were arisen from the share
capital of the Company with preferred rights as held
by the Pre-IPO Investors. The Group recognised
the redemption liabilities as financial liabilities due
to that all triggering events of key preferred rights
to the Pre-IPO Investors, were out of control of
the Company and they did not meet the definition
of equity for the Company. The financial liabilities
were initially measured at fair value (representing the
present value of the estimated redemption liabilities)
and subsequently measured at amortised cost. The
present value was the amount expected to be paid
to the Pre-IPO Investors upon liquidation which
was assumed to be at the dates of issuance of the
Company’s shares with preferred rights. Interests
from the financial instruments were charged in
finance cost.

In June 2021, the Company issued share capital
of approximately RMB29,558,000 to the Pre-IPO
Investors. The difference between capital contribution
received from the Pre-IPO Investors and share
capital issued of approximately RMB580,182,000
was credited as the Company’s share premium. The
Company further recognised the redemption liabilities
of approximately of RMB671,507,000 which was the
present value of the estimated redemption liabilities
as of the date of issuance of the Company’s shares
with preferred rights to the Pre-IPO Investors.
The Company applied a redemption discount rate
of 83.10%, to determine the present value of the
redemption liabilities.

Considering the Triggering Events and Effective
Dates as mentioned above, management of the
Company had classified the entire redemption
liabilities as current liabilities as at 31 December
2021.

31

MERR (&)

(d)

OB ERR  FFERALRE

[
ﬁ?tj,\

BREERRARRRERA
FABERMREERA MM EE
ERHRA - R E R AR
ERREENBRETENR
B =B AR R AT
#E BREITAARAH
BENER  FAUAKBEKE
CEEEASTHRAE -/
BENRARAREE (FBEE
BORENRE)E  BE
REBHKAE - RERED
BRARBENREENER
(FEFF AR R B EEER
MWETEH) REXINE
B 2RMITAELMMEFA

R2021F6 A * AARIMEBE KX
AABENREEBRTHAR
#29,558,000 TTHIE A © B8
RARBEERIREE RESH
& E#H AR 580,182,000
TTHE BTN 2 Hr =58
BARNRMRERE - KA F
E—TPHRABELDEBRHAR
¥ 671,507,0007C (A& EAR
RNEIMEEEENRDEITZ
BETHEERARBERNKE
EMHTEDAENRE) -
NATIFER3.10% B E IR
X PETELEENIRE -

& BB -l 53 2= M AR E
B - KRRIEEENR20214F
12A31HEE2HXEREED
HAERBEE -



Annual Report 2022
B FR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

31 REDEMPTION LIABILITIES (Continued)

(d)

Recognition, measurement and derecognition of
redemption liabilities (Continued)

With the completion of the IPO on 8 November 2022
(the “IPO date”), the abovementioned preferred
rights granted to the Pre-IPO Investors were
lapsed. Accordingly, the redemption liabilities of
approximately RMB775,046,000 (after considering
the impact of the exchange losses as arisen from the
retranslation of the redemption liabilities up to the
IPO date) and the treasury stock of approximately
RMB671,507,000 were derecognised and the
difference of approximately RMB103,539,000 was
credited to the other reserves.

The movements of redemption liabilities are set out
below:

As at 1 January 2021

Initial recognition IR TER
Exchange gains B 5 W s

Interest expense (Note 11)

As at 31 December 2021

As at 1 January 2022

e BB HRRHEE

31 RERRK ()

(d)

202118 1H

SRS (FHEE11)

#2021%12H31H

#2022F1A1H

Exchange losses i &8
Interest expense (Note 11) FEFAZ (H5E11)
Derecognition RIETER

As at 31 December 2022

#2022512A31H

OB ERR  FFERALRE
# (%)

BEZE BN ARABEENR2022F
11ASBH ([BERXAHREER
) EMK  EEFERA
RBEEMEEENELEES
K- Bt - BRIEBBEHAR
¥ 775,046,000 T (&=t R &E
FMEHEZE A AATERRH
WER B EEEMEHEIE
VR REFTRHARE
671,507,000 T 42 LEFERR + 1M
=R# ARM103,539,0007T
ThEt AE A

BOBENESHHEIMT

Redemption
liabilities
EEAE
RMB’000
ARBTT

671,507

(2,837)
11,316

679,986

679,986
76,377
18,683

(775,046)
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32 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade payables B S S FIA
— related parties (Note 36(c)) — B85 (FIzE36(c))
— third parties —F=7

Other payables to related parties o fth B A BB 5 B

(Note 36(c)) (Fff3E36(c))
Employee benefits payable FEE B & T
Other taxes payable Hfth & AR A 5K
Accrued listing expenses FEET R

Deposits received from customers B &EFWEHIZ S
Payables for equipment acquisition  FE{S & LRI X
Others HAh

Other payables due to related parties are denominated in
RMB, unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

The carrying amounts of trade and other payables are
considered to be the same as their fair values, due to their
short-term nature.

32 HHARHMEFMNRER

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®FR ARET T

800 =
11,461 6,680
12,261 6,680

163 =

6,681 7,139
6,461 5,167
5,559 5,635

271 326

- 430
3,413 1,023
34,809 26,300

B4 BB T HOE B A R 5t
& WIER  FiE - AAREX
1%

B

o
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fi

X
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32 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

The credit period granted by suppliers to the Group
ranged from 30 days to 120 days. Aging analysis of the
trade payables at each balance sheet date are as follows:

Within 1 year —FK
Between 1 year and 2 years 1EFE2F
Over 2 years 2F A E

The carrying amounts of trade and other payables are
denominated in the following currencies:

RMB AR
EUR BT
UsD e

32

e BB HRRHEE

B %R K e RROA (1)
HEREE T AREMEERN T30
RE120K - REAERER B BN
B SR TERRONMT :

As at 31 December

M12H31H
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARET T

11,992 6,533
122 =
147 147

12,261 6,680

B 5% E A OB B EE AT
5B B 3T

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETT

30,892 25,407
50 =
3,867 893

34,809 26,300
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33 CONTRACT LIABILITIES 33 SWER
As at 31 December
M12A31H
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TTRT AREET T
Contract liabilities GHBEE
— receipts in advance from — AR F A
customers 1,485 3,229
— rebates to customers (note) —BTFEFEREF () 2,528 3,589
— customers’ rights to claim for — B BINZEINE m AR
additional units of products (note) (PfH=E) 9,106 7,965
13,119 14,783

Note: BIsE -

The Group has contracted with certain customers to offer them
with volume rebates if their purchases of the Group’s products (i.e.
occluders) have exceeded certain pre-determined level and these
volume rebates are to be settled by way of the delivery of additional
units of the Group’s products to these customers with no cash
alternative settlement. In addition, the Group has also contracted
with certain customers for granting them with the rights to claim for
the Group’s delivery of additional units of its products (capped at a
pre-determined ratio to the respective customer’s total quantities of
products as purchased in a financial year) under certain pre-agreed
circumstances which are irrelevant to the quality and functionality of the
Group’s products (the “claims of additional units”). The sale transaction
prices as allocated to the Group’s unsatisfied performance obligations in
delivering additional units of its products as settlement for the aforesaid
volume rebates and the claims of additional units have been deferred
and accounted for as contract liabilities of the Group.

The Group’s contract liabilities as at 1 January 2021 amounted to
approximately RMB15,343,000.

Revenue recognised that was included
in the contract liabilities balance BB A
at the beginning of the year

REFFABHNRBEEHBRN

AEBEHEETREFRIMNAKN  BEF
BEASEER (HER) BB ED
BREAKF - RlAEEREMERT - B
ZERERNBAAZETF RN A%
BN EMOTAEE  MERSER
EEITA - WIN ARESTEETEP
A RTPESEE TEENENER
TERARERNEING R (LR AERE
EPR—AMBREFENMBEEREE
RTRELL R ) HORER - MmN EER
MWEERIhseanf ([FEIERER]) -
EXNEINERE - DEREAEERE
TROEBHHERXSERALGAHE
BRAETHEE BRI ERBRTIREL
ARIEAREBRADERE -

AEBMR2021F1 A1 BNANARBNES
AR#15,343,0007T °

Year ended 31 December

HE12A31BLEE

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT AR¥ET T
14,783 15,343
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34 CASH FLOW INFORMATION 34 BERERH
(a) Reconciliation of (loss)/profit before income tax (@) Fri8Bian (&8)  FlEELE
to cash generated from operations 8RS IR

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A3MHILEE

2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®FR ARBET T

(Loss)/profit before income tax Fris®ian (&18),/ FIE (15,032) 66,027
Adjustments for: BT SIEIEL A
— depreciation and amortisation —rE R 14,869 9,807
— amortisation of deferred income — Ed B 5 %5 Bh A 8 6948 iE Uk
related to government grants N = (482) (833)
— net loss on write-off of property, —#iiEE - BENFZRE
plant and equipment EAREREE 1 1
— net provision/(reversal) of —SREERBEEERE
impairment losses on (B[O) F5a
financial assets 5,727 (533)
— share-based compensation — DARS D & 21 B 2 B 5 <
expenses 20,513 17,800
— fair value losses on financial —AREBETEAEEE)
assets at fair value through SAEHIEZENESEE
profit or loss ENARBEER 4,928 -
- investment income on financial — A4 (BE 28 &
assets at fair value through SAEHEENESEE
profit or loss EREEU A (10,395) (6,669)
— finance costs — net — ISR AN R %R 13,306 10,360
— net foreign exchange losses/ —HNEEIE S (Yhzs) (EEE
(gains) 82,279 (5,192)
115,714 90,768
Change in working capital: EEECEE
- inventories -FE (23,996) (10,088)
- prepayments and other — T FRIE K E A e U IR
receivables (18,171) 1,725
— trade receivables — B 5 EWFIA (12,027) 13,509
— trade and other payables — B NE MR FRIE 7,917 9,250
- contract liabilities —atnarE (1,664) (560)
— restricted cash —XRE® (790) €

Cash generated from operations AL FT1SIHE & 66,983 104,609
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34 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued)

(b) Changes in liabilities from financing activities

At 1 January 2021 ®2021E181H

Cash flows Hene

New leases e

Additions =Y

Initial recognition of redemption B & ENRER
liabilities (Note 31) (BEE31)

Interest expense (Note 11) AR (HE11)

Foreign exchange adjustment SNEFAE (FI7E31)
(Note 31)

At 31 December 2021 #2021512A31H

At 1 January 2022 ®2022F1A1H

Cash flows Hene

New leases M

Interest expense (Note 11) M ERAZ (fEE11)

Foreign exchange adjustments SR (FIEE31)
(Note 31)

Derecognition of redemption BEEE ER IR
liabilities (Note 31) (P5E31)

Other changes H fth &

At 31 December 2022 #2022%12A31H

34 BanERHE (#)
(b) BMEITBHEEEH
Other
payable to
Lease Redemption related
liabilities liabilities parties
H At e 1S
HEAE BEAaE BHIRE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR¥ETR AR%¥TR
116 - 45,754
(2,378) - (45,858)
8,220 - -
- - 104
- 671,507 -
229 11,316 -
- (2,837) -
6,187 679,986 -
6,187 679,986 -
(3,630) - -
653 - -
288 18,683 -
- 76,377 -
- (775,046) -
(163) - -
3,335 - -
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34 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued) 34 BERERH (|)
(c) Major non-cash transactions (c) FEFBLRH

Year ended 31 December

HZ12A31BLEE

2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®FR ARET T

Derecognition of redemption fEE B ER IR (H3E31)
liabilities (Note 31) 775,046 -
Issue of shares to Lepu Medical ) 4 BE R B A T AR A
in exchange of its entire 100% Tﬁﬂiﬁﬁiiﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂ’l?‘%
equity interest in Shanghai SRR 2 E100%
Shape Memory Alloy HXZME (FtaE1.2(v) &2
(Notes 1.2(v) and 27(a)) 27(a)) - 713,776
35 COMMITMENTS 35 i
The Group’s capital commitments as of 31 December HE2022F K2021F12A831H -
2022 and 2021 are as follows: AEBEREAEWNT ¢
As at 31 December
®12A31H
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBTIT
Property, plant and equipment Y - BE RS 1,283 10,776
36 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36 RABARXH
Parties are considered to be related if one party has the M—FREAE RS MEESS—F
ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party N IE B — 5 1B 7S M A R R B
or exercise significant influence over the other party in Eﬁﬂﬂiﬁ FE . RZFHEARAE
making financial and operation decisions. Parties are also B o ZE|HRIEHIME A MERA
considered to be related if they are subject to common FE R o
control.
The following is a summary of the significant transactions TR AR = B B R B T N E
carried out between the Group and its related parties in 2022 F 2021 F12A31 BIEFE
the ordinary course of the Group’s business during the EAREEHSXEBBEAETHE
years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, and balances AR5 ARR2022F K% 20214

with related parties as at 31 December 2022 and 2021. 12 A31 H B R 5 AR o
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36 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(@)

Name and relationship with related parties

Names of the major related parties

EFERBAHER

Lepu Medical Technology (Beijing) Co., Ltd.
(“Lepu Medical”)
2% () BERSMRO AR AR ([EEEE])

Jiangsu Bolangsensi Medical Equipment Co., Ltd.

IHEREBREMERAF

Lepu (Shanghai) Medical Equipment Co., Ltd.
fE (s BERSMARAT

Xi ‘an Qinming Medical Instrument Co., Ltd.
AXRABRBERRERAAF

Anhui Magete Medical Technology Co., Ltd.
ZHAEBREEENRERAF

Lepu International Holdings (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.
LEBRR R ORYI) AR A A

Hefei High-tech Cardiovascular Hospital

B B =0 M E R B B

Beijing Ruixiang Taikang Technology Co., Ltd.
R RERRER AR

Beijing Target Medical Technologies Co., Ltd.
I RR G R AR A A

LepuCare (India) Vascular Solutions Pvt. Ltd.

36 MHAEXR (W)

(a)

BRS8N ELRA T U5 HO R 1R

Nature of relationship

REE"
Parent of the Company

PAN/NEIES/NE]

A subsidiary of Lepu Medical
SEEEMBLAT

A subsidiary of Lepu Medical
LETRENE LA

A subsidiary of Lepu Medical
HEBRBENME LA

A subsidiary of Lepu Medical
SEBRBENE LA

A subsidiary of Lepu Medical
HETBRBENE LA

A subsidiary of Lepu Medical
LERBENE LA

A subsidiary of Lepu Medical
ESin ) YN

A subsidiary of Lepu Medical
LERBRNMBLA

A subsidiary of Lepu Medical
LERBENB LA
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(Continued)

(@)

Name and relationship with related parties (a)
(Continued)

Names of the major related parties

EFERMBAHER

Beijing Lepu Precision Medical Technology Co., Ltd.
I REEREBREMRARRAR]

Jiangsu Shangzhi Medical Instrument Co., Ltd.

LAk FE BRI AR A A

Beijing Lepu Medical Technology Co., Ltd.
EREEZHBRROARRA

Beijing Lepu Health Care Network Technology Co., Ltd
IR LEEEERRERAF

Lepu Biopharma Co., Ltd.

LEEMREBRNBR AT

Lepu Hangjia (Shanghai) Business Incubator Management Co., Ltd.

LEmz(L8)AZER REEARAA
Shanghai Lepu Yunzhi Technology Co., Ltd.

LBEEEERERNERAT

e BB HRRHEE

36 MBAEXR ()

BAR 5 B RE K ELRA T 05 RO BR 1R
(#&)

Nature of relationship

FEER

A subsidiary of Lepu Medical

SETRENE LA

A subsidiary of Lepu Medical

LERBENE LA

A subsidiary of Lepu Medical

SERBENE LA

A subsidiary of Lepu Medical

LHETRBENE LA

A joint venture of Lepu Medical

REERCELR

A subsidiary of joint venture of
Lepu Medical

DEBRBRSELENNEAR

A joint venture of subsidiary of
Lepu Medical

DEBBEMNBARNSERLE
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36 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36 RMMAXS (i)
(Continued)

(b) Transactions with related parties (b) EHEHEBLINXZ

Year ended 31 December

HBZ12A31BLEE

2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®FR ARET T

Sale of goods HE® m
— Lepu Medical —RLER - 9,712
— Subsidiaries of Lepu Medical — BB E N ) 5,412 6,384
5,412 16,096
Rental income GER PN
— Subsidiaries of Lepu Medical — 4 B2 BRI R\ 7] 215 471
— Joint venture of Lepu Medical _ﬁaithQr/\ﬁLt% - 522
— Subsidiary of joint venture of —%%%fé SEENNE
Lepu Medical NEl - 1,041
— A joint venture of subsidiary of — —%4&3E2gRFEINFIHSE
Lepu Medical 3 315 -
530 2,034
Commission income e ON
— Subsidiary of Lepu Medical — BB N A 746 =
Purchases of raw materials and B E REM & KR
services
- Lepu Medical (note) — BB (MTE) 27,977 29,258
- Subsidiaries of Lepu Medical —RERENBA 4,144 3,036
32,121 32,294
Addition of right-of-use assets RECREEE (HERT)
(leased buildings)
— Lepu Medical — ZEE s - 2,901

Payment of lease liabilities SHHEEAE
~ Lepu Medical —BEERE - 596
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36 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(b)

Transactions with related parties (Continued)
Note:

Up to the date of these consolidated financial statements,
the key research and development work of certain heart
valve products were registered under the name of, and
conducted by, Lepu Medical. In May 2021, the Group
entered into a framework agreement with Lepu Medical
and entrusted Lepu Medical to development of certain
heart valve products under the Group’s instruction due
to regulatory restrictions and commercial reasons (the
“Entrusted Development Services”). For the years ended 31
December 2022 and 2021, the service fee paid/payable to
Lepu Medical in respect of these Entrusted Development
Services amounted to approximately RMB27,977,000 and
RMB28,715,000, respectively.

On top of the transactions with related parties as disclosed
above, the Group also has the following transactions with
related parties as disclosed in other notes:

(i) the Group had issued certain of its shares to Lepu
Medical in March 2021 for the 100% equity interest
in Shanghai Shape Memory Alloy (Note 27(a));

(i) the Group had certain deemed contributions from or
distributions to Lepu Medical during the year ended
31 December 2021 (Notes 28(a) and 29(a)); and

(i) the Group has purchased certain COVID-19 antigen
testing related products with carrying amounts of
approximately RMB22,681,000 from a subsidiary of
Lepu Medical and sold them to end customers on
behalf of that subsidiary of Lepu Medical under a
distribution arrangement in 2022. The only income
recognised by the Group is the net commission
income from the related party of approximately
RMB746,000.

e BB HRRHEE

36 MBAEXR ()

(b)

HEBLINRS (&)
BT -

BEEZSHRAMBHREAH 5T
ODREREEMOBRAEIER
AT EENZE MY HHEE
17 ° R2021F5 8 * AREERH|
REFERE - N6 B LT
RIMIERGEIW R T L EEIR
BASEMNETARSE T LHEE
RER((ZXAERE]) - #2
2022F k2021 F 12 A31 HIEF
B RZREZAEERBEHN
N TRETEBENREE D RL
BARME27,977,0007T K AR
28,715,0007T °

E SR ER O R B R 0T S T T Y
R ANEE TR E A P T R AT
BHRBIET T A TR ¢

() AEEER20214E3 A%
REBERZREESME
B 100 % A% 7S # 25 [A) 44
BT HE TRG (MsE
27(a)) :

(i) BZE2021F12A31HILF
B AEBHEAEWAERE
YT BB H)E T LB 5 [ 4
T REELNE TR (H
#E28(a) X 29(a)) ¢ &

(i) AEER2022FERIE
A5 GH 22 B R B2 BRI B
ARIBEREEHEHNAAR
#22,681,00070 K% F
COVID-19471 R 42 Al 18 Bl &=
o 3 B R RS B
%Qﬂ%*ﬁ%@éuum%mﬁ
BE o AEBEFERNME
— WA B PR B R R &
WA FEEHANERBET746,000

JE ©
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e M HRRHE

36 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

()

Balances with related parties

Receivables from related parties F&UBREE 75 R 1E

Trade receivables
— Subsidiaries of Lepu Medical

Other receivables
— A joint venture of a subsidiary
of Lepu Medical

Prepayments
— Subsidiaries of Lepu Medical

Payables to related parties

Trade payables
— Subsidiaries of Lepu Medical

Other payables
— Lepu Medical

Lease liabilities
— Lepu Medical

B 5 WA

36

—HEEFENBAR

H Aty FE UK IR

—HELBFENBARN

AALE

BRI

— HUBENBAR

FE £ BRBE 5 B IR

B 5 RN R

kvl

—HEBE

All the trade receivables/payables, lease liabilities
and prepayment balances with related parties are
trade in nature and remaining receivables/payable
balance with related parties are non-trade in nature.
All the balance with related parties are unsecured,
interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment.

ABEER (\)

(c) EREBERTT HVA&SER

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBFIT
1,039 270
334 =
1,358 58
800 =
163 -
- 2,157

P B 5 W RIE R R
B HEAERERE AN
FRERTEE HIEE - HER
B/ FEAS RAR 75 SR IB A R JER
FEHIEE - A EREE TN
RAEEA - AR BEE

EEERR
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36 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(d)

Key management personnel compensation

Key management includes directors (executive
and non-executive) and respective department
heads. The compensation paid or payable to key
management for employee services is shown below:

Wages, salaries and bonuses, IE  HFekias -
other short-term employee HEa g BifE B &
benefits and share-based VAR B B DA 3R
payment
— Directors and supervisors —EERES
— Other key management —HMFEERAE

e BB HRRHEE

36 MBAEXR ()

(d)

FTEEBEASHH

TEEBEABBRERNITRIEH
TEERZHITE -RAETE
EEABREEREENHE
EVEB T AR -

Year ended 31 December

HBZ12A31BLLEE

2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®FR ARET T

9,374 8,147
5,409 4,388

14,783 12,535
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e M HRRHE

36 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

(e) Directors’ emoluments

The remuneration of every director and the chief
executive officer for the years ended 31 December
2022 and 2021, were set out below:

For the year ended 31 December 2022

Executive directors

Ms. Chen Juan

Ms. Zhang Yuxin
Non-executive directors
Mr. Fu Shan

Mr. Zheng Guorui

Mr. Zheng Yufeng

Mr. Liu Daozhi

Ms. Chan Ka Lai Vanessa

#F2022F 12831 HILFE
BITEE

Bigxt

REMLT

FUTES

ks

BB E

BTEEE

fEtrs

BEELL

36 MHAEXR (W)

(e) EE=ME
B £2022F & 2021412 A31
HIEFE @ SEFRITHREH
WE M AT
Social
security
Wages,  costs and Share-
salaries and housing based
bonuses benefits ~ payments Total
1% #t HeREEAR HURkRE
RilF HEERT EROMR &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARRTT AR®TR AR¥TR ARWTIL
1,500 147 2,872 4,519
999 139 2,490 3,628
200 - - 200
200 - - 200
200 - - 200
3,099 286 5,362 8,747
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36 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

()

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE2021F12831 ALLEE

Executive directors BiTES

Ms. Chen Juan (note a) BRIt (Mizta)
Ms. Zhang Yuxin (note b) KEHLL (fiih)
Non-executive directors FUTES

Mr. Fu Shan (note e) b s (fite)
Mr. Zheng Guorui (note e) %A (Fie)
Mr. Leung Waifung (note c) P A (fitskc)
Mr. Zheng Yufeng (note ) BEE5x A (fitste)
Mr. Liu Daozhi (note e) HEHxE (Mte)
Ms. Chan Ka Lai Vanessa (note d) BREB L (fifd)
Notes:

(@)

Ms. Chen Juan was appointed as the chief executive
officer and director of the Company on 29 January
2021. The amounts presented above for the year
ended 31 December 2021 represent the wages,
salaries and bonuses and other benefits paid/payable
to her during that year.

Ms. Zhang Yuxin was appointed as a director of
the Company on 29 January 2021. The amounts
presented for the year ended 31 December 2021
represent the wages, salaries and bonuses and other
benefits paid/payable to her during that year.

Mr. Leung Waifung was appointed as a non-executive
director of the Company on 29 January 2021 and
resigned on 2 September 2021.

e BB HRRHEE

36 MBAEXR ()

(e) EEM=E (8)

Social
security
Wages, costs and Share-
salaries and housing based
bonuses benefits payments Total
I% 5% HeREER SARAR &
RAH  MEEEN AR5 At

RMB'O00 ~ RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000
ARETL ARETR ARETR ARETRL

1,411 131 2,276 3,818
949 131 1,973 3,063
133 = = 133
17 = = 17
17 = = 17

67 = = 67

2,794 262 4,249 7,306

fi g -

(a) PFRIEZZEMR20214F1H29H
ERITARRNBITHRERF
EE o P2 EE2021
F12A31B L FESEIE
ZFEEREN B TED
T& - Frd MAFI A R HAh
aA

(b) REBTALTRN2021F1 829
HEZEAARBIES - &
W25 # 22021412 A31
HiEFEBEZFEAND
5/ BITENTE e
RAT R DA R H 0 48 K ©

(c) REBFKER2021%F1 829
BEZTAAARIENITE
EIH2021 9 A2 H &g ©
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e M HRRHE

36 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

()

(f)

(9)

(h)

(i)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(d)  Ms. Chan Ka Lai Vanessa was appointed as a non-
executive director of the Company on 2 September
2021.

(e) Mr. Fu Shan, Mr. Zheng Guorui, Mr. Zheng Yufeng
and Mr. Liu Daozhi were appointed as non-executive
directors of the Company on 9 June 2021.

Directors’ retirement benefits

There were no retirement benefits paid/payable to
any director during the years ended 31 December
2022 and 2021.

Directors’ termination benefits

There were no termination benefits paid/payable to
any director during the years ended 31 December
2022 and 2021.

Consideration provided to or receivable by third
parties for making available directors’ Services

No consideration was provided to or receivable by
third parties for making available directors’ services
during the years ended 31 December 2022 and
2021.

Information about loans, quasi-loans, controlled
corporate bodies, connected entities and other
dealings in favor of directors

No loans, quasi-loans, controlled corporate bodies,
connected entities and other dealings were entered
into between the Group and the directors in favor of
the directors, during the years ended 31 December
2022 and 2021.

36 MHAEXR (W)

(e)

(f)

(9)

(h)

(i)

EESME (8)
BaE : (%)

(d FEEZELZLTR2021F9A72
AEZRETAARABFFHITE
% o

(e) fHil%k4sE BEGELE B

5 4 R BB ER

2021 F6 AR EZTE AKX
DRIFHITES ©

BEERHKEN

HE2022F 2021412 A 31
BItFE  WESKN EBNF
EREEHRIRER -

EEREREN

HE2022F 22021412 A 31
BILFE  WEEHN EBHF
ERESHNETREF o

RREABERBEMEAE=F1E
HEAFE = WM HE

HE2022F 2021412 A 31
BIEFE  WERE= M
s 5 = 5 WERE = RIS A 4
E o

BHREN - ZEX - 2EZEA
HEE - MEERMEMAENR
EENXZNER

HZE20224F 2021412 A 31
AILFEE  AEBEEZEZHE
JDEJAEHEMBAi%BGE
/TQ\ —'—%Q = fA@ A=
Eﬁi@,\ﬁgfﬂﬁi\@x% o



36

37

38

Annual Report 2022
B FR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

() Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company was a party and in which a
director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the years ended 31
December 2022 and 2021.

CONTINGENCIES

The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities
as of 31 December 2022 and 2021.

DIVIDEND

Pursuant to the resolution of the shareholders’ meeting of
Shanghai Shape Memory Alloy held on 20 January 2021, it
is resolved that Shanghai Shape Memory Alloy distributed
dividend of RMB320,000,000 to Lepu Medical. No other
dividend has been declared by the Company or the
companies now comprising the Group during the years
ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

36

37

38

e BB HRRHEE

ABAEER (\)

() EREXZ ZRPFEHEHTH
EM L

HZE2022%F 2021412 A 31
BIEFE  ARRRERKE
AR T FEARBIES—
FRANREEEENFEE
EEAESNEASEXRKS
HNEARS « THERAEL -

RBEER

HE2022F K20215E12A31H -
AEEWEIMEARGERE -

Bz 2

BEEBSHEHRLZEESEE M HR
20211 A20H BB E RS
FRZEZR - LR EAEEME
REMETEEREREARK
320,000,0007T ° E E£2022F &
202112 A31HILEFE » AAREK
ANEBMBREBETRARBEARE REM

n
RS o
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e M HRRHE

39 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE 39 FAFIEEEBERREME
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY )]
Company Balance Sheet AREEEER
As at 31 December
M12A31H
2022 2021
20224 20214
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

B aE AR®FR ARET T

ASSETS "E
Non-current assets ERDEE
Investments in subsidiary RSB R AR E 27(a) 713,776 718,776
Deferred income tax assets RIEFTISTREE 11,889 5,652
Long-term bank deposit RHIRTTF R 26 72,396 =
Total non-current assets FERBEERE 798,061 719,428
Current assets MENEE
Prepayments and other receivables FB{< FtIA K H {th fE Uk 30 I8 39,128 4,566
Financial assets at fair value AR EEZBEES)

through profit or loss FTABHIEENSREE 258,109 -
Cash and cash equivalents BeRReEEY 837,847 694,946
Total current assets mBDEERE 1,135,084 699,512
Total assets HERE 1,933,145 1,418,940
EQUITY #a
Share capital f&Zx 27 346,750 324,295
Treasury stock JERER 28 - (671,507)
Other reserves HAth 1,718,549 1,057,714
Accumulated losses RETEsE (142,877) (30,339)

Total equity RaRHE 1,922,422 680,163
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e BB HRRHEE

39 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Company Balance Sheet (Continued)

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities
Redemption liabilities
Trade and other payables

Total current liabilities

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

The balance sheet of the Company was approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company

fafR

RBRRE

BEaE

B 5 N E e R
mENRAREE
AfREH

HaRARER

on 31 March 2023 and was signed on its behalf by:

39 FLAFREARERFRE

B (48)
AEEEAERX (&)
As at 31 December
M12A31H
2022 2021
20224 20214
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Mo AR®TRT ARETTT
€l - 679,986
10,723 58,791
10,723 738,777
10,723 738,777
1,933,145 1,418,940

KRB EEBBREARAES
@R 202343 A31 B#ft £ RIFET
WA FIATARRESE -
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e M HRRHE

39 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Reserve movement of the Company

Balance at 29 January 2021 (date of 12021518298 (F A M

incorporation of the Company) R AR BOEEER
- Issuance of shares to Lepu Medical — ML REETRG
(Note 27(a) GERE)
- Issuance of shares to Target Medical — RAMAHETRGD
(Note 27(a) GERE)
- Issuance of shares to Ningbo Jiacheng —MEREZREREE
and Ningbo Jiadu (Note 27(0)) 2478 (FEEE27(0))
— Issuance of shares to Pre-IPO Investors ~ — RIERAHEERIRES
(Note 27(c)) BTl (FHEE27(c)
Balance at 31 December 2021 1202112831 ARSEERR
Balance at 1 January 2022 202218 1 AR
- Issuance of ordinary shares upon — BRRHABEERAET
completion of the IPO (Note 27(d)) L@k (FEE27(d)
- Share issuance costs (Note 27(d)) — BRI BITAA (Fi3E27(d)
- Derecognition of redemption liabilities — RILHERER & (fE31)
(Note 31)

Balance at 31 December 2022 202212 A 31 H KR

39 ANFREARKRREME

By (48
A EMREEE
Share Capital

premium reserve Total
REE EXNE L
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBT T ARBT T
436,576 - 436,576
4,409 - 4,409
36,547 - 36,547
580,182 - 580,182
1,057,714 - 1,057,714
1,057,714 - 1,057,714
579,174 - 579,174
(21,878) - (21,878)
- 103,539 103,539
1,615,010 103,539 1,718,549




Address
Mkt

Room 401, Building 41, No. 258,
Xinzhuan Road, Songjiang District,
Shanghai, PRC

HE BTN RN
258574118401 E

Room 301, 3/F, Building 41,

No. 258, Xinzhuan Road,
Songjiang District,

Shanghai, PRC

HE BTN RIEFAK
2585 411E3 /€301 =

Room 302, 3/F, Building 41,

No. 258, Xinzhuan Road,
Songjiang District,

Shanghai, PRC

HE BB RERAK
2585k 411E3[E302%

Rooms 201 and 202, Building 41,
No. 258, Xinzhuan Road,
Songjiang District,

Shanghai, PRC

HE BTN RIERAK
258574118201 k202 =

Annual Report 2022
B FR

Particulars of Investment Properties

Existing use
ERAE

Industrial building for rental

REHENTEET

Industrial building for rental

REHENTEET

Industrial building for rental

REHENTEET

Industrial building for rental

REHENTEET

Tenure

H

Short-term leases
FMHIHE

Short-term leases
CHIE

Short-term leases
FEHIHE

Short-term leases
ZHIHE

As of December 31, 2022
#HZE2022F12A31H

Attributable interest
of Location Use
Tenure the Group
XKML
ERFEHELRES

100%

100%

100%

100%
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Four-Year Financial Summary

U B LR

Operating Results wEER

Revenue WA
(Loss)/profit before income tax FTSHi AT (E518),/ Fi8
Income tax expense FTiSHiFAX
(Loss)/profit for the year ARRHEEAEIEEAR
attributable to owners of (&#8),/ 58
the Company

Financial Position g 197
Total assets BERE
Total liabilities BfEQE
Total equity R AAEE

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A31BLEE
2022 2021 2020 2019
2022F 20214 20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFR ARETTT ARETT ARETT
247,670 222,583 148,247 116,451
(15,032) 66,027 76,679 60,346
(4,781) (7,330) (7,907) (8,437)
(19,813) 58,697 68,772 51,909

As at 31 December

®12831H

2022 2021 2020 2019
20224 2021 4F 20204F 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARETT ARETT ARETT
1,809,621 1,119,690 332,510 308,561
65,094 734,499 78,911 76,692
1,744,527 385,191 253,599 231,869
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